Public Document Pack

o L BARRY KEEL
\Q\J Chief Executive

Floor 1 - Civic Centre

Plymouth

Phymouth T
yno

www.plymouth.gov.uk/democracy

Date: 11/10/10 Telephone Enquiries 01752 304867 Fax 01752 304819
Nicola Kirby, Senior Democratic Support . nicola.kirby@plymouth.gov.

Please ask for Officer (Cabinet) e-mail uk

CABINET

DATE: TUESDAY 19 OCTOBER 2010

TIME: 2.00 PM

PLACE: WARSPITE ROOM, COUNCIL HOUSE

Members —

Councillor Mrs Pengelly, Chair

Councillor Fry, Vice Chair

Councillors Bowyer, Brookshaw, Jordan, Michael Leaves, Sam Leaves, Monahan,
Mrs Watkins and Wigens

Members are invited to attend the above meeting to consider the items of business
overleaf

Members and Officers are requested to sign the attendance list at the meeting.

BARRY KEEL
CHIEF EXECUTIVE



CABINET

AGENDA

PART | - PUBLIC MEETING

APOLOGIES
To receive apologies for non-attendance submitted by Cabinet Members.
DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Cabinet Members will be asked to make any declarations of interest in respect of
items on this agenda.

MINUTES (Pages 1 - 6)

To sign and confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 14
September 2010.

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC
To receive questions from the public in accordance with the Constitution.

Questions, of no longer than 50 words, can be submitted to the Democratic
Support Unit, Corporate Support Department, Plymouth City Council, Civic Centre,
Plymouth, PL1 2AA, or email to democraticsupport@plymouth.gov.uk. Any
questions must be received at least five clear working days before the date of the
meeting.

CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS

To receive reports on business which, in the opinion of the Chair, should be
brought forward for urgent consideration.

REPORTS FROM SCRUTINY
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT BOARD - A (Pages 7 - 30)
FOCUS ON REDUCING TEENAGE CONCEPTION RATES
IN THE CITY.

Councillor James, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board, has
been invited to attend the meeting to present the recommendations.



SCRUTINY DEVELOPMENTS (Pages 31 - 34)

Councillor James, Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board will
report on scrutiny developments during the last quarter.

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board Quarterly Report submitted to the
Board on 22 September 2010 is attached.

CABINET MEMBERS: THE DEPUTY LEADER AND COUNCILLOR WIGENS

SHORELINE MANAGEMENT PLAN REVIEW DURLSTON (Pages 35 - 54)
HEAD TO RAME HEAD

CMT Lead Officer: Director for Development and Regeneration
CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR BROOKSHAW

MOUNT EDGCUMBE JOINT COMMITTEE - (Pages 55 - 68)
CONSTITUTION

CMT Lead Officers: Director for Community Services and Director for Corporate
Support

Minutes 11 and 17 of the Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee are submitted for
consideration.

CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR MRS WATKINS

SERVICES FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE (Pages 69 - 80)
BASIC NEED PROGRAMME

CMT Lead Officer: Director of Services for Children and Young People
CABINET MEMBER: COUNCILLOR WIGENS

PLYMOUTH'S THIRD LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN - (Pages 81 - 232)
CONSULTATION DRAFT

CMT Lead Officer: Director for Development and Regeneration
EXEMPT BUSINESS

To consider passing a resolution under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government
Act 1972 to exclude the press and public from the meeting for the following item(s)
of business on the grounds that it (they) involve(s) the likely disclosure of exempt
information as defined in paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act, as
amended by the Freedom of Information Act 2000.



PART Il (PRIVATE MEETING)

MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO NOTE

That under the law, the Committee is entitled to consider certain items in private.
Members of the public will be asked to leave the meeting when such items are
discussed.

Nil



43.

44.

45.

Page 1 Agenda ltem 3

Cabinet

Tuesday 14 September 2010

PRESENT:

Councillor Mrs Pengelly, in the Chair.

Councillor Fry, Vice Chair.

Councillors Bowyer, Brookshaw, Jordan, Michael Leaves, Sam Leaves and Monahan.
Also in attendance: Barry Keel (Chief Executive), Bronwen Lacey (Director of Services
for Children and Young People), lan Gallin (Assistant Chief Executive), Giles Perritt
(Head of Policy Performance and Partnerships) and Malcolm Coe (Head of Finance,
Assets and Efficiencies), Tim Howes (Assistant Director for Democracy and
Governance) and Jayne Gorton (School Organisation and Pupil Access Manager).
Apologies for absence: Councillors Mrs Watkins and Wigens.

The meeting started at 2.00 pm and finished at 2.25 pm.

Note: At a future meeting, the Cabinet will consider the accuracy of these draft minutes,

so they may be subject to change. Please check the minutes of that meeting to confirm
whether these minutes have been amended.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest in accordance with the Code of Conduct from
councillors in relation to items under consideration at this meeting.

MINUTES

The minutes of the meetings held on 10 and 16 August 2010 were signed as a
correct record.

QUESTIONS FROM THE PUBLIC

In accordance with paragraph 10 of the Constitution, the following question was
submitted and the response provided as indicated below -

Cabinet Tuesday 14 September 2010



46.

47.

Page 2

Question | Question By | Cabinet Subject
No Member
8 10/11 Mr F E Sharpe | Councillor Plymstock swimming pool.
Brookshaw

Please could Plymstock residents have an update on plan B for the
Plymstock Swimming Pool site if there is one. Residents were never
consulted on possible site at Sherford, not wanted there. No funding
arranged at Sherford, South Hams Council plans meeting is Sherford needed
or viable, Plymouth stays quiet.

Response:
There is no change to our published position. Our swimming pool facility
strategy clearly states that the pool to serve the East of the city will be

provided in Plymouth as part of the Sherford development.

In the absence of Mr Sharpe, Agreed that a written response is sent to him.
CHAIR'S URGENT BUSINESS

There was no Chair’s urgent business.

CITY AND COUNCIL PRIORITIES

The Assistant Chief Executive submitted a written report.

Members sought further consideration of the term ‘Building Capacity’ as a priority for

the City and the Council, and expressed concern at the wording ‘strengthen civil
society’ which appeared under ‘What the partnership will do’ to achieve ‘Building
Capacity’.

Agreed that —

(1) authority is delegated to the Assistant Chief Executive, in
consultation with the Chair and the Cabinet Member for
Performance and Transformation, to consider further the term
‘Building Capacity’ and to report to the City Council;

(2) the City Council is Recommended -

(a) to reaffirm the City’s vision and goals as follows -

Plymouth’s vision is that, by 2020 Plymouth will be
recognised as one of Europe’s finest, most vibrant
waterfront cities where an outstanding quality of life is
enjoyed by everyone.

The City’s goals are that Plymouth should be —




48.

Page 3

* A healthy place to live and work
* A wealthy city which creates and shares prosperity

* A safe and strong, clean and green city

» A wise city — a location for learning, achievement and

leisure

(b) subject to (1) above, to adopt the revised City and
Council priorities as follows -

Our priorities

What the
partnership will do

What the Council
will do

Delivering Create the skills and | Ensure the
Growth infrastructure to infrastructure is in
develop the economy | place and that jobs
and wealth targets
are met
Raising Promote and support | Provide city and
Aspiration the city, raising the regional leadership,
expectations of ensure improved
Plymouth educational
attainment,
marketing and
communication
Reducing Reduce the Make specifically
inequalities inequality targeted
gap, particularly in interventions to
health reduce inequality
gaps
Building Strengthen our Achieve efficiency
capacity communities and through
(subject to work together to transformation of our
decision (1) maximise resources | service delivery
above) to benefit customers | arrangements,  our

and make internal
efficiencies

culture, our structure
and our approach to
customers

CHANGES IN EXECUTIVE ARRANGEMENTS

The Monitoring Officer (Assistant Director for Democracy and Governance) submitted

a written report.

Agreed that the City Council is Recommended to approve —

(1)

the consultation plan as set out in the report;




49.

50.

Page 4

(2) the Leader and Cabinet Executive model as the preferred form
of executive arrangements, for consultation.

THE FUTURE PATTERN OF SECONDARY EDUCATION - ACADEMIES
The Director of Services for Children and Young People submitted a written report.

The Chair thanked the City Council’s co-sponsors (the University and Cornwall
College for the Marine Academy Plymouth, and the Church of England Diocese and
the College of St Mark and St John for the All Saints Academy), for their commitment
to children and young people in Plymouth.

She also extended the thanks of Cabinet Members to Jayne Gorton, Gareth
Simmons, John Searson, Wendy Roderick (from the Services for Children and Young
People Department), for all their hard work and a special thank you was extended to
Sonia Oates (from the Human Resources department) who had worked hard on the
staffing issues and was continuing to assist at the Marine Academy.

With regard to the building schools for the future project, the Chair informed Cabinet
Members that a meeting had been secured with Ministers to discuss the project and
she thanked Councillor Mrs Watkins and Oliver Colvile MP for their hard work
towards this outcome.

The Director of Services for Children and Young People reported that the official
opening of the Marine Academy had been very successful and the official opening for
the All Saints Church of England Academy would be held later in the month.

Agreed that —

(1) the revised arrangements for the closure of the John Kitto and
Tamarside Community Colleges and the opening of the two
academies, the All Saints Church of England Academy and the
Marine Academy Plymouth, contained within the report, are
noted;

(2) a letter is sent by the Chair, to the governors and staff at the
new academies, wishing them every success in the future.

TRANSFORMATION OF THE PLYMOUTH HOSPITAL SCHOOL AND OUTREACH
CENTRE

The Director of Services for Children and Young People submitted a written report.
Agreed that —
(1) the Director of Services for Children and Young People is
authorised to hold formal consultations with all interested

parties on a proposal to discontinue the Plymouth Hospital
School with effect from 14 February 2011;



(2)

Page 5

the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People, in the light
of the outcomes of and responses to the formal consultation, is

authorised to determine whether to publish formal proposals to

discontinue the school,

if a public notice is published, a further report will be presented
to the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People in due
course, for a final determination to be made as to whether to
discontinue the Plymouth Hospital School and Outreach
Centre.



Page 6

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 7 Agenda ltem 6

CITY OF PLYMOUTH

Subject: Overview and Scrutiny Management Board:
A focus on reducing teenage conception rates in the city

Committee: Cabinet

Date: 19 October 2010

Cabinet Members: Councillor Mrs Watkins

CMT Members: Director of Services for Children and Young People

Author: Dave Schwartz — Strategic Commissioning Officer
Department for Children’s Services

Contact: Tel: 01752 307356
E-mail: dave.schwartz@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref:

Part:

Executive Summary:

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board approved in principle, on 2 September 2009,
the establishment of a Joint Health and Adult Social Care and Children and Young People
Task and Finish Group that will set out recommendations to maximise the city’s drive to
reduce teenage conception rates.

The enquiry took place between October 2009 and February 2010 when a range of
witnesses were called and from this evidence the Joint Task and Finish Group agreed ten
recommendations. The report was presented to the Overview and Scrutiny Management
Board in July 2010 prior to being received by Cabinet on 19 October 2010.

This report focuses on a key area of activity for both Children and Young People and Health
Services, and consequently the recommendations to Cabinet reflect the complexity and
sensitivity of this subject. Addressing the issue of teenage conception requires the city to
improve aspiration of all members of the community, provide targeted support to those most
at risk and ensure a high quality universal offer is available that supports healthy sex lives
and wellbeing.

Appendix 1 (page 5) is the full report, whilst appendix 2 (page 19) provides a brief summary
on current progress against each of the recommendations.

Corporate Plan 2010 - 2013

This report helps to meet the following corporate priorities:

Corporate Priority 4 Reducing inequalities between communities
Corporate Priority 7 Keeping children safe
Corporate Priority 8 Improving skills and educational achievement

Corporate Priority 14 Providing better value for money




Page 8

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

With the Comprehensive Spending Review this October and the local budget setting process
to follow, there will be significant challenges to deliver this agenda effectively if less resource
is allocated to reducing teenage conceptions in the city over the medium term. The Sexual
Health and Teenage Pregnancy Partnership has begun to review its key priorities with a view
to establishing a clear direction that will support impact where it is most needed and ensure
that continued investment will be effectively and efficiently used. This report contributes to
this process.

Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc.

None.

Recommendations and Reasons for recommended action:

For Cabinet to approve the recommendations from the Scrutiny Task and Finish Group in full.

Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action:

Options were considered as part of the work of the Task and Finish Group and the final
recommendations reflect the range of evidence heard and judgements made.

Background papers:

e Plymouth Children and Young People’s Plan 2008 — 2011

e Plymouth City Council Corporate Plan 2008-2001

e Plymouth Children and Young People’s Trust — Improving Young People’s Sexual
Health and Wellbeing: Joint Commissioning Strategy 2009 - 2012

e Plymouth City Council — Youth Services Action Plan 2008

e Department for Children, Schools and Families — Teenage Pregnancy: Accelerating
the Strategy to 2010: 2008

e Children Acts 1989 and 2004

e Education Act 1996

Sign off:

Fin DJN | Leg 977 | HR N/A | Corp N/A [IT N/A | Strat N/A
101 7/D Prop Proc
1.00 VS
6

Originating SMT Member: Claire Oatway




Page 9

RECOMMENDATIONS
Teenage Pregnancy Report Recommendation 1

(1)  The city must strive to raise aspirations of all people, particularly young people,
and this will support a reduction in teenage conceptions.

Teenage Pregnancy Report Recommendation 2

(2)  Governance and accountability for the delivery of this agenda must be clear,
with a named senior champion at the highest level promoting the city’s drive to
reduce harmful risk taking behaviour, including unprotected sex. An effective
Partnership, working to a clear and transparent understanding of the financial
costs to support the delivery of this agenda, is required across Plymouth City
Council, Plymouth NHS and the Voluntary and Community Sector.

Teenage Pregnancy Report Recommendation 3

(3) Key services must have the capacity and be competent to identify, at the
earliest point, vulnerability to teenage pregnancy (and other harmful risk taking
behaviour). Primary and Secondary Schools are pivotal in this identification.
The city must then be able to provide personalised holistic support to the young
person that can contribute to outcomes linked to an increase in self esteem,
aspiration and attainment. The work of Education Welfare Officers should be
further explored to determine their potential to maximise their role in early
identification and support.

Teenage Pregnancy Report Recommendation 4

(4)  The city must aim to provide a consistently delivered, high quality, age
appropriate Relationship and Sex Education (RSE) programme in all schools
(primary, secondary and alternative provision) with Governors and members of
Senior Management Teams committing to training to support the delivery of
Relationship and Sex Education in their schools.

Teenage Pregnancy Report Recommendation 5
(5) Within the Relationship and Sex Education programme the relationship of
substance (including alcohol) misuse to high risk sexual activity, and media
messages on sex, should be addressed.

Teenage Pregnancy Report Recommendation 6

(6) Issues for boys and young men need to be equally addressed through our
planning and delivery of services.

Teenage Pregnancy Report Recommendation 7
(7) Services to better assist families to talk about relationships and sex, with

parents/carers having access to clear advice for help and identifiable sources of
support.



Page 10

Teenage Pregnancy Report Recommendation 8

(8)  The city needs to ensure that data reflecting use of the emergency
contraceptive pill by under-18s from Pharmacies is collected to further improve
understanding of need and to determine if this provision is accessible with
respect to locality and opening hours.

Teenage Pregnancy Report Recommendation 9

(9) Services for Children and Young People need to clearly promote messages that
support equipping young people with the skills to resist harmful risk taking
behaviour, including unprotected sex. Alongside acknowledging the legal age of
consent to be 16 the city needs to promote the notion of a young person
making healthy choices about their sex life, including understanding the
implications of becoming a parent. To support this, the city should explore how
to best utilise young people’s use of information, advice and support through a
range of media systems e.g. internet; mobile phones; magazines; posters etc.

Teenage Pregnancy Report Recommendation 10
(10) Services for Children and Young People need to ensure routine engagement

with young people to help shape strategy, service planning and design in line
with best practice and innovative developments.



Page 11

APPENDIX 1

Plymouth
i

Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel
Joint Task and Finish Group

Scrutiny Review — Report

February 2010

A Focus on Reducing Teenage Conception Rates
in the City

Plymouth City Council



Page 12

This page has been left blank



Page 13

Contents Page

Section

1

2

Title

Introduction

The Panel

Scrutiny Approach
Witnesses
Acknowledgements
Executive Summary
Recommendations
Appendix 1.1 — PID

Appendix 1.2 — National Strategy, Plymouth’s
Response, Performance and Need

Page No.

10
12

15



1.1

2.1

3.1

Page 14

Introduction

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board approved in principle, on 2 September
2009 the establishment of a joint task and finish group that will set out
recommendations to maximise the city’s drive to reduce teenage conception rates in
the city.

The Joint Task and Finish Group would achieve this through reviewing the
effectiveness of the new Improving Young People’s Sexual Health and Wellbeing:
Strategy 2009-2012’ and accompanying Implementation Plan. Through a series of
briefings and interviews the Panel will seek to identify gaps and areas for development
with the proposed strategy and plan. Particular emphasis will be placed on the role of
the media and the messages that need to be conveyed. A report will be produced,
including a number of recommendations for improvement to support the
implementation plan.

Membership was drawn from both Children and Young People and Health and Adult
Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panels. The Task and Finish Group will submit its
findings for approval to the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board, prior to
consideration at Cabinet and Council.

The Panel

The Joint Task and Finish Group had a cross-party membership comprising the
following Councillors:

Councillor Purnell (Chair)
Councillor Mrs Aspinall (Vice Chair)
Councillor Delbridge

Councillor Mrs Stephens

Councillor Mrs Watkins

For the purpose of the review, the Joint Task and Finish Group was supported by:

e Dave Schwartz, Strategic Commissioning Officer - Lead Reducing Risk Taking
Behaviour

e Patrick Hartop, Policy and Performance Officer

e Amelia Boulter, Democratic Support Officer

Scrutiny Approach

The task and finish group convened on five occasions to consider evidence and hear
from witnesses:

21 October 2009
11 November 2009
24 November 2009
22 January 2010
22 February 2010



3.2

4.1

5.1

6.1

6.2

6.3

6.4

Page 15

At its meetings on 21 October, 24 November and 22 January, the task and finish group
considered evidence from witnesses, raised questions and considered answers and
recommendations relating to a focus on reducing teenage conception rates in the city.

Witnesses
The task and finish group heard representations from:

Teenage Parents

Plymouth Centre for Young Parents

Young People’s Sexual Health Team

Personal, Social, Health and Economic (PSHE) Education
Plymouth District Scouts

Plymouth City Council Youth Service

Connexions

Education Welfare Services

Harbour Young People’s Specialist Substance Misuse Team
Team Manager, Children’s Services

Foster Carers

Children’s Social Care

Community Contraception and Sexual Health Service
Midwifery

Family Nurse Partnership

Acknowledgements

The Joint Task and Finish Group wish to thank and acknowledge the contribution from
the witnesses and council officers. The Panel would like to state a special thank you
to the teenage mothers who attended to give evidence. The evidence provided by the
teenage mothers was powerful and the Panel hope that the recommendations that
have followed reflect some of the important issues they raised.

Executive Summary

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board established a Joint Task and Finish

Group to undertake a review that would focus on how the city can maximise its impact

on reducing teenage conception rates in the city.

The Group was asked to make recommendations on:

e The effectiveness of the ‘Improving Young People’s Sexual Health and Wellbeing:
Strategy 2009 — 2012’ and accompanying Implementation Plan;

e Areas of development with the proposed strategy and plan; and
e The role of the media.

The Group heard representations from a variety of witnesses and received
questionnaire responses.

Key findings included:



Page 16

The city’s new strategy shows a greater coherence than previous and reflects a
wide Partnership response. The city must ensure that the approach is joined-up
and avoids letting young people slip through the net;

Reducing harmful risk taking behaviour (including reducing unprotected sex) is an
important priority and this agenda should be championed at the highest level in
the city;

There are clear links between income inequality and teenage pregnancy levels;

Nine neighbourhoods (out of a total of 43) account for 45% of all conceptions in
the city. These neighbourhoods are also some of our most deprived
neighbourhoods;

Teenage pregnancies can sometimes be seen as route to a positive experience in
loving relationships for the young mums and dads — this is particularly true where
low self esteem or low aspiration were factors;

Poor attendance at school has a significant affect on young people’s vulnerability
to becoming pregnant;

Respectful and healthy relationships need to be a more prominent part of the
message to help delay sex and promote sexual health and wellbeing;

Uptake of Local Authority training for secondary school staff on Relationships and
Sex Education is improving but inconsistent — with most schools now engaging;

Teachers do not appear to have sufficient time to undertake training on sexual
health matters;

The quality of RSE across all schools is improving but inconsistent. As part of the
new Sexual Health Strategy a Task and Finish Group focused on schools will
seek to address this inconsistency;

It is clear that young people vulnerable to harmful risk taking, including having
unprotected sex, should be identified as early as possible and schools have a key
role in achieving this;

Parents and carers need to feel able to talk about these issues with their children
and to improve life chances;

Issues around boys and young men have not been adequately addressed. For
example, we need to ensure that sexual health services improve accessibility for
boys and young men who often perceive these services as being for young
women and girls; there also needs to be appropriate emphasis given to issues for
boys and young men in relationship and sex education, particularly around areas
of responsibility toward contraception and implications of pregnancy;

Media messages and the range of media available mean that young people are
exposed to many sexualised images and sex-related articles. This can give an
impression that the majority of young people are sexually active and increase
pressure on young people to have sex when they are not ready;

10



71

Page 17

Use of different media mediums such as social networking sites should be
explored to get messages out to young people about relationships, sex, and
where to get support with the aim of reducing any pressure to have sex when
young people are not ready;

There is a need to improve co-ordination of grant funding that aims to impact on
reducing risk-taking behaviour (including reducing unprotected sex);

There is evidence of pockets of best practice across the city with a wide variety of
providers involved in delivery. Scrutiny took evidence from many people,
representing a wide range of services doing really good work;

Recommendations

The Joint Task and Finish Group have agreed the following recommendations. The
first recommendation should be driven by the Local Strategic Partnership and the
remaining recommendations should be given enhanced focus within the city’s
implementation plan to support delivery of the city’s Young People’s Sexual Health
Strategy:

(1)

(2)

(4)

(5)

(6)

The city must strive to raise aspirations of all people, particularly young people,
and this will support a reduction in teenage conceptions;

Governance and accountability for the delivery of this agenda must be clear, with
a named senior champion at the highest level promoting the city’s drive to reduce
harmful risk taking behaviour, including unprotected sex. An effective Partnership,
working to a clear and transparent understanding of the financial costs to support
the delivery of this agenda, is required across Plymouth City Council, Plymouth
NHS and the Voluntary and Community sector;

Key services must have the capacity and be competent to identify, at the earliest
point, vulnerability to teenage pregnancy (and other harmful risk taking
behaviour). Primary and Secondary Schools are pivotal in this identification. The
city must then be able to provide personalised holistic support to the young
person that can contribute to outcomes linked to an increase in self esteem,
aspiration and attainment. The work of Education Welfare Officers should be
further explored to determine their potential to maximise their role in early
identification and support;

The city must aim to provide a consistently delivered, high quality, age
appropriate Relationship and Sex Education (RSE) programme in all schools
(primary, secondary and alternative provision) with Governors and members of
senior management teams committing to training to support the delivery of
Relationship and Sex Education in their schools;

Within the Relationship and Sex Education programme the relationship of
substance (including alcohol) misuse to high risk sexual activity, and media
messages on sex, should be addressed;

Issues for boys and young men need to be equally addressed through our
planning and delivery of services;

11



(7)

(8)

(9)

Page 18

Services to better assist families to talk about relationships and sex, with parents
[/carers having access to clear advice for help and identifiable sources of support;

The city needs to ensure that data reflecting use of the emergency contraceptive
pill by under-18s from Pharmacies is collected to further improve understanding of
need and to determine if this provision is accessible with respect to locality and
opening hours;

Services for Children and Young People need to clearly promote messages that
support equipping young people with the skills to resist harmful risk taking
behaviour, including unprotected sex. Alongside acknowledging the legal age of
consent to be 16, the city needs to promote the notion of a young person making
healthy choices about their sex life, including understanding the implications of
becoming a parent. To support this, the city should explore how to best utilise
young people’s use of information, advice and support through a range of media
systems, e.g. internet; mobile phones; magazines; posters etc;

(10) Services for Children and Young People need to ensure routine engagement with

young people to help shape strategy, service planning and design in line with best
practice and innovative developments.

12



Appendix 1.1

&
Phymouth
T~

Request for Scrutiny Work Programme ltem

Title of Work Programme
Item

A Focus on Reducing Teenage Conception Rates in the city.

Responsible Director (s)

Bronwen Lacey, Director of Services for Children and Young
People

Responsible Officer

Tel No.

Dave Schwartz, Strategic Commissioning Officer - Lead
Reducing Risk-Taking Behaviour

Ext: 7561

Aim

To review the Strategy and develop the accompanying
Implementation Plan with a specific focus on those areas
having a clear impact on reducing the teenage conception rate
of the city

Scope

The Panel to review the effectiveness of the ‘Improving Young
People’s Sexual Health and Wellbeing: Strategy 2009-2012’
and accompanying Implementation Plan. Through a series of
briefings and interviews the Panel will seek to identify gaps
and areas for development with the proposed strategy and
plan. Particular emphasis will be placed on the role of the
media and the messages that need to be conveyed. A report
will be produced, including a number of recommendations for
improvement to support the Implementation Plan.

Objectives

To:

e Provide an overview of deep dive findings from national
teenage pregnancy unit — this sets out best practice and is
the basis for determining areas of improvement in the city.
Specific challenges to reducing the teenage conception
rate in Plymouth will also be identified

o Brief Scrutiny Panel on areas of activity requiring most
improvement and establishing a clear understanding of
who currently delivers this activity or whether there are
gaps in service provision

e Gather evidence from a series of panel interviews with key
local stakeholders

e Produce a report summarising findings, including a
communications plan and key recommendations. Report to
be received by the Responsible Officer by 26 October
2009 to support completion of the Implementation Plan.

13



Page 20

Benefits

e Greater understanding of what works and why in Plymouth

e Smarter delivery plan focused on areas for greatest
improvement

e Greater clarity on how to create media images

Beneficiaries

All children and young people in the city

Criteria for Choosing
Topics

¢ Focus on reducing teenage conception rate of the city
Focus on delivery that requires most attention in regard to
improving performance and meeting best practice criteria

e Focus on improving coherent communication of strategy
through media

Exclusions

All areas of the strategy that do not require significant
improvement in support of reducing the teenage conception
rate

Programme Dates

e PID to be completed by 21.08.09

e PID submitted to Overview and Scrutiny Management
Board 02.09.09

e PID submitted to Health and Adult Social Care OSP
23.09.09

e PID submitted to Children and Young People OSP
24.09.09

e Task and Finish Group meeting to take place by 26.10.09

e Sexual Health Strategy and Implementation Plan to be
finalised by 31.10.09

Timescales and
Interdependices

Milestones Target Date for Responsible Officer
Achievement

Report from Dave Schwartz
Scrutiny to be with
Responsible Officer

by 26 October

Links to other projects or
initiatives / plans

Corporate Improvement Priorities

CIP 7 Keeping Children Safe

CIP 8 Improving Skills and Educational Achievement
Children and Young People’s Plan 2008 — 2011 Priority 8

Stretch targets
Reduce the under 18 Teenage pregnancy rate -

conception rate (conceptions to women aged less than 18
years per 1,000 women aged 15-17 years inclusive)

10

Relevant Overview and
Scrutiny Panel

Children and Young People Overview and Scrutiny Panel /
Health and Adult Social Care Overview and Scrutiny Panel

11

Lead Officer for Panel

Richenda Broad, Acting Asst Director, Commissioning, Policy
and Performance

12

Reporting arrangements

0O&S Management Board (to approve this document) -
02.09.09

HWB OSP (to set membership) — 23.09.09

CYP OSP (to set membership) — 24.09.09

14



Page 21

13 | Resources The Responsible Officer will support the process as required
by Scrutiny, as will a Policy Officer/Assistant Policy Officer
14 | Budget implications Mainly within existing resources

15

Risk analysis

The work of Scrutiny will help maximise a determined drive to
reduce teenage conceptions set within a broad strategic
approach to improving young people’s sexual health. The work
will therefore support the city in impacting on one of its priority
areas. For Scrutiny to not be involved will reduce the potential
impact on this priority.

16

Project Plan / Actions

15



Page 22

Appendix 1.2

National Strategy: Plymouth’s Response, Performance and Need

1.1

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

National Strategy

The reasons for tackling teenage pregnancy are well documented and include health
and wider inequalities issues. For example:

e Teenage mothers are 22% more likely to be living in poverty at 30, and much less
likely to be employed or living with a partner;

e Teenage mothers are 20% more likely to have no qualifications at age 30;

e Teenage mothers experience three times the rate of post-natal depression and
have a higher risk of poor mental health for three years after the birth;

e Teenage mothers are three times more likely to smoke throughout their pregnancy,
and 50% less likely to breastfeed, with negative health consequences for the child;

e Children of teenage mothers have a 63% increased risk of being born into poverty
and are more likely to have accidents and behavioural problems;

e The infant mortality rate for babies born to teenage mothers is 60% higher;

e The majority of teenage pregnancies are unplanned and nearly half end in
abortion;

e Many of the above issues are equally relevant to teenage fathers;

e England’s teenage pregnancy rate is much higher than comparable Western
European countries;

The Teenage Pregnancy Strategy (1999) set out a national target to halve the under
18 conception rate by 2010

Plymouth Response

As well as working toward the national target, Plymouth agreed a local stretch target
requiring a drop from the base-line of 57% by 2010.

During the summer of 2008, as recognition of slow progress against the city’s targets,
Plymouth’s Director of Public Health and the Director of Children's Services requested
a 'summit' of key stakeholders take place to address performance.

The ‘Summit’ led to a short term action plan. Key outcomes from this plan were an
improved strategic coherence and drive across the partnership and an enhancement
in activity in the city commencing quarter 4 in 2008.

The basis for developing a longer term strategy was set in motion and in the following
year a needs assessment was undertaken, a strategy produced and a comprehensive

16



2.5

2.6

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Page 23

implementation plan is now being completed. Activity is increasing and the use of data
and intelligence has clearly improved.

The new strategy is called Improving Young People’s Sexual Health and Wellbeing.
The strategy has four key strategic outcomes. These are:

(1) Increased resilience and raised aspirations of children, young people and their
families to improve sexual health and wellbeing;

(2)  Young people are enabled to engage with safe and responsible behaviours that
promote sexual health and wellbeing needs and choices;

(3)  Young people have access to and utilise high quality, locally delivered and
timely support and services that respond to their sexual health needs and
choices;

(4)  Systems will be in place that facilitate effective delivery of integrated sexual
health advice, services and support to young people and their families

A new Young People’s Sexual Health and Teenage Pregnancy Partnership is the
group that is accountable for the delivery of the Sexual Health Strategy. This
Partnership reports to the Children and Young People’s Trust Executive Group.

Performance and Need

The Scrutiny Panel Joint Task and Finish Group held its final meeting on 22 February
2010. On 24 February the latest official data was released covering the year 2008.
This data and some brief analysis are included to ensure this report reflects the most
up to date information available.

Progress to date shows that the latest official (provisional) data for 2008 under-18
conception rate for England was 40.4 per 1000 girls aged 15-17 — a decrease of 3.2%
from the 2007 rate and the lowest rate for over 20 years. Since the 1998 baseline, the
under-18 conception rate has fallen by 13.3%.

The latest official (provisional) data for 2008 under 18 conception rate for Plymouth
was 48.6 per 1000 girls aged 15 -17 a decrease of 2.5% from the 2007 rate. Since the
baseline, the under-18 conception rate has fallen by 11.2%.

Quarterly rates in Plymouth Unitary Authority (Source: ONS) from the 1998 baseline.
The change in baseline reflects an 11.2% drop.

17



Page 24

Under 18 conception rate per 1000

70

60 -

50 A

40 4

30 A

20 A

10 A

\V == Quarterly rate

|
|
|
|
/
|
)
I
)
(
\
V
{
\
(Q

- = Rolling average

June
Sept
Dec
une
Sept
Dec

March
June

Sept
Dec
March
June
Sept
Dec
une

Sept
Dec

2la
S|a

Dec

March
June
Sept
Dec
une
Sept
Dec
March
June
Sept
Dec
June
Sept
Dec
June
Sept
Dec

March
March
J
March
J
March
March
J
March
March

1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Quarter & Year

3.5

3.6

3.7

3.8

3.9

3.10

3.11

For Plymouth in 2008 the percentage of conceptions leading to termination was
47% which reflects a 9% increase on the 2007 figure of 38%. The average % for
conceptions leading to termination over the 11 years since baseline is 39.6%.

Data for 2008 (covering 2005-2008) shows that the number of repeat abortions for
under 18s in Plymouth was 3.5% (n=10) of all abortions for under 18s. For England
this figure is 7.7%. Plymouth’s performance is good as this is significantly lower than
the England average.

For 2008/09 the % of under 18s using the Community Contraception and Sexual
Health Service that then use long acting reversible contraception (LARC) is 22%.
Plymouth’s performance is good as this is significantly higher than the England
average of 11.5%.

2008 shows a drop in the actual number of conceptions by 17 from 234 to 217.

For quarter 4 of 2008 (Oct - Dec) Plymouth had the second lowest number of
conceptions in any one quarter since the baseline in 1998. The number of conceptions
for quarter 4 was 42 (lowest ever was 41 during quarter 3 2007). This is the lowest
ever number of conceptions for quarter 4. The average number of conceptions during
quarter 4 for all years since the baseline in 1998 is 55. The quarter 4 2008

number therefore represents 13 less than the average, which also reflects a 24% drop
on the average for quarter 4. During quarter 4 2008 the partnership stepped up activity
significantly in line with the short term action plan in place at the time.

The evidence leads to the conclusion that the city should be cautiously optimistic that
efforts as a partnership, that were stepped up in quarter 4 2008, have begun to
improve impact.

Though the city is a long way off reaching the national target (50% drop from baseline)
and local stretch target (57% drop from baseline) performance with respect to the %
change from the base-line when compared to the whole of England is 2.1 % off the
average. The whole country has therefore found the national target a very challenging
task.

18



3.12

3.13

3.14

Page 25

Plymouth also uses local data (known as proxy data) to help with planning. This data
does not count conceptions in the same way as the official data and should not
therefore be compared with the official data. However this data does provide some
important evidence. This includes:

¢ Nine neighbourhoods (out of a total of 43) account for 45% of all conceptions in the
city. They are also some of our most deprived neighbourhoods;

e There is a four fold difference in conceptions when comparing least deprived to
most deprived neighbourhoods;

e In 8 out of the top 9 neighbourhoods we identify occasions where clusters of 3, 4 or
5 conceptions occur in a single month. These stand out when compared to the
average monthly conception numbers and we have been able to determine through
partnership analysis that in many cases these clusters are linked by friendship or
through events e.g. a party.

Levels of deprivation are higher in Plymouth than England as a whole. 53.9% of
Plymouth people are in the bottom two quintiles for deprivation. Given the relationship
of teenage pregnancies and conceptions to deprivation this infers that we also need to
address deprivation to impact on teenage conception rates.

Plymouth and Children Young People’s Trust assessment of sexual health need
identified three main areas we need to focus on. Further work on the strategy and
implementation plan recognises some key issues we need to address to meet these
needs.

e First, in any population where there are sexually active young people we will see a
number of conceptions take place. In order to minimise the number of conceptions
there needs to be support for parents and carers to be able to speak to their
children about relationships and sex, high quality relationship and sex education
delivered through schools, a range of accessible high quality universal provision
providing access to information, advice and support including access to
contraception;

e Second, young people who drink alcohol and whose judgement then becomes
impaired may become sexually vulnerable leading to sex that is regretted. In order
to minimise conceptions we need to ensure that young people understand the
consequences of alcohol on decision making and that targeted provision is in place
providing access to information, advice and support including access to
contraception. The capability to identify early emerging risk taking behaviour and
provide support to address this is significant;

e Third, issues around low aspiration and low self esteem have strong links to
teenage conceptions. In order to minimise conceptions we need to better
understand what may delay decisions to become pregnant or engage in harmful
risk taking behaviour. There are also strong links here with agendas aiming to
address the inequality gap; trans-generational expectations, improving attainment
and raising aspiration. The capability to identify early emerging need and provide
support to address this is significant.

19



Page 26

3.15 The current strategy is new and the implementation plan being finalised. Impact of the
strategy with respect to achieving its strategic outcomes is too early to determine,
though activity from quarter 4 2008 and subsequent continual increases in activity
supports a view of being cautiously optimistic.

20



APPENDIX 2: Reducing Teenage Conception Rates in Plymouth
Current progress on recommendations from Report: A focus on reducing teenage conceptions in the city

Recommendation

Progress

1. The city must strive to raise aspirations of all people particularly
young people and this will support a reduction in teenage
conceptions

Raising aspiration remains a key aim of the work of the Children and
Young People’s Trust and will be reflected in the new Children and
Young Peoples Plan. The 2020 Partnership will also have aspiration
as a key priority.

Along with raising attainment in education a range of activities aim to
impact on raising aspiration. For example youth service supported
positive activities for young people, extended school projects and
targeted work by Connexions preventing young people becoming
NEET in the North West and the South West of the city.

There remain strong links between neighbourhoods with the highest
levels of deprivation having the lowest levels of aspiration. There are
still significant challenges to breaking this relationship

2. Governance and accountability for the delivery of this agenda
must be clear with a named senior champion at the highest
level promoting the city’s drive to reduce harmful risk taking
behaviour including unprotected sex. An effective Partnership,
working to a clear and transparent understanding of the
financial costs to support the delivery of this agenda is required
across Plymouth City Council, Plymouth NHS and the
Voluntary and Community sector;

Over the last 12 months the Sexual Health and Teenage Pregnancy
Partnership has developed and is now overseeing implementation of a
comprehensive delivery plan

The Partnership is currently reviewing priorities with a view to targeting
resources to ensure effective and efficient use of resources available
As part of this process, improved understanding of the financial cost of
delivery across the Partnership will be achieved

Current refresh of the Children and Young People’s Plan will lead to
new governance arrangements for April 2011, including identifying a
new senior champion that will cover risk taking behaviour

3. Key services must have the capacity and be competent to
identify, at the earliest point, vulnerability to teenage pregnancy
(and other harmful risk taking behaviour). Primary and
Secondary Schools are pivotal in this identification. The city
must then be able to provide personalised holistic support to
the young person that can contribute to outcomes linked to an
increase in self esteem, aspiration and attainment. The work of
Education Welfare Officers should be further explored to
determine their potential to maximise their role in early
identification and support

Young Peoples Sexual Health Team continue to provide training
across the Partnership so improving competence to meet sexual
health need

A training offer delivered by the Specialist Substance Misuse
Treatment Service available this Autumn will provide opportunity to
staff working with vulnerable young people to develop competencies in
motivational interviewing and brief interventions. These competencies
are key when working with vulnerability

Support delivered through use of the common assessment framework
(CAF) or other multi-agency plan is an area targeted for improvement

21

/2 abed



Recommendation

Progress

Current work to determine what is the most effective service design
across key youth services will lead to more efficient services and
systems. This will allow us to respond more effectively to vulnerable
young people from April 2011

The city must aim to provide a consistently delivered, high
quality, age appropriate Relationship and Sex Education (RSE)
programme in all schools (primary, secondary and alternative
provision) with Governors and members of Senior
Management Teams committing to training to support the
delivery of Relationship and Sex Education in their schools;

The Sexual Health and Teenage Pregnancy Partnership Task and
Finish Group has commenced work focusing on schools with a remit
that includes “enable schools with the support of partners to provide
the highest quality RSE at both primary and secondary schools” The
Task and Finish Group will report by April 2011

The local authority’s Personal Social Health Education and Economic
(PSHEE) Team continues to provide training for staff at all levels in
schools to support delivery of RSE

Within the Relationship and Sex Education programme the
relationship of substance (including alcohol) misuse to high risk
sexual activity, and media messages on sex, should be
addressed:;

The local authority’s Personal Social Health Education and Economic
(PSHEE) Team provides guidance, consultation and training on RSE.
This includes links to substance misuse and the media

The Young Peoples Specialist Substance Misuse Service are
commissioned to provide sexual health interventions alongside
substance misuse interventions

The Young Peoples Sexual Health Team provide training that
addresses links with substances and media issues

Issues for boys and young men need to be equally addressed
through our planning and delivery of services

Sexual Health and Teenage Pregnancy Partnership Sub-Group
focusing on boys and young men have commenced work with a remit
to look at our current delivery plan with a view to identifying key areas
of activity that will impact the most on boys and young men. The
Group will monitor this activity, its impact and challenge the
Partnership to ensure there is a clear focus on meeting their needs

Services to better assist families to talk about relationships and
sex, with parents /carers having access to clear advice for help
and identifiable sources of support

Sexual Health and Teenage Pregnancy Partnership Sub-Group
focusing on Communications has commenced work. This group will
produce a strategy that will include “Raising public awareness to
encourage dialogue within families about relationships and healthy sex
lives”

‘Speakeasy’ training being delivered. This training enables staff to
support parents / carers.

Parent Support Advisors have also been trained by the Young Peoples
Sexual Health Team

22

gz abed



Recommendation

Progress

8. The city needs to ensure that data reflecting use of the
emergency contraceptive pill by under-18s from Pharmacies is
collected to further improve understanding of need and to
determine if this provision is accessible with respect to locality
and opening hours

Plymouth Primary Care Trust is currently responding to this request
and will provide this data

9. Services for Children and Young People need to clearly
promote messages that support equipping young people with
the skills to resist harmful risk taking behaviour including
unprotected sex. Alongside acknowledging the legal age of
consent to be 16 the city needs to promote the notion of a
young person making healthy choices about their sex life
including understanding the implications of becoming a parent.
To support this, the city should explore how to best utilise
young people’s use of information, advice and support through
a range of media systems e.g. internet; mobile phones;
magazines posters etc

Sexual Health and Teenage Pregnancy Partnership Sub-Group focusing
on Communications has commenced work. This group will produce a
strategy that will include:

Promoting positive messages supporting healthy sex lives and
reducing teenage conception rates

Utilising Information Communication Technology (ICT) as a means to
deliver and communicate with stakeholders (this includes children and
young people as our key stakeholder)

The Young Peoples Sexual Health Team provides a wide range of
resources that provide information and advice as well as where to go
for support

10. Services for Children and Young People need to ensure
routine engagement with young people to help shape strategy,
service planning and design in line with best practice and
innovative developments

Ofsted’s Inspection of safeguarding and looked after children in
Plymouth (2010) noted that “the voice and active participation of
children and young people in service planning was outstanding”.
The city’s Young People’s Sexual Health Strategy 2009; a recent
YWCA commissioned report by the Children and Young People’s
Trust and the most recent Children’s Fund consultation have all
engaged with young people leading to improved understanding of
sexual health need and providing a vehicle for their experiences and
views to be channelled.

Achieving all the recommendations

This template provides a summary of progress against the recommendations of the Report. Much work was underway at the time the Report
was being produced and additional activity has commenced since the Report was written. The Partnership are very aware that there remain
significant challenges to fully achieving all of these recommendations in full but are fully committed to doing so.

Dave Schwartz
Strategic Commissioning Officer: Services for Children and Young People
Plymouth City Council October 2010

23

62 obed



Page 30

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 31 Agenda ltem 7

CITY OF PLYMOUTH

Subject: Overview & Scrutiny Management Board Quarterly Scrutiny Report
Committee: Overview & Scrutiny Management Board

Date: 22 September 2010

CMT Member: lan Gallin (Assistant Chief Executive)

Author: Giles Perritt, Head of Policy, Performance and Partnerships
Contact: giles.perritt@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref:

Part: Part |

Executive Summary:

This report sets out a review of the performance of the Overview and Scrutiny
Management Board for the period April to July 2010

Corporate Plan 2010-2013:

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Board provides management of strategic
scrutiny of all Corporate Improvement Priorities and is the lead scrutiny body for the
Corporate Plan. The Management Board has scrutinised the Plymouth Report and
made recommendations with respect to revised priorities for the Council and City
during the period of this report.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

The Management Board has scrutinised the revenue and capital budgets, and
Corporate Improvement Priorities relating to the above during the period of this
report.

Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc.

As above

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action:

That the report is noted

Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action:

N/A

Background papers:

Overview and Scrutiny Management Board minutes, reports and work programme
relating to meetings of 30 June and 28 July 2010.




1.1

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Page 32
CITY OF PLYMOUTH

Overview & Scrutiny Management Board Quarterly Report

Introduction

This report sets out a review of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board for
the second quarter of 2010, incorporating the meetings of 30 June and 28 July 2010.

Scope of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board

The membership of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board changed
following the Council meeting of 21 May 2010, reflecting changes in the membership
of Overview and Scrutiny Panels. Clir David James retained the Chair, and Douglas
Fletcher was re-confirmed as a co-opted member.

The detailed terms of reference for the O & S Management Board are contained
within the Council’s Constitution. Principal revisions to the Terms of Reference of
the Board, which were agreed at the meeting of 28 July and confirmed at the Council
meeting of 2 August included greater clarity about the role of members of the panel
who do not chair scrutiny panels.

The O & S Management Board consists of the following members and officers

Title Name Attendance
(2 meetings)
Councillor (Chair) D.James 2
Councillor (Vice Chair) | Ball 2
Councillor Browne 2
Councillor Patrick Nicholson 2
Councillor Ricketts 2
Councillor Stevens 2
Councillor Thompson 2
Councillor Wildy 2
Councillor Williams 2
Co-opted D Fletcher 2
representative
Lead Officer Giles Perritt 2
Democratic Support Katey Johns 1 (of 1)

The Panel, through its strategic management of the Council’s scrutiny function,
including monitoring of finance and performance, focuses on the role of the following
Cabinet Members and CMT officers:

Title Name

Cabinet Member (Finance, Property, People and Governance) | Clir. lan Bowyer

Cabinet Member (Performance and Transformation) Clir. Sam
Leaves

Director for Corporate Support Adam Broome

Chief Executive Barry Keel

Leader of the Council Clir Mrs Pengelly

Key achievements during the last quarter

The last quarterly report for the board set the following targets for the Board:




3.1

3.2

3.3

3.6

5.

5.1

Page 33

Ensuring that the recommendations from the Management Board of 15 and 17
February are implemented effectively

The Board has delegated responsibility for tracking progress against
recommendations from the Board to the appropriate panels. A report giving a
progress update against all the recommendations will be presented by the Chief
Executive and Deputy Leader at the September meeting of the Board, following a
recommendation made at the meeting of 30 June.

Ensuring appropriate arrangements are in place to ensure the continuity of the
scrutiny function following local elections in May 2010

Clir David James retained the role of Chair into the new municipal year. Clirs Wildy
and Thompson and Douglas Fletcher continued to serve from last year’s
membership, which has provided continuity for the panel. Effective handover
arrangements were in place for new chairs.

Outstanding actions regarding press coverage and Comprehensive Area
Assessment overview and scrutiny activity are taken forward

Press briefings prior to panel meetings have been developed, and there continues to
be coverage of higher profile scrutiny business, particularly around the work of the
Health and Social Care panel.

Following the election, the government announced the abolition of the
Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) regime. The panel considered the
Plymouth Report at its meeting of 28 July, which contained a summary of the key
judgements from the CAA report of December 2009. Responses to these will be
incorporated into the revised Corporate Plan for consideration by the Board in
January 2011.

In addition to the above, the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board made a
series of recommendations to Cabinet regarding corporate and city priorities
following its consideration of the Plymouth Report on 28 July. At its meeting of 14
September, the Cabinet broadly endorsed the recommendations made by the Board.

On the Horizon

Ensuring that scrutiny and partnership governance arrangements reflect the
changing local, regional and national policy agenda of the new government

Ensuring that appropriate arrangements are in place to ensure effective engagement
over the revised Corporate Plan and budget setting arrangements

That the performance management framework continues to develop to reflect
national policy changes

Recommendation

That the progress of the Overview and Scrutiny Management Board be noted.

Giles Perrit, Head of Policy, Performance and Partnerships
Lead Officer Overview and Scrutiny Management Board
September 2010



Page 34

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 35 Agenda Item 8

CITY OF PLYMOUTH

Subject: Shoreline Management Plan Review (SMP2)
Durlston Head to Rame Head

Committee: Cabinet

Date: 19 October 2010

Cabinet Member: Councillor Fry and Councillor Wigens

CMT Member: Director for Development and Regeneration

Author: Victoria Hutchins Plymouth Transport & Highways /
Thomas White (PCC Head of Network Management)

Contact: Tel: 01752 398048 E-mail: victoria.hutchins@amey.co.uk
Tel: 01752 308053 E-mail:thomas.white@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref: PL1043989/R01

Part: I

Executive Summary:
Plymouth City Council owns, and is responsible for, 5km of shoreline around the City
Boundary.

The Shoreline Management Plan 2 (SMP 2), is a non-statutory policy document that looks at
coastal and flood risk management issues relating to the coastline around England and
Wales over the next 100 years. Prepared by Halcrow for the Department for Environment,
Food and Rural Affairs (Defra), SMP2 updates the original SMP of 1998. The part of the
Plan relating to Plymouth’s foreshore has been prepared in consultation with the South
Devon & Dorset Coastal Group, of which PCC are a member.

Within the South West region, each section of the coastline has been divided into individual
policy units and these tend to cover areas with similar erosion characteristics. The policy for
Plymouth is primarily to “Hold the existing defence line”. For each area, actions are identified
to be completed ahead of the next SMP review in 2015. Adopting SMP2 will commit the
Council to preparing a Shoreline Asset Management Plan and seeking co-funding
opportunities for coastal defence works.

SMP2 will be used in allocating Defra Annual Budget of £600 million to maintain and improve
coastal defences. The Council has applied for £3.5 million from this budget to implement
coastal defence schemes in 2011/2012; these are listed in Appendix 3. Members are
recommended to

e Approve the adoption of the SMP2 as it relates to Plymouth

e Agree to the production of an associated Shoreline Asset Management Plan (SAMP)

e Support investigation of opportunities for co-funding of defence works

e Support submission of funding application to EA to fund coastal defence works

The cost of implementing the above recommendations is estimated to be £80k which is being
sought from the Defra annual budget.

Adopting the SMP2 ensures Plymouth is compliant with Environment Agency policy and,
therefore, puts the City in a stronger position when bidding for part of the £600 million
national budget for coastal defences.

PL1043989/R01Shoreline Management Plan Review Adoption Report



Page 36

Corporate Plan 2010 - 2013:

SAMP is a fundamental driver for improvements which support growth in the city (CIP12) and
provides a framework for achieving the aspiration to be one of Europe’s finest waterfront
cities.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

The SMP2 identifies the level of intervention needed along the coastline. The SAMP will
identify the more specific works and costs associated with them.

An application for £80,000 of funding to produce a Shoreline Asset Management Plan for
PCC was included in the Medium Term Plan (MTP) 2011/12 application to the EA. A
preliminary indication on the success of the application is expected in November 2010.

However, failure to secure this funding will require other funding to be found to provide this
statutory document.

Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc.
None

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action:
It is recommended that members:
1. Approve the adoption of the Shoreline Management Plan Review (SMP2), as it relates
to Plymouth;
2. Agree to produce a Shoreline Asset Management Plan;
3. Support investigation of opportunities for co-funding of defence works;
4. Support submission of funding application to EA to fund coastal defence works.

Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action:

Not adopt the SMP2: whilst not a statutory document, failure to adopt the SMP may prevent
PCC from accessing Defra funding for future flood defence works and may create uncertainty
for the Environment Agency that future development proposals within the City will be
adequately defended against future flooding.

Not produce a Shoreline Asset Management Plan: Failure to produce this document would
run contrary to the requirements of SMP2, and would not enable the Authority to adequately
prioritise works along the coastline.

Background papers:
1. 1998 Shoreline Management Plan
2. 2010 Shoreline Management Plan Review
3. Funding requests to EA for shoreline works

Sign off:

Fin Dev | Leg JAR | HR Corp CJT |IT Strat
F10 /963 Prop /054 Proc
110 6/10 /160
021 910

Originating SMT Member: Clive Perkin

PL1043989/R01Shoreline Management Plan Review Adoption Report



1.0

Page 37

Introduction

1.1.  The Shoreline Management Plan (SMP) forms an important part of the Defra
strategy for flood and coastal defence of Britain and has been developed in
accordance with their guidelines. The SMP is a non-statutory document that provides
a policy framework from which more detailed strategies and studies are developed to
identify the best way of implementing policy to address the risks associated with

coastal erosion in a sustainable manner.

1.2.  The new document “Shoreline Management Plan Review (SMP 2) Durlston
Head to Rame Head” that Members are being asked to adopt is the first revision of,
and will supersede the earlier “Portland Bill to Rame Head SMP”, which was adopted

by Plymouth City Council (PCC) in 1998.

1.3.  The coastline of Britain is divided into 8 regions each having a coastal group
whose members include the local authority and Environment Agency (EA) with
associate members consisting of other interested groups and organisations. Each
area has its own SMP, which all together form the national SMP.

1.4. The SMP is a high level document that aims to identify sustainable options
which take account of the influences and needs of both the natural environment, and
the human and the built environment. It identifies four different policies:

Hold the existing defence line

Maintain or change the level of
protection provided by defences in their
present location.

Advance the existing defence line

Build new defences on the seaward
side of the existing defence line to
reclaim land.

Managed realignment

Allowing the shoreline position to move
backwards (or forwards) with
management to control or limit
movement.

No active intervention

A decision not to invest in providing or
maintaining defences.

These are considered over three different timescales (also referred to as “epochs’).

Present day

0 to 20 years

Medium term

20 to 50 years

Long term

50 to 100 years

It should be noted that the policy can change over time.

The full version of the document for the South Devon and Dorset coastal area, of
which Plymouth forms a part, may be found at South Devon and Dorset Coastal
Authorities Group (SDADCAG) A summary of the draft Final SMP may be found at

Appendix 1.

PL1043989/R01Shoreline Management Plan Review Adoption Report




Page 38

2.0 Consultation Process for SMP2

2.1

2.2

There has been extensive consultation with all stakeholders during the
preparation of SMP2, using a variety of means including three rounds of Key
Stakeholder Meetings. These have been held at a number of locations along
the coastline covered by the report (including Plymouth).

Three main groups were involved in the development of the SMP2
e Client Steering Group (CSG)

e Elected Members Forum (EMF)

o Key Stakeholders Forum (KSF)

3.0 General overview of SMP2 recommendations for Plymouth’s coastline

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

The coastline has been divided into individual policy units for the purposes of
the SMP2 report. These tend to cover areas with similar erosion characteristics.
The policy units that fall within PCC’s administrative boundary are 6¢27 to 6¢31.
An extract from the SMP2 detailing the preferred policy for the City’s coastline
may be found in Appendix 1.

PCC also has an operational interest in the coastline of the Mt Edgcumbe
Country Park through its membership of the Mt Edgcumbe Joint Committee, so
the same information for policy units 6¢40 to 6¢43 has also been included in
Appendix 1 of this cabinet report.

The policy for Plymouth’s shoreline is to “Hold the line”. Only the area from
Wembury point to Mountbatten Breakwater differs from this with a policy of “No
active intervention”. Generally this may be summarised as existing defences
are to be maintained and undefended areas are to be allowed to erode
naturally.

There are also a range of actions which are applicable to the whole of the SMP
area. These actions aim to ensure that the actions required to implement the
SMP are taken prior to the next SMP review in 2015.

The SMP2 Table 4.18 “Actions for the policy scenario area between Wembury
Point and Rame Head” is included in Appendix 2 of this cabinet report.
Plymouth is tasked with producing/developing a Shoreline Asset Management
Plan (SAMP) and identifying possible sources of co-funding for any work which
may be required.

4.0 Plymouth Breakwater

4.1

4.2

Plymouth Sound Breakwater does not have a specific policy unit; however it is
listed as an asset management action within table 4.18 in Appendix 2.

The EA has applied to Defra for funding in 2011/12 to undertake a study of the
breakwater to establish its effectiveness and necessity. An indication of the
success of the application is due in November 2010.

PL1043989/R01Shoreline Management Plan Review Adoption Report



Page 39

5.0 Funding for Coastal & Flood defence schemes

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

5.6

5.7

Plymouth has over 5km of coastline. PCC is responsible for the sea defences
and assets situated on the coastline in their ownership and, as such, has a duty
to maintain them. Currently, PCC assets are divided between Parks, Parking
and Asset Management. Other landowners, such as the MOD, are responsible
for the maintenance of the sea defences and assets in their ownership.

Maintaining the waterfront assets directly supports the City’s aspiration to
become one of Europe’s most vibrant waterfront cities thus enabling growth.
The waterfront assets will require direct investment in the future, not only to
maintain them but also to accommodate climate change.

Defra provides grant funding, via the EA, for coastal protection, which is
dependent upon the schemes conforming to the policies and conditions set out
by the EA. Potential schemes are submitted to the EA via the Medium Term
Plan (MTP).

Currently the EA has £600M annually to award to schemes though it is
anticipated that this budget may be reduced by up to 40% in the Government’s
Comprehensive Spending Review due in October 2010. Applications are
submitted annually for coastal defence works.

There are a number of proposed schemes for the Plymouth area which have
been put forward for funding, from the £600M budget, in 2011/12 and an
indication of the success of these applications is due in November 2010.
Details of the 2011/12 application may be found in Appendix 3.

It should be noted that an application for £80,000 was included in the MTP for
the production of a Shoreline Asset Management Plan. If this application is
unsuccessful, then PCC would need to provide the funding to enable them to
be compliant with the SMP policy by producing the SAMP.

Inclusion of schemes in the MTP is not an automatic guarantee of funding.

6.0 Recommendation

6.1

Members are recommended to -

e Approve the adoption of the SMP2 as it relates to Plymouth;

e Agree to the production of an associated Shoreline Asset Management Plan
(SAMP);

e Investigation of opportunities for co-funding of defence works;

e Support submission of funding application to EA to fund coastal defence
works.

PL1043989/R01Shoreline Management Plan Review Adoption Report



Page 40

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 41

APPENDIX 1

South Devon and Dorset Coastal
Advisory Group (SDADCAG)

Shoreline Management Plan Review (SMP2)
Durlston Head to Rame Head

Summary of Draft Final SMP
September 2010

zvalcrow




Page 42

Durlston Head to Rame Head SMP2
Summary of Draft Final SMP
September 2010

Table of Contents

1.1 WHAT IS A SHORELINE MANAGEMENT PLAN?........co0unee.
1.2 ABOUT THIS SUMMARY DOCUMENT ..cvvvennsnese

2  CHANGES TO POLICIES FOLLOWING PUBLIC CONSULTATION ...
3 CONCISE SUMMARY OF PREFERRED POLICY OPTIONS......cucuovisenuns

4.1 INTRODUGCTION .v.cvcevictvessissssssesssssssses e ssessossassss s snssssssssssssssssesssessssessuessansas sasssss sassasssssssnessssssssantsonsensessasssonssssassoss 34
4.2 SIMP VWIDE ACTIONS .11 vvveeseesesssssssssssisssssassssssissssessessatssssssssstsssasssssssassmsasssssstsssssstssassstsstassssssssssesssssesssssressessessensenss 394
4.3 PO SRR AR O AR B A T ORI i e e R S R B e e R S e s rra 3 9

7T SN



Page 43

Durlston Head to Rame Head SMP2
Summary of Draft Final SMP
September 2010

| Introduction

1.1 What is a Shoreline Management Plan?

A Shoreline Management Plan (SMP) provides a large-scale assessment of the risks associated with coastal
evolution. It addresses these risks in a sustainable manner with respect to people and the developed, historic
and natural environment. In doing so, an SMP is a high-level document that forms an important part of the
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) strategy for flood and coastal defence (Defra,
2001). The SMP provides the policy framework from which more detailed strategies and schemes are
developed to identify the best way of implementing policy. It is important to note that adoption of policy does
not guarantee future funding for defence works.

This SMP is a review of the first generation SMPs that were completed in 1998 and covers the South Devon
Devon and Dorset Coast, from Durlston Head to Rame Head (see Figure L.1). It is being prepared by the
South Devon And Dorset Coastal Advisory Group (SDADCAG).

Taunlgn =~ Langeo’ =

gl e Al QJ
g L ©

Mxo_m«
Io..mgavm.muad/ ..;

DARTHOOR
._.msm_oﬁ_..

w_

=
&
B

5

v :._ocz.. /

_xﬁ; bk
ENGLISH|CH

N oo » » 4
\ i Fiomees
Durlston Head to Rame Head Shoreline Management Plan Review
Figure 1.1 - Location of South Devon and Dorset SKP2
SMP Extert BT L e e ——

Ordranca Survey on babal of £a cortaiar of bac

Viaerty's Stasonsey OFon (G} Covam copymg Lmmtoodsed raraducson
gy G Coppeight aed may ad B prosscition or 46 s ocandga.
Ervimnmert Ageoy 190024380, 1009

Figure 1.1 South Devon and Dorset SMP area

Within the SMP area, one of four policies must be applied to each section of coast for each of three time-
periods (also referred to as epochs), for 0 to20 years, 20 to 50 years and 50 to 100 years. The policy can
change over time. The policies that can be assigned in the SMP are defined by Defra and stated in Table 1.1.

sialcrow I



Page 44

Durlston Head to Rame Head SMP2
Summary of Draft Final SMP
Septemnber 2010

Hold the existing defence line | maintain or change the level of protection provided by defences in their
present location.

Advance the existing defence | build new defences on the seaward side of the existing defence line to
line reclaim land.

Managed realignment allowing the shoreline position to move backwards (or forwards) with
management to control or limit movement.
No active intervention a decision not to invest in providing or maintaining defences.
Table 1./ SMP policies defined by Defra.

1.2 About this Summary Document

This document is a summary of the South Devon and Dorset SMP2 draft final report. It is a relatively concise
summary of much more detailed information contained in the main SMP document and supporting appendices.
In particular, this document provides the following information:

e Summary of the significant changes to preferred policies made following the public consultation (Section
2).

e Concise summary of preferred policy options, including some details on justification and implications of
policies (Section 3).

e Summary Action Plan, setting out what actions, when, where and by whom are required over the next 10
years to implement SMP policies (Section 4).

The final SMP will be available on the SDADCAG website once it has been adopted by Coastal Operating
Authorities, Regional Flood Defence Committees, Natural England and the Environment Agency. It is
anticipated that this will be in late Autumn 2010.

2 Changes to Policies following Public Consultation

Following the completion of the public consultation phase in July 2009, all comments were reviewed and
amendments made to the SMP documents. The full details of all changes made are included in Appendix B of
the supporting documents provided with the full Draft Final SMP. However, for ease of reference, the key
significant changes relating to policies and policy units are summarised in the following:

e Short defended lengths at Kimmeridge (5g03) and Lulworth Cove (5g07) — the policy has changed
to No Active Intervention from Managed Realignment to reflect that public funds (fleod and coastal
defence budget) would not be used to fund future works here, although the policy wording still
clearly states that continued intervention here would be acceptable from a process point of view if
other funds were available.

e Portland Harbour North West Shore (5g18 to 5g20) — policy wording has been revised and agreed
with relevant parties to make it clear exactly what is intended for this shoreline. The policies have
not themselves been altered.

e Portland Harbour Breakwaters — these have been removed as an SMP policy unit as they would
potentially form part of the implementation and do not require a specific policy. It is however
indicated in the policy statements both the assumption they will remain and what would be the
implication if this assumption was wrong. In doing this, the policies for the units within Portland
Harbour have been reviewed and it is believed that even if the breakwaters were not there, the
long-term policy would not change; only the nature and timing of the implementation measures. To
keep these as an SMP unit would also not be consistent with other SMPs.

®  Chesil Beach (Portland end) (6202 and 6a03) — an extra policy unit has been added to distinguish
between where measures to Hold the Line should be considered, and where intervention to
restore the beach in an emergency situation only should be considered. This was stated in the draft

fialcrow 2



Page 45

Durlston Head to Rame Head SMP2
Summary of Draft Final SMP
September 2010

policy statement but splitting this into two distinct units makes the intent of the Plan clearer in this
area.

o Freshwater Beach (6a09) — following further review, it is felt that the SMP policy should reflect the
management of the front line of defence. In the short-term, beach management would need to
move back as the adjacent cliffs retreat therefore the policy would be Managed Realignment not
Hold the Line as previously indicated in the consultation draft. The medium and long-term policy
would also be Managed Realignment as there would be continued beach management to manage
the beach in line with adjacent cliffs. This would be supported by construction and maintenance of a
set-back defence.

e Lyme Regis (East Cliff) (6a20) — the long-term policy of Managed Realignment in the draft
document was to allow extension of measures to manage the transition area between undefended
(policy unit 6al9) and defended coasts as the cliffs to the east receded further. However, upon
further reflection it is thought that this would more appropriately be called Hold the Line along a
transitional policy unit boundary in order to protect property and infrastructure at Lyme Regis.
Recent information has also shed a greater degree of uncertainty on this area, and to reflect this
and allow more flexibility of approach to future management whilst also highlighting risks for future
development in this area, the long term policy has been changed to one of either Managed
Realignment or Hold the Line, to be determined by ongoing monitering and sustainability of Phase
IV works to be constructed in the immediate future.

e Sidmouth (6a35) — the policy unit boundary on the east side of Sidmouth where Managed
Realignment is proposed has been moved to the eastern end of the developed area of Sidmouth
along the cliff top. The policy for soft engineering techniques to retain beach material along the
base of the cliff and so produce a more natural rate of recession remains and moving of the policy
unit boundary demonstrates the area in which it would occur. The draft text suggested beach
management would extend into this area in any case and it is felt that the changes made now make
this clearer.

o Lower Clyst (6b08) — this is now a separate unit to provide clear detail of what is intended in this
area. The policy statement for this unit therefore allows greater discussion of this issues,
justification, possible implementation and implications of a Managed Realignment policy in this area.

e Dawlish Warren (6b19 to 6b22) — there is much disagreement over the long-term management of
Dawlish Warren and it is not felt that the SMP can currently determine robustly if the policy here
should be one of managed realignment or continued hold the line. Therefore the revised policy for
the short-term is to retain a Hold the Line policy for Dawlish Warren and allow long-term
management to be determined by more detailed investigations in this period (starting with the Exe
Estuary Strategy that has recently been commissioned by the Environment Agency in January 2010).
Note, an additional policy unit has also been added for the landward side of Dawlish Warren with a
No Active Intervention policy for the short-term.

o Sprey Point (6b26) — policy here has been changed to be Hold the Line for all epochs as, upon
further reflection, there is little economic, technical or environmental benefit in realigning here.

®  The Point (Teignmouth) (6b29) — this has been separated out as its own unit with a2 Managed
Realignment policy to allow intervention if future detailed study finds it necessary to manage this
area for the benefit of the wider area. Otherwise, the intent of the Plan is to allow this feature to
evolve as naturally as possible.

°  Goodrington Sands (6b56) — the text for this area has been clarified to state that Managed
Realignment would be implemented following more detailed investigation but only if found to be
appropriate to do so. It also indicates that this is more likely to be appropriate along the northern
part of the frontage. We have also stated that where Managed Realignment does not occur,
existing defences should be retained under Hold the Line.

o Blackpool Sands (6b73) — having reviewed further information provided through the consultation
process and to be consistent with other areas where there are private defences, the policy has
been changed from Hold the Line to No Active Intervention for all three epochs. This reflects that
there is likely to be little risk to the A379, the only reason to justify public expenditure in this area.

rHalcrow 3



Page 46

Durlston Head to Rame Head SMP2
Summary of Draft Final SMP
September 2010

However, this change does state that the private localised defences could continue as to do so
poses little risk of impacts to a wider area in terms of processes.

e Beesands (6b78 and 6b79) — this unit has been split this into two parts to make it clearer what is
intended in this area. Widdicombe Ley frontage (6b78) is No Active Intervention. Beesands village
(6b79) is Hold the Line to reflect that the recent works there were funded on the basis of a 100-
year scheme life, but with provision that localised realignment may be needed at the north end of
the village to manage the transition between the defended and undefended parts as the beach rolls
back into the Ley.

e  Kingsbridge Estuary (6c04 to 6c06) — the policy statement wording has been amended to reflect
that in areas where there are existing defences, either Hold the Line or Managed Realignment
could occur (if appropriate) but that this needs more study. The policy of No Active Intervention
for areas that are currently undefended has been retained.

e  Thurlestone Rock to Warren Point (6¢l 1) — having further reviewed the data and information in
this area, there is little flood risk at the current time to warrant short term intervention to realign
in this area. As such, the short term policy has been changed from Managed Realignment to No
Active Intervention, in line with the No Active Intervention policies for the medium and long term.
Within this policy provision remains for private defences to be maintained if funds are available as
to do so is unlikely to have a significant processes impact.

°  Warren Point (Bigbury-on-Sea) to Challaborough (West) (6cl6) — having reviewed the data held,
and in order to be consistent with similar situations along other parts of the SMP frontage, the
policy here has changed from to one of No Active Intervention in all three epochs. This better
reflects that public funds (flood and coastal defence budget) would be unlikely to be justified in a
robust economic case to fund future works here. However, the policy wording still clearly states
that continued intervention here would be acceptable from a process point of view if other funds
were available.

o  Upper Tamar Estuary (6¢32 and 6c33) — the wording of the policy statement has been amended to
reflect that in areas where there are existing defences, either Hold the Line or Managed
Realignment could occur (if appropriate) but that this needs more study. The policy of No Active
Intervention for areas that are currently undefended has been retained.

®  Plymouth Sound Breakwater — these have been removed as an SMP policy unit as they would
potentially form part of the implementation and de not require a specific policy. The revised text
for the policy statements around Plymouth Sound do, however, indicate both the assumption they
will remain and what would be the implication if this assumption was wrong. To keep these as an
SMP unit would also not be consistent with other SMPs.

In addition to these more significant changes, small adjustments to policy unit boundary lines, unit names and
clarification to policy statement text have been made. Section 3 provides a concise summary of the revised
policy unit names, boundaries and policies.

rialcrow 4



Durlston Head te Rame Head SMP2
Summary of Draft Final SMP
September 2010

Preferred Policy

Policy Unit (Number and Description) | SMPI Poli Supporting Information
i piish) Y | Shore Term (c0 2025) Medium Term (o 2055) Long Term (0 2105) it
Mouth to Orcheton Wood) evolution to continue evolution to continue evolution to continue not result in any more assets being at risk of flooding.
through No Active through No Active through No Active
Intervention. Intervention. Intervention.
Erme Estuiry (Upét Allow natural coastal Allow natural coastal Allow natural coastal
" evolution to continue evolution to continue evolution to continue i ; ' :
6cl9 ;ecu;!m —%’ch:.lton Wood to N/A through No Active through No Active through Mo Active There are no defences or assets at risk of flooding in this area.
amflece Wood) Intervention. Intervention. Intervention.
Allow natural coastal Allow natural coastal Allow natural coastal
Erme Estuary (West Bank — evolution to continue evolution to continue evolution to continue 2 o
620 Pamflete Wood to Mouth) N/A through No Active through No Active through No Active There are no defences or assets at risk of flooding in this area.
Intervention. Incervention. Intervention.
Selectively Allow natural coastal Allow natural coastal Allow natural coastal
Erme Estuary (West) to evolution to continue evolution to continue evolution to continue % =
d ’ 3
62l | veiim Estuary (East) Holljln‘:hc chrovgh: No Active through No Active through No Active Undefended section of coast, which would be allowed to continue to evolve naturally.
Intervention. Intervention. Intervention.
T Mow e coe | Alow UTERE| law mr con
6c22 Me "r; “:W ( H & N/A throush No Active chroush No Active evolution te occur through There are no defences or assets at risk of flooding in this area.
ouch to Passags House) el ek No Active Intervention.
Intervention. Intervention.
Yealm Estuary (East Banjc~ Continue to Hold the Line of | Continue to Hold the Line of | Continue to Hold the Line of | Defence to reduce the risk of flooding to the developed areas of Noss Mayo and Newton Ferrers
6c23 | Passage House to Newton N/A S e - .
existing defences. existing defences. existing defences. would be provided.
Ferrers North)
] Il ]
Yealm Estuary (East Bank — TR, Ja— Allow .natuml coasta Allow Vnal:ural coa'stn
evolution to continue evolution to continue : . o
6c24 | Newrton Ferrers North to N/A evolution through No Active 4 : There are no defences or assets at risk of flooding in this area.
Fish H Plantati SRR through No Active through No Active
sh House Planation) i Intervention. Intervention.
Yealm Estuary (VWest Bank — Eilove ‘natuml CO:l.St:ﬂ Allow natural coastal Allcw.nar.uml coﬁ:v.ml i o . o . .
} : evolution te continue ; evolution to continue There are no defences and very few assets at risk of flooding: a policy of no active intervention will
6c25 | Fish House Plantation to N/A . evolution to occur through ; ; i 7 ;
through No Active . through No Active not result in any more assets being at risk of flooding.
Season Point) 2 No Active Intervention.
Intervention. Intervention.
s Paint to Wemb Allow natural coastal Allow natural coastal Allow natural coastal :::cljlrflz:du: s:;th:n o co:svr:.d\'avhlzh ﬁou::j pe al!owcd ks cTntinucV:ro c\l;nlvc- n:u:Jrnllz. Ttﬁ:‘i B
6c26 Pe?s:" s saeCremaiey Do Nothing | evolution to occur through evolution to occur through evolution to occur through e Et'":f ncdcnc:ci;:' : |n§ h?odc: c;ros oz\d'prott::t il d RmBLy 1 Thon g un;s;i)r to
il No Active Intervention. No Active Intervention. No Active Intervention. ;)mcesspes Bl fon of this defence would not have an adverse impact Upon co
POLICY SCENARIO AREA: WEMBURY POINT TO DEVIL'S POINT
This predominantly undefended section of coast would be allowed to continue to evolve naturally.
Selectivel Allow natural coastal Allow natural coastal Allow natural coastal There is a small length of defence providing protection locally to the access road to Mount Batten;
Wembury Point to Mount Y| evolution to continue evolution to continue evolution to continue although unlikely to attract public funds, retention of this defence would not have an adverse impact
6c27 Hold The : : i A .
Batten Breakwater e through No Active through No Active through No Active upon coastal processes. If not maintained, this read would need to be relocated only a short
Intervention. Intervention. Intervention. distance inland as the cliffs erode very lictle and very slowly. This would also improve the
environmental features of this section of coast.
Continue to maintain the Continue to maintain the Continue to maintain the ’ 3 ; i i
628 ;?e:m ; :::: :a;; = N/A existing defences under a existing defences under a existing defences under a ;.‘io:‘t‘;nul.;;d:;c:f:;}:c tonr:-:‘.lrl::e ::nzzllfi O,’;ﬂood‘:g t: c'::xtebnswcly dcv;loped ey o thecityel
E : Hold the Line policy. Hold the Line policy. Hold the Line policy. ” ! s 5 Theireeonynpeso e protased
Plym Estuary - Marsh Mills to Continue to maintain the Continue to maintain the Continue to maintain the Continued defence to reduce the risk of flooding to extensively developed area of the city of
6c29 Coxside 4 N/A existing defences under a existing defences under a existing defences under a Plymouth, including a key access road part of the mainline railway that serves the wider South-West
Hold the Line policy. Hold the Line policy. Hold the Line policy. region, linking it to the rest of the UK.
Selectively | Continue to maintain the Continue to maintain the Continue to maintain the Faninned defancate redugederibedf ooz and erof el gedlomed L
Line Hold the Line policy. Hold the Line policy. Hold the Line policy. Y Y * P Y i O

POLICY SCENARIO AREA: TAMAR ESTUARY

Halcrow

29

L ebed



Durlston Head to Rame Head SMP2
Summary of Draft Final SMP

September 2010
Preferred Policy
SMPI Poli Supporting Information
Lo lae by ey < [ Short Term (to 2025) Medium Term (to 2055) Long Term (to 2105) Frrcng
= Continue to maintain the Continue to maintain the Continue to maintain the
6c31 Tamar Estuary - Devil's Polne N/A existing defences under a existing defences under a existing defences under a Continued defence to reduce the risk of flooding to the city of Plymouth from the Tamar Estuary,
to Tamertan Lake Hold the Line policy. Hold the Line policy. Hold the Line policy.
There is insufficient information abourt the upper Tamar Estuary to allow definitive policies to be
. 2 assigned to specific lengths of shoreline. The policy here is therefore to allow more detailed studies
No Active Intervention along | No Active Intervention along | No Active Intervention along to assign such prescriptions, but within the framework that should seek to achieve no active
the undefended frontages the undefended frontages. If | the undefended frontages. If e P P
4 ; EES, ] " : intervention in areas that are presently undefended, and to either hold or realign currently defended
Investigate and implement necessary, implement further | necessary, implement further 2 resv horeviblaito o
i Estuar).r- Fanvet g / Managed Realignment in Managed Realignment in Managed Realignment in ’
6c32 | Lake to Gunnislake (upper N strategic locations, whilst strategic locations, whilst strategic locations, whilst < ’ 5 , :
Tamar Estuary East) inuire to Hold the Line contintingco Héld the:Lihe continuing to Hold the Line Managed realignment within strategic areas of this section could provide beneficial reductions in
c?::;:ing dcfc:ccs s of existing defencat wheee of existing défendes where flood risk to other parts of the estuary, whilst also providing habitat creation opportunities. The
g i B feasibl Pt gnc s Bet faasiile realipnmene e nor faasible purpose of this would not be to increase flood risk to currently defended areas, and so defences
realignment is not feasiaie. RESHEIHElSRN S s : could be maintained as a result, although no new defences would be constructed along presently
undefended parts of this section, unless associated with implementation of managed realignment.
There is insufficient information about the upper Tamar Estuary to allow definitive policies to be
. A ; assigned to specific lengths of shereline. The policy here is therefore to allow more detailed studies
No Acavfc lntcn;ention along I:Iho Ac;“;,e Izz:dr\;enuon aloll;g T}o A":w: l:tzr::nﬂ:n alo!rflg to assign such prescriptions, but within the framework that should seek to achieve no active
the “"_dc Efiged frontisen il ConmEes. Liunaeicndel oAy intervention in areas that are presently undefended, and to either hold or realign currently defended
il Investigate and implement necessary, implement further | necessary, implement further iy | ST e
Tamar Esary - Gunnislaka NA Managed Realignment in Managed Realignment in Managed Realignment in .
633 | toSaltash North (upper strategic locations, whilst strategic locations, whilst strategic locations, whilst i : f : : ; o
Tamar Estuary West) e Hold the Li ntintineto Bloldtheline: || continding to Hold the Lirie Managed realignment within strategic areas of this section could provide beneficial reductions in
c?nnpu]ng ;of 2 ‘}31 I c? T deferites Whase of cxisting Safarees wWhire flood risk to other parts of the estuary, whilst also providing habitat creation opportunities. The
g T‘xnsr.lng ¥ cncc: i 'l;m 2 ﬁ?tlstlﬂ‘ag T :o feasibl eali megnt b Fe:lsibk: purpose of this would not be to increase flood risk to currently defended areas, and so defences -U
realignment is net feasible. Fegomenk s net s EEen i could be maintained as a result, although no new defences would be constructed along presently QO
undefended parts of this section, unless associated with implementation of managed realignment. (@)
Continue to Hold the Line Continue to Hold the Line Continue to Hold the Line D
where there are existing where there are existing where there are existing The policy here will ensure that there is continued defence to reduce the risk of flooding to the
6c34 | Tamar Estuary - Saltash N/A defences, with No Active defences, with No Active defences, with No Active developed town of Saltash, whilst the areas that are currently undefended will be allowed to -h
Intervention aleng the Intervention along the Intervention along the continue to evolve naturally. (0]
undefended frontages. undefended frontages. undefended frontages.
I\rl‘o Ac;ivfe ll;tzr\;ention aleni l:o Ac;lvfe :::jt;r:end:n flon hll_? A:;.Ivfe ::;Zn;c"u:n;lu"g Continued maintenance of existing defences to reduce the risk of flooding to currently defended
e e i N/ Ec ik I‘-:'I ];Drr’-!ﬁs- ;.:c e H !;‘3:‘ ﬂﬁi th L; c::ci:o H |;°£1:iin;: assets. This would not involve construction of new defences along presently undefended sections of
6c35. | (Salcash Sm..rt.h e Torpolm: & Sl i ey e b S A IS o the estuary, which would be subject to no active intervention or managed realignment if
North (Jupiter Point)) where there are existing where there are existing where there are existing D —
defences. defences. defences.
; Continue to Hold the Line Continue to Hold the Line Continue to Hold the Line
ey Btu_nry =gy where there are existing where there are existing where there are existing The policy here will ensure that there is continued defence to reduce the risk of flooding to the
6c36 .r;_l 9rdy ng:er Pol-i::)d::o N/A defences, with No Active defences, with No Active defences, with No Active developed town of Torpoint, whilst the areas thac are currently undefended will be allowed to
Sk poiit. South; g Intervention along the Intervention along the Intervention along the continue to evolve naturally.
Stage) undefended frontages. undefended frontages. undefended frontages.
Tamar Estuary - St John's ::Z uA:::f.:: I::;r;:;::lnenslong m: UA:;:;‘;::‘::'N{:S:;":;O“E gz UA:;:;:;::::?:::“; °M | Continued maintenance of existing defences to reduce the risk of flooding to currently defended
Lake (Torpoint South z & HEE. i d B> Conti H ?_ Y assets, This would not involve construction of new defences along presently undefended sections of
6c37 g NIA Continue to Hold the Line Continue to Hold the Line ontinue to Hold the Line i hich 1d be subi har i Fhoish Al Id
(Landing Stage) to Millbrook where there are existing \where there are axisting where there are existing e nslzuary, which woul d e subject to no active intervention, although managed realignment cou
(it o)) defences defences. defences. oecur i apperinitesiarise.
Tamar Estuary - St John's Continu; 5 HeAd d_m, Hhe C:ntinu: 3o fiold :!“. Kne C:minu: tordiold d.1evL|na Continued maintenance of existing defences to reduce the risk of floeding to currendy defended
Lake (Millorook (Mill Farm) NIA :;'zre c_ it ;r; cx:m;lg \: {cre s cr(.:d::r;cx:tn:\g \g fc:: [S crcit:rﬁ‘ex:;gf assets. This would not involve construction of new defences along presently undefended sections of
6c38 to Millbrook (Hancack's : :cncc:j:mn]an: thcct e I;Q::::u:; CIIOI'I: th?ve Ir:::rvc:nt.lgn alon: the 8 the estuary, which would be subject to no active intervention, although managed realignment could
ntervention el : 2 A ;
Like)) undefended frontages. undefended frontages. undefended frontages. cRR, feprRrmties aries

Halcrow

30



Duriston Head to Rame Head SMP2
Summary of Draft Final SMP
September 2010

Preferred Policy

Policy Unit (Number and Description) | SMPI Policy Shore Torm (o 2025) Mediom Term (to 2055) Long Term (0 2105) Supporting Information
No Active Intervention along | No Active Intervention along | No Active Intervention along CrErEd R RS ST et darEes 5, e UaE thE PR IaE ) e
Tamar Estuary - St John's the undefended frontages. the undefended frontages. the undefended frontages. assets. This would not fnvolve cor?stru:\:ian it © ”‘I of flooding l“’ C":;r:“ dydc ende
6c39 | Lake (Millbrook (Hancock's N/A Continue to Hold the Line Continue to Hold the Line Continue to Hold the Line e cs;:ua ey 9 ney cncci;-s A Dlnﬁ Presanty undc ended sections of
Lake) to Palmer Point where there are existing where there are existing where there are existing " 4 s ject to no active intervention, although managed realignment could
defences. defences. defences. QECHrvapperiitiesatise
Continue to Hold the Line Continue to Hold the Line Contnue to Hold the Line Eortinuisd maltancs of e delenEad i redice the HEk 6E s T —
Tamar Estuary - Palmer Point where there are existing where there are existing where there are existing assets. This would not involve cor?strucc? - f: e ”1] of fiooding Im C‘:j"":" d)’dﬂ e .
6c40 | to Mount Edgecumbe N/A defences, with No Active defences, with No Active defences, with No Active e es.tun st n: nst' £ . B em;cs DI“E prc;cncy U"d‘l C"]' ed sections lﬁ
(Cremyll)) Intervention along the Intervention along the Intervention along the " Y o . | ive intervention, although managed realignment could
undefended frontages. undefended frontages. undefended frontages. DCEUTITORPArTUITS AT,
POLICY SCENARIO AREA: MOUNT EDGCUMBE TO RAME HEAD
Selactively Allow vnatur:ll coa.stal Allow ‘nntural l:oa.stn! Allow .n:xtural coa~sml
6c41 :T:G::::i:::;::o Hoit.j The :::;:2:';\;: ;c::j:::uc S::;‘:J;:'H: ;2;3:% f::’;t::“: ;Z:i::uc Undefended section of coast, which would be allowed to continue to evolve naturally.
e Intervention. Intervention. Intervention.
Continue to maintain the Continue to maintain the Continue to maintain the
Selectively | existing defences under a existing defences under a existing defences under a Continued defence of this section, subiect to availability of fund idred he risk of floodi
6c42 | Fort Picklecombe Hold The | Hold the Line policy Hold the Line policy Hold the Line policy i i Rrntiundswed reducethe s BIToading
e N " — {assuming funds are (assuming funds are and erosion to property in this area without impacting upon coastal processes or evolution,
available). available). available).
; Allow natural coastal Allow natural coastal Allow natural coaseal
3 Picklecombe Point to S|_t|=|clzt|_;:ly evelution to continue evolution to continue evelution to continue WFREES ' ¢ - .
6c4. Kingsand cvunc e through No Active through No Active through No Active ndefended section of coast, which would be allowed to continue to evolve naturally.
Intervention. Intervention. Intervention.
Selectively | Continue to maintain the Continue to maintain the Continue to maintain the Eontinved difince:to refuce the filk of floodingant erasion ot B £ Ki Gand
6c44 | Kingsand/Cawsand Heold The existing defences under a existing defences under a existing defences under a c d: which ; licy dri €3 SRS etk S Ingsancan
Line Hold the Line policy. Hold the Line policy. Hold the Line policy. awsand: which are key policy drivers.
Allow natural coastal Allow natural coastal Allow natural coastal
6cks | Cawsand o Harne Hiad Do Nothing evolution to continue evolution to continue evolution to continue Undafended section of coast; which would be-allowed to:continue to svolve naturilly,

through No Active
Intervention.

through No Active
Intervention.

through No Active
Intervention.

Halcrow

31

61 abed



Page 50

This page is intentionally left blank



Puriston Head to Rame Head SMP2

Summary of Draft Final SMP
Seprember 2010
Table £18 Actiors for the policy scenario arc between Wembury Point and Rame Head (Policy Units 627 to 6c45)
Parential source
Policy Acten Deseription for funding Responsibiliey When by
Actlon Redi i Relative |
Acton Type o REETERCE | Unie {subject 1o (cad partner) (Tb’:.cc w mpertmee and linls with other aesions
approvat) unding)
. 627 . . . . Delfra/ .
1. Studies for Policy SDADPEAIS. 1L Undereake a study to investigace the importanee of the Plymouth Sound Breakwater in Envirenment Environment 2015 This zhould be undertaken in advanee of the nexe SMP
Seenarie A . ;:45 terms of reduding wave acton on zhorehine dofences. Agercy Agency roview to inform future mamgement decizions.
63l Undertike 3 detailed study of the Tamar Esouary to Investigate Managed Realignment Crofras . ) "
2 Swudiezfor Polley | e anpsalsat | e opportenities and future flood defence needs to develop a programme of works and further | Envirenment Environment 2015 Thiz should be underslcen in advance of the nex SMP
Unies Agency review to inform future management dedisions,
[Z=10] study. Agency
3. Strategy - - - - - “ -
4. Scheme Yveork - - - - - - -
5. Conzml Menltoring ol monitoring along thiz scction to inform fucure maragement docikions: o per che _ . i Refer to SMP wide Action Plan iteme SDALD, ALLET,
{ongoing) - SPMP wide actions discussed in Seetion 6.2, SDADALLS2 and SDAILALLS.2.
These should be developed In advaiee of the next SIME
ouh reviow In order to provide improved inforrati
5c23. Reviewldevelop Assct Management Pline for Plymouth (induding the Plym Eztuary) and Defraf Plym ey furcur d ‘P mpre N ente
[k N N . . Council / ¢ policy detkions.
6, Azret Mamarement | SDADPSALSS.T 630 Kingsand/Caw=and to guide maintenance of defences and develop a programme of works Envirorment Carmvell 20711
" | tlong these fronmages to ensure that they continue to provide adequate défence. Agency Counci Ensure Inforration on defences is indluded in future
Gett uney updates of the NFCDD. Refer to SMP wide Action
Plan frem SDAD.ALLS,I,
&e27 Ensure that roles and responsibifities for managemens and mainzenance of Plymouth Sound j .. _ o L
SDADPSAISEZ |t Brealowster iz agreed with all redevant organlzmtions to provide basis for future management | nfz inv:mnmcnt 2015 ::;:: ;:::[sdt;:;“ P‘;(.:\T:jk;ml in combination with Action
bets detislons to be developed for adjacent zharclines. gency - e
Environment
627 Underake consulttion with key sekeholders and general public during study/phn Defra’ ;gy:::{rtix Cley This item iz to ba undertsken in combination with
7. Communiexdon SDADPSAISTY | 2o develapment and whenever appropriate to ensure an sccepteble appraqch Is developed. Envirentaent Conmeil f ongolng Action Plan items SDAD.PSAIS 2. and
645 Apency SDADPSATIS.E.T.
Cornwall
Council
8. Fiatinlhg - - - - - - -
9. Contingency
Planning & Ermergency | - - - - - - -
Responze
627 Engage with other organisations and gencral poblic to inform them of the petential furure . ) j )
:" %d:pmdon d SDADPSAISIGL | re risks of floed and constal erosion as a resulz of SMP policies and work with these to develop | nfa inwl:onmcnt ongoing gs%ﬂ‘oit; mv;gigc_:ﬂi?;? yremz
ratience 6545 plars for sdapting 1o the changing ril geney : o
11, Early Warning B - B - - - -
I'L Habiee Creatlon | -~ - - - - - -
6228 Environmant
™ As part of Asset Maragement Plar, investigate opportunities for co-funding future defence :‘g::‘z:h Ciry ' ;‘:ﬁ;;"’;::éi:::’;:iﬁ:'ﬁg:nd;g ‘:f::‘:sm‘ of
13, Funding SDADPSATS.I3.L zﬁ. ;vor:: 1:::1 oth:; :rg-\;{r;:a:l;n:.’pﬁvne defence owners to pr:'ovldc the maxitmum pozsible nfa Council / 2020 SDADPSAIS2 and SDAD.PSALS..! to cnsure thac
CRET iTom su GFIE T8 the area. Carewall 2N porsible options are conzidered,
(2223 "
Council
T4, SMP Manzpemenc | - = - - - - -
FHalcrow

75

¢ XIdNdHddv

|G abed



Duriston Head to Rame Head SMP2

Summary of Draft Final SMP
September 2010
Potential sonrce
Action T Acvion Reference | [ oNSY Actlon Deseription for funding Responzibiiy | YVIen by
" Uit subject tw (tead parmer) {zubject to Reladve importance and finks with other aetons
approval) funding)
and Monltoring
NE. Activities from SMP will be carried forward inte medium cerm plans thac zre sec or o three year rolling basiz and carried out on % priority basis, subject to funding and approval, nia = ActhiTy iz f it n
erosion rislk manapermens routes. ! = no action is required n refation to this action type, PP ™ % pars of ausharities general dutics. not funded through Tosd and
Halcrow

76

2G abed



Page 53

APPENDIX 3
Project Name Total Costs (£k’s)
Plymouth , Cattewater ,Elphinstone car park sea wall , renovation 255
Plymouth, Barbican, Phoenix Wharf , renovation 423
Plymouth, The Sound, West Hoe Pier, renovation 323
Plymouth, The Sound ,Jennycliff , cliff stabilisation 513
Plymouth, The Plym, Arnolds Point, sea wall reconstruction 337
Plymouth, The Barbican, Mayflower Steps, reconstruction 117
Plymouth, The Barbican , West Pier north side harbour steps, reconstruction 246
Plymouth, The Plym , Embankment Link Lane, flood alleviation scheme 155
Plymouth, The Plym , Laira rail bridge , flood alleviation scheme. 116
Plymouth, The Tamar, Mount Wise sea wall ,refurbishment 112
Plymouth, The Cattewater, Teats Hill slipway, refurbishment 136
Plymouth, Cattewater, Oreston Quay, sea wall, refurbishment 136
Plymouth, The Tamar, Durnford Street , sea wall, refurbishment 244
Plymouth, Hooe Lake, The Green, gabion basket refurbishment 119
Plymouth, Stonehouse Creek, Tidal flood alleviation scheme 100
Plymouth, Marsh Mills, Tidal flood alleviation scheme 100
Plymouth, Shoreline Asset Management Plan 80
Total applied for 3512




Page 54

This page is intentionally left blank



11.

17.

Page 55 Agenda ltem 9

Minutes of the Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee

25 June 2010
CONSTITUTION

The Director for Corporate Support submitted a report on the Joint Committee’s
constitution/terms of reference, which outlined the following —

(a) the proposals for the governance of the Mount Edgcumbe Joint
Committee and the management of the undertaking;

(b) as aresult of concerns raised by councillors and officers who
had been asking that the current officer support from the two
parent authorities was clarified and that the constitution was
improved;

(c) the recommendation that the Cabinets of each of the
constituent councils approve and adopt the changes to the
terms of reference for the Joint Committee and that each
Council makes any necessary consequential amendments to
that Council’s constitution;

(d) a business planning framework is adopted that aligned the
governance arrangements for the undertaking more closely
with the cabinet style of governance in place in each Council.

Agreed that the terms of reference is amended to read at ‘B5 the Director for
Environment Planning and Economy in Cornwall in consultation with the Director for
Community Services in Plymouth’.

Recommended that the Cabinets of each constituent council adopt the new terms of
reference as set out at appendix 1 (attached to these minutes) and amend their
respective constitutions to reflect this.

23 July 2010
MINUTES

Agreed that the minutes of the meeting held on 25 June 2010 are confirmed as a
correct record subject to the following amendments —

(1) Councillor Martin Leaves is included under apologies;
(2) the terms of reference are amended to reflect the amendment
to B5 ‘the Director for Environment, Planning and Economy in

Cornwall in consultation with the Director for Community
Services in Plymouth’.

Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee Friday 25 June 2010



Page 56

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 57

CITY OF PLYMOUTH
MOUNT EDGCUMBE JOINT COMMITTEE

Joint Chair: Councillor Reynolds, Plymouth City Council

Councillor Trubody, Cornwall Council

CMT Member: Director for Corporate Support.

Plymouth City Council

Senior CC Officer Head of Environment, Environment, Planning

and Economy Directorate, Cornwall Council

Committee: Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee
Date: 25 June 2010
Author: Linda Torney, Assistant Head of Legal
Services, Plymouth City Council
Contact: Tel: 01752 306119
e-mail: linda.torney@plymouth.gov.uk
Ref: LT/
Part: I

Executive Summary:

1.

This report sets out proposals in relation to the governance of Mount
Edgcumbe Joint Committee and the management of the undertaking.
These proposals have been formulated as a result of concerns raised by
members and officers, who have been asking that the current officer
support from the two parent authorities be clarified and that the
constitution be improved.

It recommends that the Joint Committee recommends that the Cabinets of
each of the constituent councils approve and adopt the changes to the
terms of reference for the Joint Committee, as set out in the appendix to
this report, and that each Council makes any necessary consequential
amendments to that Council’s constitution.

It also recommends that a business planning framework be adopted that
aligns the governance arrangements for the undertaking more closely with
the cabinet style of governance in place in each Council.

Additionally, proposals are put forward asking that the committee formally adopt
a business planning approach so that the management of the undertaking aligns
more closely with the parent authorities and gains the support of the respective
cabinet members.



Page 58

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land
Not applicable.

Background papers:

Head Head Head Head Head Head of

of Fin of of HR of AM of IT Strat

SA Leg Proc
LT

Cornwall Council: M E

1 Introduction

1.1 The present arrangements for governance of Mount Edgcumbe date back
to 1973 when Joint Committee was established by Cornwall County
Council and Plymouth City Council. Since that time there have been
significant developments in the way both Councils are managed, Cornwall
Council has been established as a successor authority to Cornwall County
Council and both Councils have adopted a cabinet style of governance.

1.2  This makes a review of the constitutional arrangements for the Committee
overdue, and at the same time the Joint Committee has established an
officer working group to consider the future operation of and monitor the
management of Mount Edgcumbe.

1.3 This report recommends the Joint Committee asks the Cabinet of each of
its constituent councils to adopt new terms of reference set out at
appendix 1 and amend their respective constitutions to reflect this.

2 Background

2.1 The Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee is a Committee of Plymouth City
Council and Cornwall Council and comprises 7 members from each
authority. As a result of regulations, it carries out executive functions on
behalf of the two councils, which means it is a Joint Committee of the
Cabinet of each Council. It has not been regularly reporting to the Cabinet
and the proposed arrangements will set out how it is anticipated this will
happen in future.

2.2 At present the Committee currently has terms of reference, which are
described as a Constitution, which may have led to some confusion. The




2.3

2.4

2.5

3.1

Page 59

Committee operates much as any other Committee in terms of voting,
quorum, minute taking, and the requirements for members to disclose any
personal interest they have in the business of the Committee.

Purpose

The Councils formed the Joint Committee “for the purposes of the
management of the Country Park” within the budgets approved by the
Councils on an annual basis and in line with agreed terms of reference
about the general ethos of management of the Country Park and House
(see Appendix 2). The emphasis for management is on the protection of
the Parks and Environmental and Heritage Value, protection of public
access, promotion of sustainable employment opportunities and ensuring
the house remain a single entity. This is of course subject to variation by
the parent authorities and future management options for the House and
Country Park are the subject of the current debate by the Officer’s
Working Group which has been set up by the Joint Committee.

The Joint Committee is required to comply with Plymouth City Council’s
Contract Procedure Rules (Contract Standing Orders) when letting
contracts and all tenders will need to be published in the name of both
councils. In addition Cornwall requires all contracts for more than £50,000
to go through their procurement assurance scheme and this will apply to
contracts relating to Mount Edgcumbe.

Contracts

Mount Edgcumbe needs to be able to make contracts; however as the
Joint Committee is not a separate legal organisation, either the contracts
must be entered into by the cabinets of each of the joint councils, or they
need to give delegated authority to permit officers of each of the councils
to contract on their behalf. It is recommended that the power to approve
contracts that are within the annual budget provision for that particular
area of expenditure is delegated to the Director for Community Services in
Plymouth in consultation with the Director for Environment Planning and
Economy in Cornwall . It is recommended that any other contracts are
approved by Cabinet.

Recommendations about who does what in the future

This report recommends an annual business planning process is adopted
which sets the framework for the development of Mount Edgcumbe and
allows members to monitor progress. Within such a process the Joint
Committee would have a key role in proposing the business plan to
Cabinet and monitoring performance against the business plan. The Joint
Committee would also be responsible for ensuring appropriate systems
are in place, for proper financial and legal management practices, proper
audit and risk management procedures and proper strategic management
of the business to achieve value for money. The Committee would also



3.2

Page 60

carry out an appropriate inspection of the house and country park on an
annual basis and undertake appropriate consultation with key
stakeholders. It is recommended that the remaining day to day
responsibilities for the management of Mount Edgcumbe are delegated to
the Director for Community Services in Plymouth in consultation with the
Director for Environment Planning and Economy in Cornwall.

To avoid confusion and make sure that the Cabinet of each authority are
involved as appropriate it is recommended that the Mount Edgcumbe
terms of reference are amended to show who in each Council is
responsible for what functions as shown below:

Each Council will:
e decide the annual budget for the Country Park and House;
e decide whether to agree extra spending outside the budget.

Each Cabinet will:

e agree the business plan;

e recommend the annual budget to council as part of the budget
process;

e take decisions that would result in each of the councils spending or
saving more than £250,000 i.e. total 500,000;

e decide whether to recommend ways of meeting any extra spending
outside the budget to Council;

e appoint a cabinet member with responsibility amongst other things
for Mount Edgcumbe;

e lease property or grant easements in the country park where this is
for less than best consideration or for more than 10 years.

The Cabinet Members will:

e Decide whether to recommend that cabinet approves variations to
the business plan that require extra spending;

e Agree variations to the business plan that do not require extra
spending.

e In Plymouth spending between £100,000 and £500,000 must be
agreed by Cabinet members; in Cornwall this level of spending
can be agreed by the Director assuming it is within the business
plan — appropriate limits for spending by Directors and cabinet
members will need to be considered by the committee.



Page 61

The Joint Committee will;

Propose a business plan to cabinet;

Monitor performance of the undertaking against the business
plan and recommend variations to the business plan to the
Cabinet Members;

Monitor performance of the undertaking to ensure value for
money is achieved;

Ensure the management of the country park and estate
accords with proper financial and legal practice appropriate
to local authorities;

Ensure proper audit and risk management procedures are in
place;

Carry out an appropriate inspection of the house and country
park on an annual basis;

Undertake appropriate consultation with key stakeholders.

The Director for Community Services in Plymouth in consultation with the
Director for Environment Planning and Economy in Cornwall will have
delegated authority to make sure everything else is done.

Recommendation

It is recommended that the Joint Committee asks the Cabinets of each of
its constituent councils to adopt new terms of reference as set out at
appendix 1 and amend their respective constitutions to reflect this.



Page 62

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63

TERMS OF REFERENCE
CORNWALL COUNCIL AND PLYMOUTH CITY COUNCIL
MOUNT EDGCUMBE HOUSE AND COUNTRY PARK
THE MOUNT EDGCUMBE JOINT COMMITTEE

A Background

Cornwall Council and Plymouth City Council (the “Constituent Councils”)
being joint owners of the Mount Edgcumbe House and Country Park (the
“House and Country Park”) have agreed that the following arrangements
will apply in relation to the House and Country Park. They have also
agreed to form a Joint Committee (within the meaning of Section 102
Local Government Act 1972) to make sure that the House and Country
Park are managed appropriately.

B Responsibilities

The Joint Council’s are responsible for exercising the powers under
sections 6, 7, 8 and 9 of the Countryside Act 1968 and section 19 of the
Local Government Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1976 in relation to the
House and Country Park.

Who carries out the responsibilities
B1 Each Council will:
e decide the annual budget for the Country Park and House as
part of the budget setting process;
e decide whether to allow any extra spending outside the budget.

B2 Each Cabinet will:

e agree the business plan;

e recommend the annual budget to council as part of the budget
process;

o take decisions that would result in each of the councils spending
or saving more than £250,000;(in total £500,000);

e decide whether to recommend ways of meeting any additional
spending requirements outside the agreed budget to Council;

e appoint a cabinet member with responsibility amongst other
things for Mount Edgcumbe;

e agree the lease of a property or grant easements in the country
park where this is for less than best consideration or ,more than
ten years.

B3 The Cabinet members who have been appointed will:

e Decide whether to recommend that cabinet approves variations
to the business plan that require extra spending and propose the
means of meeting any additional costs to Council;

e Agree variations to the business plan that do not require extra
spending.



Page 64

e Take decisions that would result in each of the councils spending
or saving more than [£100,000] - note the limits for this need
to be decided

e Propose an annual business plan to cabinet;

e Monitor performance of the undertaking against the business
plan and recommend variations to the business plan to the

e Monitor performance of the undertaking to ensure value for

e Ensure the management of the country park and estate accords
with proper financial and legal practice appropriate to local

e Ensure proper audit and risk management procedures are in
e Carry out an appropriate inspection of the house and country
e Undertake appropriate consultation with key stakeholders.
The Director for Community Services in Plymouth in consultation

with the Director for Environment Planning and Economy in
Cornwall Assistant have delegated authority to make sure

The Joint Committee shall consist of fourteen members. Each
Constituent Council shall appoint seven of their respective Members
to act as Members of the Joint Committee and shall also have the
power to appoint substitutes with full powers of their principals,
(including the power to vote) to sit in place of the Members when
any of those Members are unable to attend a meeting of the Joint

The Chief Executives of the constituent councils have agreed that
democratic support for the Joint Committee shall be provided by

In the first meeting of the year the Members of the Joint Committee
shall appoint two Joint Chairs, one from each Council, and the first
meeting will be chaired by the Joint Chair from Plymouth City
Council following which at every subsequent meeting the Joint

B4 The Joint Committee will:
Cabinet Members;
money is achieved;
authorities;
place;
park on an annual basis;

B5

everything else is done.

C Committee Procedures

C1 Membership

1.1

Committee.

Support
1.2

Plymouth City Council.

Appointment of Chair
1.3

Chairs will alternate.
1.4

If either Joint Chair is not present at a meeting he or she should be
chairing, his or her place will be taken by the other Joint Chair. If
neither Joint Chair is present the members of the Joint Committee



1.5

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.6

3.1

3.2

Page 65

who are present shall appoint one of their number to chair the
meeting.

The Joint Committee shall have the power to appoint co-opted
Members to the Joint Committee provided that such persons shall
be treated as non-voting members of the Joint Committee in
accordance with Section 13 of the Local Government and Housing
Act 1989.

Meetings of the Joint Committee
The Joint Committee shall not meet less than twice in each year
commencing May of one year and ending in April of the next.

Members, including co-opted Members of the Joint Committee, shall
be given not less that five clear working days notice of a meeting of
the Joint Committee and the venue for that meeting. It shall be the
responsibility of Members wishing to appoint substitutes for a
meeting to notify those substitutes of the date and venue of the
meeting and for these purposes it shall not be an invalid notice if
the substitute is given less than five clear working days notice.

The venue for meetings of the Joint Committee shall normally be
Mount Edgcumbe Country Park but the Chair may at his/her
discretion fix alternative venues provided that in exercising this
discretion the Chair shall have regard to the need to ensure that the
venue is convenient to all Members.

Quorum
The quorum for any meeting of the Joint Committee shall be two
Members from each Council or their substitutes.

The minutes of the business transacted at each meeting of the Joint
Committee and the names of the Members present shall be entered
in a book and signed by the Chair of the Committee and each page

of the minutes shall be initialled by the Chair at the next meeting.

Any motion moved by the Chair or any Member or substitute of a
Member of the Joint Committee shall require to be seconded by
another Member of the Joint Committee before such a motion is put
to the vote.

Any procedural requirements not specified in these standing orders
shall be undertaken in accordance with Plymouth City Council’s
procedural rules.

Voting at the Meeting

Voting shall be upon a show of hands unless a majority of the
Members of the Joint Committee who are present and entitled to
vote request that a recorded vote be taken.

In the case of an equality of votes the Chair of the Committee shall
have a second or casting vote.



ca

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

6.1

7.1

8.1

Page 66

Disorderly Conduct by Members

If a Member keeps on disrupting the meeting by persistently
disregarding the ruling of the Chair or by behaving irregularly,
improperly or offensively or by wilfully obstructing the business of
the Joint Committee, the Chair may order the Member to leave the
meeting room for the remainder of the Joint Committee’s business
for that day.

Disclosure of Interests
The Code of Conduct for Councillors (as amended from time to time
by legislation) shall apply to all meetings of the Joint Committee.

All members of the Joint Committee shall declare any interest they
have in any business of the Joint Committee at the start of the item
of business or when they realise they have an interest if that is
later. They must say they have an interest and what the interest is
unless they do not know they have the interest and could not be
expected to know about it; or they cannot describe the interest
without revealing sensitive information in which case they need to
say they have an interest but they do not need to describe it.

Once a member has declared a personal interest they can stay in
the meeting and speak and vote unless the personal interest is also
a prejudicial interest in which case they must leave the meeting
while the item is dealt with.

Disclosures, withdrawals and dispensations shall be recorded in the
minutes of the meeting.

Referral of Business to Constituent Councils

Where the Chief Executive of either Council considers any matters
arising should be referred to the Cabinet of his/her Constituent
Council no action shall be taken on that matter unless and until the
same shall have been approved by the Cabinet of each Constituent
Council.

Disputes

Where the Constituent Councils do not agree on a matter, once
every effort has been made to reconcile any differences between
the authorities, the matter may be referred for mediation to a
mediator to be agreed by the Constituent Councils, with each party
bearing the cost of doing so.

Revenue and Capital Expenditure

Revenue and Capital Budgets for each financial year shall be such
as shall be agreed by each Constituent Council through the usual
budget setting process. The Joint Committee will propose a
business plan and budget to both Cabinets. If both Cabinets
approve the business plan they will in turn recommend the budget
to Council. Any variations to the business plan within the year that
would result in extra spending need to be reported to each of the



8.2

C9.

Page 67

relevant Cabinet Members, who will decide whether to recommend
that Cabinet approve the changes and recommend that each of the
Constituent Councils approve the additional spending. The Business
Plan shall be available by 31 October in order to feed into the
budget setting process.

Revenue and Capital Expenditure incurred by the Joint Committee
shall be defrayed and income shared by the Constituent Councils in
equal portions.

Delegation to Working Groups and officers

The Joint Committee shall have the power to form working parties
or other such groups as it may decide and may delegate to such
working parties etc. such of its powers as it chooses. The Joint
Committee may also delegate such of its powers as it chooses to an
officer of either of the Constituent Councils.

Note it is recommended that further joint working arrangements in
relation to the management of the country house and park, including:

arrangements for dealing with contracts,

liaison arrangements, and

a protocol that states how any statutory and regulatory
responsibilities arising from the work of the Joint Committee are
addressed e.g. Health and Safety, carbon reduction

be agreed following the work of the Officer Working Group



Page 68

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 63 Agenda ltem 10

CITY OF PLYMOUTH

Subject: Services for Children and Young People Basic Need Programme
Committee: Cabinet

Date: 19 October 2010

Cabinet Member: Councillor Mrs Watkins

CMT Member: Director of Services for Children and Young People

Authors: Gareth Simmons, Programme Director for Learning Environments

Jayne Gorton, School Organisation and Pupil Access Manager
Les Allen, Programme Manager for Learning Environments
Contacts: Tel: 01752 307161
gareth.simmons@plymouth.gov.uk
Tel: 01752 307472
jayne.gorton@plymouth.gov.uk
Tel: 01752 307421
les.allen@plymouth.gov.uk
Ref: MC.JEG/LA (CAB)(95)(16/09/10)
Part: I

Executive Summary:

This report seeks authorisation from members to commence the feasibility stage of providing
additional primary school accommodation to meet the increased number of primary age
pupils with effect from September 2011 and to commence consultation with stakeholders on
the proposed changes.

Corporate Plan 2010-2013

This programme will align with and supports the following Corporate Improvement Priorities
(CIPs):

CIP 7 — Keeping children safe
Making buildings and schools safer places is a key objective of the Investment for Children
strategy, in particular supporting anti-bullying and promoting multi-agency spaces in schools.

CIP 9 — Developing high quality places to learn in

The programme is derived from the Investment for Children strategy that seeks to align
demographic changes and the city growth agenda, while dealing with the liability of an aging
stock of assets. This paper includes capital investment options to improve schools’ learning
environments.



Page 70

CIP 12 - Delivering sustainable growth

The demographic need in the city has a direct effect on infrastructure being available for
housing growth and this paper recognises that housing growth can not be achieved or
sustained without infrastructure growth in children’s services. The proposal takes into
account the residential growth set out in the Local Development Framework (LDF) and the
changed nature of school places to promote the city’s economic growth agenda.

CIP 14 - Providing better value for money

This paper considers the planning gain in support of the growth agenda and the liability to the
Council of the statutory duty to provide education places and the longer term effects of the
demographic need on the value for money of services.

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

The Basic Need Programme will require investment to deliver solutions across the city to
meet the start of the academic year in September 2011. Approval of the recommendations
will contribute towards delivering the individual projects across the city in order to manage the
increase in pupils forecast. The effect on the Council’s capital and revenue budgets will be
determined as part of the feasibility stage. Officer time and resources to develop proposals at
this stage will be met from within the existing Services for Children and Young People’s
revenue budget until Initial Project Proposals (IPP) are defined.

Consideration has been given to the availability of land in the city for children’s services, of
which by far the greatest need is school places. In consultation with the Planning Authority
proposals have been made on the allocation of land for future education purposes and these
will be brought forward through the planning processes.

There will be an increase in the number of teachers and services to meet the pressure of
increased pupil numbers. Predominantly, the cost of these increases will be met from central
government as funding for schools is currently formula driven on pupil numbers.

Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk Management,
Equalities Impact Assessment, etc.

The planning of basic need has been done on the basis of equal opportunity; ensuring that a
broad, mixed and diverse provision is available across the city. This will offer parents choice
and diversity in a sustainable way. Also a part of the strategic development is work related to
the nature of special education and inclusion; making sure that basic need provision is in
place for these services; to ensure that the diverse pattern of education contains sufficient
places for more vulnerable groups.

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action:

Approval of the following recommendations is requested to enable formal consultation to
commence. It will also improve communications and the Council’s ability to understand the
financial exposure and any risks. Therefore, it is recommended that:



Page 71

Authority is given to officers to commence consultation with schools, partners, sponsors
and stakeholders.

Reason: To improve communications and raise awareness of a growing issue in the city,
to gain stakeholder support to solutions and generate a common approach.

Authority is given to officers to propose the safeguarding of land for future expansion of
education infrastructure related to housing growth.

Reason: To meet the Council's obligation to plan for education places and protect the
interest in future facilities for local communities.

Authority is given to officers to develop and submit Basic Need funding applications to
support the capital programme.

Reason: To protect the Council’s liability in meeting its statutory obligations where there
are gaps in funding generated through housing growth.

Authority is given to officers to develop proposals to meet Basic Need growth.

Reason: To understand the financial exposure and risks to the Council.

Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action:

The Council would be failing in its statutory duty to provide sufficient places in schools for
parents and pupils within the city.

Background papers:

Investment for Children Cabinet Paper approved 11 November 2008

Plymouth City Council Children’s Services Strategy for Change Investment for Children
National Pupil Projections: Future Trends in Pupil Numbers. Published 24 June 2010
OSR 15/2010

Local Development Framework: Adoption of Planning Obligations & Affordable Housing
Supplementary Planning Document, including the first review July 2010

Sign Off:
Chs0

Fin f\f'i/? Leg 9665 | HR Corp IT Strat
14109/ /DS Prop Proc
10

Originating SMT Member: Colin Moore, Assistant Director for Lifelong Learning




FTE Pupils (Millions)

Motes

Page 72

1.0 Introduction

1.1 For some time there has been a national decline in pupil numbers in state funded
schools. This trend is about to turn and pupil numbers are projected to increase from 2011
onwards. The rise in the national pupil population is chiefly brought about from an increase in
the birth rate, which is now feeding into early years and reception classes. Numbers in
maintained nursery and primary schools have started to rise and are expected to continue to
rise. By 2018 numbers are projected to reach levels last seen in the late 1970s. In the
national context pupil numbers in maintained nursery and primary schools are projected to be
around eight per cent higher in 2014 than 2010. The number of pupils aged five and six is
projected to increase by some 12 per cent.

1.2 National state funded secondary school rolls, of pupils aged up to and including 15,
started to decline after 2004 and they are expected to decline further until around 2015 when
the increases in primary pupil numbers start to flow through. These numbers are expected to
be almost five per cent lower in 2014 compared with 2010.

1.3 The following graph, published by the Department for Education (DfE) in June 2010",
demonstrates the cyclical nature of school place planning with the population birth rate bulge
passing through primary into secondary and then resulting in a population boom again when
they become of child bearing age in the cycle.

Numbers of FTE pupils in state funded schools in England 1970 to 2010 and predictions to

2018
5.0

45 /\ —
5"
"
‘l
4.0 g

/ N -

2 D T T T T I T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T T
1970 1974 1978 1982 1986 1990 1994 1998 2002 2006 2010 2014 2018

Year (as at January)

= Naintained Nursery & Primary Schools = State Funded Secondary Schools

1. Pupill projections use ONS mid-2008 based population projections.

' National Pupil Projections: Future Trends in Pupil Numbers. Published 24 June 2010 OSR 15/2010



Page 73

1.4  The position in Plymouth is similar to the national picture with primary numbers
starting to rise in 2009 and secondary numbers declining until 2015. The following graph
shows the prediction for Plymouth’s primary numbers until 2018.

Primary NOR 1.5  Within Services for Children and
Young People, the School Organisation
Team monitor live birth data obtained
from Plymouth NHS Trust. This is used
to inform the strategic direction for the
Council’s policies to ensure that
sufficient school places exist to meet the
& 19500 - needs of the population and to promote
= high standards of education.

22500
21500

20500

18500
1.6  The Council’s Investment for

17500 - Children strategy, adopted in December
2008, used live birth data at the time to
16500 ——— predict the demographic change in
2000 2002 2004 2006 2008 2010 2012 2014 2016 2018 school places. The following extract is
Year from the 2008 adopted Investment for
Children strategy.:

“In recent years there has been a steady increase in the birth rate in line with
the national trend, the main factors of which are:
o an increasing number of women who had delayed starting a family
now deciding to have children;
o an increasing number of children born to mothers not born in the UK.

The impact of this trend is that the number of children in primary schools
should ‘bottom out’ in 2009 at 17,720 pupils, and then increase to 18,577
pupils in 2015, a rise of 5%. If the city achieves its ambition to significantly
increase the population through regeneration and development the rise would
be 9%.

The implementation of the School Implementation Plan has meant that the
Council has kept pace with the supply of primary school places, surplus
capacity reducing at about the same rate as the numbers on roll. School place
planning in future, through the strategy outlined in this report will seek to
ensure that, as far as possible; there will be an overall level of surplus capacity
of 8% to allow for sudden, unpredictable changes in pupil numbers and for
parental preference to operate.

The long decline in the number of primary school pupils has already started to
affect secondary schools and will continue to do so until at least 2015. Current
numbers on roll stand at 18,253 pupils and are predicted to fall to 16,084
pupils in 2015, a drop of 12%. If the city achieves its ambition to significantly
increase the population through regeneration and development the drop would
be limited to 8%.”

1.7  Live births have continued to rise as broadly predicted in 2008 and the number of
children in Primary Schools are now predicted to increase to 20,294 by 2015, a rise of 14%.
However, there has been a flattening out of the growth in recent years and births this year



Page 74

appear to be slightly lower than last year. An analysis of the number of women of child
bearing age leads to a prediction that the birth rate over the coming few years will turn
around again and rise sharply until

Births (Live) 2019. This is demonstrated on the
4000 1 following graph:
3800 A ———
o 1.8  This analysis is consistent
3600 7 i with national trends which show
3400 4 B increases in the birth rate and also
p i with the studies that have been
= 2001 ol completed to consider the population
3000 of the city growing to 300k by 2026.
807 1.9  There have been some
2600 1 notable cases that have reached the
5400 . . . . . . . Press when parents have found that
1991 1995 1999 2003 2007 2011 2015 2019 there are insufficient school places in
Year their locality, which has resulted in

their children and young people
making longer and sometimes more inconvenient journeys to school. If Basic Need is not
addressed there will come a point when there are insufficient places in the city to meet
demand and the Council will at this point have failed to meet its statutory duty.

1.10 The Services for Children and Young People Basic Need Programme has arisen as a
direct result of the monitoring of the live births. This programme seeks to develop an
economic and effective solution to this new growth in births across the city. The primary
objectives and benefits are to:

o Meet the basic requirements of the Education Act 1996 to provide sufficient education
spaces for Plymouth;

e Maximise the efficiency and capacity of buildings already in existence that are located in
suitable positions by refurbishing, adapting and bringing into more efficient use buildings
that are used for education purposes;

e Maximise parental choice wherever possible by expanding popular and successful
schools;

e Improve standards of education by targeting expansion at schools with the managerial
and leadership quality to manage change;

e Deliver a coordinated programme of works that is part of the delivery of the Council’s
adopted strategy to raise aspirations; meet and stimulate economic growth; and reduce
the Council’s backlog liability of poor assets.

1.11 The Basic Need Programme focuses on the primary school estate and is consistent
with the Investment for Children strategy and in particular the Primary Capital strategy, which
is a document required by the Government and which we submitted in June 2008. It should
be noted that increasing primary school places is still in line with the current reduction in
secondary school places as these continue to decline until 2015. However, what will need to
be considered in the secondary sector is the rate of growth out of this decline post 2015.

2.0 The Education Act and School Organisation

2.1 The Education Act 1996 places a duty on local authorities to ensure that sufficient
school places exist to meet the needs of the population and to promote high standards. The
Education and Inspections Act 2006 amends the 1996 Act to require local authorities to
promote diversity and increase opportunities for parental choice when planning the supply of



Page 75

school places. Local authorities engage with parents and pupils to find out their needs and
aspirations when assessing local need to inform their school place planning. In undertaking
this planning, we are expected to take robust measures to remove surplus places as well as
identify the need for any new places and ensure that school places are where parents want
them and offer the kind of provision parents want.

2.2 School organisation is driven by improvement in outcomes for children and young
people. Changes to the pattern of school places are made through the statutory proposals
process involving five stages: consultation, publication, representation, decision and
implementation. It is this process that is recommended to commence.

2.3  The Council’s role in planning school places has four main strands of activity. These

are as follows:

e Establishing the demand for school places, obtaining and using robust demographic data
to establish where, when and for which age group school places will be needed in the
future, and engaging with pupils and parents, as the users of the school system, to
establish their needs and aspirations;

e Planning the organisation of school places in consultation with Children’s Trust partners,
Dioceses, Academy Sponsors and other stakeholders, including negotiation with
developers and planning over the implications of housing growth;

e Implementing strategic plans for reorganisation, and ensuring sustainable delivery,
including brokering partnerships between schools and potential providers such as
Academy Sponsors, Trust Partners and potentially (depending on legislation) Free
schools. It also includes the running of competitions for new schools where necessary;

e Supporting and challenging schools, in the use of buildings for efficient use and gathering
data needed for returns to the DfE, in order to create sustainable and viable schools able
to gain maximum advantage through their size.

3.0 Birth Rates in Plymouth

3.1 The live birth figures provided by the Plymouth NHS Trust are compared with the
number of children arriving at school four years later to produce a trend, which is used to
forecast future school years’ reception cohorts.

3.2  The historic trend suggests that currently 94.42 per cent of births in Plymouth arrive at
school within the city. This current percentage is based on the data for the previous three
years’ reception cohorts.

3.3  This demographic information has been benchmarked against the ‘2008-based Sub-
national Populations Projections’, published in June 2010, and a recent statistical release by
the Department for Education (DfE), OSR 15/2010 — 24 June 2010, both of which correlate
well with the Council’s projections of a total primary cohort increase of 12 per cent by January
2014 and an increase of 19 per cent for five and six year olds by January 2014.

4.0 Schools’ Capacity

4.1  There are a number of measures that are used in school place planning to manage
admissions and the planning of school places. The key measure is the Net Capacity (Net
Cap), which is a measure of how schools use their accommodation. The current Net Cap for
primary schools in Plymouth is 19,229, which has been reduced over the past five years from
21,035 in line with government requirements. The Net Capacity of a school also calculates an
Indicated Admission Number (IAN), which is the number of children in any cohort, or year,
that the school is capable of accommodating. However, the Admissions Code of Practice
uses Published Admission Numbers (PANs), which control the number of children admitted



NOR

Page 76

to a school in any one year. The city currently has a PAN of 2,849. This means that at
reception age there are 2,849 places available for a cohort of children. The number of
children in preceding cohorts may have been admitted below or above PAN, depending on
the popularity of individual schools and in-year admissions. The Number on Roll (NoR) is the
number of students at a school, which should be a number below the Net Capacity.

4.2  Inthe Investment for Children strategy there is a guiding principle that for planning
purposes an 8 per cent surplus capacity should be built into the system to allow for inward
migration, parental preference and military migration. The following graph shows the primary
age PAN capacity and the predicted demand for places derived from the birth data described
above:

Plymouth NOR Primary  —— =Met Cap 8% Margin
o

AY _

21500 4 \ ~
\ ,F"" - ‘J‘
20500 A\~ \ .
\ .
F
18600 \ I Ry S E—
r
Fj
E 3
18500 4 e
_"
L L J

17600 A
16500

2000 2002 2004 2006 2003 2010 2012 2014 206 2018
Year

4.3  This data indicates that the demand for primary school places is now reaching the
point where it will outstrip supply; in certain localities this has already been reached. In these
cases supply from neighbouring localities is meeting this demand, not necessarily a
detrimental factor. However, as demand is increasing in all localities it is becoming much
more difficult for the Council’s School Admissions Team to place children in a school that is
convenient for parents. The data also shows that unless Basic Need is addressed, the city
will not have sufficient primary places by 2013.



Page 77

5.0 Localities and Intercity Migration

5.1 This picture shows the
migration of Reception pupils
averaged over the last three
years. It attempts to show the
related proportion of pupils
attending a school in a locality
other than the locality they live
in. It illustrates the ability of the
‘North East and Central’ locality
to draw in pupils from
neighbouring localities because
it contains popular and
successful schools and that the
‘South East’ locality loses a
proportion of its reception aged
pupils to neighbouring localities
because of its high housing
density and low number of
Primary schools.

6.0 School Organisation Effect on Standards

6.1 It is the policy of the Council, wherever possible, to arrange schools in whole number
PANSs. This means that classes can be arranged in year groups and within key stages. It also
means that teaching staff have an efficient class size and the school budget is more
sustainable, offering suitable resources to all the children within the school. When a school’s
admissions are not a multiple of 30, either by virtue of an odd number PAN, a low intake or
in-year admissions, it means that the year groups have to be mixed. This can have a
detrimental effect on school standards, especially in small schools where the flexibility to
organise the school is much less. There are some educationalists who argue that a mixed
year group can have positive effects but this is not considered the normal approach.

6.2 Theincrease in birth rates as they feed into primary schools can be a challenge to the
policy of whole number PANs. This is because there may be capacity in a school in the upper
years that using mixed year groups could release. Realising this capacity is a capital efficient
method of meeting the Council’s obligations to have school places available because it
releases classes for additional reception children without the capital investment of building
extra classrooms.

6.3  During periods of steady decline in primary school places, schools naturally reduced
capacity by converting spare classrooms into specialist teaching areas. The development of
ICT, in particular, has seen a number of redundant classrooms converted into ICT suites.
These conversions have enriched the curriculum and undoubtedly contributed to the raising
of attainment in the city. As the pressure for additional capacity now increases, a cost
effective way of achieving this would be to reverse this trend and convert specialist teaching
areas into general classes. This does not need to be to the detriment of specialist teaching,
as advances in technology and changing methodology means that the integration of ICT
throughout the school can make more accommodation available.



Page 78

7.0 Alternative Methods of Organising Teaching within Schools

7.1 In today’s modern curriculum there are examples in the country of alternative models
of teaching that offer more efficient use of buildings. Two methods have been explored within
Plymouth but do not have universal use.

7.2  One is the development of team teaching and the practice of shared use of general
teaching and break out spaces. In this model, when children are in specialist teaching spaces
such as PE, music, drama, ICT, or, subject to available accommodation, science, art, and
food technology, their general teaching space is used for a different group. This is very
efficient at utilising space but has the disadvantage that staff and children don’t identify with a
unique space for them.

7.3 A second approach, which is more radical, was trialled in Plymouth in 2007. This is a
split day approach where the enrichment time of breakfast and after-school clubs is used to
generate an early start/early finish day and a late start/late finish day. The enrichment activity
is used either side of the day for those parents who work. Using a timetable that splits the
day into thirds, classes can overlap so that two classes can share a single classroom. This is
extremely efficient on space utilisation and educationalists have argued that offering flexibility
to children in their time of learning can have benefits to attainment. However, the radical
nature of this type of organisation would need considerable buy-in as it is not an accepted
model of teaching and there are very few primaries in the country that practice this method.

7.4  Whilst the above methods have been trialled for their education advantage and not
their ability to save accommodation, the obvious efficiency of space utilisation should not be
overlooked. These methods have parallels in the office environment where hot-desking
allows for significant accommodation savings, whilst boosting productivity. Schools will be
challenged to consider how they deal with the increasing Basic Need, seeking methods to
transform their teaching and learning in efficient and value for money ways.

8.0 Section 106 and Tariff

8.1  The Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing Supplementary Planning Document
sets out to developers the method of calculation of planning gain that contributes to the
infrastructure costs for primary schools. It should be noted that secondary schools are
excluded from the Tariff as there is currently additional capacity in the secondary sector.
Although this can prove problematic, in infrastructure terms, it is not the subject of this paper.
The Tariff or s106 will only ever be gap funding and there is a risk to relying upon it as a
primary funding source for capital projects. The Tariff has many exclusions, including
affordable housing and flats. It also doesn’t cover Special Education Needs, Children’s
Centres, Early Years and (depending on negotiation) community facilities. In addition, the
level of the Tariff has been derived using Viability Assessment so does not cover the basic
infrastructure cost in full. These gaps in infrastructure costs from the Tariff and S106 have
been manageable where adoptions or alterations have been made at a time when central
government funding for Basic Need has been available in the formula allocations. However,
the combined effect of increased demand for places, housing growth and reduced
government funding will change dramatically the pressures on the Council’s Capital
Programme to meet the gap in Tariff and s106 funding.

9.0 Capital Implications

9.1 At this time there are a number of options under consideration, which could facilitate
the solution across the city. Each school identified as a potential site for increase of PAN has



Page 79

its own particular needs, not only in terms of sustainability and condition but also in terms of
site availability, abnormals and potential statutory improvements. Some increases in PAN
can be achieved at no capital cost by deriving capacity from the upper years and the
conversion of specialist teaching spaces back to general teaching spaces. These options will
be considered before there is a need for capital works. What is clear is that the city is notin a
position to deal with all outstanding issues at every location, as this cost would be excessive.
As a result each site that is identified will need to have its own individual solution appraised
and quantified to ensure that this is an affordable programme for the city.

9.2 A bid for Exceptional Basic Need funding was made to the former Department for
Children Schools and Families (now the DfE) in July 2009. Although the city only just met the
criteria, this bid was considered as a forewarning of the growing issues in the city, as it was
understood that funding in 2009/10 would not be essential. The Department declined
Plymouth’s request at that time. Future Basic Need funding bids are expected, despite the
considerable economic pressures in the country, as the new Government have made Basic
Need the highest priority in the criteria for its capital funding review, which is expected to
make announcements in February 2011. The Council, having addressed surplus places over
the past five years is in a healthy position to access funds for Basic Need. The removal of
high liability buildings at a time of surplus and replacement in a time of growth being a
prudent method of updating assets over the long term.

9.3 ltis anticipated that authority given through this cabinet paper would allow proposals
to be worked-up and to determine the cost implications. Individual schemes would be taken
through the Capital Development Board for approval.

10.0 Timescales and Key Dates

10.1 At this time only an outline delivery plan exists, which contains some flexibility,
however, the proposals will involve statutory consultations and approvals as well as a
number of planning consultations. As the proposals will affect a considerable number of
schools there will also be a significant number of capital contracts. All these factors will have
an effect on a programme. The headline programme and key dates are as follows:

October 2010 Birth figures for 2014 cohort confirmed
October 2010 Comprehensive Spending Review
November 2010 Consultation process commences
November 2010 Schools Condition Surveys due to complete
December 2010 Phased delivery plan completed

February 2010 Cost Plan agreed

April 2011-Dec 2011 Statutory School Organisation Process
October 2011 Birth figures for 2015 cohort confirmed
December 2011 Construction Tenders issued

February 2012 Contract Awards

April 2012 — March 2013
Mar 2013 — August 2013
September 2013

Construction Period
School internal changes and preparations
Cohort 2013 commences

11.0 Recommendations

11.1  Approval of the following recommendations is requested to enable formal consultation

to commence. It will also improve communications and the Council’s ability to understand the

financial exposure and any risks. It is therefore recommended that:

e Authority is given to officers to commence consultation with schools, partners, sponsors
and stakeholders.



Page 80

Reason: To improve communications and raise awareness of a growing issue in the city,
to gain stakeholder support to solutions and generate a common approach.

Authority is given to officers to propose the safeguarding of land for future expansion of
education infrastructure related to housing growth.

Reason: To meet the Council's obligation to plan for education places and protect the
interest in future facilities for local communities.

Authority is given to officers to develop and submit Basic Need funding applications to
support the capital programme.

Reason: To protect the Council’s liability in meeting its statutory obligations where there
are gaps in funding generated through housing growth.

Authority is given to officers to develop proposals to meet Basic Need growth.

Reason: To understand the financial exposure and risks to the Council.



Page 81 Agenda ltem 11

CITY OF PLYMOUTH

Subject: Plymouth’s Third Local Transport Plan - Consultation Draft

Committee: Cabinet

Date: 19 October 2010

Cabinet Member: Councillor Wigens

CMT Member: Director for Development and Regeneration

Author: Sunita Mills, Transport Strategy and Spatial Development
Controller

Contact: Tel: 01752 307719
Email: sunita.mills@plymouth.gov.uk

Ref: SAM / DLTP3

Part: 1

Executive Summary:
This report brings before Cabinet, Plymouth’s Third Local Transport Plan seeking approval to
commence a full public consultation.

The Council has a statutory duty under the Transport Act 2000 and amended by the Local
Transport Act 2008 to have in place a Local Transport Plan that consists of a transport
strategy and an implementation plan. Confirmation that this requirement will remain had
been received from the Department for Transport.

There have been a number of changes to the requirements since Plymouth’s Second Local
Transport Plan was published, these changes are detailed in this report.

A short summary of the contents of the draft plan is included within this report.

Plymouth’s Second Local Transport Plan is due for replacement on 1% April 2011, this report
seeks approval for Plymouth’s Second Local Transport Plan to be retained as the transport
strategy for the City until 11™ April 2011 to coincide with dates of the meeting of the City
Council.

Corporate Plan 2010 - 2013:

The Local Transport Plan (LTP) is one of the Council’s key strategies for delivering its
Corporate Aims, as identified in the Corporate Plan. In particular the LTP is a companion
strategy to both the Local Development Framework and Local Economic Strategy. It will help
to build Plymouth’s future by articulating a transport strategy which directly supports the
Sustainable Community Strategy.

It is a cross-cutting strategy, supporting several of the Council’s priorities through delivery of
transport interventions which enable growth, support aspirations and increase equality as
well as providing a contribution to reducing the carbon footprint of the city.

In particular, this report provides the transport framework for delivering the current Corporate
Improvement Priority number 11.



Page 82

Implications for Medium Term Financial Plan and Resource Implications:
Including finance, human, IT and land

This consultation stage of the LTP is estimated to cost in the region of £10,000. This will
cover meetings, workshops, publication and publicity costs. This will be met from the existing
Transport Strategy budget.

Other Implications: e.g. Section 17 Community Safety, Health and Safety, Risk
Management, Equalities Impact Assessment, etc.

None

Recommendations & Reasons for recommended action:
It is recommended that the Cabinet —
Approve for consultation purposes Plymouth’s Third Local Transport Plan

Reason - To enable the Council to progress the Plan in line with statutory requirements.

Alternative options considered and reasons for recommended action:

Not to progress with Plymouth’s Third Local Transport Plan would result in Plymouth’s
Second Local Transport Plan being rolled forward as the future transport strategy for the city.
This would be unacceptable as it does not support new priorities which have emerged since
its publication.

Background papers:

Evidence documents are detailed throughout the plan.

Sign off: comment must be sought from those whose area of responsibility may be affected
by the decision, as follows (insert initials of Finance and Legal reps, and of HR, Corporate
Property, IT and Strat. Proc. as appropriate):

Fin Leg HR Corp IT Strat
DevF10110022 JAR/10/9858
Prop Proc

Originating SMT Member: Clive Perkin. Assistant Director of Development and Regeneration




Page 83

1. BACKGROUND

1.1 The Local Transport Plan is the framework for management and improvement of the
transport networks within Plymouth.

1.2 The statutory requirement for local transport authorities to produce a Local Transport
Plan was enacted via the Transport Act 2000. Under the provisions of the act,
Plymouth has produced two Local Transport Plans previously in 2001 and 2006. A third
plan is required to be in place by 1st April 2011.

1.3 The Local Transport Plan is a companion strategy to the Local Development
Framework and Local Economic Strategy. It enables delivery of the growth aspirations
of the city by improving connectivity, it supports the aspirations of individuals and a wide
range of communities within the city, it reduces the carbon footprint of the city by
providing more sustainable travel opportunities and it increases equality by providing
transport or alternative to travel options to access essential services and facilities.

2. CHANGES TO THE LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN PROCESS
2.1 The Local Transport Act 2008 introduced a number of changes to the LTP process.

2.2 The Plan is no longer restricted to 5 years as with the previous two LTPs. The strategy
has therefore been developed to cover a 15 year period to closely link with the Local
Development Framework and enable long term planning of major transport schemes.
The strategy will not stand still over 15 years, it will be reviewed every 5 years to ensure
it still fits the needs of the city.

2.3 There is now a formal requirement to include an Implementation Plan as part of the LTP
or as a separate document. The implementation plan does not have to cover the same
timeframe as the strategy but it must demonstrate how the strategy will be delivered.
Included within the draft LTP is a one year implementation plan which covers the period
2011 — 2012. A three year implementation plan will be included within the final Local
Transport Plan when there is a clearer understanding of the emerging funding
processes.

2.4 The LTP will no longer be formally assessed by the Department for Transport.
2.5 There is no longer a requirement to produce a bus strategy to accompany the LTP.

3. CONTENTS OF THE PLYMOUTH’S THIRD LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN -
CONSULTATION DRAFT

3.1 The Policy Context for the Local Transport Plan

3.1.1 The Plan for Plymouth sets out a vision that “By 2020 Plymouth will be one of the
finest, most vibrant waterfront cities where an outstanding quality of life is enjoyed by
everyone. The Core Strategy sets out a spatial planning framework for the long term
development of the city including the physical expansion of the city from 250,000 to over
300,000 people. Plymouth’s role is to become the economic hub for the far south west
meeting the needs of the sub-region. Plymouth’s superb setting makes the city an attractive
and distinctive location for both residents and visitors alike and accommodating the travel
demands that this growth will place on the city’s transport network is one of the cornerstones
of the city’s transport strategy set out in this Local Transport Plan.



Page 84

3.1.2 The city, through its Core Strategy, has identified substantial development
opportunities which are well related with the main transport corridors within the built up area.
Sustainable development is at the heart of the Council’s growth agenda and therefore
providing an effective transport system involving the transformation of the public transport
network is at the heart of the city’s transport strategy.

3.1.3 The Council is now about to go out to public consultation on its third Local Transport
Plan (LTP3). This document sets out the transport strategy for the long term development of
the city, ensuring that the significant changes arising from substantial development
opportunities across the city can be delivered in a sustainable way. Transport must also play
its role in achieving equity of access to services for all as a means of eliminating areas of
deprivation in the city and aiming for equity regarding how transport impacts upon different
communities in the city.

3.1.4 Policies addressing the changes and improvements required from transport
infrastructure and services are woven into the Core Strategy and related Local Development
Framework (LDF) documents. Therefore the Local Transport Plan includes policies and
interventions for improving connectivity between neighbourhoods by public transport, cycling
and on foot; and maintaining safe transport networks that are developed in an
environmentally sensitive manner.

3.1.5 This Local Transport Plan must also play a positive role in promoting sustainable
development and in particular responding to the impact of transport on climate change.

3.1.6 The Local Economic Strategy (2006) set out ten actions that the city needs to achieve
if it is to fulfil its economic potential. These include: focusing on key sectors for which
Plymouth has competitive advantage; enhancing the tourism offer; transforming Plymouth
into a true learning city; achieving well connected complementary growth; and achieving
effective and unconstrained participation in the labour market. Local transport investment and
policy will play an important role in achieving these.

3.2 The Transport Strategy for Plymouth

3.2.1 The LTP3 sets out a strategy that supports Plymouth’s transformation into one of
Europe’s finest waterfront cities, creating an effective transport network which provides for a
growing population with the freedom and flexibility to choose the travel option that works for
them everyday giving them a unique quality of life aspired to by other cities.

3.2.2 The requirement for the city is to achieve a fundamental shift in peoples’ attitudes and
behaviours towards the way they choose to travel. Improving people’s journey experience by
way of developing an effective transport system incorporating a transformed public transport
network is therefore a priority. A new High Quality Public Transport network to provide
sustainable transport options will be progressively extended along all the major corridors to
serve the Plymouth Travel To Work Area. For the average traveller this means that they will
be able to make their journey in the knowledge that services turn up on time, journey times
are reduced compared with the equivalent car journeys and that these are guaranteed every
day.

3.2.3 However, the Local Transport Plan over the next 15 years will also support the
delivery of sustainable linked communities, where access to a full range of local services is
available to all, narrowing the gap between the city’s affluent and deprived neighbourhoods.
Equally, reducing the negative impacts of transport on communities in terms of noise, air
quality and severance in those areas where these impacts are disproportionately high, needs
also to be a priority

3.2.4 The city has also set itself very ambitious targets to reduce transport related emissions
by 80% by 2050 and to reduce the per capita carbon footprint in the city from 5.8tCO, per



Page 85

person (in 2006) to 5.0 tCO; per person by 2011. Transport accounts for 25% of Plymouth’s
current emissions. Accordingly we have set as a local transport objective ‘to maximise the
transport contribution to Plymouth's carbon reduction target (60 percent reduction by 2020)’

3.2.5 These improvements and the outcomes we seek to achieve through the Local
Transport Plan are articulated by way of six local objectives as follows:

1. Link communities together

- Improve access to community amenities, leisure opportunities and our high quality natural
environment by increasing the availability of attractive walking, cycling and bus routes and
enabling the right mix of land use

- Enable easy access to growth and regeneration areas by walking, cycling and public
transport

- Improve the design of residential streets to reduce the fear of crime and antisocial
behaviour as well as the dominance of the car.

2. Reduce the negative impacts of transport

- Reduce severance of communities by transport networks and the impact of poor air
quality and noise on communities

- Ensure footways and cycleways are well designed and improve physical access.

3. High quality transport standards for a vibrant city

- Make best use of our existing transport networks; manage congestion and improve
journey reliability

- Maintain, and where necessary improve the condition and increase the flexibility of our
transport network such that it is more adaptable to climate change, severe weather events
and incidents

- Improve the quality of public car parks such that they meet the higher standards set by
private parking companies

- Set clear priorities for routes to and from main areas / facilities to balance competing
demands for highway space across the network.

4. Make walking, cycling and public transport the desirable choice

- Provide more opportunities and encourage increased uptake of travel by active modes,
walking and cycling, to promote healthy lifestyles

- Improve the quality, extent, availability of information and physical access of our bus, rail,
walking and cycling networks so that they are easy to use

- Increase integration of transport modes to improve the end to end journey experience so
providing an attractive range of travel choices for more people.

5. Maximise the transport contribution to Plymouth's carbon reduction target (60%

reduction by 2020)
Increase awareness of ways to reduce personal carbon footprint by walking, cycling and
taking the bus

- Reduce energy consumption from non-renewable sources used by our infrastructure and
operations

- When building or renewing infrastructure or equipment consider the lifecycle carbon
footprint; reuse and recycle where possible

- Encourage use of more efficient and alternative fuelled vehicles by providing
infrastructure and information.

6. Use transport to drive the local economy

- Support the delivery of the Local Development Framework and Local Economic Strategy
by connecting growth and regeneration areas by all modes with communities and national
transport networks




Page 86

- Work with the development management process to deliver small and large scale
improvements in transport networks to enable connectivity

- Develop improved transport networks to open up long term opportunities for growth

- Encourage sustainable tourism

- Improve connections with transport networks which connect Plymouth to the rest of the
country

- Improve access to wider road, rail, air and sea networks

- Improve gateways to these networks, prioritising Plymouth railway station and Plymouth
coach station when the future of the Civic Centre is known.

The strategy is set out in six areas and are summarised as follows:
3.3 Supporting Growth

3.3.1 The vision set out in Plymouth's Sustainable Community Strategy requires a
transformation of the city in terms of urban environment, connectivity, reduction in inequalities
and prosperity. The City’s Local Economic Strategy and Local Development Framework
documents illustrate very clearly the crucial role that transport investment will have to play if
the city is to fulfil its economic potential.

3.3.2 This chapter sets out a transport strategy to support growing prosperity and overcome
existing economic weaknesses, such as an over-reliance on public sector employment and
lack of economic diversity. Among our six local transport objectives the chapter is guided
particularly by the objective to 'Use transport to drive the local economy'.

3.3.3 The City’s ambitious growth agenda to become the economic hub of the far south west
involving population growth will present opportunities and challenges in terms of transport
infrastructure and services. Opportunities will include the creation of a larger, denser public
transport market, and the ability to make a strong case for essential large scale transport
infrastructure investment.

3.3.4 With pressures to deliver greater cost efficiencies and maximise value for money from
the investment we make, we will need to be creative in the schemes that are delivered in
terms of delivering maximum benefits at a fraction of the costs. This will be a challenge, but
the city is well placed to meet it. Traffic flows throughout most of the city’s network and
throughout most of the day are currently below the capacity available leading to little
congestion at present and where it does occur, this being restricted to a few locations for
short periods of the day. Therefore, most journeys can be relied upon. This enhances the
city’s attractiveness to new employers. The limited instances of poor air quality arising from
traffic, and relative ease of access to the outstanding natural environment and satellite towns
in the Plymouth sub-region are an important part of the quality of life offer that the city can
make to potential new employees, and therefore must be protected and enhanced.

3.3.5 However, growth will put additional traffic on the network particularly on the corridors
and therefore managing traffic growth on corridors through sustainable transport is a priority
for the LTP3 delivery programme. An enhanced park and ride network will contribute to this
as will the reallocation of road space towards high occupancy vehicles, such as buses, in
order to achieve the step change necessary in quality and reliability of bus services. Whilst
major capital investment is targeted at delivering new infrastructure such as building new
links and widening existing roads where there is no alternative, this will only be possible once
sufficient funds have been secured from new development or through the Council’s own
capital programme and submitting bids for additional funding to central Government. To
complement new infrastructure, LTP3 proposes to maximise the productivity of existing
highway assets through more intensive use including the need to reallocate existing highway
to high occupancy vehicles where there is a clear overall benefit to road users. Opinion
towards this policy will be one of lines of enquiry during the public consultation.




Page 87

3.3.6 ltis vital that we plan appropriately to ensure that growth in prosperity does not lead to
significantly increased congestion, pollution and production of greenhouse gases; all of which
impact upon economic productivity and competitiveness. Our approach will not involve local
congestion charging and the building of additional road capacity will be targeted where there
are clear benefits from making that investment decision. It will involve managing our
transport assets effectively; improving connections between key economic centres in the city
and to the rest of the UK and abroad; and enabling and encouraging the increased use of
communication technologies to improve connectivity within and beyond the city, reduce
business travel and the effects of Plymouth’s peripheral location relative to its markets.

3.3.7 Small and medium scale transport investments focused on improving the performance
of existing networks, such as smoothing traffic flow (active traffic management), and
measures to encourage and enable travel by public transport, bike or on foot, are more cost
effective than large-scale schemes designed to increase transport capacity. This will be a
guiding principle throughout LTP3, and is given greater relevance by the difficult national
funding environment in which the city now finds itself.

3.3.8 Many investments to improve walking and cycling infrastructure are small or medium
scale in cost, deliver high benefit relative to cost ratios, and enable a low carbon transport
approach to economic development. Therefore this will receive a significant proportion of our
overall investment during LTP3, as will small and medium scale improvements to public
transport infrastructure — with a particular emphasis on the city’s principle public transport
corridors, and the city centre.

3.4 Tackling Climate Change

3.4.1 Climate change is happening now. It is unavoidable and is, to a large extent, a direct
result of the greenhouse gases (including carbon dioxide (CO;) produced by the burning of
fossil fuels such as coal, gas and oil. The Government has set a national target to reduce UK
greenhouse gas emissions by at least 80% from 1990 levels by 2050. Plymouth’s
contribution to the national commitment is to reduce the city's CO, emissions by 60% by
2020 — just 9 years into this LTP.

3.4.2 The approach to tackling climate change is two-fold. We need to:

e Do everything we can to slow climate change by significantly reducing the carbon
outputs of transport (mitigation), and

e Adapt our transport networks, so that they continue to function during extreme weather
events that are forecast to become more frequent and more severe (adaptation).

3.4.3 Transport is a major source of CO; and is responsible for 25% of the city’s emissions.
Road transport produces more than 90% of the total domestic transport emissions in the UK
and more than half of this comes from cars.

3.4.4 The challenge to transport is therefore to manage CO, emissions as the city grows.
Whilst new vehicle technology will improve fuel efficiency and bring forward alternative non-
fossil burning fuels, projections show that this will not be enough to reduce emissions by the
levels required. The transport strategy therefore is about encouraging a fundamental shift in
the way we choose to travel, and the way we move goods.

3.4.5 The Local Transport Act 2008 requires the Council to consider how it will act on
Government policies and guidance on climate change adaptation. Past emissions are
causing climate change now and this is set become more severe.

3.4.6 We know that some of the key roads and rail in Plymouth will be vulnerable to flooding
from the sea and that, in other areas, our drainage system will have difficulty coping. Our only



Page 88

rail link to the rest of the UK already suffers disruption at Dawlish from the effects of the
weather.

3.4.7 The city needs to be able to adapt to ensure that our transport networks can cope with
the increasing extremes of temperature, the impact of more severe storms on the drainage
system and that we have contingency plans in place.

3.5 A Healthy Community

“Currently road transport contributes heavily to the climate change crisis, and low levels of
physical activity have created a public health crisis. The two crises share a solution: a
fundamental change to transport, especially urban transport, is needed... For a far larger
proportion of journeys...cycling and walking need to be more feasible and appealing options
than driving.” Chief Medical Officer

3.5.1 Transport interventions can significantly improve health by increasing active travel
through improving infrastructure, training and awareness. Health will also be improved by
reducing noise and air pollution through action plans to tackle these problems where they are
at their worst.

3.5.2 Transport can have both positive and negative impacts on the health of Plymouth's
residents. An easy way to improve your health is to get more exercise by walking or cycling
some journeys. Transport also enables better access health services such as doctors,
hospitals as well as leisure and education opportunities, helping people manage positively
their health and well-being. Conversely, noise and air pollution from road and air traffic can
have very significant impacts on the health of those having to live or work near main roads or
the airport.

3.5.3 Plymouth and its partners can use transport to support improvements to the health of
our city particularly in the most deprived neighbourhoods where people die 13 years younger
than in the wealthiest neighbourhoods.

3.5.4 Many reasons are given for not walking and cycling, but the evidence from the Cycle
Demonstration Towns and Sustainable Travel Towns demonstrates that these barriers can
be reduced, or removed entirely, by improvements to our transport infrastructure and raising
motivation to become more active, both of which represent excellent value for money. For
example, in Exeter, a city which has a similar topography to Plymouth, a 40% increase in
cycling has been achieved in four years.

3.5.5 Within this LTP, pollution relating to local air quality has been separated from pollution
relating to climate change. Local air quality has a direct and immediate impact on quality of
life. Understanding of the long-term health effects of exposure to air pollution is currently
rather limited, but experts suggest that cutting long-term exposure to the fine particles found
in vehicle exhaust emissions by half, could increase life expectancy, on average, by between
one and eleven months.

3.5.6 Pollution caused by road transport makes up the vast majority of air quality problems
in urban areas. Excessive pollution for even a short period can have a detrimental impact on
health. The city already has two Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) declared to DEFRA
for Mutley Plain and Exeter Street/Embankment Road. The Council is responsible for
producing and implementing action plans to manage these areas and reducing the pollution
where possible.

3.5.7 Noise is increasingly recognised as a nuisance and the World Health Organisation
recognises noise in our communities, including road noise, as a serious public health
problem. Noise causes annoyance, and in some instances stress, leading to disrupted sleep
patterns, possible heart and mental health problems. Noise can particularly affect children’s
communication and hence learning. Work, to be carried out in the next two years as part of



Page 89

the European directive on environmental noise will enable us to better understand any
problems and allow us to develop schemes which will help to reduce the impact.

3.6 Promoting Equality of Opportunity

3.6.1 Plymouth’s objective to be a city where people choose to live with a healthy, growing
population and realising its potential as one of Europe’s finest waterfront cities can only really
be achieved if its benefits are available to all.

3.6.2 There exist barriers which a significant proportion of people in the city face in order to
access work, education, training or healthcare. These include not having access to a car, not
being able to take the bus, the service or facility not being available at a suitable time, limited
travel horizons and not being able to walk or cycle. 30% of households in Plymouth do not
have a car, generally because buying and running one is unaffordable. There is a strong
correlation between social deprivation and car ownership.

3.6.3 Those deprived areas with low car ownership tend to be the same areas with high
unemployment and poor health. Low car ownership is also associated with high levels of
missed hospital appointments.

3.6.4 Getting access to the services and facilities that most of us take for granted can
improve quality of life and increase confidence and aspirations. Access to good quality
healthcare, fresh food and opportunities for leisure or exercise can increase the health of a
community, whilst the ability to get training or a new job can boost an individual's confidence
and career opportunities.

3.6.5 Improving access can come in many forms but the most important factor is working
with communities and stakeholders to deliver solutions which make the difference.
Accessibility planning has been a key part of delivering access improvements for five years
and this partnership approach has achieved significant results.

3.6.6 In planning for the future we need to ensure that neighbourhoods are planned so that
the access to services is improved, whether that be through bringing new services into
neighbourhoods or providing new, more efficient access to existing services.

3.6.7 Buses, taxis, cycle routes and pedestrian routes are vital resources for communities.
In many instances the existing transport networks do not fulfil the needs of the communities
they should serve.

3.6.8 This chapter looks at solutions which will enable more people to take advantage of the
opportunities that the city offers. Partnerships will focus on accessing healthcare, education
and training, employment and leisure. Improvements will be achieved through changes to
those services themselves where appropriate and improvements to public transport, walking,
cycling, community transport, and land use planning.

3.6.9 A partnership arrangement with the bus operators will focus on punctuality. By
improving the efficiency of the network we will help reduce operating costs and increase
patronage which in turn will help bring down prices. Particular groups will also continue to
benefit from concessionary fares. Physical access to the bus network will also continue to be
improved along with improved information provision.

3.7 Contributing to better Safety and Security

3.7.1 Plymouth is a safe place for most people with decreasing levels of crime and road
traffic accidents. However, many people are still concerned about safety, security and a fear
of crime. In particular anti-social behaviour like inconsiderate parking and speeding traffic,
crime levels, clean streets and criminal damage to vehicles were all issues regularly
expressed by city residents.



Page 90

3.7.2 The City has an established well-recognised process for protecting people in the city
during large scale emergencies.

3.7.3 The number of people killed or seriously injured in 2009 has dropped by 68% from the
1994 -1998 baseline with recorded crime in Plymouth from 2004/05 — 2007/08 falling by 8%.
Although road accident numbers have been drastically reduced there are still nearly 900
people injured annually on Plymouth roads with the most commonly injured being car drivers
and passengers aged between 17 to 24 years. There is also a high adverse proportion of
cyclist casualties with the number of child pedestrians continuing to be of concern.

3.7.4 By addressing concerns about safety and security the Council is directly supporting
Plymouth’s transport vision and delivering the needs of our communities. Tackling transport-
related safety and security concerns will enable greater levels of healthy, sustainable travel to
occur.

3.7.5 We will:

e Continue to work towards reducing casualties on our transport networks and systems
using enforcement of regulations, road safety education and highway engineering.

e Continue to co-ordinate the appropriate bodies and agencies to safeguard people in
Plymouth and the role the transport networks will have in a major emergency

e Maintain and renew transport infrastructure to improve users safety and security

e Design, with help from the local community, more attractive, welcoming residential
streets that have increased natural surveillance encouraging a safer environment for
all users

3.7.6 Part of this strategy, and as a means of maximising value for money, is to provide
safer routes for pedestrians and cyclists by a minimum infrastructure approach in designating
residential areas as 20mph zones as a logical extension of our existing policy for school
20mph zones. Opinions will be sought regarding this policy through public consultation and
the results of a pilot scheme to be implemented in Whitleigh as part of the LTP3
Implementation Plan.

3.8 Programme and Performance Management

3.8.1 ltis essential for every local authority preparing a Local Transport Plan to ensure
value for money and efficient delivery. This chapter outlines the way in which Plymouth City
Council will be managing its transport investment programme. It examines how the
investment programme will be funded, how schemes have been evaluated and prioritised to
deliver the goals and objectives of the plan, and how the plan and risks will be managed.

3.8.2 The emphasis of the Local Transport Plan will be effective programming of investment.
Transport schemes that are prioritised must address the problems and needs identified
enabling the meet of both transport objectives and the objectives of the local authority as a
whole.

3.8.3 All transport schemes need to be well thought out, carefully planned, refined through
consultation, be cost effective, based on lessons learnt from past experiences and deliver
real benefits. The backbone to achieving this is effective programme management that has a
series of procedures, gateways and mechanisms to steer projects to success. Both public
sector and private sector funding for transport investment will be in short supply during the
first few years of LTP3 primarily as a result of public spending cuts as well as the need to use
a substantial proportion of tariff on the East End transport scheme. Nevertheless, there will
be instances where the need will arise to deliver major but targeted improvements to the
network but at a time when there is clearly an identified need arising from development and



Page 91

benefits can be quantified. The Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document has
established a development tariff for funding strategic transport infrastructure, which can be
topped up through the LTP3 Transport Capital Settlement and any additional funding
opportunities secured through separate bids to central Government.

3.8.4 Performance management will enable the Council to measure progress in achieving
the outcomes that are important to improving the quality of life of the residents of the city, and
to best direct the resources available towards meeting those goals. At the time of producing
this draft Local Transport Plan, the national position on performance monitoring is changing -
it is therefore not possible to present a detailed picture of this. We will continue to develop the
performance monitoring regime in the background and it will be presented in full in the final
plan.

3.9 Implementation Plan

3.9.1 The inclusion of an Implementation Plan as part of LTP3 is a new statutory
requirement under the provisions of the Local Transport Act (2008). The Implementation Plan
sets out the delivery plan for transport in Plymouth and is a companion document to
Plymouth's Infrastructure Delivery Plan and Local Investment Plan (LIP).

3.9.2 At the time of writing, the funding for local transport is uncertain. The highways
maintenance and Integrated Transport Block funding that is provided by Government are
both subject to a review and consultation process.

3.9.3 Not all of the changes to transport will be delivered by the Council. Mechanisms for
delivery and funding can take many forms. With an ambitious growth agenda for the city
coupled with reduced levels of public funding, for the first few years at least, it is inevitable
that developers will play a key role in funding and delivering infrastructure, particularly where
developments have an impact on the transport network.

3.9.4 By putting in place priorities for delivery through the Implementation Plan, it sets out
clearly what the Council’s priorities are to developers and stakeholders in the long term, sets
the Council’s priorities in terms of allocating funding to prepare schemes beyond feasibility to
design and securing necessary approvals and therefore provides the necessary flexibility to
bring schemes forward to delivery as opportunities and requirements demand and provide
the justification to secure developer funding when it is required.

3.9.5 Experience has shown that there are a number of factors which will affect the delivery
of schemes and the plan is designed to be flexible enough to be proactive and take
advantage of opportunities whilst still clearly showing that the investment is part of a planned
approach. The example of having a scheme for the East End sufficiently worked up, enabled
the authority to secure £9.78m of additional funding through the Community Infrastructure
Fund and accelerate delivery of part of the Eastern Corridor HQPT network. The forecast
programme of development may now suggest that priority is for schemes on the Northern
Corridor need to be accelerated ahead of some schemes on the eastern Corridor.

3.9.6 The Implementation Plan has been split into two parts. The first part shows the
transport priorities for delivery within the plan period with the anticipated timing for when they
would likely to be required including some which may fall just beyond the plan period in the
event of a slowing in the rate of development. This can be found on pages 113-125 of the
attached document.

3.9.7 The second part to the Implementation Plan shows the schemes for delivery during
the first year of the plan including schemes that are committed or are already in the process
of delivery. This can be found on pages 126-127 of the attached document. This will inform
the 2011/2012 Transport Capital Programme. The draft LTP sets out with the premise that
no changes should be made to the Integrated Transport Block for the first year of this

LTP. This has provided us with enough certainty to present an Implementation Plan for year



Page 92

one. In our final submitted LTP3 we will have a three year Implementation Plan with year
one in detail and years two and three in outline.

4. NEXT STEPS

4.1

4.2

A 12 week consultation and engagement exercise is planned to start on 25th October
2010. This will involve events across the city including exhibitions, workshops and
meetings, asking for comments and views on the contents of the Plan. In addition to
these events, feedback will be able to be provided electronically using the internet. The
draft LTP will be available online and will be accompanied by a series of set questions
on a range of issues identified by the plan. There will be a summary document
produced which will also be accompanied by a similar set of questions; this will be
available in hard copy as well as electronically. The aim of the exercise, however, is not
to simply gather views on the issues and direction of travel set out in the document, but
to create awareness of the opportunities transport presents for the people of Plymouth.

Following completion of the consultation and engagement exercise, the feedback will be
analysed and appropriate changes made to the strategy and implementation plan
before it is brought back to Cabinet and then to the City Council for final approval and
adoption.



+LOCAL TRANSPORT
PLAN 201 1-26

Transport and Highways
Department of Development and Regeneration
Draft for consultation - October 2010

P/y“i%ou

TN/

th




Page 94



Page 95

Strategy

T INEFOAUCTION .o e 3

2 The PIYMOULR CONTEXE ... see s sees s sses e 5

3 PONICY FramM@WOTK ...t 11

4 The Transport Vision for Plymouth ..., 20
5 SUPPOIING GrOWEN oo ssees s sess e 32
6 Tackling Climate CRANGE ... 55
7 A Healthy COMMUNILY ..o 68
8 Promoting Equality of Opportunity ... 83
9 Contributing to better Safety and Security ..., 96
10 Programme and Performance Management ... 107

Implementation Plan

IMPIEMENTALION PIAN .........ooooooooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeee e seess e seeseesssseesssessseeesseeesseeeseesesneree 112

Implementation Plan - Long Term Interventions ..., 113

Implementation PIan = YEAr ONe ... s 126
Abbreviations

ADBDBIEVIAIONS ........oooooooioeeeeeeeeeeeeee oo ssese oo 128
Glossary

GUOSSANY ... seee e eeee s eeeee et seee et sees e seee s 131

List of Figures

Figure 3.1 Planned growth areas in the Plymouth sub-region 14
Figure 3.2 Accessibility by public transport - percentage of Plymouth residents within
30 minutes travel time 17

Figure 4.1 Potential barriers to walking activity 24

SNV e%)




Page 96

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Figure 4.2 StrategiC CyCle NEIWOTK ... 26
Figure 4.3 Strategic public transport NEtWOrK ... 30
Figure 4.4 Major infrastructure diagram ... 31
Figure 5.1 Devonport DOCKYAId .............eeeeeoeeeeeeeeeessesseeseeseesseessoesssessoeesoessoesoe 34
Figure 6.1 Greenhouse EffECL ... 55
Figure 6.2 Network Vulnerability CheckIist ... 58
Figure 6.3 Rail Line @t DAWIISN ... 59
Figure 6.4 CO2 €MISSIONS DY SOUICE ... 59
Figure 6.5 CO2 emissions and impact of policy options (From A Low Carbon Strategy
for Transport - Keith BUCN@N) ...t 60
Figure 7.1 Factors that affect an individuals' health ... 69
Figure 7.2 Distance travelled to work by Plymouth employees ... 72
Figure 7.2 Existing and Potential AQMAS ... 76
Figure 7.3 DEFRA Noise Action Planning Map for Plymouth ... 77
Figure 8.1 Map of car ownership levels in Plymouth ..., 85
Figure 8.2 Map of Plymouth showing the proportions of people not in good health
................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 86
Figure 8.3 IMD EMPIOYMENT ..o 88
Figure 8.4 Bus satisfaction faCtOrs ... 90
Figure 9.1 PCC Approach to ROAd Safety ... seesessse 105
List of Tables
Table 2.1 Summary of key information and evidence ... 6
Table 5.1 Known issues with strategic connections to Plymouth ... 35
Table 7.1 Costs of health ProbIEMS ... 70
Table 7.2 DfT Active Travel Strategy approach to greater travel by foot and cycle
................................................................................................................................................................................................................... 73
Table 7.3 Pollutants of immediate concern in Plymouth - adapted from The Air
Quality Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland volume 1,
DEFRA, 2007 .....ccooooeeeeeeeeeeseeeseeesoesssesessees s sssesssses oo 75
Table 7.4 Barriers t0 CYCING ...t 78
Table 7.5 Barriers 10 WalKiNg ... 79
Table 8.1 BArTirs t0 @CCESS ............ocoeceseeeseesseeeseessseeseessssee s sssesssssesssses s 84
Table 8.2 Car availability and key health and social statistics in the most and least
deprived NEIGNDOUINOOTS ... eeeee e 87
............................................................................................................................................................................................................... 91
Table 9.1 Saving to UK economy from the reduction in casualties in Plymouth .......... 101
LTP Interventions 2011 = 2026 .............eeeeeeeeseeeseesseesssessssesesseesssses oo 113



Page 97

1 Introduction

Welcome to Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan.

1.1 This third plan sets out transport priorities for delivery over the next 15 years. The aim
is to provide the right environment and conditions to deliver real economic growth and
prosperity, reduce inequalities, manage climate change and enable the city to flourish through
high quality, better value and a wider range of transport options.

1.2 Plymouth has set itself an ambitious growth agenda to increase the wealth of the city
by growing the population to such a scale that it is an attractive prospect for investors, major
employers and entrepreneurs. Over the last 10 years the city has seen the growth of the
University of Plymouth, including the Peninsula College of Medicine & Dentistry, and growth
in technical and medical businesses in high quality facilities such as Tamar Science Park
and Langage Science Park.

1.3 The city also has a thriving tourism industry with
Plymouth being a great base to explore Devon and
Cornwall as well having excellent attractions and amenities
on offer within the city.

1.4 Plymouth is a focal point for the South West @
peninsular, being the second largest city in the region. &

The attraction of the city covers a wide sub-region with )
people travelling to work, shop, attend colleges or
university or for leisure opportunities. The benefits of the
growth of the city will be enjoyed far beyond the city §|
boundaries.

1.5 Growth will enable the city to reach its full potential
and offer an excellent quality of life to residents and
visitors. However, success on this scale must be supported
by investment in transport measures, such as
communications technology, roads, public transport and
travel planning, if people are to continue to enjoy the
wealth of opportunities that are available in the city.

1.6 We need to think seriously about the future and the type of city we want to pass on to
our children and grandchildren. The legacy of our generation could be the difference we have
made to reducing the impacts of climate change. Now is the time that we can make the
biggest difference. This strategy will put in place real alternatives which will enable the
residents of the city to make an informed choice about how they travel for different journeys.
Thus directly focusing activity and resources on issues which are critical to growing enterprise
and capturing the opportunities for moving to a low carbon future.



Page 98

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

As part of the Local Development Framework the City Centre Area Action Plan
consultation, along with other recent consultations generated a number of comments
which support a real change in the way we approach development policy, including how
we deliver transport in Plymouth, for instance the University of Plymouth wrote:

“...Low carbon alternative approaches to development and prosperity will be increasingly
essential, the AAP needs to reflect this much more. Opinions vary on this subject but it
is increasingly critical to public health and of course sustainable development in the
future.”

1.7 The Local Transport Plan is a strategy and so, for the most part, it does not set the
specific projects or the detail of the improvements that need to be made. However it does
provide details of the types of changes that need to be made over the coming decade and
a half which will enable growth to happen. Itis supported by a Local Transport Implementation
Plan - this will be updated annually and sets out more detail of the specific work areas over
a shorter time frame.

1.8  The strategy relies on evidence from a number of sources. Much of this is work that
has been carried out within Plymouth to get an intimate understanding of the local issues
and develop local solutions.

1.9 Transport, and the infrastructure that supports it, is a key component to the ability of
the city to function. When operating correctly it goes unnoticed. The purpose of this strategy
is to ensure that the appropriate solutions are in place to support the changing nature of the
city.

1.10 The scale of change in the coming years is only part of the story. We need to address
the existing problems, including health inequalities. Transport alone cannot 'fix' problems,
but it can help to manage them so they have a reduced impact. Enabling people to get to
hospitals and doctors quickly and easily, or providing high quality walking and cycling routes
are things we can do which will help reduce those inequalities.

Note:

The national picture for funding is uncertain at the time of production of this document.
However the evidence base used to prepare this strategy, combined with that for the
Local Development Framework and the Local Economic Strategy puts the city in a very
strong position to secure the necessary funding for the benefit of the citizens of Plymouth.




Page 99

2 The Plymouth Context

Plymouth past and present

2.1 Plymouth, with a population of just over 250,000 people, is the largest city in the far
south-west of England and the second largest in the South West region after Bristol.

2.2 Residents of the city enjoy a high quality of life, Plymouth Aerial View
largely as a result of Plymouth's outstanding natural
setting between two rivers and at the head of one of
the world's largest and most spectacular natural §&
harbours, Plymouth Sound; a setting that has always |
played a pivotal role in the city's development. :

2.3 Those that live within the city and its sub-region &
benefit from the proximity to other nationally [
recognised areas of natural beauty, including Dartmoor
National Park and Cornwall, South Devon and the |
Tamar Valley Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty
(AONBS).

2.4 The city has its share of problems and, as with SESES
many large urban areas in the UK, it suffers from the
impacts of social deprivation. As the population of
Plymouth continues to grow and diversify, this has
also brought with it the added problems of maintaining
a sense of togetherness amongst communities.

2.5 Plymouth was heavily bombed during the
Second World War and as a result the city centre was
completely rebuilt in the 1950s, along with new housing estates built in the 1940s, 1950s
and 1960s. The result is that much of the city's infrastructure is reaching the end of its design
life and needs repair or replacement. Although Plymouth has made progress in recent years
with significant structural and economic changes designed to match the city's performance
with its size and standing, the city has yet to realise its full potential.

2.6  Due to its coastal location, Plymouth historically had a largely maritime economy,
relying heavily on the Royal Naval Dockyard at Devonport. Since the 1980’s employment in
the defence sector in Plymouth has decreased substantially forcing the city’s economy to
diversify.

2.7 Today, although Plymouth’s economy is still influenced by maritime engineering, it is
more reliant on the service industry and public sector, providing many sub-regional services
such as retail, health care, education and leisure facilities. These functions ensure that today
the city’s influence continues to be far-reaching, contributing to both regional and national
prosperity.



Page 100

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

2.8 Plymouth has a largely rural hinterland, with the largest settlements within its sub-region
being Torpoint and Liskeard in the west, Tavistock in the north, and Ivybidge in the east.
Dartmoor National Park, which covers an area of 368 square miles lies just to the north east
of Plymouth and is largely uninhabited. Since 1967, the City of Plymouth has included the
once independent towns of Plympton and Plymstock, which lie east of the River Plym.

2.9  Whilst Plymouth's sub-region is somewhat dependent upon the city economically, some
of Plymouth's residents inevitably work outside the city's boundary. Furthermore, many people
seek leisure and relaxation in the surrounding area. Thus the city and its hinterland are
socially and economically interdependent.

2.10 The area also attracts many visitors from the rest of the south west region, the rest
of the UK and beyond, particularly during the summer months, but also at other times of the
year.

Summary of key challenges

211 A comprehensive facts and figures document forms part of the evidence base for this
Local Transport Plan however the table below provides a summary of the key information.

Table 2.1 Summary of key information and evidence

Theme Topic area Challenges
Geographic Strategic links * Plymouth relies on a few key links by road and
and peripherality rail to other parts of the UK
e These links can be unreliable or vulnerable to
incidents

e There is a lack of fast and direct rail services to
core cities other than London and Bristol

Physical barriers |¢  The geography of Plymouth (rivers, roads,
railways) creates severance and limits movement
by certain forms of transport

Socio-economic | Population e  The population of Plymouth has grown at a faster
rate than the region or the rest of the UK

Social inclusion [  Problems of social deprivation exist, mainly in
western and southern parts of the city,
compounded by low car ownership

Health, e Health is generally worse than the UK average
well-beingand |« Health and life expectancy is worst in areas of
safety general deprivation

Employmentand |e  Much of Plymouth's infrastructure is ageing
economy




Page 101

Theme

Topic area

Challenges

[ ]

Plymouth has struggled in the past to perform in
line with its size, which is linked to its peripheral
location and remoteness

Plymouth's economy has been forced to change
in recent years

Unemployment is higher than the south west
regional average

A need has been identified to increase
competitiveness, diversify the economy and
improve economic performance

Transport and
accessibility

Transport trends

Vehicular traffic in Plymouth has increased by
15% over the last 15 years

In general, bus patronage in Plymouth has
followed the national downward trend

Travel to work

Over 20% of Plymouth's workforce live outside
the city

There is a higher car dependency for work trips
from outlying areas

Poor bus patronage to Derriford for work trips (and
high car use) indicate a problem with existing bus
services and demand management policies

Journey times

Bus journey times are longer than those by car
generally

Network
constraints

Network constraints exist at key junctions, most
notably are those on the A38, and on routes into
and within the city centre

Network
connectivity

Access by bus to transport interchanges (railway
station, ferryport, airport) are poor

Roads can create community severance issues
and main roads (particularly the A38) reduce the
permeability of the network for pedestrians

Perceptions and
satisfaction

The public regard road and footway condition as
an area in need of improvement

Environmental

Climate change

Transport in Plymouth contributes 25% of all CO2
emissions (excluding air and sea travel) and the
city is a significant generator of long-distance
travel

Climate change poses a threat of flooding to
areas near the Plym Estuary and other coastal




Page 102

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Theme

Topic area

Challenges

areas, as well as potential need for extra drainage
provision in some areas

Air quality and
noise

Two declared AQMAs in Plymouth already
Likely that three more AQMAs will be declared in
the near future

Noise near the airport is often a problem for
residents, particularly at night

Landscape and
biodiversity

Transport improvements associated with
development and other transport schemes pose
a threat to landscape and biodiversity within
unprotected areas

Threat of land-take and loss of greenspace due
to transport schemes

Threat of fragmentation of habitats and
disturbance of wildlife due to transport schemes

Views of our communities and stakeholders

212 The views of our stakeholders are important to us, and involving and consulting with
the wider community plays a key role in helping us to plan, design and deliver transport

schemes.

2.13 A considerable amount of public consultation has taken place in Plymouth in recent
years. This has given incredible insight into people’s views about the different aspects of
transport and how we deliver our services.

2.14 An LTP3 Consultation report provides a comprehensive analysis of the existing
consultation information, including data from other Council services. It also presents the
results of an analysis to identify any gaps in the consultation data, either in terms of a topic
area or geographic location. This section provides a summary of this information.

Summary of key messages

Hospital

Theme Detail
Public e Positive comments about park and ride and the request for more sites
Transport e Improved public transport information and facilities at Derriford

e  Better public transport links between communities
e Lower cost public transport
e Extended service times and direct routes without the need to change

buses

e Better integration between public transport and other travel modes




Page 103

e  More frequent services to and from rural areas
e Dedicated school transport

Walking e Better pedestrian links and permeability into and through the city
centre to key visitor locations

*  More pedestrian routes and opening up more public rights of way to

enjoy away from heavy traffic

Improved pedestrian signage and information

Pedestrian friendly highway design

Cycling e Segregated cycle paths which are direct and continuous
e Improvements to existing paths, routes and facilities
e More access to training and organised cycle rides
e  Cycle friendly highway design
Access e Improved network of dropped kerbs linking with bus stops and facilities

Level access to services and facilities and white lining steps for the
visually impaired

e Better enforcement of inconsiderate parking

e Disabled parking where it doesn’t currently exist

2.15 People would like to see more investment into sustainable travel modes to make it
easier for those, who could be persuaded, to change their travel behaviour and benefit from
the long term environmental and health gains.

2.16  The view to improve options for sustainable travel and to better integrate transport
modes in Plymouth, also related to issues around better highway design, connectivity between
local areas and more coverage of public transport with extended operations.

217 However, there is still a large sceptical proportion of the public who do not believe
that people will ever use more sustainable transport options. In most part this appears to
have developed from a lack of confidence in our existing public transport and cycling networks.
Many of the comments reflect the opinion that people will not leave their cars at home until
there is a frequent, reliable, cheap and high quality public transport system with good citywide
coverage in place.

2.18 Whilst there is good support for the development of an improved sustainable transport
system, one of the key issues is about the level of investment that will be required in order
to achieve this. A number of comments referred to the level of proposed development for
Plymouth and the need to invest in the transport infrastructure before the development
potential can be realised. There are people who are worried about how they will efficiently
travel around Plymouth once these developments are built, due to the number of cars that
will be generated from the housing in particular.



Page 104

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

2.19 Finally, although it did not generate a Bretonside Bus and Coach Station
significant number of comments, ‘gateways’ to
the city appeared to be a strong theme, with
Bretonside Bus Station and the railway station
being the principal areas of interest. Comments
mainly talked about each needing to be better
connected to key locations by sustainable
transport options, and needing to be a clean,
safe and welcoming environment to give a
sense of arrival for visitors to Plymouth.

Key findings from the consultation gap
analysis

2.20  Firstly it was found that stakeholders,
service providers, businesses, third sector organisations, environmental bodies and health
and education representatives commented the least in the consultations that were analysed.

2.21 It was also found that there was insufficient information from businesses and
communities to the west of Plymouth. Although specific consultations have been carried out
on some regeneration and enhancement projects and also on Planning’s Sustainable
Neighbourhoods work, very little transport consultation has been carried out in these areas.
Therefore, the consultation information analysed was heavily skewed towards the East and
North of Plymouth where consultations about major transport schemes received a very good
response.

2.22  Further analysis found that there was a significant gap in consultation comments and
data about climate change. Day to day, when responding to consultations, people do not
tend to comment about the issue of climate change per se. They do however comment about
poor air quality and pollution in relation to congestion.

2.23  We will identify opportunities in future consultations to fill' the gaps that have been
found in this analysis. The consultation carried out for this local transport plan will contribute
to this.



Page 105

3 Policy Framework

National transport policy context

3.1 The integration of transport and planning at a national, regional and local level, the
need for more sustainable transport choices, removing the need to travel and the use of
transport to access key services has been on the UK government's agenda for many years.
This approach has been revitalised in recent years by the introduction of new international
and national policies.

3.2 The UK government is now focusing its transport policy on transport's contribution to
economic growth and productivity, its role in slowing climate change and improving air quality
standards, its role in, and impact on, society, and how transport affects the environment and
communities.

3.3 Inrecognition of the difficulties in planning for transport over the long-term in the face
of uncertain future demand, the government is investing substantially in tackling congestion
and crowding on the network.

3.4  Through the introduction of the Local Transport Act 2008 the government has given
local authorities more powers, specifically to improve local bus services, to review and propose
their own arrangements for local transport governance, and powers to implement local road
pricing schemes. A new regulatory framework for bus services has also been introduced.

Local transport policy context

3.5 Transport in Plymouth is currently guided by the second local transport plan. Since its
publication, Plymouth's vision has remained the same. However, a large number of new
policies have been adopted by the Council and its local strategic partners in the public, private,
community and voluntary sectors.

3.6 In 2006 Plymouth set out it's strategic vision, to become:

One of Europe’s finest, most vibrant waterfront cities, where an outstanding quality
of life is enjoyed by everyone.

3.7 The vision remains valid, but the way this should be achieved has moved forward.

3.8 Inorder to deliver the city's vision and aims, high level policies and action plans have
been developed to provide a framework and direction to how Plymouth's ambitious growth
agenda and vision should be realised.

3.9 Overall, Plymouth is seeking to be a place where people of all ages and circumstances
choose to live, work and play, but not to the detriment of social, economic and environmental
resources. Meeting short-term needs should not compromise the quality of life of future
generations.



Page 106

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

3.10 In order to achieve these aspirations it is necessary to grow the city to a size that it
supports the level of services needed. This aspiration means that the city will eventually grow
to a population of over 300,000, with all the homes and jobs needed to support the increase.

3.11  The city has set itself ambitious targets;

e toreduce transport related emissions by 80% by 2050 (transport currently contributes
25% of harmful emissions, and

e toreduce the per capita carbon footprint in the local authority area from 5.8tCO, per
person (in 2006) to 5.0 tCO, per person by 2011.

Plymouth's Waterfront
3.12 Plymouth is already considered a low carbon city,

making these reductions harder to achieve.

3.13 To achieve the city vision, amongst other things,
access to the waterfront will be improved, local
communities will be regenerated, and new schools and
leisure amenities will be provided, all with the aim of
attracting new firms and jobs to the city and making the
city a more vibrant and attractive place.

3.14 Through the delivery of local policy the city will become well connected, with good
transport services and communication linking people to jobs, schools, health and other
services. We will make the most of Plymouth's existing transport assets, with any new transport
infrastructure being well designed and built, reusing materials where practicable, allowing
transport within the city to be fair and inclusive for everyone, whilst maintaining a safe network
that is developed in an environmentally sensitive manner.

3.15 Area Action Plans (AAPs) have been developed to deliver local priorities. Each one
contains location specific transport proposals. The adopted AAPs contain the following that
the LTP will enable delivery of:

Area Action Transport related proposal
Plan

North Plymstock | ¢  The creation of an integrated sustainable transport network including
High Quality Public Transport (HQPT) serving new urban areas in
the eastern corridor and the A38 park and ride, and improvements
to existing services in Plymstock

e The provision of a new high quality eastern gateway into the city
with a strong sense of place and local distinctiveness, particularly
on key road and water frontages.

Devonport e Improved transport and connectivity.




Page 107

Millbay and
Stonehouse

The creation of an attractive, vibrant and convenient link between
Millbay and the city centre

The provision of positive connections throughout the area and to
neighbouring areas that are safe and convenient for pedestrians

and cyclists and served by high quality public transport services

Sutton Harbour

The creation of a linked network of attractive public spaces including
a vibrant, publicly and visually accessible waterfront

Ensuring the area is easy to walk and cycle to and
through—connecting effectively to surrounding neighbourhoods and
the City Centre, with excellent access to public transport (including
the proposed eastern corridor HQPT link and improved water
transport links)

Central Park

The creation of safe park, well-connected to the surrounding
neighbourhoods and the City Centre

The provision of high quality public and sustainable transport
facilities serving the park and new facilities

City Centre and
University

The delivery of a regional commercial centre for the South West
Peninsula of England;

The creation of a safe and accessible city centre for all transport
modes

The improvement of the gateways to the city and the city centre,
including the creation of an improved environment and primary
spine route between the waterfront and the station

Sherford

The creation of a sustainable new community designed with a safe,
convenient and sustainable movement and transport network for
all, within and beyond the new community, favouring the pedestrian,
the cyclist and public transport (in that order)

The inclusion of transport links and services including HQPT through
the community linking it with Plymouth, Langage and a new strategic
park and ride interchange close to the A38




w
0
=3
=
<
-n
—
Q
3
@
2
]
=
=

Page 108

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

A W AL T B )
(1NN ‘ﬁ‘."&._ ! | ) .‘;-,. ' _“'. :ﬁi’
i I‘f-“‘ & || i -l _h T

'3";}- o
Dot LS

i
it "

Figure 3.1 Planned growth areas in the Plymouth sub-region

Growth Areas in the Plymouth Sub-region

[y




Page 109

3.16  Three remaining AAPs are yet to be fully developed however. Of particular significance

to LTP3 is the Derriford and Seaton AAP. This AAP proposes:

The creation of a new strategic mixed use centre
Improvements to the airport
Enhancements to the northern gateway to the city

Improvements to public transport connections to the rest of the city
A substantial new district centre, with access from surrounding neighbourhoods and
improved public transport connections to the rest of the city

e Improving accessibility and connectivity for sustainable travel (by foot, bicycle and bus)

through networks of streets

e Reducing the carbon footprint, including through reducing the need to travel, and enabling

sustainable travel

3.17 In addition South Hams District Council has set out preferred site options for
development of the 'Plymouth Urban Fringe', the land within the South Hams boundary on
the northern and eastern edges of Plymouth, but not Sherford which already has an AAP.
Altogether approximately 500 dwellings and new employment sites are required where they
will essentially form an extension to the existing urban area and so access Plymouth's transport

network.

3.18 Transport will also encourage a more active and healthy
lifestyle enabling people to make informed choices about the
way they travel for every journey, whether it be by foot, bike,
public transport or private car.

3.19  We will coordinate travel demand and the need to travel
through the promotion of sustainable land use planning for both
new developments and improvements to existing settlements,
by considering the mix, location, density, layout and integration
of transport.

3.20 We will also tackle social deprivation and disadvantaged
communities through improved connections to community
facilities and other areas of the city, and the removal of transport
related barriers, helping to create a sense of place.

3.21 Proposals to improve connectivity to the wider region
and beyond will help address the perception of peripherality
and improve Plymouth's image.

3.22 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) provide user
friendly advice in relation to planning guidance and enable

University of Plymouth

applicants to better understand the planning criteria by which applications will be determined.
Both the Planning Obligations SPD and Development Guidelines SPD contain information

of particular relevance to transport related matters.



Page 110

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

3.23 The development guidelines set out the Council’'s maximum car-parking standards
for the number of car-parking spaces for residential and non-residential development. It also
includes a methodology whereby maximum car parking standards can be reduced for
non-residential development, depending on the accessibility of the site. Minimum cycle parking
standards are included. Guidance is provided on the requirements for travel plans. The
accessibility map that is the basis for calculating maximum parking levels is an integral part
of the Local Transport Plan and is regularly updated. This map is shown as figure 3.2 for
illustrative purposes only, the most up to date map can be found at
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/homepage/transportandstreets/policyandplanning/ltp2011-2026.htm.




Page 111

3 Policy Framework

L88YL 1 2[ed§ *sgurpasooud [1a1o 10

-_— uonndasoid oy peay Aew pue JySuAdo) umor) saSuriur uonanpoidar pasuoyneun ‘FAVIN 49 NVD SAIdOD YTHLINI ON

PUOTGT | (600Z) SSINUIN OF UIUMM SIUODISON UINOWRIG | e s i oo oo i s
] o/ * ! T ! i

T ¥ o } .tOQm—._N._._. dligand >n >u___ﬂ_wm000< 2010 A1ouones s, 1saley 10H Jo 19[j01u0)) a) Jo uoissiuidd oy yim sdew [endip s£oAIng doueupI) dY) woly paonpoiday

. Grceeecec00des
- mhA i WheeeeeeceeeRee:

=\l < Db lod 9000 - y
B I.M L &N . e - (O.0@ ,..,.. ;_\‘mrr‘ __,“ 0000 x‘\.‘_..'m.. - 7 .
Jes sy gl e m ] 0 90000009008 9000 ﬁ
S s g T R0 000000000000 000008 )

el e NG - car 0000000000000 000660

Yo -= AN =2 r P e g () Rl B g .
A O =T . N\ .&w@uﬂ.\’h‘ ® .,;.M.@ &".wm’ ) S ’
¥ — PPV (50 6000000000000600 : .
: I, & [/ | 7 0pseeeese0000000000
- 4 = AN R ‘o a - flaper= =, i 0 2o -
%BLOY%OL & | % o Y X X X ) m».@»’@.ﬂ...‘.@ - - Pt ,
%62 0 %07 © | : S S, e (0006000800 S - NS
%6€ 0} %0 . f - ¥ e —~ - . (ﬂ. e A e \. % __,\... N/ L} ? » S A WY N
wor 1 %0r @ P M TIATT TR N R @R (Tl 35 LR A
%6G01%0G @ | < o { &< S * 9SS ‘S Aun : T A
%6901%00 @ [ T /S TR S e < A T W )
%6LOV%0L @ | B, L BRI Y { - - e R
%08 uey} oloN @ | - \ LR & LN e, e, SN
6002 Vid | -~ o AR : v e ) ,.
Y TS LR 5 | s, ¥
i SN 5, poA — - >

awil} [9ARI} SdjnUIW O UIY}Mm sjuapisal yinowd|d jo abejuaaiad - odsueay oijgnd Aq Ajiqissoooy '€ ainbi4



Page 112

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

3.24 The Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing SPD provides clarity to developers,
planners, stakeholders and local residents about the basis on which planning obligations
and affordable housing will be sought. It seeks to address the impacts of development on
the infrastructure needs of the city, both at neighbourhood level and in relation to enabling
the city to grow sustainably. The current mechanism for achieve this is through the Plymouth
Development Tariff, a standard charge used to secure contributions in a clear, efficient and
transparent way. The tariff secures developer contributions for, amongst other things, strategic
transport measures. During 2010 and 2011 the Council will consider whether to adopt a
Community Infrastructure Levy as its mechanism for securing infrastructure contributions.
The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 provide that tariff approaches to
planning obligations, such as that currently operated by the Council, will only be effective
until 2014.

Key references

([ ]

([ ]

e o6 o o o e 6 o o o [ ]

[

Central Park Area Action Plan adopted September 2008, Plymouth City Council
City Centre and University Area Action Plan adopted April 2010, Plymouth City
Council

Climate Change Act 2008

Climate Change: The Impacts and Implications for Plymouth 2004, Plymouth City
Council

Corporate Plan 2010-2013, Plymouth City Council

Countryside and Rights of Way Act 2000

Delivering a Sustainable Transport System (DaSTS), 2008, Department for Transport
Derriford and Seaton draft Area Action Plan, Plymouth City Council

Development Guidelines Supplementary Planning Document, adopted April 2010,
Plymouth City Council

Devonport Area Action Plan adopted August 2007, Plymouth City Council

Devon Structure Plan 2001-2016 (adopted 2004), Devon County Council
Environmental Policy and Forward Plan 2009-2012, Plymouth City Council

Local Transport Act 2008

Millbay and Stonehouse Area Action Plan adopted August 2007, Plymouth City
Council

North Plymstock Area Action Plan adopted August 2007, Plymouth City Council
Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document First Review Adopted
Version, adopted August 2010,Plymouth City Council

Planning Policy Guidance 13: Transport, 2001, Department for Communities and
Local Government

Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2006-2021, Plymouth City
Council

Plymouth Local Economic Strategy 2006 - 2021 and Beyond, Plymouth City Council
Plymouth Urban Fringe Site Specific Allocations - Preferred options, June 2006,
South Hams District Council

Securing the future for generations ahead, Plymouth's Sustainable Community
Strategy 2007-2020, Plymouth 2020 Local Strategic Partnership



Page 113

Sherford New Community Area Action Plan, adopted August 2007, South Hams
District Council

Sutton Harbour Area Action Plan adopted July 2008, Plymouth City Council

The Eddington Transport Study 2006, Sir Rod Eddington

The Stern Review: The Economics of Climate Change 2006, Nicholas Stern

The Air Quality Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland, 2007,
Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs

Towards a Sustainable Transport System (TaSTS), 2007, Department for Transport
Climate Change: The UK Programme 2006, Department of Energy and Climate
Change



Page 114

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

4 The Transport Vision for Plymouth

The future

4.1 There are a number of challenges that the
travelling public will face in Plymouth over the next
15 years. Adopting an approach that fails to tackle
these problems and challenges will mean the city |
will grind to a halt. Similarly, the antiquated approach
of predict and provide for car trips will see the same
outcome, with more cars and worse conditions in our
communities. When we factor in the need to reduce
carbon emissions and ensure a secure future for the
economic prosperity of the city in light of peak olil, it
is clear then that we must take a different approach.

4.2  We do not know what transport options will be available to us in the future - we can
therefore only work on the basis of what we know now and the changes that are on the
horizon. In all likelihood, there will still be demand for some form of personal transport like
the bicycle or car, there will still be a need for some form of public transport and people will
still need to walk. The way we power our vehicles is likely to be very different - with less
reliance on fossil fuels and greater use of renewable energy - but, as a direct evolution of
the vehicles of today, we would anticipate them exhibiting very similar characteristics in terms
of passenger / goods carrying capability, highway requirements, etc.

4.3 ltis likely that, over the lifetime of this strategy, there are a number of factors that will
change how we go about delivering the vision for transport. We have shown a number of
risks to the delivery in Chapter 10, which will be managed as their likelihood / severity
increases. In developing and implementing schemes to deliver the vision, it will be critical
that we understand these risks and, where possible, include mitigation measures. For example
we will adapt the design of new roads to enable them to deal with the increased temperatures
and increased rainfall that is a product of climate change.

The development of a vision

4.4 We have a clear view of how the city will look in the long term, which we have set out
in Chapter 3, but it doesn't tell us what our transport networks will need to look like in order
to deliver it.

4.5 In general terms you only notice transport when it goes wrong, when your bus is late
or when the pedestrian crossing fails. Our transport vision therefore seeks to ensure that
transport always goes unnoticed, enabling the benefits of living in, working in and visiting a
city with an excellent transport system to be realised.

4.6 We have developed a statement which sets out what we think our transport system
will 'look’ like in the future. It defines the experience of travellers, whether on their regular
journey or a one-off trip. Because of the uncertainty of knowing what the vehicles of the future
will be like, it does not describe modes of transport.



Page 115

The Transport Vision

By 2026 people living in, working in and visiting Plymouth will feel good about
how they travel because the transport options available work for them everyday,
giving them a unique quality of life aspired to by other cities.

What does this mean?

4.7  Throughout this document we'll set out how this vision helps us to deliver the aspirations
for Plymouth. The focus on the journey experience enables us to acknowledge which parts
of the existing networks do not live up to this vision, thus providing focus for the development
and implementation of transport schemes.

4.8 For the average traveller, what this vision means is that you will be able to make your
journey based on the knowledge that you will be able to get where you need to go, without
trying to understand complicated timetables, negotiate tricky junctions or arrive late even
though you left plenty of time.

4.9 For example, on your daily commute you’ll have a choice about how you make your
journey:

e You'll know that, if you choose to take the bus, it will turn up, it will be on time and it will
go where you need it to go

e If you prefer to cycle, there will be an appropriate route for your level of confidence,
somewhere to lock up your bike at your destination and, if needed, somewhere to shower
and change

e Pedestrians can expect high quality crossing facilities in the right places, with dropped
kerbs and other enhancements to make it easy for those who are mobility impaired

e If your journey involves more than one mode of transport, then these modes will be
integrated so that there is no time wasted swapping from one to another.

4.10 The Local Transport Plan defines what will be our “business as usual” for the next 15
years - it does not set out a radical, undeliverable programme. The greatest thing that you
can aspire to, in terms of transport, is that journeys are reliable and predictable, or go
unnoticed. Delivering the type of facilities that will enable this vision to become a reality is
incredibly complex - it will require working with many partners; public, private and voluntary.
It is a long-term commitment to a fundamental change in how transport is delivered in
Plymouth.

How do we achieve this?

411  Throughout this document we'll discuss the ways in which we will achieve various
parts of this vision.



Page 116

We need to set ourselves some realistic objectives in order to achieve this vision.
However, these are not fixed for the 15 year period of the LTP - they will be reviewed as we
achieve them or as our local priorities change. The objectives are not in any particular order,
but have been developed through an understanding of what we need to deliver and then
refined by working with the key stakeholders in the city. The text that supports each objective
broadly sets out what it could mean in terms of LTP delivery. This is not a commitment to
specific schemes, but more an indication of the types of ideas that could be taken forward.

Plymouth's Local Transport Objectives
1. Link communities together

Improve access to community amenities, leisure opportunities and our high quality
natural environment by increasing the availability of attractive walking, cycling and
bus routes and enabling the right mix of land use

Enable easy access to growth and regeneration areas by walking, cycling and public
transport

Improve the design of residential streets to reduce the fear of crime and antisocial
behaviour as well as the dominance of the car.

2. Reduce the negative impacts of transport

Reduce severance of communities by transport networks and the impact of poor air
quality and noise on communities
Ensure footways and cycleways are well designed and improve physical access.

3. High quality transport standards for a vibrant city

Make best use of our existing transport networks; manage congestion and improve
journey reliability

Maintain, and where necessary improve the condition and increase the flexibility of
our transport network such that it is more adaptable to climate change, severe
weather events and incidents

Improve the quality of public car parks such that they meet the higher standards set
by private parking companies

Set clear priorities for routes to and from main areas / facilities to balance competing
demands for highway space across the network.

4. Make walking, cycling and public transport the desirable choice

Provide more opportunities and encourage increased uptake of travel by active
modes, walking and cycling, to promote healthy lifestyles

Improve the quality, extent, availability of information and physical access of our
bus, rail, walking and cycling networks so that they are easy to use

Increase integration of transport modes to improve the end to end journey experience
so providing an attractive range of travel choices for more people.



4.13

414

Page 117

5. Maximise the transport contribution to Plymouth's carbon reduction target (60%
reduction by 2020)

([ ]

Increase awareness of ways to reduce personal carbon footprint by walking, cycling
and taking the bus

Reduce energy consumption from non-renewable sources used by our infrastructure
and operations

When building or renewing infrastructure or equipment consider the lifecycle carbon
footprint; reuse and recycle where possible

Encourage use of more efficient and alternative fuelled vehicles by providing
infrastructure and information.

6. Use transport to drive the local economy

([ ]

Support the delivery of the Local Development Framework and Local Economic
Strategy by connecting growth and regeneration areas by all modes with communities
and national transport networks

Work with the development management process to deliver small and large scale
improvements in transport networks to enable connectivity

Develop improved transport networks to open up long term opportunities for growth
Encourage sustainable tourism

Improve connections with transport networks which connect Plymouth to the rest of
the country

Improve access to wider road, rail, air and sea networks

Improve gateways to these networks, prioritising Plymouth railway station and
Plymouth coach station when the future of the Civic Centre is known.

It is very difficult to set any priority order for these objectives.

In 2008, the Department for Transport published the Government's five National

Transport Goals as follows:

[ ]

4.15

to support national economic competitiveness and growth, by delivering reliable and
efficient transport networks;

to reduce transport’s emissions of carbon dioxide and other greenhouse gases, with the
desired outcome of tackling climate change;

to contribute to better safety, security and health and longer life-expectancy by
reducing the risk of death, injury or iliness arising from transport and by promoting travel
modes that are beneficial to health;

to promote greater equality of opportunity for all citizens, with the desired outcome
of achieving a fairer society;

to improve quality of life for transport users and non-transport users, and to promote
a healthy natural environment

We have prioritised the National Transport Goals and will be working towards

supporting economic growth and adapting to or mitigating climate change initially in the first
five years of the plan. Many;, if not all of these objectives support the delivery of these priorities.



Page 118

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Connecting people

4.16  The fundamental principles of providing people with choice about how they make
their trips underpins the LTP. Simply providing for one mode would exclude all those for
whom that mode is not available or attractive.

Walking

4.17  During the first two years of this LTP we will
develop a network of primary routes for pedestrians.
These will be focused on local trips to local facilities
such as schools, shopping centres, medical centres
and public transport interchanges. We already have
much of the evidence to develop this work - we have
carried out studies to understand where barriers exist
and are working with communities to identify current
issues. An example of the identification process,
undertaken for an area of Plympton, and the possible
issues that could discourage pedestrian activity are shown in Figure 4.1.

This process will enable us to focus on measures which will make walking a practical and
desirable option for local journeys and for parts of longer journeys on public transport. In
tackling problems we will first seek solutions which need limited new infrastructure.

Figure 4.1 Potential barriers to walking activity




Page 119

4.18 Public rights of way form a vital part of the pedestrian network. Not only are these
paths a valuable part of our history and heritage, they are also a valuable resource. Better
integrating the use of rights of way into our network will enable users the choice of walking,
rather than taking the car or bus.

Cycling

4.19 A strategic cycling network (SCN) (see Figure 4.2) has been developed and adopted
during the course of LTP2 to ensure that cycling infrastructure is developed in a joined-up
manner, both geographically and across delivery bodies.

4.20 The network of routes has been developed to meet different levels of experience and
confidence. The network has been designed to meet the particular challenges that are faced
by cyclists in Plymouth. In order to provide for experienced and non-experienced cyclists,
two conceptual networks will exist as follows:

e  Purple network: for more experienced cyclists that are generally better able to deal with
road traffic. The emphasis on this network is on speed and convenience and may
sometimes involve a lower standard of safety/amenity.

e  Green network: for less experienced, and possibly leisure cyclists as well as children.
The emphasis is on safety and at times amenity which will sometimes be at the expense
of convenience and speed

e  Combined network: routes where the purple and green networks combine to form a route
that is attractive for ALL cyclists.

4.21  The network shows only the strategic routes. The links
within communities, particularly to schools, are also important,
just like branches off the main trunk of a tree. The aspiration is
that the barriers to cycling are reduced so that many more people
of all ages feel that they have the choice, to cycle to school, work
or their local shops for example.

4.22  The network will be delivered with a range of measures,
including 20 mph speed limits and on- and off-road facilities, and
will use public rights of way and parks where appropriate. Again,
the approach will be to limit the amount of new infrastructure
wherever possible.

4.23  Maintenance of the cycle network is fundamental to
encouraging use. Potholes, which are uncomfortable for car and
bus users, can be dangerous for cyclists, and so ensuring our cycle network, whether on- or
off-road, is well maintained is vital.




IS
_|
=
D
_|
-5
o
>
@

o)
(]
—~
<
@,
(@]
=
<}
-
9

<
3
o
c
—
5

Page 120

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Figure 4.2 Strategic Cycle Network

.
=e"?

Vo e M Tl b
M
o —— 3 —

Strategic Cycle‘ Network




Page 121

Public Transport

4.24 For public transport this means
connecting all areas of the sub-region with fast
reliable links, ensuring the bus and rail networks
are integrated.

4.25 In our previous local transport plan we
proposed a strategic high quality public transport
network and this still remains at the core of our
plans to enable choice and improve
connectivity.

4.26  The network of routes has been identified using national and local sources including
census data, public transport patronage and future predictions of employment and population.
It provides a clear statement of the commitment and intent of the Council to enhance and
modernise public transport provision, connecting principal centres of employment, residential
areas, retail, leisure and services, as well as enabling sustainable urban expansion to the
east and north of the city.

4.27 The Strategic Public Transport Network (shown in Figure 4.3) will increase frequency
of services to create ‘turn up and go’ services on a core ‘metro-like’ network on the main
corridors. Initially bus based, the network seeks to make best use of the existing highway
infrastructure coupled with new links where it has been demonstrated that there is a sound
business case.

4.28 A sequential approach to developing the Strategic Public Transport Network is being
adopted. A number of measures have been implemented over the last 10 years to improve
the bus passenger environment and the provision of passenger information.

4.29 The Strategic Public Transport Network demonstrates where investment in the public
transport network will need to be targeted in order to achieve a step change in the use of
public transport.

4.30 Delivering the network of routes will not, on its own, provide the high quality service
needed by a modern city. The supporting infrastructure, including bus stops / stations,
information sources, ticketing, vehicles and interchange, all contribute to the quality of the
experience for the user. Many of the improvements that are required are to 'back-office'
systems which generally go unseen by the user but enhance the service.

4.31  The Council's role is to enable improvements to be made sooner than could be
achieved by the private sector alone, by introducing initiatives that enable operators to try
something new at lower risk. This includes funding trial services through a local 'kickstart'
initiative, or investing in bus priority schemes which improve journey times and bus punctuality.

4.32 Investing in priority measures is one of the ways the Council has to equalise the costs
of journeys. Throughout the life of the plan we will continue to seek measures which achieve
this, allowing a better understanding for travellers of the cost of their trip, by whichever mode
they chose.



Page 122

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

4.33  Without a high quality road network, prioritised for bus use, the journey experience
will be impaired. Ensuring bus routes are well maintained is key to preserving a good ride
quality.

Cars

4.34  The increasing affordability of the car has been a revolution to the way we travel. It
undoubtedly offers the most flexible form of transport for complex journeys. We have a society
that has been planned around car use and functions well in that respect. We have low levels
of congestion and reasonable parking charges that make the car the logical choice for those
who have the option available to them. This LTP does not set out to marginalise or demonise
car users; cars are a vital part of the transport network that keep our economy going.

4.35 The Council recognises that cars are extremely useful for medium length or complex
journeys where other modes are not available.

4.36  There is no doubt that the personal mobility offered by the car will be desired for long
into the future, even if there are changes to the way the vehicles look or how they are powered.
The Council will support the changes needed to our infrastructure that enables greater uptake
of vehicles powered by electricity or other 'green’ fuels.

4.37 The city does not have the luxury of space to use to build more roads, so the only
way we can improve the experience for car users is to make better use of our existing
networks. The best way to do this is to make improvements which smooth the flow of vehicles
on designated routes and to prioritise maintenance on those routes.

4.38 The changes to the city centre will enable us to raise the quality of our car parks, to
improve their locations and the access arrangements.

4.39 Through the Development Guidelines SPD we have already started to put in place
changes which will make residential streets better for all users. However, there is a greater
need for personal responsibility, particularly when parking our cars on the highway.
Improvements to on-street parking regulations are already underway to rationalise the existing
controlled parking zones, on-street pay and display areas, and parking in single yellow lines,
limited waiting bays and loading bays .

Water transport

4.40 The city is surrounded on three sides by
water. It is a fundamental part of the city's history
and a unique selling point as Plymouth aspires to
be a vibrant waterfront city.

4.41  Several ferry services are already well
established. We have provided the new Barbican
Landing Stage to improve access to the
waterfront. Increasing numbers of cruise ships




Page 123

are anticipated, and we will welcome more use of the water for transport for leisure and
commuting where feasible. Indeed we are hoping that short sea shipping will be a viable
alternative for freight.

Delivery

4.42 In order to deliver our transport vision there will inevitably need to be changes to the
transport networks.

4.43 The major changes have been identified: these are shown in Figure 4.4 and set out
in more detail in the following chapters. The diagram does not show the more local
improvements which are included within this document. As this is a long-term strategy, it is
important to point out that these changes will be delivered over the course of the 15 year life
of the strategy. In most instances the exact changes have yet to be developed. These will
be determined by a variety of issues, including a thorough consultation as they are developed.
The future park and ride locations have yet to be specifically determined and are shown for
indicative purposes only.

4.44  ltis vital that we are flexible and can respond to the emerging situations regarding
funding and development. The implementation plan shows improvements coming forward
in the short-term. The implementation plan will be revised on a regular basis to take account
of the flexible approach and any emerging problems. In future, it will also have a strong
relationship with the Plymouth Infrastructure Delivery Plan and the Plymouth Local Investment
Plan. The Infrastructure Delivery Plan will show the infrastructure needs that have been
identified and justify those needs, and will indicate a broad framework/timetable for its delivery.
The Plymouth Local Investment Plan is intended to articulate the priority of the investments
which are critical to achieving the city's vision and where it is essential that the public sector
takes the lead.

4.45 ltis important to note that delivery of infrastructure is just one part of the Implementation
Plan, it also sets out the maintenance requirements, the spend on smarter choices and the
feasibility work required to develop packages of infrastructure investment.



Page 124

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

4 The Transport Vision for Plymouth

yiomjau uodsuedy olgnd osibajesys ¢y ainbi4

weemipesd  EE] aBurmio ey m !
g

A e Do AsEy

u.a._wﬂ .
el _—— S

PESFUBLIBKY
e doof pEOSE Ol RS A - pesusuuel 04
PRI 0% (e ) UHON REOUSYS —
AN DB DIORIBE 03 BOSUCABT — fiis &
AngEas N J014R0S BOAISS TR0 DS~ pns Aen |
00 RS S L8 YUIOU Mk YSEHES — Yo tewe] g
i jo el

W uopalil o propg Bw door enuen A — sl whld 5

ﬁ]ﬁinﬁg.ﬁ.u{uﬂﬂi
e dor) puoRISO o auen Ay —

o!on._ﬁu.!vbtﬂﬁg&ﬁ._
SN SR B TERdsoH B puojusg — laea sspied €
[y g0 wespent pms)
spury anue) AX) OF Fed USEYES — SN mendiusasg
abueyoiay sfucesy m anueD Aty — s L



Page 125

Figure 4.4 Major infrastructure diagram

I
_|
>
o
_|
-
Q
S
@
o
o
=
=
2%
(@)
=
s
(@)
-
Y
<
=
(@)
=
=




Page 126

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

5 Supporting Growth

Summary

5.1 The movement of goods and people has driven the world economy since the earliest
recorded history. From Roman roads, through the canals, tramways and steam locomotives
which were in part responsible for the industrial revolution, to the modern trains, planes,
ships, buses, cycles, car and lorries: all have played a part in moulding our society and our
city.

5.2 The importance of transport to a successful economy is long acknowledged. There is
a clear vision set out within Plymouth's Sustainable Community Strategy which requires a
transformation of the city in terms of urban environment, connectivity, reduction in inequalities
and prosperity. This chapter therefore takes its lead from that vision to put in place a transport
strategy that is essential to enabling the growth of the city in terms of wealth.

5.3 We have already set out an ambitious growth agenda for the city to become the
economic hub of the far south west. An urban renaissance is envisaged that will involve
population growth from 250,000 to 300,000, the building of 32,000 new homes, and the
development of 62 hectares of new employment land. Most of the development will take
place on previously developed (brown field) land but it is likely to intensify use of land in
designated areas. This large-scale expansion will provide both opportunities and challenges
in terms of transport infrastructure and services.

5.4 Plymouth is a city that has been devastated by war but the rebuilding process has left
a legacy that now puts the city in a fortunate position. Roads through the city were designed
with the use of cars in mind, which has meant that traffic growth within the city has been
unconstrained by the capacity of the road network until relatively recently. The traffic
congestion levels are low when compared to similar cities. Congestion only occurs at a few
hotspots, and then just for short periods of the day; this makes the transport networks relatively
efficient and reliable. In turn, this serves to improve the attractiveness of the city to new
employers. The city has a number of other attractive features, such as the quality of life that
can be experienced by employees, or the natural environment that is so close at hand. An
unusual physical constraint the city faces is having just a few major routes and crossing
points into the city, bordered as it is by the sea, the rivers Tamar and Plym, and the moors.
This, as well as the barrier formed through the middle of the city by the A38, will present a
challenge as the city grows and increases in density.

5.5 All of the changes need to take place with a commitment to sustainable development.
Plymouth recognises that, if not managed appropriately, the growth in prosperity of the city
could easily lead to significantly increased congestion, pollution and greenhouse gases; all
of which have economic and social costs. It is therefore vital that we plan appropriately for
the growth.



Page 127

5.6 Our approach to supporting economic growth recognises that, although avoiding large
scale increase in congestion is very important in terms of maximise the city's economic
potential, we cannot achieve this through either local congestion charging or the building of
additional road capacity. Instead our approach supporting the city's economic growth will be
to:

e Manage our network and other transport assets effectively to reduce congestion

e Improve connections between and access to key economic centres in the city (especially
by High Quality Public Transport)

e Improve connectivity to the rest of the UK and abroad by road, rail, sea and air

e Assist and encourage the increased use of communication technologies to reduce
business related travel and reduce the effects of remoteness

5.7 In this chapter we primarily focus on those challenges and opportunities which come
with economic growth. However it is vital that we don't focus all our efforts on new
developments. By working to make well-connected and inclusive communities across the
city we can raise the levels of quality of life for all residents. Much of the focus of the other
chapters in this LTP is about raising the standards of transport and access across our whole
city.

Evidence of the relationship between transport and the economy

5.8 Comprehensive transport networks enable easy movement of goods and provision of
services, support labour markets, allow businesses to enjoy the benefits of agglomeration
or clustering, and enable people to enjoy leisure activities which add to the quality of their
lives.

5.9 The importance of transport to a successful economy has long been acknowledged.
The Eddington Transport Study (2006) assessed the long term links between transport and
the UK's economic productivity, growth and stability, in the context of a commitment to
sustainable development and the need to reduce carbon emissions from transport.

5.10 Itconcluded that there are seven ways in which transport investment drives economic
performance:

e Increasing business efficiency through time savings and improved reliability for business
travellers, freight, and logistic operations

e Increasing business investment and innovation by supporting economies of scale or
new ways of working

e  Supporting clusters and agglomerations of economic activity

e Improving the efficient functioning of labour markets, increasing labour market flexibility
and the accessibility of jobs

e Increasing competition by opening up access to new markets

¢ Increasing domestic and international trade by reducing the costs of trading, and

e Attracting globally mobile activity by providing an attractive business environment and
good quality of life



Page 128

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

5.11 In terms of supporting economic growth, the emphasis is focused towards ensuring
that transport capacity constraints and the various negative economic impacts of congestion
do not impair productivity and competitiveness.

5.12 Inurban areas, small- and medium-scale transport investments focused on improving
the performance of existing networks, and measures to encourage and enable travel by
public transport, bike or on foot, are increasingly seen as more appropriate and cost effective
than large-scale schemes designed to increase transport capacity.

Plymouth as a sub-regional centre

5.13 The city has historically had a largely Figure 5.1 Devonport Dockyard
maritime economy, relying heavily on the Royal : _ . .
Naval Dockyard at Devonport. Over recent -
decades employment in the defence sectorhas | —
declined substantially. Like many British cities g
Plymouth's economy has evolved into one that
is increasingly reliant upon service industries |
and the relatively heavy reliance on public s
sector employment is considered a sign of =3

economic weakness. :

e AT T— L

5.14 However Plymouth has regional
importance in the south west. It has rail, air and
sea links, is the second largest city in the region
after Bristol and is aspiring to become the economic hub of the far south west.

5.15 ltis also a regional centre for rail, air and sea transport.

5.16 As a sub-regional centre, Plymouth provides these links as well as healthcare,
education, leisure, retail and many other services to residents of the surrounding towns and
rural communities, including Ivybridge, Tavistock and Liskeard. However, there is a high
interdependency and, in turn, these towns and communities provide an important market for
Plymouth. The city's retail catchment has a population of 465,000 and much of Plymouth's
workforce comes from outside of the city. Plymouth's Travel to Work Area has a population
of around 390,000 people with more than one in five jobs in Plymouth belonging to people
who live outside of the city (2001 Census).

5.17 Ensuring and maintaining good connectivity, accessibility and journey time reliability
between the city and its hinterland is therefore very important economically.

5.18 While the city's remoteness is undeniable, its road and rail links to the rest of the UK
are of good quality but suffer from a perception of being of average quality and vulnerable
to disruption. The consultation analysis concluded a real consensus that better connections
to the South West region and a strong transport policy is essential to strengthen Plymouth's
economic potential and to bring the investment and employment opportunities into the city.



Page 129

Table 5.1 Known issues with strategic connections to Plymouth

Road (A38, M5
and A303)

Rail

Air

Ship

Closure or long
diversion due to
accident or
extreme weather

Delays / closure due to
extreme weather,
particularly between
Exeter and Newton
Abbott

The current
runway length
can only cater for
turboprop aircraft.

Millbay docks unable to

berth large cruise ships,
and does not present an
attractive gateway to the
city.

Peak season

Perception of length of

Surface access

Perceived peripherality

congestion journey to London to Plymouth limits the port to a role
(greater than three airport is limited | serving local and regional
hours) for non-car markets.
modes.

Local inter-modal rail
freight facilities limit
opportunities for port
trade growth.

Perception of the
quality of the A38

Lack of services arriving
in the city to enable a full
day of business to be
carried out

5.19 In order to plan the changes to the local economy Plymouth has set out a Local
Economic Strategy (LES) - a companion document to the LTP - which focuses on delivering
the city's strategic objective 'to develop a prosperous economy' and its overarching aim is
'to achieve an improved competitive position for the city of Plymouth'. The importance of
transport is reflected in this document.

5.20 The city has a fragile and under-performing economy and faces a challenge to improve
its economic performance, become more competitive and diversify its economic base in order
to raise incomes and tackle economic and social exclusion. Transport decisions will play a
role in tackling these challenges, and there are a number of competitive weaknesses and
threats that transport decisions can contribute directly or indirectly to addressing: the city's
remoteness and the perception of poor transport links to other cities and regions; poor internal
and external image; examples of poor urban environmental quality; and an unappealing city
centre.

5.21 These issues are substantiated by some recent consultation comments that we have
received.

Consultation has highlighted the perception of poor integrated transport links and some
recent improvements to the city centre have received a mixed response. The consultation
information suggests that public realm standards play a key role in making Plymouth an
attractive place to visit which drives the local economy. For instance, good, clean,
accessible public space with an integrated transport system represents the views of



Page 130

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

many. However, the use of shared space in public areas is not necessarily supported,
particularly by those with visual impairments who would like to see the physical separation
of pedestrians from vehicles.

5.22 The city has a number of competitive strengths which transport decisions can help
to preserve, enhance or exploit such as its outstanding natural setting, environment and
quality of life; its size and sub-regional presence; the availability of sites and premises for
development. Economic opportunities that transport decisions can help to exploit include
capitalising on the city's high quality of life and outstanding local environment, and using
communications technology effectively to overcome locational disadvantages.

Figure 5.1 Plymouth Key Economic Nodes e
A
Including: Es(o;:?:ncl Southway

Derriford Area
« College of St Mark & St John
« Tamar Science Park

« Peninsula Medical School

« International Business Park

Western Industrial and Business
Areas
Including: Emesettle, Honicknowle
and Burrington

Eastern Industrial and Business
Areas

Including: Langage, Newnham and

Valley Road

« Derriford Hospital
« Plymouth Airport

University and
Arts/Cultural Quarter

+ Museum and library

Devonport & Environs
Dockyard
Stonehouse regeneration

Cattedown Industrial
and Business Areas

City Centre
« Retail Sector
« Leisure and recreational amenities
« Visitor attractions

 Local authority functions
« Waterfront & Barbican

= Transport interchanges

¢ Millbay & Sutton Harbour

5.23 The LTP3 is a companion document to Plymouth's Local Development Framework
(LDF), which through its Core Strategy and Area Action Plans, sets out large scale expansion
which will provide both opportunities and challenges in terms of transport infrastructure and
services. Among the challenges, will be ensuring adequate connectivity by all modes of travel
between existing and growing employment and population centres and achieving this growth
without generating excessive levels of traffic and congestion.

5.24 This balance is something that the public seems to be grappling with. There is a lot
of support for improving sustainable travel, with many believing it is essential for the future
of Plymouth. But there are also many others who state that the majority of people will never



Page 131

choose a sustainable travel mode over the private car. It is the latter group people who are
concerned about how easily they will be able to travel around Plymouth due to increased
congestion once the growth occurs.

5.25 Among the opportunities will be the creation of a larger denser market for public
transport operators to exploit, and the ability to make a strong case for funding for essential
large scale transport infrastructure investment to cater for this planned growth.

5.26  Plymouth does not currently experience high levels of congestion compared to many
other cities. However traffic modelling work has demonstrated that, unless effective measures
are taken, the economic and the physical growth aspirations will lead to significant worsening
of traffic conditions. Congestion has direct and indirect economic impacts. Plymouth's economy
is not currently as vulnerable to these impacts as cities that rely heavily on road haulage and
intensive manufacturing industries. However, the industries which the city aspires to develop
are generally more vulnerable to the economic impacts of congestion than low skills industries
where labour can be substituted more easily.

5.27 Improving access to work, health, shopping and leisure opportunities and services in
order to tackle social exclusion is also a vital factor in enabling growth in urban areas. This
area of work was a priority during Plymouth's Second Local Transport Plan, and the importance
of barriers to participation is well reflected in Plymouth's new Local Transport Objectives to
'link communities together', 'reduce the negative impacts of transport' and 'make walking,
cycling and public transport the desirable choice', and is a key theme in Chapter 8 'Promoting
Equality of Opportunity'.

5.28 Doubling the size of a city's labour market generates agglomeration benefits that have
been shown to lead on average to an increase in business productivity of 6.5%. However,
these benefits can be reduced by traffic congestion. It is therefore very important that Plymouth
does not allow growth in traffic congestion to reduce the potential benefits arising from its
long term plan to grow its population.

5.29 As already stated Plymouth relies in part on labour that comes from outside of its
boundaries. People are known to travel from surrounding towns across a wide area but the
majority tend to travel from Tavistock, Ivybridge, Kingsbridge, Saltash and Callington as well
as the villages in South East Cornwall, West Devon and the South Hams. This sub-region
is important socially and economically for Devon and Cornwall and it is vital that there are
good quality transport links between the city and these locations.

Plymouth's vision for park and ride

5.30 We recognise that there are areas outside of the city that are not able to support a
viable local bus or rail service into the city, and that often the easiest choice, or the only
choice, to travel into the city centre is by car. For those who drive into the city because of an
inadequate or absent public transport alternative, park and ride offers the opportunity to
switch to an advantageous public transport mode for at least part of their journey.



Page 132

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

5.31 Plymouth has developed several park
and ride sites since the early 1990s. We will
build on the success of these by ensuring that
there is one or more park and ride site on
each main corridor into the city. Each park
and ride site will link into the city’'s HQPT
network (See Chapter 4, Figure 4.3.) to
become an interchange providing bus
connections to other destinations in the city,
not just the city centre.

5.32 The more cars that are intercepted at
park and ride sites, the greater the benefits
to the city in terms of reductions in traffic
levels, congestion, pollution and reduced
parking pressure. Those using park and ride
services benefit from a fast, convenient and
——————EEEEE.  cheap alternative to driving into the city centre
to park. The economic importance of quick and efficient links between the city and its
sub-region has already been outlined in section 5.16.

5.33 However use of a local bus service, where available, should be encouraged over
driving to a park and ride site, and park and ride services should not undermine local bus
services. Park and ride sites will be carefully located with this in mind.

5.34 City centre parking charges will need to be consistent with park and ride charges to
ensure that the latter maintains a competitive advantage. Charging will aim to achieve the
optimum balance between long- and short-stay parking, and the needs of the city centre.
Parking charges in other parts of the city may need to be similarly balanced.

5.35 The congestion reducing effect of park and ride services is important for the local
economy because air pollution, travel time delay, and traffic noise pollution all have economic
costs for the city. The presence of high quality park and ride facilities enhances the image
of the city to potential investors.

5.36 In order to maximise the potential benefits of park and ride services to the city and
its economy, and in response to the planned growth the Council and partners plan to create
a ring of high patronage park and ride interchange sites on the outskirts of the city. This will
involve:

e Introducing a park and ride site to the south side of the Deep Lane junction of the A38,
in association with the Sherford New Community, to serve motorists travelling into the
city centre and to the Derriford area from east of the city

e Introducing a park and ride site on the city's western corridor (location to be established)
to serve motorists travelling from west of the city (Cornwall) to the city centre and to the
Derriford area

e Introducing a park and ride site on the A379 for motorists travelling from south east of
the city.



Page 133

e Improving the attractiveness of all bus services, including park and ride services by
improving their journey times relative to car journey times

e  Supporting park and ride patronage growth by seeking to ensure that it is more attractive
than driving into the city centre and parking all day

e Ensuring that using a park and ride services do not undermine regular bus services, by
locating them and pricing them appropriately

e  Working towards a situation where park and ride services operate without or with minimal
public subsidy.

How can transport make a contribution to delivering economic growth in
Plymouth?

5.37 In Plymouth, as elsewhere in Britain, economic growth throughout the 20th century
has generated and enabled steadily increasing levels of personal and business travel and
levels of traffic which have been growing until recently where higher fuel prices and the
economic downturn have caused these levels to stabilise. It is therefore reasonable to
assume that growth in Plymouth will lead to increased demand for travel.

5.38 Congestion charging is not at attractive option for Plymouth at present. The city simply
does not suffer from the levels of congestion that would warrant it. Inevitably the growth in
the city will increase the levels of congestion but this is an accepted part of living in a city
with a vibrant economy. The introduction of a charge may stifle the fragile economy
undermining the growth that we aspire to. However we do need to manage the growth; it is
not possible to build our way out of the congestion that may occur. We do not have enough
space in the city to build wider roads or new roads, and the environmental impacts would be
unacceptable. Many of our residential streets are already full of parked cars, and between
January and July of 2010 parking issues were the third most common reason for residents
to complain to Plymouth Transport and Highways.

5.39 Our determination to support and enable the successful delivery of the city's growth
agenda and to boost the competitive position of the city is reflected in the adoption of the
local transport objective to 'Use transport to drive the local economy'. However, direct and
indirect economic benefits will also arise from success in achieving all of the city's local
transport objectives. These benefits are described briefly below.

6. Use transport to drive the local economy

e  Support the delivery of the Local Development Framework and Local Economic
Strategy by connecting growth and regeneration areas by all modes with communities
and national transport networks

o  Work with the development management process to deliver small and large scale
improvements in transport networks to enable connectivity

e Develop improved transport networks to open up long term opportunities for growth.

e  Encourage sustainable tourism

e Improve connections with transport networks which connect Plymouth to the rest of
the country



Page 134

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

e Improve access to wider road, rail, air and sea networks
* Improve gateways to these networks, prioritising Plymouth Railway Station and
Plymouth Coach Station when the future of the Civic Centre is known

5.40

It is also reinforced by the other transport objectives in the following ways:

Other Local Transport
Objectives

Examples of crossover with the objective to

'use transport to drive the local economy'’

1. Link communities
together

Enabling high levels of economic participation through ease of
access to the high quality natural environment surrounding the
city is important in terms of the quality of life that the city can
offer.

2. Reduce the negative
impacts of transport

The estimated annual national costs to the economy of delay
from congestion (£12 billion), road accidents (£9.3 billion), poor
air quality (£4.5 to £10.6 billion), physical inactivity & growing
obesity (£10.8 billion), greenhouse gas emissions (£1.2 to £3.7
billion), and noise pollution (£2.7 billion) total between £40.5 and
£49.1 billion.

3. High quality transport
for a vibrant city

High quality transport infrastructure and services will improve
the image and reputation of the city, and make it easier for the
city to attract investors and new employees.

4. Make walking, cycling
and public transport the
desirable choice.

Increased levels of walking and cycling will improve the health
and reduce the health care costs and employee absenteeism of
Plymouth's population.

5. Maximise the
transport contribution to
Plymouth's carbon
reduction target (60%
reduction by 2020)

The long term economic costs of taking the action necessary to
tackle climate change would probably account for less than 1%
of global GDP, whilst the consequences of failing to act might
cost 5% of global GDP.

5.41

The city has set out a range of ten actions which, if achieved, will enable the city to

realise its economic potential. The links between some of these actions and transport are
illustrated in Table 5.2 below.

5.42



Page 135

Table 5.2 LES actions and their links to transport

LES Actions

(selected)

Links to transport

1. Focus on key
sectors for which
Plymouth has
competitive advantage

The proposed growth sectors are knowledge and information
dependant rather than heavily reliant upon physical resource inputs,
which reduces the transport freight cost burden of peripherality.
However these still require connections to major centres of
business such as London, Bristol, Birmingham and Manchester.

5. Enhance the
tourism offer

Efforts to grow Plymouth's leisure and tourism industry will be
hampered if the city's physical and economic growth leads to high
levels of congestion, poor air quality and noise pollution and makes
getting around the city more time consuming and less pleasant.

7. Transform Plymouth
into a true ‘learning
city’

Improving access to education of all levels for all communities will
enable an increase in attainment levels. Removing transport related
barriers to participation in learning and considering the way

education is delivered will both be important to ensuring success.

8. Achieving well
connected
complementary growth

Ensuring growth areas are well connected by a variety of modes
of transport or communications technology will enable more people
to enjoy the benefits.

9. Achieving effective
and unconstrained
participation in the
labour market

Improving access to the employment opportunities for which people
have the skills will reduce the barriers to participation.

Making better use of our existing assets

The Council has a wealth of assets that make up the transport networks we manage, as do
the transport operators. If we are to effectively support economic growth in the city then we
need to be getting the maximum benefit out of the assets we manage. There is evidence
from the consultation analysis that this approach is supported. This is particularly in reference
to better management and enforcement of highway restrictions.

Our two main tools for doing this are the Network Management Plan (NMP) and Transport
Asset Management Plan (TAMP). Both plans are currently being developed. Details of how
these plans will better enable us to support growth are set out below.

Network Management Plan




Page 136

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

The Traffic Management Act 2004 (TMA) imposes a Network Management Duty on all local
traffic authorities (LTAs) to secure the efficient movement of traffic on their road networks,
and to facilitate the expeditious movement of traffic on other authorities' networks. LTAs are
required to plan and carry out appropriate actions to perform the duty - which must include
the appointment of a Traffic Manager to coordinate all network management activities and
to be a ‘champion’ within the authority.

Department for Transport (DfT) guidance and good practice advice on fulfilling the duty
recommends a 'whole authority approach’ to ensure that all departments are aware of the
duty not just the highways department and that LTAs should embed desired outcomes and
appropriate policies and plans under the network management duty within Local Transport
Plans. The Secretary of State for Transport has powers to intervene and appoint a Traffic
Director for an LTA if it is failing to properly perform the Network Management Duty.

We have developed a Network Management Plan (NMP) to demonstrate how our policies,
procedures and structures support the delivery of the Network Management Duty. It also
draws together all of the tools that we currently use to demonstrate how we manage the
highway network. Whilst there is no legislative duty to develop a NMP, it provides the DfT,
stakeholders and the public with the confidence that the authority has integrated its thinking
and planning in order to discharge its Network Management Duty.

Transport Asset Management Plan

Transport infrastructure - such as roads, pavements, traffic lights, street lights, and drains -
makes a vital contribution to the economic health of the city, as well as providing a range of
social and recreational benefits. Our highway network and streetscape infrastructure is the
city's most valuable publicly owned asset, and also carries a vast amount of the city's utilities
infrastructure within it and beneath it. Despite this, the management of these assets has
historically not received the attention nor funding required to maintain it in an optimal state
of repair and operation.

Our recently updated Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) provides a comprehensive
audit of the city's transport assets. It enables the amount and cost of work required to maintain
and periodically replace these assets to be quantified, planned for, and prioritised efficiently




Page 137

in the long term. It also enables informed decisions to be made about the removal of
unnecessary or unused infrastructure, which reduces maintenance costs and reduces
streetscape 'clutter’.

Efficient management of our transport supports our economy in a number of ways. For
example:

e |t reduces the frequency of traffic light failure and the congestion that these incidents
cause

e ltresults in better maintained and more attractive streetscapes, which makes the city a
more attractive place for tourists and investors

e |tis animportant resource in the development of a well prioritised Network Management
Plan

e Efficient maintenance saves money, which frees council resources to invest in other
transport infrastructure.

Improve connections between key areas of the city

5.43 The growth of the city is planned for a number of key areas of the city, as set out the
Area Action Plans and shown in Figure 3.1.

5.44 Enabling the physical growth and intensification of the city by improving connectivity
by all modes to key economic development areas underpins the approach to delivering
economic growth.

5.45 Whilst these developments are designed to be mostly self-sufficient, it is inevitable
that people will need to travel from one area to another for business, shopping or leisure. It
is vital then that we improve the existing connections between these areas to enable excellent
transport around the city and to help the areas support each other in terms of their offer.
This will not only benefit those who live in these developing areas but also those who live on
or close to the corridors of improvement.

5.46  Inurban areas small and medium scale transport investments, focused on improving
the performance of existing networks, and measures to encourage and enable travel by
public transport, cycle or on foot, are more cost effective than large scale schemes designed
to increase transport capacity. Although this approach is not supported by everyone, in the
current financial climate the need to make cost effective transport investment decisions will
be greater than ever.



Page 138

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Case Study - Better Integrated Transport System

Devonport Station is the most well used of Devonport Station
Plymouth’s four local railway stations providing
access to the city centre, Cornwall and the Tamar
Valley. The station is located within a residential
area and is 5 minutes walking time from the
facilities, services and shops found at the Stoke
Village district centre. The adjacent residential
and shopping areas are well-served by bus with
routes to the city centre and Derriford, in the north
of the city.

To create better integration between the train
and bus in this area, leading to increased
patronage of both modes, a programme of bus and pedestrian infrastructure and
information measures were delivered, improving people's travel choice and their access
to services.

5.47 Asdiscussed in this chapter, the growth of the city could come at a cost if not managed
appropriately. The implementation of improved walking, cycling and public transport routes
can enable a low carbon transport approach to economic development. Therefore the majority
of improvements will be dedicated to reducing the carbon footprint of the city by enabling
journeys by bus, cycle or on foot.

5.48 We know this decision may be controversial for many people. From the consultation
analysis there appears to be three camps of opinion when it comes to the issue of sustainable
transport. Whilst people do not seem to be averse to using the train for long distance travel,
there are people who simply won’t entertain the idea of walking, cycling or using the bus.
From a recent travel survey that was carried out, we know that there are also people who
would actually like to travel more sustainably, but are unable to due to family or work
commitments. And there are those people, who wholly support sustainable travel and would
fully support improvements and further investment.

Eastern Corridor

One of the city's largest areas of planned growth is to the east of the city, along what is
termed the 'Eastern Corridor', which extends from the city centre through Cattedown,
then through Plymstock and Sherford, and ends at Langage Business Park, north of the
A38. By 2026 this corridor will accommodate in excess of 7,000 new homes and a number
of new employment sites and facilities including a park and ride site and service at Deep
Lane junction on the A38.



Page 139

The main sites for development include Plymstock Quarry (including 1,650 homes and
21,000 sq. m of offices), Sherford (including 5,500 homes and 67,000 sq m of business
and commercial space), and Langage Business Park (an existing strategic employment
site, with a further 20,000 sq m expansion planned).

An Eastern Corridor High Quality Public Transport (HQPT) Major Scheme is under
development. It will be a package of public transport infrastructure supported by small
scale highway improvements. This ambitious scheme is essential to secure the economic
opportunities that exist on the Eastern Corridor in a sustainable way, and will require
financial contributions from developers and a bid for funding to the Department for
Transport. A limited stop Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) type system (including a range of bus
segregation measures), will serve all the new developments along the Eastern Corridor,
and will deliver one of the main links on the city's planned strategic HQPT network and
Strategic Cycle Network.

Following a Strategic Park & Ride Study undertaken for the city we will investigate in
more detail the viability of a park and ride site for the A379 corridor into the city.

The early phases of this project are already under way with the East End Transport
Improvement Scheme which is due to be completed in November 2011. This will be
followed by improvements to Cattedown roundabout and then the phased delivery of the
scheme working eastwards from the East End.

Construction of the EETS

For further information about our transport plans for the Eastern Corridor, visit our website
at:



Page 140

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/easterncorridormajorscheme

Northern Corridor

The Northern Corridor, the A386 and B3250, is one of main routes into Plymouth for
public and private transport with 30,000 vehicles per day using this part of the highway
network. The importance of the Northern Corridor as a main route is reflected in its
transport assets which include; two of the city's park and ride sites, the airport, central
train station, two public car parks, supported bus services, cycle routes and numerous
workplace and school travel plans.

However, the Northern Corridor is set to grow significantly in the future. Extensive
development (retail, business, residential and leisure) is planned and exciting projects
such as the Life Centre are being developed. In order to accommodate this growth and
support the economic prosperity of the Northern Corridor, and the city as a whole,
significant changes in the transport provision will be required.

Work to improve public transport and walking and cycling infrastructure serving this
corridor has been under way for a number of years - most notably the George Junction
Park and Ride facility and service - and many smaller scale improvements. Ongoing
investment will need to take place along this corridor to secure the economic benefits of
this development and avoid the impacts of unchecked traffic growth and congestion.

In 2007 the Council sought the views of the public and transport providers on what they
felt could be done to improve the overall experience of people travelling by public transport
on the Northern Corridor. In response to your comments a targeted programme of works
was delivered between May 2009 and March 2010, investing £2 million on transport
improvements on the A386 and B3250, including a £750,000 upgrade of the George
Junction Park & Ride site, new bus and cycle lanes (largely delivered through road
widening on Tavistock Road and Derriford Hospital), Real Time Passenger Information
(RTPI) displays at strategic bus stops, bus boarders to increase the accessibility of buses
on the corridor, and pedestrian crossing improvements and resurfacing works.

Further improvements will be delivered this year and in future years, including the
upgrading of the traffic signals at Manadon junction (Summer 2010) to improve the
capacity of the junction and stop queueing both on the A38 slip roads and on the Northern
Corridor. In the longer term the city plans to develop a Northern Corridor Major Transport
Scheme to deliver major transport infrastructure improvements that have been identified
as necessary to cater for the large scale growth planned in the city centre and along the
Northern Corridor. These improvements will focus on improving connectivity in the
Derriford area, and between the Derriford Area and the Eastern Corridor developments,
especially for HQPT and for active modes of travel. This may include the building of a
link road through the Forder Valley.



Page 141

Western Corridor

A key issue for the Council during the lifetime of this strategy will be how to manage the
capacity constraints and increasing demand for crossing the River Tamar. The levels of
development anticipated within the city will act as a significant attractor for residents of
South East Cornwall. However, the routes into Plymouth are restricted by the need to
cross the river.

The primary routes between Plymouth and Cornwall are A38 Tamar Bridge and A374
Torpoint Ferry, both tolled, for road traffic, the Cremyll Ferry for foot / cycle traffic and
the Royal Albert Bridge for the railway network. All of these routes have limited capacity.

The Strategic Park & Ride Study for the city investigated the potential for the delivery of
a park & ride facility to serve the city's Western Corridor and assessed a number of
potential locations for a park & ride site. The assessment concluded that there is significant
potential to operate a commercial park and ride service on this corridor, but that operating
from a site to the West of the Tamar Bridge alone would likely require subsidy from the
local authority. The study did not specify sites on the corridor to the East of the Tamar
Bridge, but did put forward three options and the deliverability these needs to be further
investigated. Delivering park and ride services on the Western Corridor may affect the
viability of operating commercial services on the Northern Corridor, in particular the
existing site at Milehouse, and this impact needs to be carefully considered before the
decision is made to invest in new infrastructure.

Tamar and Royal Albert bridges




Page 142

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Other options to better manage the limited capacity need to be developed in order to
establish a long term strategy for improvements to the corridor which would likely be
required beyond the life of this Local Transport Plan. These options need to consider
ways to make the most out of all of the crossing opportunities available and not simply
focus on road crossings.

In addition to the connections between Plymouth and Cornwall there are a number of
improvements required on the Western Corridor to significantly enhance the quality and
variety of the transport offer to residents. Due to the nature of the existing infrastructure
these measures do not need the major changes that are needed on other corridors and
are therefore not shown on the strategic infrastructure map.

City Centre

Dramatic changes are planned that will enable Plymouth's city centre to become a
sustainable city centre neighbourhood which is a vibrant and thriving regional destination,
which will be the natural destination for people from Devon and Cornwall who want high
quality and varied shopping, cultural, leisure and recreational facilities, a unique
environment anchored in its heritage, and a top class learning area focused on the
University and Plymouth College of Art and Design.

In order to achieve this, the way in which the transport network operates will need to
change. Based on evidence for the city centre and University Area Action Plan the
following key principles for changes have been adopted:

e Maintain the role of the Strategic Road Network to efficiently distribute movements
by all transport modes around the city centre.

e  Support and improve access by public transport to the city centre, and particularly
the development of the High Quality Public Transport system.

*  Provide city centre car parking in fewer, larger, strategically located, high quality car
parks with easy access from the Strategic Road Network.

e Address the need for better facilities for cyclists and pedestrians within and into the
city centre.

e Ensure safe movement for all users of the road network.

e Ensure safe movement between the city centre and surrounding neighbourhoods.

e  Support development of Plymouth Railway Station and the adjacent area securing
improved access from the city centre road system and better connections to the
HQPT and local bus networks, the SCN and city centre walking networks

This will require some major changes to the existing transport networks, including junction
improvements, enhancements for walking and cycling infrastructure and increased priority
measures for buses. All of this needs to be balanced with the management of a worsening
air quality situation in the parts of the city centre for which the Council has a statutory
responsibility. Air quality is specifically dealt with in chapter 7 of this Local Transport
Plan.



Page 143

Communications technology

5.49 The growth of high speed and mobile broadband networks and an increasingly
knowledge-based economy is reducing the economic costs of remoteness, and indeed some
people argue that the city's remoteness is part of its attraction as a place to live and therefore
an economic advantage as well as a disadvantage. To reduce both remoteness and the need
to travel for work, the Council will support improvements in communications technology by:

e  Working with potential private sector providers of new fibre networks for high speed (100
megabits per second) internet access to accelerate roll out whilst minimising highway
and pavement disruption. These networks will enable businesses to enjoy next generation
internet services, including internet based television, video on demand, enhanced social
networking, home working and video conferencing.

e  Promoting the economic and carbon reduction benefits to businesses of increased home
working and video conferencing through workplace travel planning process.

The movement of goods

5.50 As the city grows the demand for goods and services will also increase with the
provision of safe, direct transport routes for the delivery of freight and goods essential to
maintain a stable and growing economy.

5.51 Goods are brought to the city and delivered to other markets by road, rail, sea and
air making it necessary that the need to move freight and goods by these transport networks
is an inclusive part of any improvements planned and delivered to them. However, the
movement of freight also has negative environmental impacts such as poor air quality,
transport noise and climate change implications and with road freight contributes to traffic
congestion.

5.52 The Council will work with freight bodies and organisations like the Freight Transport
Association and the Road Haulage Association, the airport, port and rail authorities and the
city's significant freight traffic generators to identify where improvements to the city's transport
networks could be made, in relation to maintaining goods delivery timescale, providing for
increased freight volume, reducing the negative impacts of freight transportation and identifying
potential opportunities to transfer freight and goods movement from road to rail.

5.53 Amongst the measures to be considered will be the establishing of a Freight Quality
Partnership (FQP) to facilitate improved co-ordination between the appropriate parties,
continued working at a regional level on freight issues and routes, the identification of potential
freight consolidation and distribution centres for the city, and safeguarding and developing
the existing rail freight infrastructure along the Cattewater branch line, Friary Yard and
Tavistock Junction to support increased transfer from road to rail freight.



Page 144

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Improve access to road, rail, air and sea networks which connect to locations beyond
Plymouth

5.54 The Council does not control any of the transport networks that connect the city to
the rest of the country.

5.55 The A38 Parkway is managed by the Highways Agency, the rail network by First
Great Western and Network Rail, the airport by its owner, Sutton Harbour Holdings plc, the
coach networks by Megabus, National Express and the ports by Associated British Ports
(ABP).The council already has a close working relationship with the Highways Agency about
matters that impact both our highway networks.

5.56  This means that the Council has limited influence over changes made to these
networks, and the biggest role we can play is to act as a voice for residents as users of their
services. In this context we will be lobbying the relevant bodies for improvements to the
services they provide.

Rail Plymouth Railway Station

5.57 The rail network is a crucial element of the city's
transport systems providing access to the rest of the
country and Europe. However, the rail network in the far
south-west has suffered historically from significant
under-investment, resulting in much of the rail
infrastructure being below standard and in need of urgent
renewal with low line speeds, high signalling headway
requirements and loading gauge below the standard
needed to facilitate the movement of larger freight
containers.

5.58 The significant role of the rail network in enabling
the city to reach other markets and for people wishing
to travel long distances will only grow as the city’s
population increases and its economic position improves.
New infrastructure and improvements are needed to not
only maintain existing services but deliver better rail
services for the city. The Council will continue to promote
and support increased rail use and lobby the rail
authorities for improvements to the rail network and the services that serve the city and the
far south-west.

5.59 The main rail issues for Plymouth are:

e The need to increase the number of services with reduced journey times to other major
cities and particularly between Plymouth and London timetabled to take no more than
3 hours

e  Greater commitment from Network Rail to the extension of electrification of the GWML
through to Plymouth and Cornwall in order to fully maximise the benefits



Page 145

e Extension of the 7-Day Railway concept through to Plymouth and Cornwall

e The need to improve rail infrastructure so as to enable a greater volume of freight to be
transported by rail including port-related freight and to safeguard freight interchange
facilities

e To properly recognise the status of Plymouth Station on the rail network in respect of its
essential role in providing long-distance connections and its unmatched GWRUS demand
forecasts with it reclassified as a Category B - Regional Hub station

e To improve weather and flood protection to maintain operating capability across the
Somerset Levels, through the Exe Valley and at Dawlish

e To reinstate alternative mainline routes viaTavistock and Okehampton or via Heathfield
and Teign Valley

e The development of a 'metro' system with improved frequency of service on the local
rail network from Liskeard through to Exeter, including re-opening the Tamar Valley
branch line between Bere Alston and Tavistock so as to provide a complete
Plymouth-Tavistock rail service

Trunk Roads (A38 / M5/ A303)

e To provide motorists and hauliers with better Real time information about journey times
between Plymouth and Exeter / Bodmin.

e The second strategic route to the south west along the A303 and A30 comprises mixed
lengths of single and dual carriageway. Congestion is frequently reported on the route's
single carriageway sections in the summer tourist season and we will support
improvements to this route to enhance connectivity and journey time reliability between
Plymouth and the south east.

Plymouth Airport

e Through the planning process, safeguard land to enable airport expansion
e Improve surface access by sustainable modes
e Bring a wider range of destinations

Ports

5.60 Plymouth's ports are a valuable asset, the passenger ferries to France and Spain
bring over half a million people through the city every year and the cargo handled through
the Port of Plymouth exceeded 2.3 million tonnes in 2008.

Encourage increased use by cruise ships

Increase freight handled through ports

Support the development of a Port of Plymouth Master Plan
Encourage port-related freight movement by rail

e o o o

5.61 A comprehensive review of the consultation data found very few strategic comments
about how improving connections by air, road, rail and sea could be achieved, but it was
evident that improvements would be fully supported, particularly by the local business
community.



Page 146

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

5.62 A comprehensive review of the consultation data found very few strategic comments
about how improving connections by air, road, rail and sea could be achieved, but it was
evident that improvements would be fully supported, particularly by the local business
community.

Cross boundary working

5.63  With Plymouth's TTWA and sub-region extending into Devon and Cornwall, it is
important that we work with our neighbours on both strategic and local cross-boundary issues.

Cornwall

5.64  Whilst the A38 is a trunk road operated by the Highways Agency the Tamar Bridge
and Torpoint Ferries are managed jointly by Cornwall Council and Plymouth City Council.
These crossings have undergone considerable change in the last 10 years or so. The
strengthening and widening of the Tamar Bridge between 1999 and 2001 at a cost of
approximately £35 million, the replacement of the three Torpoint Ferries in 2005 and 2006
and associated shore works at a cost of approximately £19 million and the Tamar Bridge toll
plaza refurbishment and the introduction of electronic toll collection in 2006, together costing
approximately £4.5 million are notable investments in keeping the services operating efficiently
and to modern standards. However, if growth in traffic associated with development on both
sides of the Tamar is to continue then the capacity and efficiency will be seriously challenged.
The decision will need to be made how to best manage this increased demand for crossing
the river so that it still remains efficient for all users. A number of options could be considered:

e Park and ride in Cornwall to serve Plymouth city centre and Derriford areas

e More efficient use of the rail network

e Different toll levels at different times of the day to encourage more efficient use of the
existing crossings

A new crossing

More efficient use of the bus network

'Smarter choices' programmes

A combination of any of these or something completely different.

5.65 Plymouth City Council and Cornwall Council are agreed that we need to be taking
steps today to work out the best way of going forward. We know we need to look at the
opportunities available from all the Tamar crossings, not just the road crossings, in order to
determine a comprehensive package of measures to manage the demand for crossing in
the long term.



Page 147

Cremyll Ferry 5.66 The Cremyll Ferry service forms a vital connection
for South East Cornwall providing efficient access to
Plymouth as well as providing access from Plymouth to
Mount Edgcumbe House and Country Park and beyond. It
also forms part of the National Cycle Network.

5.67 The aim is to ensure good links for all modes of
transport across the river with the aim of connecting cycling
and walking routes where necessary and working with
Cornwall Council and the transport operators to improve

access to all parts of the city.

Devon

5.68 Plymouth, as the largest city west of Bristol, is naturally a focal point for south and
west Devon in terms of employment, and many commercial services. Thousands of journeys
are made every day between Plymouth and Devon by car, bus, rail, cycle and on foot, and
maintaining and improving the ease of travel between the city and Devon is economically
important to both the city and the county.

5.69 Plymouth and Devon are linked in the north by the A386, and in the east by the A38
and A379, by many sub-regional bus services, by rail services to lvybridge and other
destinations in Devon, and two National Cycle Routes. Plymouth City Council and Devon
County Council are agreed that we need to work closely together to successfully achieve
our own transport objectives, and in particular to ensure that growth in traffic associated with
planned Eastern Corridor developments does not challenge the capacity and efficiency of
routes from Devon into Plymouth .

5.70 In order to make best use of our existing assets, improve connections between key
areas of the city (including the growth areas along the Eastern Corridor), exploit communication
technology to tackle remoteness, and improve access to networks to beyond Plymouth, work
with Devon County Council, South Hams District Council and West Devon Council might
include:

e Connect cycling and walking routes between Devon and our Northern and Eastern
Corridors, include National Cycle Network Routes and routes on Plymouth’s Strategic
Cycle Network.

e Seek to improve the sustainable travel options from sub-regional towns and villages —
especially lvybridge and Tavistock, which are significant commuter towns for Plymouth

e Develop transport options for major new developments in the sub-region, in particular
for the Sherford New Community (this will include a park and ride in Devon at Deep
Lane Junction which will also reduce traffic into Plymouth from the east along the A38).

e Press rail operators for more frequent rail services between lvybridge and Plymouth

e Coordinate network management activities at or near our boundaries to avoid network
disruption.



Page 148

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Joint negotiations with potential private sector providers of new fibre networks for high
speed (100 megabits per second) internet access to the Sherford New Community.

Joint submission of the planned Eastern Corridor Major Scheme Bid to provide HQPT
and improved cycle infrastructure from the city centre to the Sherford New Community

Monitoring and review

5.71

Establishing a framework for monitoring the outcomes of the activities undertaken

through the Local Transport Plan is not only vital to understanding successes but also where
we need to do things differently in the future. In light of the recent removal of the National
Indicator Set the Council is currently considering how best to monitor transport and
non-transport outcomes. Plymouth's final Local Transport Plan 2011 - 2026 will include a
completed framework.

Key references:

[ ]

e 6 o o o o o o o

Bus Station Feasibility and Option Development Study, 2009, Plymouth City Council
City Centre & University AAP - City Centre Transport Strategy Summary Document,
2010, Plymouth City Council

Draft Derriford AAP Transport Strategy, 2010, Plymouth City Council

Eastern Corridor Study 2005, Plymouth City Council

Eastern Gateway Framework Study 2004, Plymouth City Council

East of Plymouth Infrastructure Study 2007, Plymouth City Council

Electrification - Network RUS, 2009, Network Rail

Great Western Route Utilisation Strategy, 2010, Network Rail

Park and Ride Strategy Final Report, 2008, Plymouth City Council

Plymouth Local Economic Strategy 2006 - 2021 and Beyond, Plymouth City Council
Plymouth Local Development Framework Core Strategy 2006-2021, Plymouth City
Council

Securing the future for generations ahead, Plymouth's Sustainable Community
Strategy 2007-2020, Plymouth 2020 Local Strategic Partnership

The Eddington Transport Study 2006, Sir Rod Eddington

The Stern Review: The Economics of Climate Change 2006, Nicholas Stern
Western Corridor Park and Ride Study Final Report, 2009, Plymouth City Council



Page 149

6 Tackling Climate Change

Summary

What is climate change?

6.1

From the Met Office guide, "Climate change - the facts" (2009):

"The Earth’s climate has changed many times in response to natural causes. The term
climate change usually refers to man-made changes that have occurred since the early
1900s.

To understand climate change, it's important to recognise the difference between
weather and climate. Weather is the temperature, precipitation (rain, hail, sleet and
snow) and wind, which change hour by hour and day by day. Climate is the average
weather and the nature of its variations that we experience over time.

The greenhouse effect is the natural process of the atmosphere letting in some of the
energy we receive from the Sun (ultraviolet and visible light) and stopping it being
transmitted back out into space (infrared radiation or heat). This makes the Earth warm
enough for life.

Figure 6.1 Greenhouse Effect

1. Sunlight passes through 2. Infrared Radiation (IR) is 3. But some IR is trapped

the atmosphere and given off by the Earth. by gases in the air and
warms the Earth. Most IR escapes to outer this reduces the
space and cools the Earth. cooling effect.

For several thousands of years the atmosphere has been delicately balanced, with
relatively stable levels of greenhouse gases. Human influence has now upset that
balance and, as a result, we are seeing climate change.

Human activities like burning coal, oil and gas have led to an increase in greenhouse
gases in the atmosphere causing an enhanced greenhouse effect and extra warming.
As a result, over the past century there has been an underlying increase in average
temperatures which is continuing. Globally, the ten hottest years on record have all
been since 1997.



Page 150

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

If emissions continue to grow at present rates, CO, concentration in the atmosphere is
likely to reach twice pre-industrial levels by around 2050. Unless we limit emissions,
global temperature could rise as much as 7 °C above pre-industrial temperature by the
end of the century and push many of the world’s great ecosystems (such as coral reefs
and rainforests) to irreversible decline.

Even if global temperatures rise by only 2 °C it would mean that 20-30% of species
could face extinction. We can expect to see serious effects on our environment, food
and water supplies, and health.

The main greenhouse gas responsible for recent climate change is carbon dioxide
(CO,). This has been released in huge quantities by our modern way of life. Levels have
also increased due to the destruction of rainforests, which play an important role in
absorbing CO,."

6.2 Climate change is happening now. It is unavoidable and is, to a large extent, a direct
result of the greenhouse gases (including carbon dioxide (CO,)) produced by the burning of
fossil fuels such as coal, gas and oil.

6.3 We understand that we need to play our part and work with the Government to meet
the target to reduce UK greenhouse gas emissions by at least 80% from 1990 levels by
2050. Plymouth’s contribution to the national commitment is to reduce the city's CO, emissions
by 60% by 2020, just nine years into this LTP. This huge challenge will need to include a
contribution from the transport networks in Plymouth, it is not made any easier by the plans
for the city to grow in population and prosperity.

6.4 Transport is a major source of CO, with more than 90% of the total domestic transport
emissions in the UK being produced by road transport. Future projections show that we won't
even achieve reductions which take us back to the levels of 1990 by using technology that
improves the efficiency of our vehicles or by switching to vehicles that are powered by different
fuels, such as electricity. So, in order to have a long-term impact, we need to think differently
about the role transport plays in moving people and goods around.

6.5 It is possible for us to act today in order to improve the future situation, but past
emissions are causing climate change now and we need to be in a position to manage the
effects of those changes.

6.6 We have to adapt to the extremes of weather that climate change is bringing. We need
to ensure that our transport infrastructure can cope with the coming heatwaves, floods and
more severe storms. And we need to build, maintain and operate our transport networks with
minimal carbon dioxide emissions.

6.7 The challenge of climate change requires us to reduce our reliance on fossil fuels - but
this can be seen as an opportunity. At a time when oil is becoming more difficult to locate
and to extract, as illustrated by the 2010 Gulf of Mexico oil leak, and with prices at petrol
pumps set only to increase further, it makes sense to look to a lower carbon future.



Page 151

What’s happening? How big is the problem?

6.8 The general consensus is that if we carry on producing the level of carbon dioxide that
we are today, then the average global temperatures could rise by up to 6°C by the end of
this century. This would make extreme weather events, like floods and drought, more frequent
and increase global instability, conflict, public health-related deaths and migration of people
to levels beyond any of our recent experience. Heat waves, droughts and floods would affect
the UK too. If we want to avoid the most dangerous impacts of climate change, average
global temperatures must rise no more than 2°C.

6.9 Transportin Plymouth is responsible for 25% of the city’s annual CO, emissions, which
means there is a huge challenge if we are going to achieve the target that has been set.

The effect of climate change on transport

6.10 The Local Transport Act 2008 requires the Council to consider how it will act on
Government policies and guidance on climate change adaptation. We are already
experiencing the effects of climate change. In the last century the world's surface air
temperature has increased an average of 0.6°C, which across the world is causing;

Sea levels to rise

Arctic sea ice to melt

Glaciers and permafrost to melt

Sea-surface temperatures to warm

Heavier rainfall to cause flooding in many regions
Extreme drought to increase

Ecosystems to change

Hurricanes to change in frequency and strength
More frequent heat waves

Warmer temperatures to affect human health, and
Seawater to become more acidic.

® 6 & o o o o o o o o

6.11 These outcomes leave transport networks, whether they are road, rail, sea or air,
extremely vulnerable.

6.12 Atalocal level, these changes are causing more severe weather events over recent
years, such as heavy rainfall causing flooding or colder spells with more snow and ice, which
has tested our transport network and resilience to respond to these events. It is likely that
these events will become more frequent, and it is therefore vital that we understand the
impact on the networks and then look at how we can manage them. The cold weather that
affected Plymouth during the winter of 2009/10 had a dramatic impact on the surface of our
roads and footways, as well as structures.

6.13 The Transport Planning Society has produced a useful checklist of issues to consider
for network vulnerability to climate change, which is a first step to us looking at the local
network and being able to keep our city moving when the events occur. (See Figure 6.2
below.)



Page 152

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Figure 6.2 Network Vulnerability Checklist

CHECKLIST OF ISSUES TO CONSIDER FOR N-ETILJORK VULNERABILITY TO CLIMATE CHANGE

» Subsidence and leaves

« Owverheating of paths and
discomfort

+ Modal shift away from walking
and cycling due to discomfort

.

Weather / Climate and its Impacts Roads / Pavements Cyeling / Walking | Buses / Trains / Trams Structures
Coastal Erosion and Storm Surges « Realignment of routes

= Collapse of cliffs staking down infrastructure

« Temporary or permanent inundation of infrastructure

« Communities and/or services cut off e.g. homes, hotels, roads, beach access routes, ports and harbours.
[ - in + Surface damage such as + Surface damage such as « Buckling rails, speed Surface and structural
temperatures melting tarmac melting tarmac restrictions and emergency damage

timetables

Overheating and discomfort /
health risks for passengers
(especially underground)
Modal shift to cars due to
discomfort

Increase in Average Daily
Temperatures

« Drought and lower water tables

+ Longer growing seasons and increased verge / embankment maintenance

etc

ing ground shrink

ground,

Heavy Rainfall and Flooding

+_Metwork failures due to flooding
+ Landslides
« Damage to pavements

including flash flooding

+ Pedestrian subways more
likely to flood and take longer

.

Higher risk for underground
networks

Embankments unsafe or
collapse
Landslides bringing down

« Fallen trees and associated de

ris — blocking routes / safety risk

to clear + Flooding of train / tram power structures.
SOUrces Bridge damaged or washed
away
High Winds and Sterms « Unsafe buildings and it transport di ions

« Medal shift to cars and public
transport

Damage to overhead power
lines

Vulnerability of / danger from
movement of lightweight
structures (traffic signs,
lighting, street furniture)
Vulnerability of exposed
structures / bridges

Severe Weather generally

marooned on route
+ Risks to passenger safety

+ Failures of “just in time" supply

+ Impact on outdoor workforce and public transport staff

chains, most importantly food supplies

« Disruption to normal traffic flows with people unable to travel, confused about what networks are running, or

Indirect Impacts

« Changes in economic sectors /

employment patterns

# Increase in tourist visitors from overseas and UK visiters staying in the UK
« Changes in visitor travel patterns — especially to coastal locations
=+ Population movements away from urban heat islands and locations that suffer frequent floods

+ Inward migration countries that are suffering more severe climate change

6.14 We know that we have areas within Plymouth that will be at an increased risk of
flooding as climate change advances. Flooding may be tidal or from surface water run-off.

6.15 Work on the Strategic Flood Risk Assessment (SFRA) has identified:

e Key threats to strategic road & rail transport assets at Embankment Road, and
e  Capacity constraints of the surface water drainage network to deal with rising sea levels,
causing tide locking at key locations such as Sutton Road, Union Street and Gdynia

Way.

6.16 The SFRA also identified that the existing highway drainage system will not be able
to cope in future years with the forecast increase in rainfall intensity and quantity.



Page 153

Figure 6.3 Rail Line at Dawlish 6.17 Aflood risk map for Plymouth has been
presented in Chapter 2 (The Plymouth Context).

6.18 Also of importance to the city are our
connections to the rest of the country. The effect
of the weather is well known on the Plymouth
to Exeter rail route where disruption is regularly
caused at Dawlish. This is the only rail
connection to the rest of the country for
communities and businesses west of Exeter,
which includes Torbay, Newton Abbot, Plymouth
and the whole of Cornwall. As we have
demonstrated in Chapter 5 (Supporting
Economic Growth), the rail network is vital to
the prosperity of the region and the disruption caused by extreme weather has already had
a detrimental impact.

The effect of transport on climate change

6.19 As stated above, transport is a major contributor to carbon dioxide emissions. Figure
6.2 below illustrates the sources of the UK's domestic CO, emissions from transport:

Figure 6.4 CO2 emissions by source

CO, emissions from domestic transport by source, UK, 2006
1.80%\ 4.2|0% r0'80%

H Passenger cars

E Light duty vehicles

i Buses

HHGVs

i Mopeds and motorcycles
i Railways

4 Domestic aviation

4 Domestic shipping

11 Other




o
o'
0
=
=

@
@
3
D
—
@
@)
I
D
-]

@
@

Page 154

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

6.20 This data demonstrates that over 90 percent of the emissions from domestic transport
come from road transport, and more than half of it comes from passenger cars.

6.21  Whilst we know that there is a great drive towards improving the fuel efficiency of
cars, we are still not using them as efficiently as we can. When we consider the average
occupancy of different vehicle types, cars are still half as fuel efficient as a bus and one
quarter as efficient as a train. (Defra (2010) Greenhouse gas conversion factors)

Figure 6.5 CO2 emissions and impact of policy options (From A Low Carbon Strategy
for Transport - Keith Buchan)

1820 1895 2000 2005 0o M5 200

WRenewable Transport Fusl Obligation

D New Car CO2 Voluntary Agreements + fiscal measures to 2009

T Sustainable Distribution in England, local transport measures & Smarier Choices

OSustainable Distnbution in Scoland and Local Authority policies

BNew car 02 mandatory target (European Commission prapesal)

WHistorc emissions & Business As Usual forecast.

EINew car CO2 mandatory targe (assuming UK 2020 target adopted)

T Remaining smissions from the Road Transport Sector (2ssuming UK longer tem target adapted|

Source: Histonc emissions from the National Atmosphenc Emissions Inventory 2006;
Tforecasts from the DfT Nafional Transport Model impact of policy options from DIT analysis.




Page 155

Peak oil

6.22 Oil extraction has become increasingly difficult. The explosion of the Deepwater
Horizon drilling rig in the Gulf of Mexico in April 2010 is a clear demonstration of the challenges
posed by new oil fields. The rig was drilling in about 5,000ft (1,525m) of water, pushing the
boundaries of deep-water drilling technology. The resulting oil spill has had profound effects
on the communities that live around and depend upon the sea, causing the worst
environmental disaster in the history of the USA.

6.23 Hand in hand with lower carbon transport is the issue of peak oil. We have known for
some time that oil, as a finite resource, will not be as readily available in the future. It is also
now becoming increasingly apparent that we have passed the point of 'peak oil' - we have
extracted much of the easy to reach oil and from now on oil will be harder to find and more
expensive to extract.

6.24 So climate change aside, with fuel being in shorter supply in the future and becoming
ever more expensive, we have to look at the way we travel and ask ourselves if we can afford
to remain reliant on oil-intensive modes of transport.

Approach

6.25 The approach that we need to take in managing climate change is two-fold. Firstly,
we need to adapt the transport networks, so that they keep moving during the extreme
weather events that are set to become more frequent and more severe (adaptation). Secondly,
we need to do everything we can to slow climate change by significantly reducing the carbon
outputs of transport (mitigation).

How do we adapt to be better prepared for effects of climate change?

6.26 The adaptation agenda is primarily supported by the third transport objective;

Objective Three
High quality transport standards for a vibrant city

e Make best use of our existing transport networks; manage congestion and improve
journey reliability.

e Maintain and where necessary improve the condition and increase the flexibility of
our transport network such that it is more adaptable to climate change, severe
weather events and incidents.

¢ Improve the quality of public car parks such that they meet the higher standards set
by private parking companies.

e  Setclear priorities for routes to and from main areas / facilities to balance competing
demands for highway space across the network.



Page 156

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

6.27 Plymouth 2020, the Local Strategic Partnership, has acknowledged this. It recognises
that we have a collective responsibility to current and future generations to acknowledge and
minimise the impacts of climate change that are caused by, and affect, the communities of
Plymouth.

From Plymouth 2020 Local Strategic Partnership - Acting on Climate Change - Plymouth’s
Climate Change Action Plan 2009-2011):

“Time is of the essence in this respect. We know from scientific evidence that we are now
counting the climate change costs of the last 50 years and that slowing, reducing or
eliminating the impacts will take a further 50 years.”

“We cannot afford to wait. We need to take action now and to build on what we learn”

6.28 How we act now will affect the severity of what we will have to contend with in the
future. We have to ensure that transport systems are resilient to the unavoidable climate
change. What the exact extent of climate change will be we do not know — we can work
towards a slowing down of change globally, but climate change is happening now and will
continue as the effects of past emissions take their toll.

6.29 We will assess our transport networks and systems to identify the weak points - those
most at risk from flooding, extremes of temperature and high winds, for example. We will
then prioritise adaptation work on those areas of severe risk and strategic importance; it is
prohibitively expensive and unrealistic to expect the whole of the network to be made totally
resilient to all extremes of weather. We will work with the emergency planning team to put
plans in place in the case of disruption by weather, which might include contingency planning
such as diversionary routes and dissemination of information and advice We will need to be
sure that forecasts of severe weather are received and understood where they are needed
to enable this.

6.30 This is not just a role of the Council. When we approve the building of new
developments, for example, we need to ensure the drainage systems are suitable for the
expected changes to weather in the next 30 to 50 years.

6.31 From UK Climate Impacts Programme (UKCIP): Climate Change and Local
Communities — How Prepared are You? (2003):

Local Potential Impacts of Climate Change|Adaptation Responses
Authority

Service

Transport  (Increased risk of flood disruption due tolPlan to flood-proof or re-site
Planning wetter winters and severe weather infrastructure and plan routes to

minimise disruption

Increased temperature causing service Avoid exposed places and provide
disruption and heat stress to travelling [shade or cooled waiting areas
public




Page 157

Highway
Maintenance

Increased rainfall intensity affecting
embankments and bridge piers and
washing more debris into gullies

Increase monitoring and maintenance
of embankments and bridge piers, and
increase gully emptying activity

Drier summers increase risk of road
subsidence and higher temperatures
increase risk of surface damage

Re-examine road structural design.
Implement remedial work for existing
roads.

Higher risk to roads located in floodplain
or coastal areas

/Aim to flood-proof or re-site strategically,
important roads

Increase in rate of growth and length of
growing season of road verges

Use slower growing plants in landscape
schemes. Revise mowing / weed

control schedule

Warmer winters with reduced risk of frostReduced need for road salting

How do we do help to address the causes of climate change?

6.32 The mitigation agenda is primarily supported by the fifth transport objective:

Objective

Five

Maximise the transport contribution to Plymouth's carbon reduction target (60
percent reduction by 2020)

([ ]

and taking the bus.

and operations.

footprint; reuse and recycle where possible.

infrastructure and information.

6.33

designed and improve physical access.

Increase awareness of ways to reduce personal carbon footprint by walking, cycling
Reduce energy consumption from non-renewable sources used by our infrastructure
When building or renewing infrastructure or equipment consider the lifecycle carbon

Encourage use of more efficient and alternative fuelled vehicles by providing

It is also reinforced by the other transport objectives in the following ways:

Link communities together in supporting lower carbon modes
Reduce the negative impacts of transport in ensuring footways and cycleways are well

High quality transport standards for vibrant city in increasing the flexibility of our transport

network such that it is more adaptable to climate change and severe weather events
and incidents.

no or low carbon modes.

Make walking, cycling and public transport the desirable choice by encouraging these

Use transport to drive the local economy in encouraging sustainable tourism and

improving the local gateways to bus and rail networks.

6.34 The DfT carries out an annual survey of public attitudes towards the policies to reduce
transport emissions. The latest survey, in 2009, found that:



Page 158

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

e Just 37 percent of respondents thought people should be allowed to use their cars as
much as they like irrespective of environmental impacts, and

e More than half (58 percent) thought people should try to limit their car use for the sake
of the environment.

6.35 Itis clear that we need to think more about how and why we travel.

6.36 There is no easy way to do this because of the complexity of travel; everyone makes
different journeys of different lengths for different purposes at different times of the day.

6.37  Although the majority of car journeys in the UK are under five miles in length, longer
journeys are responsible for more emissions. Hence, although only seven percent of trips
are more than 25 miles in length, they cause 38 percent of all CO, emissions.

6.38 For shorter trips within Plymouth, it is more effective to contemplate measures which
are aimed at reducing the emissions of each trip, rather than reducing the number of trips.
These include:

e encouraging more fuel-efficient driving
e increasing up-take of more efficient vehicles
e replacing car trips with low carbon alternatives such as walking, cycling or public transport.

6.39 Together these modes could provide a comprehensive alternative that is both practical
and achievable for the trips within the urban/suburban area.

6.40 In order to achieve the bigger gains to be made from targeting longer distance trips
we will:

e improve interchanges between rail and other modes
e provide incentives for travellers to consider using the train

Devon Car Free Day Poster
6.41 Commuting trips are the largest single source of

transport emissions in the UK, accounting for 24 percent | \Wednesday 22 September 2010
of CO,. Whilst this means that 76 percent of emissions
are from trips for other purposes, thecommuting trips are
generally peak hour regular trips that are more likely to be
single occupancy. These trips are also often to a location
where there will be a large number of people making
similar trips, such as the city centre, Derriford or Langage.
This makes it easier to provide alternatives and encourage
users to change the way they travel.

6.42 The main type of vehicle responsible for growth in
emissions is the light goods vehicle. Although they account
for only 15 percent of emissions nationally, the CO,
produced by vans is increasing due to an increase in
mileage and a relative lack of control over the vehicle
standards. These vehicles are vitally important for many




Page 159

businesses. It is therefore proposed that, to reduce van emissions, we need to work very
closely with businesses to help them to make changes that also enable them to achieve cost
savings but don'’t restrict their ability to grow.

6.43  Another large source category is heavy goods vehicles (HGVs), which is the second
largest source of the UK’s domestic transport’s carbon emissions (19.8 percent). There will
be greater opportunities in the future to encourage better use of rail and sea freight, making
the most of lower carbon options, such as short sea shipping. Current recommendations
from the Port of Plymouth Evidence Base Study (Atkins 2010) include the preparation of a
port of Plymouth masterplan for growth and development, and safeguarding the Cattewater
branch line track bed.

Analysis of consultation comments provided some ideas of how to reduce carbon
emissions - the main suggestion being to increase the use of electric vehicles.

6.44 However, in transport, whilst there will be efficiency gains due to improved vehicle
technology or driver behaviour, the required scale of reductions is likely to involve significant
changes in travel behaviour.

6.45 The effects of carbon emissions are global and long-term, hence do not in themselves
present a tangible incentive to change travel behaviour. Such incentives must therefore be
created or demonstrated, either by linking emissions directly to some form of financial
advantage (for example saving money on fuel by driving more efficiently) or by encouraging
behaviour which changes mode of travel, trip frequency or length.

6.46  Plymouth needs a transport system based on the lower carbon options of walking,
cycling and public transport which enables people to make a choice about how they travel.

"People will never leave their cars at home and reduce CO,emissions if you don't provide
a reliable bus service."

6.47 In short, in order to reduce the impact of climate change in the future we need to
change the way we travel such that we:

e Encourage walking for the shorter local trips in neighbourhoods. For longer distances
cycling may be more practicable - this will be facilitated by delivery of the Strategic Cycle
Network

e Ensure public transport is a realistic and desirable option for almost all journeys

e Maximise use of the investment made in public transport infrastructure

e Look to the rail network as a lower carbon option to road transport - for links to the rest
of the country and also for its potential to link the city locally through a new station at
Tavistock and more use of the station at Ivybridge



Page 160

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

[ ]

Encourage those that do drive, be they car drivers, bus drivers or HGV drivers, to drive
carefully to increase fuel efficiency — thereby benefiting both the driver/operator and the
environment

Provide information to drivers to allow them to make informed decisions at the right time.
Providing up-to-date information on the routes, car parking and the options to change
to another mode, such as to bus at a park and ride site, could save on unnecessary
private vehicle miles and carbon emissions

Make the most of new technologies to increase fuel efficiency and reduce greenhouse
gas emissions, and to look at alternative fuels

Look at the transport infrastructure of the city — to minimise where possible the carbon
cost of building, maintaining or operating it. (Is the power we use from a renewable
source? Does the infrastructure require power — is that set of traffic lights really
necessary?)

Increased use of communications technology will enable remote working and
teleconferencing to become more commonplace so we will facilitate the development
of these communications networks

Ensure land use planning continues to locate and design new developments with
sustainable travel in mind, and

Enable and encourage the low carbon alternatives with travel planning and information

6.48 We need to significantly reduce the emissions from transport whilst growing the city,
and we need to do this in a time of economic recovery and constrained budgets.

Monitoring and review

6.49

Establishing a framework for monitoring the outcomes of the activities undertaken

through the Local Transport Plan is not only vital to understanding successes, but highlights
where we need to do things differently in the future. In light of the recent removal of the
National Indicator Set the Council is currently considering how best to monitor transport and
non-transport outcomes. Plymouth's Local Transport Plan 2011 - 2026 will include a completed
monitoring framework.

Key References

Adapting to climate change, June 2009, Department of Environment, Food and
Rural Affairs

A low carbon transport policy for the UK, November 2008, Keith Buchan

Carbon Pathways Analysis - Informing Development of a Carbon Reduction Strategy
for the Transport Sector, July 2008, Department for Transport

Delivering Sustainable Low Carbon Travel: An Essential Guide for Local Authorities,
November 2009, Department for Transport

Government’s White Paper, The UK Low Carbon Transition Plan

Greenhouse gas conversion factors, 2010, Department of Environment, Food and
Rural Affairs

Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change -
http://www.windows2universe.org/earth/climate/cli_effects.html




Page 161

Met Office’s guide, "Warming - Climate change - the facts" 2009, Met Office

Local and Regional Climate Change Research, Final Report, May 2010, Department
for Transport

Low Carbon Transport: A Greener Future, July 2009, Department for Transport
Local Transport: Adapting to Climate Change, Transport Planning Society (September
2009)

Port of Plymouth Evidence Base Study, April 2010,

Port of Plymouth Evidence Base Study - Final Report, 2010, Plymouth City Council
Plymouth 2020, Acting on Climate Change, The First Steps 2009-2011, Plymouth's
Climate Change Action Plan

Public attitudes towards climate change and the impact of transport (January 2010
report), Department for Transport



Page 162

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

7 A Healthy Community

Summary

7.1 “Currently road transport contributes heavily to the climate change crisis, and low levels
of physical activity have created a public health crisis. The two crises share a solution: a
fundamental change to transport, especially urban transport, is needed. The United Kingdom
has one of the lowest rates of cycling in Europe. For a far larger proportion of journeys...cycling
and walking need to be more feasible and appealing options than driving. Most streets in
most cities in England are currently designed around cars. This situation cannot continue.”
Chief Medical Officer

7.2  Transport can have both positive and negative impacts on the health of Plymouth's
residents. An easy way to improve your health is to take more exercise, and travelling by
foot or bicycle can significantly contribute to a more active lifestyle. Transport also enables
greater and better access to doctors, hospitals, leisure and education opportunities,
contributing to people being able to manage their health and well-being positively. Conversely,
noise and air pollution from road and air traffic can have very significant impacts on the health
of those having to live or work near main roads or the airport.

7.3 Inthis chapter we will consider ways in which Plymouth's third local transport plan will
be used to support improvements to the health of our city. As with many of the subjects in
the LTP, it is impossible for the council to work on its own to achieve everything, and it will
therefore take joint working, with communities and partner organisations, as well as motivation.

7.4 Plymouth is a city divided by health. The difference in life expectancy between some
neighbourhoods of the city is as much 13 years. There are many reasons for this difference
- the health of an individual is made up of many factors, such as lifestyle, living conditions,
the community in which they live, and more broad cultural or environmental conditions as
are shown in the figure 7.1. As the reasons for these differences are complex, so are the
actions we can take to help reduce these inequalities.

7.5 Just 18.6% of the adult population of Plymouth exercises for 30 minutes, three times
a week. This makes the city one of the lowest exercising local authority areas in the south
west (source: Healthy Plymouth). The Chief Medical Officer recommends that we increase
the amount of exercise we take in order to have a healthy lifestyle. Taking more exercise
doesn't have to involve going to the gym or buying expensive trainers - an easy way to
increase the amount of exercise we take is to walk or cycle more often.

7.6 By walking or cycling instead of driving you do not just reduce air pollution in the city's
environment. Travelling in your car you are exposed to much higher levels of pollution two
to three times higher than those outside.

7.7 Many reasons are given for not walking and cycling, but these barriers can be reduced,
or removed, by some simple improvements to our transport infrastructure and raising
motivation, and this is explored later in this chapter.



Page 163

Figure 7.1 Factors that affect an individuals' health

Living and working

conditions \

Agriculture
and food
production

Age, sex, and
constitutional
factors

7.8  Within this LTP, pollution relating to local air quality has been separated from pollution
relating to climate change. Local air quality has a direct and immediate impact on quality of
life. In the short-term, exposure to certain air pollutants can affect the respiratory system
and lungs, and causes irritation of the eyes. The inflammation of the respiratory tract causes
coughing, mucus secretion, aggravation of asthma and chronic bronchitis, and makes people
more prone to infections. Air pollution is also likely to affect health over the longer term.
Understanding of the long-term health effects of exposure to air pollution is currently rather
limited, but experts suggest that cutting long-term exposure to the fine particles found in
vehicle exhaust emissions by half, could increase life expectancy, on average, by between
one and eleven months.

7.9 Pollution caused by road transport makes up the vast majority of air quality problems
in urban areas. Whilst the city only suffers from congestion during the rush hour, excessive
pollution for even a short period can have a detrimental impact on health. The city already
has two Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) declared to DEFRA for Mutley Plain and
Exeter Street/Embankment Road. The Council is responsible for producing and implementing
action plans to manage these areas and reducing the pollution where possible.

7.10  We are now in the process of having to declare three additional AQMAs within the
City, at Royal Parade, Stoke Village and Tavistock Road, although these may be wrapped
up within one new, larger AQMA which will also cover the existing AQMAs. Work to manage
these areas will be defined within an action plan and partially delivered through the Local
Transport Plan.

7.11  Noise is increasingly recognised as a nuisance and the World Health Organisation
recognises noise in our communities, including road noise, as a serious public health problem.
The noise will cause annoyance, and in some instances stress, leading to disrupted sleep
patterns, possible heart problems and, sometimes, mental health problems. Noise can
particularly affect children where it interferes with communication and hence learning. At the
current time, there is not a good understanding of the noise levels within our city and of where



Page 164

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

we need to act to reduce noise from transport. Work, to be carried out by DEFRA in the next
two years, will enable us to better understand any problems and allow us to develop schemes
which will help to reduce the impact.

7.12  Transport interventions can significantly improve health by increasing active travel,
and by reducing noise and air pollution.

7.13  Furthermore, access to health care and other services and opportunities improve
health. This issue is dealt with in the Equality of Opportunity chapter and not duplicated here.

Why is transport an important factor affecting the health of our
communities?

7.14 In Plymouth, overall levels of health are improving, but the gap in life expectancy
between the most affluent and the most deprived neighbourhoods is still widening. There is
considerable variation in life expectancy across the city and the pattern tends to follow the
pattern of material deprivation. For example, residents of Glenholt can expect to live the
longest in Plymouth (86.1 years), whilst those in Devonport can expect to live the least (73.1
years), a 13 year difference in 2005-2007.

Cumberland Gardens 7.15 A number of factors are contributing to this widening gap,
Regeneration Scheme with most deaths being caused by heart disease, strokes and
. cancer. Obesity and mental health problems are increasing with
significant numbers of people describing themselves as long-term
! unwell and unable to work.

7.16  The scale and cost of major public health problems can be
seen in Table 7.1 below. The interrelated problems of obesity and
_ inactivity are a significant public health issue. Furthermore, these
two problems are growing year on year.

Table 7.1 Costs of health problems

Alcohol misuse| Smoking Obesity Inactivity
Percentage of adult 6 -9% 20% 24% 61-71%
population affected in
England
Estimated cost to the £89 million £23.2 million | £70.5 million | £37 million
Plymouth economy per
year
Estimated cost to the PCT|  £12 million £12 million | £18.8 million |£4.4 - 8 million
per year

717  Consultation undertaken by the Healthy Theme Group of the Plymouth 2020 partnership
indicates a number of recurring issues which have been set as key priorities for action between
2009 and 2020. These priority areas (in order) are:

1. To explicitly address inequalities in all plans through target setting, re-focusing investment
and rigorous use of equality impact assessments



Page 165

2. To shift the focus of investment to address prevention and health promotion, particularly
in specified areas

3. Mental health promotion

4. To directly address identified issues of access and take-up of specified services

5. To further develop services to promote independence.

7.18 Our lifestyles have changed dramatically over the last 20-30 years; our work is more
frequently office based than manual labour, we spend more of our leisure time watching
television or playing computer games, and we shop for food less frequently because we have
fridges and freezers. Many walking and cycling journeys have been replaced by car travel.
All of this means that we are generally less active in our daily lives than we used to be. Our
city now has fewer local shops; most of our shopping is done at supermarkets which are
generally in out of town locations, as are our DIY, furniture and electrical stores.

7.19 This change in our lifestyles has had a damaging effect on our health, leading to
concerns from the medical community that a continuation of this downward spiral will have
severe impacts on our ability have a good quality of life. The Chief Medical Officer recommends
the following minimum levels of activity:

Children and young|60 minutes of at least moderate intensity physical activity each day
people

Adults 30 minutes a day of at least moderate intensity physical activity on five
or more days of the week for general health whilst older people should
also take special care to keep moving and retain their mobility through
daily activity

7.20 The change in our lifestyles also means we are trying to fit much more into each day
and so, for some people, it is always going to be very difficult to fit in an exercise session of
30 minutes. However, the recommended levels of activity do not have to be achieved in one
session; it could be through several shorter bouts of activity of 10 minutes or more. Walking
or cycling journeys or even just climbing stairs, are an excellent means of fitting exercise into
busy routines.

"I have managed to overcome mild asthma and lose two stone by walking to and from
work. | feel much better, and my family, friends and colleagues have all remarked on
how well | look. | feel it is good for me, for the environment and for my purse!”

7.21  Most of the journeys we make are of a relatively short distance, but our perception
of distance has been distorted by travelling by car because, firstly, the route we take by car
is often not the most direct route and, secondly, we believe that in a car or on a bus we are
travelling at a much greater speed for most of the time when this is not necessarily the case,
particularly when travelling in the city.



Page 166

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

7.22  When we look at the distances that Plymouth's residents travel to work we can see
that most trips are less than 3 miles, but also most trips are by car. It is never going to be
possible to make every trip using a more active mode; our lifestyles require us to go to multiple
destinations, carry heavy shopping or take tools / work equipment with us. However, there
will be opportunities for many people to swap one or more trips every week to walking or
cycling.

Figure 7.2 Distance travelled to work by Plymouth employees
Distance Travelled to Work by Plymouth Employees (Census, 2001)

N7 O Other

B On foot

60000
M Bicycle
50000 -

[0 Taxi or minicab

B Passenger in a car or
van

B Driving a car or van

40000 -+

30000

B Motor cycle, scooter or
moped
[0 Bus, minibus, coach

Number of people

20000

O Train

10000 (S

B Underground, metro,
light rail, tram
E Work mainly at or from
0 ' ' ' ' home
Less than 5km 5 to 10km Over 10km Other

Distance travelled

7.23 In Plymouth it has been calculated that there are at least 75 million walking trips every
year. This level of walking represents 31% of all trips and is higher than the national average.
At least 83% of Plymouth residents walk at least once per week, which represents a massive
contribution to public health.

7.24 Levels of cycling in the city have been calculated at approximately 4 million cycling
trips in Plymouth per annum, which is roughly in line with the national average. Again this
represents a significant public health and economic benefit of around £3.5 million per annum.

"I enjoy having the flexibility of being able to walk or cycle to work ... mainly for fitness
but also I think it helps me unwind after a day in the office"

7.25 The Department for Transport's Active Travel Strategy sets out an ambitious approach
to increasing the amount of travel by foot and cycle.



Page 167

Table 7.2 DfT Active Travel Strategy approach to greater travel by foot and cycle

Cycling Walking

Introduce 20 mph zones and limits into Introduce 20 mph zones and limits into

more residential streets more residential streets

Access to Bikeability training for every Use the Rights of Way Improvement Plans

child who wants it to improve access for cyclists and
pedestrians.

Every major public sector employer Make the built environment more

signed up to the Cycle to Work pedestrian friendly

Guarantee

Cycle parking at or within easy reach Encouraging people of all ages to walk

of every public building

Sufficient secure bike parking at every
rail station

7.26  Two major programmes that have been carried out in several towns across the country
are the Sustainable Travel Towns Smarter Choices Programme and Cycle Demonstration
Towns initiatives. The focus of the Sustainable Travel Towns programme is on marketing
and information provision to encourage increased walking, cycling and public transport use.
The programme demonstrates, emphatically, that such measures are effective in increasing
sustainable and active travel and in reducing car use. In particular, 6% more residents reported
that they walked or cycled "almost daily".

7.27  As the title suggests, the Cycle Demonstration Towns focused on increasing levels
of cycling in towns which, like Plymouth, lacked a cycling culture. Measures included cycle
training, lower speed limits, improved infrastructure and awareness raising campaigns. On
average, the towns achieved a 26% increase in cycling over three years, which has been
associated with a 10% reduction in those classed as physically inactive. At a total cost of just
£100 per newly active resident, this represents an excellent public health investment.

7.28 The experiences of the Cycle Demonstration Towns and Sustainable Travel Towns
demonstrate the effectiveness and value for money of a range of measures to increase
walking and cycling and to reduce car use in towns that are comparable to Plymouth. In
particular, it is clear that awareness raising and marketing can play a significant role.

“I don't like driving, | would love not to do it, but there is no bus shelter near me and | get
soaking, as | do walking from where | get off the bus to walk to the workplace. | often
walk or cycle but | arrive at work looking rather dishevelled - it is a long way - and | have
no shower or locked facilities at work to store towels, spare clothes etc”.



Page 168

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

7.29 Consultation shows that there are many barriers to cycling, whether actual or perceived.
However, there is a lot of support for promoting and investing in cycling infrastructure, to
remove some of these barriers and thereby increase the number of people who cycle in
Plymouth. Conversely, recent consultations have also found people calling for a halt in
spending on cycling improvements.

7.30 Plymouth has a number of plans which support the increased uptake of walking and
cycling.

7.31  The Green Infrastructure (Gl) Delivery Plan has been produced by a partnership
consisting of Natural England, Plymouth City Council, South Hams District Council, the
Forestry Commission and the Woodland Trust and covers an area which stretches beyond
the edge of the city. Green infrastructure is a planned network of green spaces and
inter-connecting links designed, developed and managed to meet the environmental, social
and economic needs of the surrounding area. Our green spaces are an important resource
for Plymouth residents and are an opportunity for everyone to take part in physical activity
in a pleasant environment. Some of these green spaces also perform an important transport
function, with the Gl Delivery Plan set to deliver key elements of the Strategic cycle Network.

7.32  Public rights of way represent both a significant leisure and transport resource with
54% of use a means of getting somewhere.(Rights of Way Improvement Plan, Plymouth City
Council, 2010). With only half of the population and visitors actually using public rights of
way, it is clear that there are significant opportunities for increased use.

7.33 This issue is
addressed in The Public
Rights of Way
Improvement Plan
(PROWIP) which
identifies how we can
protect and develop this
vital network.

7.34  79% of all users
on the public rights of
way network primarily
walk, whilst 16% cycle.
The plan focuses on
improving awareness
amongst the half of
residents and Vvisitors
that do not use the PROW network in Plymouth; targeted infrastructure improvements to
contribute to the city's priorities; and putting the network on a more secure legal footing.

7.35 Generally, people would like to see more consideration given to pedestrians and
walking in the city, whether this is in the city centre or within neighbourhoods. Recent
consultations have requested more public rights of way around the waterfront. Issues of
access, particularly for people with a disability, have also been raised.



Page 169

7.36  Increasing healthy and sustainable journeys to school must play a significant part in
our approach. This is detailed in the Sustainable Modes of Travel Strategy which encompasses
the radical changes that have been made to the way in which education is delivered to 14
to 19 year olds in the city. Significant challenges are presented by the freedom which students
have to choose subjects at a range of institutions across the city. This is in addition to the
travel across the city that will continue to occur as a result of school specialisms and parental
choice. It is vital that we work with schools to meet this challenge to minimise the financial
and environmental costs.

Air quality

7.37 Poor air quality accounts for approximately 2 million premature deaths worldwide per
year (World Health Organisation). In the UK air pollution causes annual health costs of
around £15bn and reduces life expectancy by an average of 6 months. Table 7.3 below
shows the key pollutants, their sources and effects. We have only provided a summary of
the information, much more is available at www.airquality.co.uk.

Table 7.3 Pollutants of immediate concern in Plymouth - adapted from The Air Quality
Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland volume 1, DEFRA, 2007

Pollutant Sources Effects

Particulate |Road transport gives rise to primaryBoth short-term and long-term exposure to
Matter (PM |particles from engine emissions, [ambient levels of PM are associated with

- PM,, and [tyre and brake wear and other  [respiratory and cardiovascular illness and
PM, ;) non-exhaust emissions. mortality as well as other ill-health effects.
Oxides of [Road transport is the main source, At high levels NO, causes inflammation of the
nitrogen followed by the electricity supply [airways. Long term exposure may affect lung

(NO,) industry and other industrial and [function and respiratory symptoms. High
commercial sectors. levels of NO, can have an adverse effect on
vegetation.

7.38 The effects on health and the environment from these pollutants need to be dealt
with, either by the health service or by cleaning up the environment, both of which have a
cost. It would obviously be better to not let the problems reach a scale whereby action is
needed. A number of factors influence the levels of pollution within our city but there is
legislation which sets maximum levels of exposure to pollutants at which point a local authority
has to intervene. The exposure levels or exceedances vary according to the pollutant.
Regular monitoring takes place across the city to identify potential problems, from which
more detailed assessment is carried out. When problems are identified they are declared to
DEFRA as an Air Quality Management Area (AQMA) and an Air Quality Action Plan (AQAP)
is drawn up.

7.39  Air quality in Plymouth is generally good, however a number of factors combine to
cause exceedances of some pollutants. We have declared AQMAs in two locations within
Plymouth at the current time. These are Mutley Plain and Exeter Street/ Embankment Road.
Additionally the most recent monitoring indicates the need to declare new AQMAs at Royal
Parade, Tavistock Road and Stoke Village. We are currently considering the best approach



Page 170

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

to tackling these problems but it is likely that the AQMAs within the city centre will be combined

into one larger AQMA which will enable better management. All of the AQMAs have been

declared on the basis of Nitrogen dioxide (NO,) for which the main source is road traffic.
Figure 7.2 Existing and Potential AQMAs

I [ EXISTING AQMA |

I [POTENTIAL AQMA]

LSS - PTAVISTOGK ROAD
\Soe R R SRy

o SO
SN

MUTLEY PLAI

{_. EXETER STREET | EMBANKME

7.40 We know that pollution and noise is fast becoming a key concern within existing
communities, and is particularly referenced when plans of new development come forward.
It is cited as an existing problem that will only get worse from increased traffic once the new
developments are introduced.

“Traffic congestion, parking problems, traffic risk and resulting air pollution will increase
in adjacent neighbourhoods. The plans [Central Park Area Action Plan] should be scaled
down and delayed until improved public transport provisions are implemented.”

Noise

7.41  Our society is getting louder. Noise comes in many forms, from neighbourhood noise,
such as burglar alarms, dogs barking and licensed premises, to noise experienced in the
workplace. Transport noise is caused by the movement of the vehicles through the air, the
contact of wheels with the road, the engine, exhaust and brakes. New aircraft and road
vehicles have to comply with levels of noise emissions that have been reducing since the
1960's however there has been no significant decrease in road noise.



Page 171

7.42 The European Noise Directive requires noise maps to be produced which show the
noise levels outside of buildings. These maps are produced using computer modelling software
as the cost of monitoring noise on a large scale is prohibitively expensive. Plymouth is being
included within the second round of development of strategic noise maps by DEFRA, which
should give us an understanding of average noise conditions within the city. DEFRA have
already produced some major roads mapping that indicates a number of roads in the city
where road traffic noise is a problem (figure 7.3). Further guidance from DEFRA will enable
us to develop and implement specific action plans but consideration of identifiable road traffic
noise issues will be afforded greater consideration in this Local Transport Plan where
appropriate.

Figure 7.3 DEFRA Noise Action Planning Map for Plymouth

— | [ Noise Action Planning |
“[."| First Priotity Locations
» for Major Roads
and Major Railways
outside agglomerations

Tiles
[ Roads
I vy

First Round
Agglomaration

»

defn _6

= S o0 s SmRDaes gt 30F.
(h

_ L Or— g | oy v OGS )

Approach
Active travel

7.43 People need to be encouraged and reassured that walking or cycling is possible
for some journeys. Our approach to enabling this is to work with communities on making
the small changes needed that enable them to access facilities. For example, working with
a community to develop a network of routes focused on journeys to and from the local
shopping centre, or with a school to develop routes to and from their site. This doesn't mean
we need to put in cycle lanes everywhere, but make sure the best route is well defined and



Page 172

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

known to local people. In order to make a difference we need to work in one area, delivering
packages of measures rather than individual schemes spread across the city which don't
connect together.

7.44 By walking or cycling instead of driving you do not just reduce air pollution in the city's
environment. Travelling in your car you are exposed to much higher levels of pollution, two
to three times higher than if you walked or cycled instead.

Barriers to cycling

7.45 Wide ranges of towns and cities have demonstrated that it is possible to significantly
increase levels of cycling. Exeter, with similar "hilliness" and weather to Plymouth, was one
of the top performing cycle demonstration towns with a 40% increase in cycling over four
years. Plymouth is learning from such experience elsewhere.

7.46  Evidence from different sources, including consultation, indicates that the following
areas are all likely to be barriers:

Table 7.4 Barriers to cycling

Safety The risk of accidents is often cited as the major barrier - See Chapter
O (Safety and Security)

Lack of cycling culture [Cycling is something that is simply not considered because it is seen
as an activity for leisure or sport. Many people consider themselves
too unfit for cycling not realising that cycling at moderate speeds can
be fairly leisurely.

Secure cycle parking |Concern over theft and lack of cycle parking

Lack of facilities at Many employers no longer provide facilities for showering, changing
destination or lockers for their staff. It is unlikely that staff will want to cycle to
work without these facilities being available. The quality of facilities
is as important as their availability.

Plymouth is too hilly

Cycling is popular in many places just as hilly as Plymouth; most
cycles have a vast range of gears which make a big difference when
cycling up hills.

Too far Most trips are less than three miles; these distances are easily
travelled by cycle, and it is often the quickest means of getting door
to door.




Page 173

“l would cycle to work if it were safe to do so. Plymouth has cycle lanes that stop without
reason, then start half a mile away. It's shocking to think that so many people would
cycle if only there were basic cycle lanes available.”

“Dedicated cycle routes are a waste of money as hardly any cyclists use the current

routes.”

“Better, secure, dry and clean cycle storage facilities, lockers and showers for cyclists.
The present facilities are a disincentive for cyclists - particularly those who have to travel
a long distance, as there is nowhere to store suits, work clothes and other valuables.”

"Cycle lanes a waste of time - Plymouth too hilly, roads too narrow.”

"A cycle path is a daft idea if you live in Elburton, you'd be soaked and tired out from
cycling from town."

Barriers to walking

7.47 The changes in society and travel patterns over many years have contributed to there
being fewer local shops and services, these having been centralised, sometimes to out of
town locations. Most people would walk short distances to the local shop if they are available
but it is less likely that many of those people will decide to walk a longer distance. There are
a number of reasons for this which are summarised in Table 7.5 below.

Table 7.5 Barriers to walking

Safety

Fear of accidents or fear of crime can be major barriers to walking. The
safety and personal security aspects are covered in more detail in Chapter
O (Safety and Security).

Lack of
infrastructure

Lack of pedestrian crossings on busy roads or simply the lack of dropped
kerbs can deter people from even considering walking. Rivers or railway
lines also act as barriers with detours to reach the nearest crossing point.

Too far

Perceptions of distance have been skewed over time by our increasing
use of cars and buses. Where once we would have considered walking
two or three miles to be the norm, today this is seen as a distance that
could only be travelled by car or public transport.

Don't know the
way

Many people don't know the best way to get to places on foot. Our "mental
maps" have developed by travelling around by car or bus but it can often
be much quicker to walk somewhere within a neighbourhood if people know
the best route.




Page 174

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

“Would prefer to walk more but find the walking route (Mannamead Road/Mutley Plain)
hazardous as have to cross many busy junctions without pedestrian priority.”

"Walking is unsuitable due to the distance and/or weather”.

7.48 Asrecommended by the Department for Transports Active Travel Strategy (table 7.2),
providing safer routes in residential areas by reducing speed limits to 20mph can break down
some of these barriers and encourage greater uptake of walking and cycling.

7.49 People who are mobility impaired may be less able, or not able, to walk or cycle long
distances. This may include those who are temporarily impaired, either because they are
carrying lots of shopping or pushing a pushchair, as well as those who are permanently
impaired. We can however make small changes that will enable people who are mobility
impaired to travel the short distances that they are able to.

Air quality and noise

7.50 The best way to reduce the problems caused by noise or air quality is to reduce or
remove the vehicles that cause the problem, but it is simply not possible to do this in most
situations.

7.51 Measures which enable people to switch from using a car to walking and cycling will
also support the reduction in pollution. However this will not solve the problems. If a problem
becomes more severe, then it may be necessary to consider how the vehicles travel through
an area, how they wait or park in an area, or possibly as a last resort, which vehicles should
be allowed to travel through an area.

7.52 The increasing density of the buildings in our urban areas can exacerbate air quality
problems. Tall buildings next to main roads can cause an urban canyon effect where locally
stagnant air concentrates pollutants near ground level; this is not just a phenomenon to be
concerned about in very big cities it can happen in any city. The growth agenda that has
been set out in Chapter 5 could cause this effect to happen in Plymouth, particularly in the
city centre or Derriford areas. We will need to be careful to manage developments to avoid
this.

7.53 In terms of reducing noise, until we have a clear understanding of the impacts of
transport-related noise then it is very difficult to define an approach which will tackle this.
However, through the DEFRA Noise Action Planning process we will identify the transport
infrastructure responsible for significant noise problems and produce Action Plans to reduce
the identifiable noise impacts as appropriate, working with relevant bodies where noise from
transport infrastructure is not the responsibility of the City Council, such as the trunk road
network, railway, sea port and airport infrastructure.

7.54 Ahead of the more detailed DEFRA Noise Action Planning guidance we will ensure
low-noise road surfacing is considered for all carriageway reconstruction and maintenance
schemes but afforded greater priority for those roads identified in the DEFRA Noise Action



Page 175

Planning major transport infrastructure map (figure 7.3). New development assessed as
generating such traffic to require mitigation and that will need to use the roads identified in
figure 7.3, must contribute to reducing the cumulative noise impact.

Case Study: Managing road traffic noise

The scale of the East End Transport Scheme (EETS) Gdynia Way
made it necessary that road traffic noise levels were
assessedand considered as part of the scheme design.

Noise monitoring was undertaken at locations in the area
to determine the existing noise level and to enable a noise
model to be built. The results from this model were used
to identify the number of properties that would experience
an increase in noise level due to the scheme and the
extent of this increase.

The scheme was subsequently designed to mitigate this noise increase by lowering the
speed limit of the road from 40mph to 30mph and through the use of a low-noise road
surface.

Monitoring and review

7.55 Establishing a framework for monitoring the outcomes of the activities undertaken
through the Local Transport Plan is not only vital to understanding successes, but also to
highlight where we need to do things differently in the future. In light of the recent removal
of the National Indicator Set the Council is currently considering how best to monitor transport
and non-transport outcomes. The final version of Plymouth's Local Transport Plan 2011 -
2026 will include a completed framework.

Key References

e Active Travel Strategy, 2010, Department for Transport

e  Chief Medical Officer's Report 2009, Department of Health

e Eastern Corridor Major Scheme Walking and Cycling Strategy, 2010, Plymouth City
Council

e Health Impact Assessment - East End Transport Scheme, 2009, Plymouth Health

Development Unit

National Census 2001, Office of National Statistics

National Travel Survey 2009, Department for Transport

Plymouth's Green Infrastructure Delivery Plan, 2010, Plymouth City Council

Plymouth Points of View 11, January 2006, Plymouth City Council

Plymouth's Health, Social Care and Well-Being Strategy 2008-2020, Plymouth

Health Development Unit



Page 176

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

e  Priorities for Action on Health - Plymouth Health, Social Care and Well-Being Strategy
2008-2020, Plymouth Health Development Unit

* Rights of Way Improvement Plan, Plymouth City Council

e Road user exposure to air pollution, a literature review, 1997, Environmental
Transport Association on behalf of DETR

e  Sustainable Modes of Travel To School Strategy, Plymouth City Council

e  The Air Quality Strategy for England, Scotland, Wales and Northern Ireland Volume
1, 2007, Department of Environment, Food and Rural Affairs,

e The Effects of Smarter Choice Programmes in the Sustainable Travel Towns:
Summary Report, February 2010, Department for Transport



Page 177

8 Promoting Equality of Opportunity

Summary

8.1 Plymouth is a great place to live, but some of our city's residents can enjoy its benefits
more than others.

8.2  One of the biggest barriers to opportunity is cost. 30% of households in Plymouth do
not have a car mainly because buying and running one is simply unaffordable. Furthermore,
bus fares are a large expense for some people which means that choices may need to be
made on how the money is spent. For example, this may be a reason for not attending a
hospital appointment.

8.3 Having the knowledge about the available transport may not seem
like a barrier for many people, but for those who don't have access to
the internet or don't understand a timetable this means the difference
between getting to college and not.

8.4 Getting access to the services and facilities that most of us take
for granted can one's improve quality of life and increase confidence
and aspirations. Access to good quality healthcare, fresh food and
opportunities for leisure or exercise can increase the health of a
community, whilst the ability to get training or a new job can boost an
individual's confidence and career opportunities.

8.5 Improvements to access can come in many forms, but it is most important to work with
communities and stakeholders to deliver the solutions that make the difference. Accessibility
planning has been a key part of delivering access improvements for five years and this
partnership approach has achieved significant results.

8.6 In planning for the future, we need to ensure that neighbourhoods are planned, so that
the access to services is improved, whether that be through bringing new services into
neighbourhoods or providing new, more efficient access to existing services.

8.7 Buses, taxis, cycle routes and pedestrian routes are vital resources for communities
where access to essential services is not possible without travelling. In many instances, the
existing transport networks do not fulfil the needs of the communities they should serve.

8.8 This chapter looks at solutions which will enable more people to take advantage of the
opportunities that the city offers. It will focus on accessing healthcare, education and training,
employment and leisure, as well as improving connections by public transport and making
more innovative use of transport options.

Why is transport an important factor in increasing equality?

8.9 Plymouth is set in an outstanding location. It is close to Dartmoor, adjacent to the sea
and has wonderful river estuaries. The city is large enough to have a wide range of shops
and services provided within its boundaries. Education at all levels is available in the city.



Page 178

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Job options are becoming increasingly varied in the city, with advanced technology becoming
a growing segment. Plymouth is also lucky not to experience some of the problems of other
major cities, such as severe congestion or very high unemployment.

8.10 However, some of our residents are not able to benefit from the wealth of jobs,
shopping, leisure, education and healthcare facilities that are available because they cannot
get access to them. This is bad news for their wealth, health and quality of life.

8.11 Itis easy to assume that everyone has the same option which is available to most of
us; to just jump in the car. The reasons for the lack of access are complex. In Table 8.1
(below) we show some of the reasons we have found for people having difficulty accessing
the services that fulfil even their basic needs.

Table 8.1 Barriers to access

Barrier to access Reason(s)

Do not own or have accesstoacar | Can't afford to buy and run a car
e Unable to drive (too old, too young, not
physically able, can't afford lessons)

Can't take the bus e Bus doesn't go to the right places

e Can't afford the fare

e Don't have information about the bus (times,
destination, cost etc)

e Don't know how to use the bus

e  Bus doesn't run at the right time

Service / facility not open when e  Opening times are the same as the times people

people are able to access it are at work or unable to get childcare

e |If they open outside of normal working hours
there may not be a bus

Limited travel horizons e  Unwilling to travel outside of neighbourhood -
long journey times or distances a problem
e Do not trust transport services.

Too far

Disabled

Too much to carry
Fear of crime

Can't walk

Can't cycle No facilities to lock up cycle
No changing facilities
Too hilly

Too much to carry




Page 179

8.12 Looking at the data available, it is clear to see that the neighbourhoods in the city
where car ownership is at its lowest are the same communities that are affected by poor
health, higher unemployment and lower educational attainment.

8.13 Inour city about a third of households don't have a car and, in some areas, this is as
high as two thirds of households. (See Figure 8.1).

Figure 8.1 Map of car ownership levels in Plymouth

ey e

EZ] No car access by COA
Proportion of households
[ ]o.00to0.16
[Jo16t00.31
[ 031t0047
I 047 t0 0.62
Il 062t00.78

(o]
v,
)
o
3
o
=z
-]
(@]
m
QO
C
)
—
<
o
o
O
©
o
o
—
C
=
~
<

Health

8.14 When we also look at the proportion of people in each area of the city who consider
themselves not to be in good health (see Figure 8.2), the pattern is very similar to that of
lower car ownership.



Page 180

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Figure 8.2 Map of Plymouth showing the proportions of people not in good health

[ Not in Good Health by COA
Proportion of people
l:l 0.02t0 0.08
[ ]o08t00.15
[ 0.15t00.22
02210029
- 0.29t0 0.36

8.15 There are many factors which affect people's health. Access to health care is one
factor, but also being able to access fresh food, taking regular exercise, drinking too much
alcohol or smoking cigarettes all make a contribution. In terms of transport, there are many
factors that cannot be changed, so here we focus on the ones where improved access can
make a positive contribution, namely access to health care and to fresh food. In Chapter 7
(A Healthy Community) we have demonstrated the positive impact that transport can have
on health by enabling increases in exercise levels - this is not duplicated in this chapter.

8.16 A major concern of health care professionals in the city is the number of missed
hospital appointments. In general, people have a doctors surgery in their neighbourhood,
which is relatively easy to access. However, people can find referrals for treatment or tests
at the hospital much more difficult to get to. Table 8.2 (below) shows the level of missed
hospital appointments and car ownership in different areas of the city compared with the
citywide averages. The correlation between car ownership and missed appointments is
noticeable.



Page 181

Table 8.2 Car availability and key health and social statistics in the most and least
deprived neighbourhoods

% of households with no | % of hospital appointments
car missed
Most deprived 58.0 19.2
neighbourhood
Wealthiest neighbourhood 9.6 7.7
Citywide average 30.0 10.1*

8.17 Changes to the healthcare systems in coming years will present new challenges.

8.18 Obviously one of the biggest factors for improving our health is healthy eating and
making sure we eat fresh fruit and vegetables. Many of the main supermarkets in the city
are not in the most accessible locations, even during peak travel hours when bus routes are
at their optimum. The main market, being located in the city centre, has good accessibility
for most areas of the city by bus, but the opening hours are restricted. This makes access
to fresh food difficult for those without a car, particularly if they work a daytime shift.
Additionally, carrying large quantities of shopping on the bus, particularly if there is a need
to change buses to get home, can be difficult (or impossible) for some.

8.19 If access to supermarkets is limited to those without a car, then the likelihood is that
they will rely on local shops, which can be expensive and only carry a limited range of fresh
food. The recent development of small supermarkets in some areas is helping the supply of
fresh food, but there are still a number of communities who have very limited access to a
supermarket.

8.20 Recent consultation generated a number of comments about the health of the city,
the main one being about access to health facilities, particularly public transport services to
and from Derriford Hospital. Generally it was felt that there were plenty of buses servicing
the hospital from the city centre, but a shortage of frequent and direct buses from other areas
of Plymouth.

Work

Comparing the car ownership map of Figure 8.1 with the employment map below, Figure
8.3, shows that there is also a correlation between employment and car ownership. One of
the factors that is considered when starting a new job is whether it is possible to get to work,
on time, every day. If you don't have access to a car, then you are reliant on public transport,
walking or cycling. Half of all work trips are three miles or less in length, which isn't a great
distance, but the design of the bus network and the location of employment sites mean that
it could take considerable time, and more than one bus, to get to work. This distance can be
cycled, but only if the facilities exist at the destination to store a cycle and the individual is
equipped to make the journey.



oo
0
=
o
=
o
=
=
Q
m
o)
c
Qo
g
o
S,
©)
ke]
°
o
3
c
3.
=
<

Page 182

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Figure 8.3 IMD Employment

I: EZ] IMD 2007 Employment
IMD2007
[ ]0.04t00.09
[ ]o.09t00.14
[]o.14t00.19
[ 0.19t0 0.24

[ 024 t00.29
02910034
Il 03410 0.39

8.21 Getting to work by bus can be problematic for those who work shifts or nights; bus
timetables generally schedule most services to fit well with a nine-to-five working day and it
can be difficult to travel to work during other times.

8.22 The cost of public transport can also be prohibitively expensive; the cost of a weekly
ticket can be a substantial proportion of the income of a person on a low wage.

8.23 There was a significant amount of consultation information found about access to
employment. The comments were mainly in relation to poor public transport services or
connections; buses not going to where people need to go and at the time they need to travel.

Education and training

8.24 Enabling easier access to education and training will allow people to aspire to improve
their career prospects and quality of life.



Page 183

8.25 Plymouth has a wealth of opportunities available for education or training. The city is
well served by institutions, catering for every ability across a vast range of subject areas.
These places of learning are located across the city. Whilst the University of Plymouth and
Plymouth College of Art and Design are both within the city centre, and therefore relatively
easy to access, many other facilities are located within neighbourhoods and are much more
difficult to get to. The courses provided by these places of education are attractive to many
people and not necessarily those who live within walking or cycling distance. The catchments
can stretch beyond the Plymouth sub-region with people commuting long distances on a
regular basis.

8.26  The cost and availability of transport can be key factors in the decision to take a
course. It is vital, therefore, that opportunities are not unduly restricted by transport.

8.27 The consultation information supports this, with many people saying that public
transport is too expensive, and not really an affordable option, when both parents and children
are using it on a daily basis.

8.28 Improved walking and cycling links, with better signposting, were also requested for
routes to school, particularly between local communities and also between the University
and city centre. With these issues being expressed by the community, it is vital that transport
more actively promotes opportunities for learning.

Buses

8.29 Plymouth has good bus provision in many areas during the weekday daytime, but
provision in the evenings and weekends is worsening. Many services dramatically reduce in
frequency after 7pm and on Sundays. For those without another way to travel this can
severely restrict travel options and act as a barrier to many opportunities, such as social or
leisure activities which may only be available during these times.

8.30 Aswe have experienced in consultations, public transport in Plymouth has historically
received a lot of negative comments. However, recent surveys by the independent body,
Passenger Focus, have indicated that passengers are generally satisfied with the service
provided in the city and so this highlights an area where more innovative solutions to marketing
and promotion need to take place. Figure 8.4 (below) illustrates some findings from these
recent surveys.



Page 184

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Figure 8.4 Bus satisfaction factors

Satisfaction and Impact

Satisfaction with individual factors and their impact on overall journey satisfaction

Plymouth City Council area

More | priorities for improvement ® Joumey time
Informat
Gutsite
Roomfor  Suiice
averyone 1o of bus
sit / stand
e Comfort of seats :
:: Sinlce am:y. ® ° P alty st @ Appropriataness of speed
& E stop. Personal ggﬂ'ﬂa T*}E"‘*ﬂ‘ t stop
| u om rmation a8
E @ Valueitormonsy mLang(; :{51;1; L gﬁcgu";‘f accidents L4
Smoolh_ngss @ -""‘. .Gemng @D
@ Litter 3t stop of the ride ® aceat E:zie of
Cleaniines Driver e
® Information Inside bus » I:@E:m‘“'e nu%:lenof ts:‘us appearance on/lo
Cleanliness at stoy " -
Personaf ssiety aﬁi!op Rg“e Helpfulness / attitude of driver
Cleanliness map
inside bus provided
at stop
Less @Real time at stop
Lower Satisfaction Higher
.0
. Cintinenta
l‘-‘_-'_.-'.!':I'I_:;';a':!‘l‘OCUS W0 Bud Pagsenges Sutvey Flymou l‘; Inen |1?

8.31 Feedback shows that, for those who do use it, the bus network serves their needs
reasonably efficiently and effectively but when feedback comes from non-bus users the
satisfaction levels decrease. There can be a number of reasons for this It may be that the
perception of non-users does not match the reality of service because they have not tried
the service, or they are unable to use the bus network because it does not go to the place
they want to go to, at the time they want to go there.

8.32 This evidence provides a number of opportunities for improvements that can improve
access to a wide range of services, as well as social and leisure opportunities.

Approach

8.33 The main objective that supports reductions in inequalities is:

Objective One

Link communities together



Page 185

e Improve access to community amenities, leisure opportunities and our high quality
natural environment by increasing the availability of attractive walking, cycling and
bus routes and enabling the right mix of land use.

e Enable easy access to growth and regeneration areas by walking, cycling and public
transport.

* Improve the design of residential streets to reduce the fear of crime and antisocial
behaviour as well as the dominance of the car.

8.34 This is supported by the following other local transport objectives, as follows:

Other local transport objective | Examples of support for Equality of Opportunity
agenda

2. Reduce the negative impacts of | By ensuring footways and cycleways are well designed

transport and maintained to enable access to local facilities.

4. Make walking, cycling and Improving the uptake of those modes will better enable
public transport the desirable people to make a choice about how they travel and
choice. provide more opportunities to get to key locations.

6. Use transport to drive the local | Enabling economic growth will benefit all residents of
economy the city but it will allow improvements in connections
to key locations to be made.

Accessibility Action Plans

8.35 Partnership is at the heart of the approach to tackling
barriers to services and facilities. In essence, a logical, evidence
based approach to understanding problems and identifying
. solutions is the best way to achieve results. For the duration of
Sl Plymouth's second Local Transport Plan we have been

st

Accesibaty Stratagy 1 70102043 developing and implementing accessibility action plans.

mymeat mosda, (77T

8.36 These are plans which, depending on their nature, are
developed in partnership with communities, community groups,
service providers and other stakeholders. The process of
(1-) developing an accessibility action plan includes the collation of
an evidence base that clearly defines the key problems which
will be tackled by the plan. The partners then seek solutions that
are deliverable within the allocated budgets. The solutions are likely be a range of ideas to
be delivered by different partners.




Page 186

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

8.37 The plans can be developed from a number of different perspectives. We have
developed many different partnerships which have come together to develop and deliver the
plans and then disbanded when work is complete. These partnerships have taken either the
approach of delivering for a particular neighbourhood of the city or improving access to a
particular service. The plans consist of:

e Well-planned packages of measures to enable more people to walk, cycle or catch the
bus, to get to the services they need.
e Bringing the services to those who need them.

8.38 Fundamentally, the partnership approach allows the work to be focused on people
and on solving their problems. In developing ideas to improve equality of opportunity across
the city, we need to take a more creative approach that allows for more sophisticated use of
all the options available. There are under-used resources available, such as taxis or
not-for-profit car clubs, such as the Moorcar scheme, which have been successful in other
places

Public transport

8.39 Enabling use of the bus network is an essential part of developing Accessibility Action
Plans. Not understanding public transport can be a major barrier to access, as can not being
able to afford it, and so it is vital that we include activities within the implementation plan for
the LTP that better enable bus use for those groups who otherwise find it difficult. We need
to get the fundamentals right. We need to provide good quality information about how to use
buses, such as when and where they run and how much they cost. We need to work with
the bus operators, to make sure the bus routes adapt to the changing nature of the city as it
grows, so that all communities are able to take advantage of the new opportunities as they
become available. The operation of the bus network is largely out of the control of the Council,
but we have a strong working relationship with the operators which allows us to work together
to deliver solutions.

8.40 The Local Transport Act (2008) included a number of provisions designed to enable
more effective partnership working between local authorities and bus operators to improve
quality and punctuality of services provided. These provisions include voluntary agreements,
voluntary partnership agreements and Quality Contract Schemes.

8.41 A priority for this LTP will be the creation of a Voluntary Bus Partnership (VBP) to
offer a framework for future improvements to the bus network. This will be an overarching
voluntary agreement to start with, leading to specific voluntary partnership agreements for
individual routes or corridors. Under the terms of the VBP, we will undertake to provide
particular facilities or commit to bringing benefits to local bus passengers in the area, while
local bus operators will undertake to provide services of a particular standard. We are already
committed to entering into a Bus Punctuality Improvement Partnership (BPIP) with all the
local bus operators in Plymouth.

8.42 Both the Council and bus operators agree on the overriding need for reliability and
good timekeeping in delivering a quality public transport service to the people of the city. The
evidence shows that parts of the network suffer from congestion, giving rise to difficulties in



Page 187

delivering service reliability. Both the Council and the bus operators also believe that improved
punctuality is best achieved through closer joint working through a BPIP. By signing up to
such an agreement, we are committing ourselves to work together to deliver bus punctuality.

8.43 The Council has an important role to play in helping to provide information about the
bus network and promoting its use from our unique position in a competitive market. The
range of ways of accessing information has dramatically changed in recent years. The
traditional approach of producing a paper timetable is still valid and the best format for some
people, but other forms of media are preferred by different groups and it is vital that everyone
is able to access the information when, where and how they prefer it. This includes ensuring
that information provided at bus stops can be used by people who are visually impaired.

8.44 Physical access to public transport can Bus stop at Oreston Road
be a significant barrier, but the provision of
simple infrastructure can make dramatic
improvements. Ensuring that bus stops are
suitable for all users and that routes to bus
stops are similarly accessible is a fundamental
part of increasing equality. The vehicles
themselves will need to be completely
compliant with the Disabilities Discrimination
Act, by 2016 for single deckers and by 2017
for double deckers.

8.45 As we have already stated, the cost of
transport can be a massive barrier to people
on low incomes. In most instances the Council
does not control the cost. However, the efficiency of the network, which the buses run on,
impacts on the cost of running the buses and patronage, and therefore the price to use the
service.

8.46 It is essential that steps are taken to equalise the cost of transport to reduce
inequalities. We currently subsidise travel on a number of bus services to ensure that they
keep providing the vital links for communities. However, this is not a long term solution to
providing transport that meets the needs of our residents.

8.47 We also provide concessionary fares for certain user groups, such as older people
or those with disabilities. We will endeavour to maintain this offer because we know it improves
the quality of life of many of the people who are eligible.

8.48 Ensuring buses are reliable and have optimum journey times enables bus operators
to keep their prices as low as possible. Providing bus priority measures at times and locations
where buses are delayed by general traffic will enable operators to make more efficient use
of their staff and vehicles, as well as reducing the quantity of fuel they use, and this should
reduce operating costs.



Page 188

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Community transport

8.49 The integration between the different community transport services needs to be
improved to develop services in the short, medium and long term, that meets the needs of
the users.

8.50 Enabling Plymouth Shopmobility and Community Transport (PSCT) to become more
self sufficient will enable it to promote greater use of services and better meet the needs of
users. PSCT will consider how best to do this but it could include charging for services, a
robust marketing programme, increasing the volunteer pool, improving the IT system and
working with the stakeholder group to continuously improve the service provided. In the
longer term PSCT may consider merging all available services into a single ‘demand
responsive’ service, carrying more people to more places.

Walking and cycling

8.51 Walking and cycling are cheap, flexible forms of transport which can be used by many
people. Many of the measures that will improve accessibility have been included within
Chapters 6 and 7 and are therefore not repeated here. However, it is essential that we equip
people with the skills and the confidence to use a cycle. Therefore providing proper training
for those who would benefit from it is an important part of our approach.

Land use planning

8.52 A fundamental aspiration of our land use planning policy is to develop sustainable
linked communities. The specifics are set out in the Core Strategy to the Local Development
Framework (LDF) and a number of Area Action Plans (AAPs) which provide more detail on
the main growth areas. The Core Strategy and each AAP have been put together with this
fundamental aspiration in mind and are supported by detailed transport planning work, much
of which also forms the evidence base to this LTP. Also in development is the Sustainable
Neighbourhoods Development Plan Document which is part of the suite of LDF Documents.
It will set out the approach for development in the areas of the city that are not covered by
AAPs and will indicate local transport improvements which contribute towards delivering the
aspiration for sustainable linked communities. This process will ensure the balance of services
within each neighbourhood and enable improvements to transport infrastructure and services.

Monitoring and review

8.53 Establishing a framework for monitoring the outcomes of the activities undertaken
through the Local Transport Plan is not only vital to understanding successes but also where
we need to do things differently in the future. In light of the recent removal of the National
Indicator Set the Council is currently considering how best to monitor transport and
non-transport outcomes. Plymouth's final Local Transport Plan 2011 - 2026 will include a
completed framework.



Page 189

Key References

2009 Benchmarking Indicators

Plymouth Health and Well-Being Survey 2000, Ipsos MORI

PT Accessibility and Hospital Missed Appointments for Derriford Hospital, 2007,
Steer Davies Gleave

Range of guidance material at http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/inclusion/

Social Exclusion and the Provision of Public Transport,DfT

Safe from Bullying on Journeys, 2009, Department for Children, Schools and
Families,

Transport guidance, Supporting Access To Positive Activities,2009, Department For
Children, Schools And Families, The National Youth Agency, Department for
Transport,

http://www.statistics.gov.uk/cci/nugget.asp?id=64




Page 190

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

9 Contributing to better Safety and Security

Introduction

9.1 Inits most recent Comprehensive Area Assessment, the Audit Commission awarded
Plymouth a Green Flag for its exceptional performance in protecting local people. The Green
Flag, indicating exceptional performance and innovation that other public services could learn
from, was awarded for the way in which partners in Plymouth plan ahead to protect people
in the city during large scale emergencies. It also noted that: “The Council, Police, Primary
Care Trust, Fire and Rescue Service and other public services, voluntary groups and
businesses work extremely well together to plan ahead and respond to emergencies to keep
the city safe.”

9.2 Plymouth is a safe place for most people. Devon and
Cornwall Constabulary statistics show that most types of crime
and road traffic accidents in the city are falling. Despite the
continual decline in crime, public confidence in the Police and
Council in dealing with crime that matters in this area has fallen
significantly, from 53.2% in September 2008 to 47.1% in December
2009 (British Crime Survey).

9.3 Working with our partners, we have made excellent progress
in reducing road related injuries. In 2009 the number of people
killed or seriously injured (KSI) on Plymouth roads had dropped
by 68% (45 KSIs) from the baseline average of 1994-98, putting
the Council ahead of meeting the target of a 60% reduction by
2010/11.

9.4 Changes to the highway, road safety education and local enforcement have each
contributed to the reduction in road casualties achieved to date in Plymouth. However, nearly
900 people are injured on Plymouth's roads each year, clearly showing that there remains
a great deal to do to improve road safety further.

9.5 Through studying the occurrence of collisions, taking preventative measures, reducing
the possibility of casualties on new roads (i.e. collision investigation, prevention and safety
audit) and by promoting of ways of travelling that are beneficial to people's health, we will
help to reduce the risk of death, injury or ilinesses arising from transport.

9.6 As well as setting out how Plymouth intends to deal with security and safety issues,
this chapter also sets out the Council's Local Road Safety Strategy demonstrating our
commitment to achieving the duties set out in the Road Traffic Act 1988.



Page 191

Safety and security in Plymouth
Responding to major incidents and terrorism

9.7 The Council has taken significant steps to protect the city, its population, environment
and local economy against major emergencies. Major emergencies are defined within the
Civil Contingencies Act 2004 as those that threaten serious damage to human welfare,
including disruption to facilities for transport.

9.8 The Act sets out the framework for civil protection on a local level in the UK. Duties
include the requirement to assess the risk of an emergency occurring, and to review and
maintain emergency response plans.

9.9 Recent events have led to a number of potential major emergencies being brought to
the public’s attention and the production of a number of risk assessments and emergency
action plans for Plymouth. Most recently, the threat of bird flu, swine flu and pandemic flu
has been widely publicised, as has the collapse of Northside Bridge, Cumbria, during flooding.
In addition, recent terrorist threats and attacks have taken place in Bristol and Exeter.

9.10 The threat to the UK from International Terrorism is currently rated as severe, meaning
that an attack is highly likely. The threat to mainland UK from Irish-related terrorism is currently
rated as moderate, meaning that an attack is possible, but not likely. There is no intelligence
or information to suggest that Plymouth is a specific target at this time.

9.11 As described in the Government strategy, 'Prevent’, exposure to extreme right wing
views can fuel terrorist activity; activists target those in a community who are most vulnerable
to persuasion to carry out terrorist activity. Plymouth benefits, on the whole, from encouraging
levels of community cohesion, recognised with a Government Office for the South West
community tension rating of low.

Road safety

9.12 The Road Traffic Act 1988 placed a duty on local highway
authorities to prepare and carry out a programme of measuresdesigned
| to promote road safety. This includes studying the occurrence of
| collisions, taking preventative measures and reducing the possibility of
casualties on new roads (i.e. collision investigation, prevention and safety
audit).

9.13 Public satisfaction surveys show that the city's residents are
satisfied with our approach to road safety with 60% of respondents
satisfied, ranking Plymouth City Council fourth out of the 15 south west
authorities (National Highways Best Value Benchmarking Club Survey
2009). However, Plymouth's residents remain very concerned about
anti-social behaviour, namely inappropriate parking, speeding traffic




Page 192

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

(anti-social driving), and rubbish and litter (Police public survey 2007/08). The Place Survey
from 2008/09 also cited anti-social behaviour, the level of crime and street cleanliness as
key priorities for addressing by people in Plymouth.

Crime whilst out and about

9.14  The British Crime Survey 2004/05-2007/08 notes that all recorded crime in Plymouth
fell by nearly 8%. Crime types such as violent crime, vehicle crime and burglary have all
decreased in this period and the risk of being a victim of crime is lower than at any time since
the survey began in 1981. Despite the encouraging fall in levels of crime, fear of crime remains
high.

9.15 People living in deprived areas tend to experience more crime, perceive more crime
and anti-social behaviour, and have lower confidence in local criminal justice (Plymouth
Community Safety Partnership Strategic Assessment Crime and Disorder 2009/10).

9.16  According to the Quality of Life Survey 2006, two thirds of Plymouth's residents feel
unsafe outside after dark, with people under 35 and people over 75 more likely to experience
this feeling. These age groups are also most concerned about being victims of burglary, car
crime and mugging. Women were more concerned about safety after dark than men. Residents
of North Prospect and Barne Barton expressed the highest concerns about being a victim of
street crime while Barne Barton residents also concerned about criminal damage and car
crime.

What does this mean for transport?

Road safety and crime

9.17 The fear of being injured in a traffic-related collision is a real concern for residents
and the perceived danger acts as a barrier to travel for many, often deterring people from
choosing to walk or cycle. Fear for safety is particularly prevalent when choosing how to
travel to school, for example. Parents who drive to school often cite safety as the main reason
for choosing to drive their child every day rather than walk or cycle. However, Plymouth
school travel plan surveys clearly demonstrate that the majority of children would much prefer
to walk or cycle.

“Make it safe to cycle -would love to cycle to work but am not stupid enough to risk it!”

“If | felt | could cycle in safely | would. However the roads do not particularly lend
themselves to cycling, especially in winter’.

9.18 For a number of years the police have been running the Police And Communities
Together (PACT) initiative. PACT is aimed at giving local residents a voice in how their local
neighbourhood and community are managed. On an annual basis the police consult local
residents about what the top priorities for their neighbourhoods should be over the following



Page 193

months. Most neighbourhood surveys cited anti-social vehicle use as their top priority, including
parking, speeding, criminal damage to vehicles and the need for more enforcement of vehicle
related anti-social behaviour.

"Better enforcement to prevent parking on pavements."

9.19 The Council manages a large number of complaints about parking and serves in
excess of 35,000 parking enforcement notices every year. This is one way to manage the
situation, but this is not the ideal solution. Improving the neighbourhoods that we live in is a
responsibility we all have to play a part in. Residents and businesses have a social
responsibility for appropriate parking and driver behaviour. The standards to which our roads
have been designed in the past have been on the basis of getting cars to move along them
as quickly and efficiently as possible, but this is not really necessary in a residential area and
can lead to the road becoming a barrier for people who live in that area. Greater car ownership
has increased the number of cars parked on our streets and many streets are now
overcrowded, with cars lining either side. An additional pressure is the change in working
practices with an increasing number of works vehicles being taken home overnight, allowing
businesses to be more flexible about their work, but putting spaces in residential areas at a
premium.

“Oreston streets are choked with vehicles parked on the road and it anything, the waste
ground areas could be used to provide residents with off road parking. Many families
have two cars these days and no allocated parking; these tiny fishing village streets can't
accommodate them”.

9.20 Itis the responsibility of car and van drivers to park their vehicles in a way that does
not adversely impact others. Parking on pavements or blocking dropped kerbs, so that
pedestrians have difficulty passing, is anti-social. Parking in bus stops or close to junctions
can restrict the bus movement through a neighbourhood. Many of our homes and streets
were built when levels of car ownership were much lower and are not wide enough or do not
have off-street parking to accommodate the demands of 2010. In many instances it will not
be possible to retrofit parking to these areas.



Page 194

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

9.21 To try and ensure the scenario that
has been described above doesn't happen
within our new developments, we have put
in place policies for parking in residential
areas which increase the number of spaces
to be provided for new houses and have
adopted the Manual for Streets (MfS) as a
guide for designing these areas. The MfS
sets in place principles to be used when
designing streets with the aim of reducing
the dominance of the car and making our
streets more friendly and welcoming to use.
These principles make our residential
streets a different type of space to our high
streets or main roads and reinforce that they
should not be used in the same way.

9.22 Annually, criminal damage in
Plymouth is estimated to cost £7m
(Plymouth Community Safety Partnership,
Partnership Plan 2008-2011), the most
prevalent being vehicle damage and, more
recently, emerging acquisitive crime such
as theft of vehicles, theft from vehicles, theft
of fuel and theft of metal (such as drain
covers), and damage to bus shelters. Criminal damage is strongly linked to young people,
anti-social behaviour and substance misuse. Vehicle crime accounts for 14% of all crime in
the city (Plymouth Community Safety Partnership, Partnership Plan 2008-2011).

9.23 Anecdotal evidence from the Police suggests that those who are likely to flout general
motoring laws are also those who are most inclined to knowingly commit other offences,
such as driving without insurance, road tax or a valid MOT certificate.

9.24 The last two road safety strategies, contained in LTP1 and LTP2, have been very
successful. Targets were achieved and in some instances exceeded, cutting deaths and
serious injuries on the roads by 68% to the end of 2009. It is apparent that some measures
underpinning the success have been particularly effective.

9.25 Road safety engineering projects and speed management initiatives have played a
significant role in reducing casualties:

"Research shows a strong link between speed and road casualties. Reducing the average
speed of traffic by 1 mph leads to an expected reduction of 5 per cent in the number of
collisions on that road, while reducing the speed of the fastest drivers has the largest effect
on collisions.




Page 195

There is a well understood relationship between the speed of a crash and the impact — and
therefore the likely severity of any injuries."

"Breaking the speed limit is recorded as a factor in 14 per cent of fatalities (and may be
responsible for many more)."

Source: Making Britain's Roads Safer, DfT.

9.26 Enforcement measures have been key in reducing the number of traffic related
offences, with programmes of driver and rider education helping to reduce the numbers of
motorcyclist and new and inexperienced driver/rider injuries.

9.27 Every injury has a physical, emotional, social and financial cost to the victim, family,
community and the country as a whole. One slight injury costs, on average, over £12,000,
a serious injury costs over £160,000 and a fatal injury costs over £1.4million. During 2009
the reduction in casualties on Plymouth's roads, as a result of various interventions, has
saved the UK economy over £23m.

Table 9.1 Saving to UK economy from the reduction in casualties in Plymouth

1994/98 2009 | Reduction in Cost per Savings
baseline | casualties casualties casualty
average
All fatalities 8 4 4| £1,400,000| £5,600,000
All serious 131 40 91 £160,000 | £14,560,000
injuries
All slight 1098 840 258 £12,000| £3,096,000
injuries

9.28 Whilst the most recent casualty data is encouraging, it is clear that in some areas
there is opportunity for further accident reductions.

9.29 A study of the causes of collisions in the city revealed that the majority of injuries
came about as a consequence of user error, with car drivers and passengers aged 17 to 24
years being the most commonly injured. Accidents are most likely to happen during evening
traffic, with a high number occurring on Fridays.

9.30 The national picture is that speed is the biggest contributory factor in fatal road
casualties and that inappropriate speed increases the severity of injury. In addition, the police
are still recording a high proportion of drivers and riders who continue to flout laws about
mobile phone use, seat belt use and driving whilst under the influence of alcohol and drugs.

9.31 Road user education, particularly for those aged 17-24, is needed, alongside
engineering and enforcement.



Page 196

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Cycling and walking

9.32 Cyclists remain a concern for our area. Whereas cyclists represent only 3% of road
users, they make up, based on 2009 casualty figures, 6% of casualties. Likewise child
pedestrians are a continuing concern.

9.33 As discussed within Chapter 7 (A Healthy Community), we now have an adopted
Strategic Cycle Network. We have been working towards, and will continue to work towards,
providing a safe cycle network that meets the needs of all cyclists, whether provision be on-
or off-road priority measures.

9.34 The Plymouth Children and Young People's Plan 2008-11 recognises that more needs
to be done to improve the safety of children. It sets a priority for partners across the city to
reduce children and young people’s accidents and injuries. Road casualty statistics for the
city reinforce this view as the number of children and young people injured in road traffic
accidents, particularly as pedestrians, remains comparatively high compared with the rest
of the population.

9.35 Whatever the mode, the vast majority of journeys at least start and end on foot, so it
is unsurprising that a large percentage of the injuries in Plymouth involve pedestrians.
Encouragingly the number of pedestrians that are killed or seriously injured (KSI) is declining.
However a high number of slight pedestrian injuries continue to occur, the majority involving
people aged 17 to 24 years.

9.36  Whilst Plymouth's pedestrian network is
comprehensive, it is currently poorly signed and
a few gaps still remain. In addition, further
upgrades, such as introducing dropped kerbs,
are needed to remove potential barriers. There
are also a large number of undeclared rights of
way across the city and a lack of awareness of
the existence of public rights of way will inhibit
some journeys that could be undertaken on foot.
Furthermore, those who do not walk regularly are less able to judge how long a journey would
really take on foot.

9.37 Large traffic junctions act as barriers to pedestrian movement and quite often people
on foot will choose to take a short cut to avoid such diversions caused by traffic junctions,
sometimes putting themselves in danger from traffic.

"Where there are bus stops there should be safe places for pedestrians to cross.”

Approach

9.38 By addressing concerns about safety and security the Council is directly supporting
Plymouth’s transport vision and delivering the needs of our communities.



Page 197

9.39 We can begin to breakdown the barriers to travelling more sustainably within Plymouth
whilst having the knock on effect of improving the health of Plymouth residents by tackling
transport related safety and security concerns.

9.40 “Our roads are vital in providing us with access to work and leisure as well as to the
goods and services we want and need. They are essential to our economy and our
communities. But we must balance the need for efficient mobility with the obligation to maintain
public safety.” A Safer Way, Department for Transport, April 2009.

9.41 We are developing, and will continue to develop during LTP3, a Network Management
Plan (NMP) and a Transport Asset Management Plan (TAMP) to put in place processes for
managing the network in different situations.

9.42 We will ensure that the design and materials used in transport infrastructure are
selected to reduce the severity of injury from collisions and attacks. For example, the bus
shelters in Plymouth are fitted with High Impact Safety Glass (BS6206), deliberately designed
to crumble into small square pieces and thereby eliminate the risk of injury that could be
caused by glass shards.

Case study - bus stop infrastructure

During LTP2 the Council invested in upgrading bus stop infrastructure across the city.
Particular attention was paid to the security and safety benefits of the chosen infrastructure
so that the safety and security of the public were not compromised.

The glass in all shelters is a safety glass manufactured to British standards so that when
damaged it shatters into small pieces, rather than shards of glass.

Glass panels were chosen for the back and sides of shelters to
provide protection from the elements but also to allow waiting
passengers to be visible from all directions, and with the addition
e, Of solar or mains powered lighting, visible at night too, reducing
sw=s== the perceived risk of being a victim of crime.

The new bus stop flags provide an SMS code that you can text in
order to receive real time information about when the next bus is
_— due, eliminating any uncertainties. This is also supplemented by
= 4 printed timetable information.

9.43 In the event of a major emergency, Plymouth’s transport network would play a vital
role during and after the event. During an event the transport network will enable access to
affected areas by the emergency services and utility providers, however parts of the network
could also be affected by long periods of closure or damage. Public transport providers have
been aided by the Council in the production of business continuity plans and emergency
transport agreements have been negotiated to deal with such issues.



Page 198

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

9.44 In the case of potentially environmentally damaging collisions, such as an oil tanker
spillage, emergency planning procedures would need to be followed, as outlined in the
Network Management Plan, to ensure that pollutants do not enter our water system. The role
of the Surface Water Action Management Plan (SWAMP) is shown in chapter 6 - Tackling
Climate Change.

9.45 After an incident occurs the first
response of those involved is to make
contact with family and to try to get
home. Evidence suggests that the
sooner people get back home the faster
their recovery from the event and the
quicker things can return to normal.
However as a result of an occurrence
people are unlikely to have personal
belongings on them such as money,
mobile phones and keys to enable them
to make contact with family or to pay the
fare to return home. This is where the
emergency transport agreements come
into effect.

9.46  Our main objectives with regard to road safety will continue to be casualty reduction
and the reduction of injuries, particularly death and serious injuries. They will be continually
monitored utilising the targets set out in the DfT publication ‘A Safer Way’, thereby informing
delivery of road safety engineering, enforcement and encouragement interventions. To further
reduce road casualties, road safety will be integrated with other objectives, such as the
Sustainable Communities Strategy.

9.47 We will strive to achieve "buy in" of key partners and delivery agents, such as the
Local Strategic Partnership, to help deliver the transport vision for Plymouth. Whilst the
Council owns the transport vision, we recognise that the vision covers much wider issues
than transport alone; we acknowledge that we have a duty to coordinate and lead the efforts
of the emergency services, other public agencies and the private and voluntary sectors to
enable the most to be made of the resources available to further improve and safeguard
people in Plymouth. Robust partnership working will enable delivery of the vision and
associated objectives whilst complementing action being taken nationally.



Page 199

9.48 Whilst we can impose and enforce traffic regulations
this is not the best way to improve our community spaces.

Some areas are lucky to have been developed as homezones.

The changes in these areas have been worked out by the
people who live in them with support and advice from
experienced professionals. However these types of
improvements are not appropriate for many areas and can be
very expensive. It is often the small improvements that can
make the difference between having the confidence to move
round your neighbourhood or not.

9.49 We need to encourage greater social responsibility.
For example, our first response to anti-social parking shouldn't
be to put in new signs or yellow lines or call in the parking
attendants; it should be to get car owners to be more considerate about their parking. We
can support locality working groups to provide education and empowerment in these situations.

9.50 The second part of our approach is to enforce the regulations which currently exist.
Working with the community through the locality working groups we can get a good
understanding of where best to target the limited resource we have. We would work with a
focus on education, giving warnings before issuing tickets and providing explanations. We
are well aware that the problems caused happen out of working hours so we would ensure
resource is available at these times.

Figure 9.1 PCC Approach to Road Safety

Monitoring and review

9.51 Establishing a framework for monitoring the outcomes of the activities undertaken
through the Local Transport Plan is not only vital to understanding successes but also where
we need to do things differently in the future. In light of the recent removal of the National
Indicator Set the Council is currently considering how best to monitor transport and
non-transport outcomes. Plymouth's final Local Transport Plan 2011 - 2026 will include a
completed framework.



Page 200

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Key references

Advice about Local Road Safety Strategies, July 2009, DfT

Area Assessment 2009

A Safer Way: Consultation on Making Britain’s Roads the Safest in the World, , April
2009, DfT

British Crime Survey 2004/05-2007/08, Home Office

EU Directive on Road Infrastructure Safety Management 2008/96/EC

Highways Economic Note 1. Valuation of the Benefits of Prevention of Road
Accidents and Casualties, 2005, DfT

Partnership Plan 2008-2011, Plymouth Community Safety Partnership

Place Survey 2008/09

Plymouth Basic Command Unit Survey 2007/08, Devon and Cornwall Constabulary
Plymouth Children and Young People’s Trust Plan 2008-11, PCC

Police Public Survey 2007/08, Devon and Cornwall Constabulary

Plymouth Road Safety Audit, Accsmap data for Plymouth from 1994-2009, PCC
Quality of Life Survey 2006, PCC

Strategic Assessment (Crime and Disorder) 2009/10, Plymouth Community Safety
Partnership

TellUs2, Spring 2007, Ofsted



Page 201

10 Programme and Performance Management

Summary

10.1  The transport schemes that we deliver must address the problems and needs identified,
and enable the Council to meet both its transport objectives and the objectives of the local
authority as a whole.

10.2  With pressures to deliver greater cost efficiencies, we will need to be clever and
creative to seek ways of driving down costs whilst still delivering benefits. This will be a big
challenge, but we are well placed to meet it.

10.3 All transport schemes need to be well thought out, carefully planned, refined through
consultation, cost effective, learn from past experiences and deliver real benefits. The
backbone to achieving this is effective programme management that has a series of
procedures, gateways and mechanisms to steer projects to success.

10.4 Performance management will enable the Council to measure progress in achieving
the outcomes that are important to improving the quality of life of the residents of the city,
and to best direct the resources available towards meeting those goals.

10.5 It is essential for every local authority preparing a Local Transport Plan to ensure
value for money and efficient delivery. This chapter outlines the way in which Plymouth City
Council will be managing it's transport investment programme. It examines how the investment
programme will be funded, how schemes have been evaluated and prioritised to deliver the
goals and objectives of the plan, and how the plan and risks will be managed.

10.6 At the time of producing this draft Local Transport Plan, the national position on
performance monitoring is changing - it is therefore not possible to present a detailed picture
of this. We will continue to develop the performance monitoring regime and it will be presented
in full in the final plan.

At the time of writing, the funding for local transport is uncertain. The highways
maintenance and integrated transport blocks funding that is provided by Government is
subject to a review and consultation process.

The consultation sets out with the premise that no changes will be made to the Integrated
Transport Block for the first year of this LTP. This has provided us with enough certainty
to present an Implementation Plan for Year One.

Available funding for the Implementation Plan



Page 202

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

10.7 The transport investment programme has been developed in outline for the life of the
15 year plan and in detail for the first three years of the plan. The investment programme is
challenging, but also realistic to be mindful of available funding. This will enable elements of
the programme to be fast-tracked, if additional funding opportunities become available, or to
be delivered in smaller packages over a longer period of time if less money is available.

10.8  Currently funding for transport programmes is made up from a number of areas:

e Central Government Support. This funding is issued in a number of ways, from needs
based allocations to bid-based grants.

¢ Integrated Transport Block is capital funding for small transport improvement schemes
costing less than £5 million. Allocations have been paid annually, since the year 2000
when local transport plans were first introduced. The funding, which is not ring fenced,
combines capital grant with supported borrowing.

 Highway Maintenance Block is capital funding for managing the road networks. This
includes resurfacing of roads and pavements, and maintenance or replacement of assets,
such as street lights, bridges, culverts and other structures. This is funded from supported
borrowing as part of the local transport funding process.

¢ Revenue funding for transport is received through DCLG’s Local Government Revenue
Support Grant (RSG), and from revenue generated from Parking within Plymouth and
invested in Transport. The revenue support grant funding is not ring-fenced to transport
and local authorities can spend it, as they see fit, to support local, regional and national
priorities in their area. Some transport measures cannot be funded by capital as they
leave no asset for the local authority. Examples of these include travel planning work,
cycle training and promotion, and developing and using transport models for developing
and securing capital funding for transport improvements.

e Developer Contributions. For many years, Plymouth City Council has delivered transport
improvements through securing contributions from developers. These come in a variety
of ways, and may include the developers building transport improvements themselves
as agreed and delivered in partnership with the council officers, or through direct financial
contributions to the local authority for delivery of agreed schemes. This second process
has recently been modified through the introduction of the Plymouth Development Tariff.
The main change introduced by the tariff is that the council can secure a fixed amount
of funding per dwelling (or per square metre for commercial developments) for investment
in the transport network. Full details of the Plymouth Development Tariff are set out in
chapters 3 and 4 of the Planning Obligations Supplementary Planning Document, which
is available to view on the Plymouth City Council website at:
www.plymouth.gov.uk/adopted_spd_planning_obligations.pdf.

Case Study - Funding

The East End Transport Scheme will provide improved transport infrastructure in the
East End of Plymouth that will boost the area's local economy and support the future
growth of the city. At the heart of the scheme is a new public transport corridor, which
will help improve the reliability of existing local bus services as well as provide for the



Page 203

future Eastern Corridor HQPT service. It is a good example of how the city council pulls
together funding from a range of sources in order to successfully deliver transformative
transport projects. Its total cost of £19.1m was met with:

£1.17m of Local Transport Plan Capital Funding

£9.78m form the Department of Communities and Local Government's Community
Infrastructure Fund (CIF)

£7.0m from the Regional Infrastructure Fund (RIF)*
£0.3m from New Growth Point (NGP) funding
£0.78m from PCC capital receipts

£0.07m from Local Transport Plan Revenue Funding

*RIF funding will be repaid over a number of years using future transport infrastructure
contributions from developers

Scheme prioritisation

10.9 Plymouth City Council will always strive to deliver a quality transport service and
achieve good value for money. As has been demonstrated so far in this plan, the service
that is provided is broad and delivering this to a finite budget requires identifying the most
important areas for investment for the city.

10.10 Plymouth’s Third Local Transport Plan has been developed in a different economic
climate to the previous two LTPs. There is also uncertainty in future available funding for
transport across most funding streams. The challenge will be to continue to support transport
users to make choices that will help tackle climate change, support economic growth and
deliver value for money.

10.11  For LTP2 we prioritised schemes by splitting the integrated block funding allocations
to themed priority areas and then assessed and prioritised schemes to deliver within those
themed blocks. This process, built on existing accepted techniques used nationally, regionally
and locally, included measuring the transport policy context, impact, value for money /
cost:benefit, deliverability, risk and delivery of wider corporate objectives. This process gave
an annual focus to delivering packages of measures, bringing more efficiency to delivery.

10.12 The scheme prioritisation process will continue to be developed and refined as part
of the work to reach the final LTP3. A key action is to consult on the theme areas before the
individual schemes can be assessed. It is hoped that the evolution of the scheme prioritisation
process will ensure its outcomes stand up to both internal and external scrutiny and challenge.
However, in its current form it can be used as a basis on which a delivery programme for
LTP3 can be established.



Page 204

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

10.13 In our final LTP3 we will have a three year Implementation Plan, with year one in
detail and years two and three in outline.

10.14 Plymouth Highway Services Contract

- 10.15 In December 2008, Plymouth City Council entered
%ﬁ“ in to a highways services contract with Amey LG Limited. This

Plymouth
=

seven-year contract includes for the provision of design,
construction, operations and maintenance functions relating
to highways services as operated by Amey LG Limited. The
contract can be extended by up to a further three years subject
to performance. It is anticipated that the total value of the
contract over the full ten-year term could be approximately

TRANSPORT AND HIGHWAYS
PLYMOUTH.GOV.UK/HIGHWAYS

£150m.

10.16  The purpose of the Partnership is to deliver improved and more efficient services
by adopting collaborative and integrated working methods, incorporating ‘Rethinking
Construction’ and ‘Lean Thinking’ principles.

10.17  Financial benefits will be realised through -

e Economies of scale of the provider - the Council will benefit from the provider’s buying
power.

e  Streamlining of procurement practices - costs and time spent procuring and managing
the supply chain will be saved as well as contingent pricing would be reduced.

e Savings in the costs, risks and time of IT implementation - the Council will largely be
implementing proven systems, which, in turn, have already been through the time
consuming testing and evaluation process.

e Standing charges from non-utilisation of staff will not be incurred.

e  Maximising staff efficiency, and

e  Shared back office systems and common research and development costs with other
public sector clients of the provider.

Programme management

10.18 The Council set up management systems which better enabled planning, monitoring
and control of the transport programme during the last 5 years. These are complimented by
improved corporate management systems which continue to support wider business
improvement and effective delivery.

10.19 Plymouth Transport and Highways has learnt a lot through the management systems
implemented in LTP2 and is keen to improve these further, particularly in the context of
tightening environmental and financial constraints.

10.20 The detail of structures, processes and responsibilities has been omitted from this
draft document. However, they have been developed and may be contained in an annex or
supporting documentation for the final LTP3.



Page 205

Risk Management

10.21 Risk can be defined as uncertainty of outcome from actions or events. The impact
of a risk can be positive or negative.

10.22 Risk can be looked at in two main ways: firstly, the likelihood of a risk happening
and secondly, the potential impact on the project if the risk did occur.

10.23 Good project management always includes risk management. This is a systematic
process of managing this uncertainty by identifying, assessing, communicating and controlling
risks. Risk management should ensure that a project's exposure to risk is kept at an acceptable
level in a cost effective way.

10.24  We have experience of managing risks in relation to undertaking transport projects.
We regularly undertake risk management by identifying and assessing new risks, reviewing
and monitoring existing risks, and taking action to mitigate against risks. It is an area that is
well understood, particularly the need to ensure that risks are managed within acceptable
levels, neither compromising nor unduly delaying the programme. Risks are identified and
managed, from scheme concept through to delivery.

10.25 Through the highways services contract, all schemes of value in excess of £50,000
are implemented under the target cost payment mechanism. This is a well-established process
within the construction industry that incentivises all parties to work together towards common
goals and to apply collaborative foresight to shrink risks to the successful delivery of schemes
to programme, to specified quality and within budget.

10.26  Under this arrangement, risks are identified and allocated to the party which can
best manage them. It is not commercially appropriate to pass risks to the contractor which
cannot be reasonably pre-estimated as the contractor would apply very large risk premiums
within his target price; this would not provide value for money (indeed, these events may
never occur) and may render the scheme unaffordable.

10.27 Aninitial target cost is agreed based upon the defined scope of work to be undertaken
together with any risks allocated to the contractor. The risks allocated to the employer remain
outside, and are additional to, this agreed target cost. As construction works progress, any
such risks which do occur are assessed to determine their financial and programme impact,
and the target cost is adjusted accordingly.

Performance Monitoring

10.28 Establishing a framework for monitoring the outcomes of the activities undertaken
through the Local Transport Plan is not only vital to understanding successes but also
highlights where we need to do things differently in the future. In light of the recent removal
of the National Indicator Set, the Council is currently considering how best to monitor transport
and non-transport outcomes. Plymouth's final Local Transport Plan 2011 - 2026 will include
a completed framework.



Page 206

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Implementation Plan

The Implementation Plan sets out the delivery plan for transport in Plymouth.

There are a number of factors which will affect the delivery of schemes and this plan is
designed to be flexible enough to be proactive and take advantage of opportunities whilst
still clearly showing that the investment is part of a planned approach.

This implementation plan is a companion document to Plymouth's Infrastructure Delivery
Plan (IDP) and Local Investment Plan (LIP). Together these plans will provide a co-ordinated
investment programme intended to better coordinate and deliver strategic outcomes for the
city. Whilst the IDP will show the infrastructure that has been identified as needed to meet
the city's growth agenda, and will address infrastructure delivery, the LIP is intended to
highlight and prioritise public sector investments.

It does include the strategic transport projects, generally those where funding through the
LTP integrated transport block is not feasible, that are also shown within this plan. PLIP is
not designed to show the more local schemes. These schemes, as a whole, contribute
significantly to achieving strategic outcomes but are too detailed to be shown in a strategic
plan.

Set out in Chapter 10 of the Local Transport Plan is information on the types of funding and
risk factors that influence scheme delivery. It is vital that Plymouth's transport networks are
improved to support new developments and manage their impacts. By putting in place a long
term plan for the delivery of these improvements, and developing them to a stage which
enables their delivery, the Council puts itself in an excellent position to take action. This
approach requires feasibility work to take place, using revenue funding as well as the capital
funding to deliver the scheme.

Not all of the changes will be delivered by the Council. The LTP sets out the changes that
are required in order to achieve the aspirations put forward by the strategy but delivery can
take many forms. Developers will play a key role in funding and delivering infrastructure,
particularly where developments have an impact on the transport network.

The plan below shows the anticipated timing of the delivery of the interventions set out within
the LTP strategy. This allows for the planning of the feasibility work, as well as setting out
the intentions of the Council to deliver or support the delivery of measures within time frame
specified. Inevitably this will change over the life of the strategy and it will be regularly revised
to reflect where changes have occurred and provide explanations for these changes.



Page 207

Auedq
pAIyL/yirel /Buipuny
awayosg
Jofepy/1oun0/d 1

d371/uswdojanag
Jofe|y / uoliepy 4on / Hoday
/ IBNdSOH pioyiad / 00d / YH
/ A8 2lwouoo3 pue Buluueld
00d / siojeladQ sng / He1d

d11 H?Lld
siojesadQ
sng / sedlnleg Aousbiswg / HR1d
wisiueyssn
fianeg Kianijaq 1oy 9jqisuodsay Apog

JUBWUOIIAUD
1811949 / ueuysepad anoidwi 0} Aleiql| pue wnasnw /

Aysianiun yinowA|d apisino |jIH YHoN 0} sjuswaroiduw| [
Ayoud snq

SAISUS)X3 U}IM JNOGEPUNOY SSOID YHON JO Uoljeinbijuoosy [
peoy ew|y Jo / pue peoy puenQ

uo aue| 8j91yaA Aouednaoo ybiy pue sng Jo sng apincld [

Ayjenb Jie abeuew o} uie|d Aspnpy 0} sjuawanoidw| o

(sjurensuoo 3809 / [eaisAyd uiyim) suonoalIp Yyiog Ul
IN0GEPUNOY UOPEBUBA| PUE IN0GEpUNOY pIojLIag Usamiaq

98¢V ay) Buoje aue| sng snonuluoo Jo uons|dwo) ®
Auoud snq
SAISUS)X8 UM INOQEpUNOY PIojiliaq JO uolelnBiyuoosy )

aue| 8|1y Aouednooo
yb1y / snq e apinoid 0} Jnogepunoy plojuisg pue

uopounr 861099 8y Usam}aq PUNOqyINOs 98gY USPIA )
uyor IS pue yep 1S yinowA|d obs|j0n

AjsJanlun ayy Jo ays ay} ybnouyy yul| SNg mau e apincid °
Joday ayj je Juswdojanap

[enuapisas panoidde ayy ybnouyy yui| sng mau e apinoid [
"Aa)|ep Joplo4 elA sjuswdolansp piopays

pue abebue ay} 0} eale pioyllaq ay) Bupjul| peol e pling [

‘Ayij1oey apry pue sued asnoys|iy

ay) Bulureurew Buipnoul JOpLII0D BY} UO B2IAISS BpIY
pue yied Bunsixa ay} jo Ayjenb sy} aroidwi pue urejulepy °

"IPM|OOA pue Blis aply pue

sled uoiounr ab1oag) ay) ‘eale piojlilad ayj O} 81U
Aj0 8y} Bunoauuod JopLI0D | JOH 8y} 0} sjuswaroldw| [
IOpLIOD UIBYHON

(LdOH

Buwaaijaq) Ano ayy
Jo sease A3y usaamjaq
suo1393uuo? anoidwy

sAemjoo} pue
sAema[oAo ‘speol ‘sainjonuls ‘sabpliq Buipnjoul paulejulew-|jam
S| 2INJONUISEIUI MBU pue Bulsixa ainsus 0} VYL

S}asse Jo adueuajuew
aAloeal ueyy
Jayjes aAnejuanald

juswabeuew ajnol Ajoud pue Juswabeuew juapioul
‘SHIOM }931}S JO UOIeUIpI0-09 Bulpn|oul Juswabeuew YIoM}aN

sjasse Bupsixa ano
J0 asn Japaq Bunjep

- g Jaydeyo -

ymoio
Buiuoddng

ajeasawi) AiaAljeq

ainse’d\

anssj| / yoeouddy

aAno3[qo d11
pue
|eoo podsuea)
|euoneN

920¢ - 110Z suoljusAidju] d11

SUOIJUaAId)U| wid] BuoT - ue|d uonejuawajdwy




Page 208

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Aued
pAIyL/yiaeL /Buipuny
awayos
Jofe/1oun0d/d 1

d3ai/
Aysianiun /uswdojanaq Jolepy / vH
/ Auedwo) anua)
A0 % A8Q 21wouoo] ‘Buluueld
00d / siojesadQ sng / HY Ld

Aued
pAIyL/yiaeL /Buipuny
awayosg
Jofey/1oun0d/d 1

d37/ wewdojersq

Jole|y / Or41:991 / 000 / YH
/ A8 olwouod3 pue Buiuue|d

00d / siojeladQ sng / Hg1d

Aued
pAIy1/yire /Buipuny
awayog
Jofepy/1ouN0/d 1

d3a1
/ wawdojeraq Jofep / 90A / VH
/A8 2lwouooT pue Buiuue|d

00d / siojeladQ sng / He1d

wisjueyosy
Kianijaqg

Kiannjaq Joj ajqisuodsay Apog

seale
Buunoqybiau pue a13uad A)I0 By} usSMIB] PUE B1USD
llgeswJad pue sajnol ueuysapad anoidw|
198.)S uolun / yoeoiddy uis)sap) pue
SNaJID sexelq ‘SSsouD saley) ‘ssol) YHOoN je suopounf
Jolew ayj Buipnjoul yJomiau peol dibajel)s aijuad A)o
ay} jo Aouaiolye |euonesado ayy anoidw pue pienbajes
sajnoJ Buisjjem a13us9 A)o pue NOS 8U} ‘YJoM}au snq [e20]
pue ] JOH 8y} 0} SUOI}OBUUO0D JBJ8] Y)IM Uofe)S YoOeod
pue uopjels Aemjies s,A110 8y} 8siuiepow pue aroidw|
abueyousjul snq jediound

s,A)10 8y} se 9|oJ s}l @dUBYUSD 0} Bpeled [eAoy aroidw|
ainjonujselju) piepues

1dOH jo AiaAljap 104 s8IN0J SN 843udd A)O 8SijlIold

anua) Ao

“Jewe| 8y} SSOIOB $8)N0J 9|oAd Budsuuo)

'sBuissouo Jewe] wisy Buoj Joy suondo Buluiwisleg
seale plojlllag pue anua)

Aj1D 0} Bupjull (s)auis apry pUE Hled J0pLIOD UIBISOAN
ysejjes 0}

213u89 A}10 BY) WO} JOPLI0D | JOH dY) dojansp o} Buinels

10pLUOD UIS)SOAN

1901)G J9}oX3 UO saue| snqg aAoidw|

Ayioud sng 8AISUB)XS YJIM INOGEPUNOY
umopape) pue peoy abplg elleT ‘ INogepunoy
nojydwod ‘sso1D ybnoloquels Jo uonelnbiuooey

6.EV U} UO aply pue yied Mau Jo Uoljelapisuo)
Ajunwwod mau
pJopays ay} Jo Jed se sue dea( je aply pue Yied MaN

peos ssedoe abebue] maN

uonoun( sue deaq jo uoneinbiyuodal a|qissod
syul| 8j9Ao panosduw|

peoy uswuequ3 ybnouyy Ajuoud sng panoidw)
aueT Juswyueqw3 ybnoiy) peod yul maN

pu3 ise3 ay) Ul wieal olgnd pasueyuy

Kepp eluApo Buoje aue| oijel) punogises maN
sjuswanoidwi (S133) swaydg podsuel] pug jse]

J0puJ0D uIs)seq

ajeasauwi] AiaAljeg

2Insea\

anssj| / yoeouddy

aARo3lqo d11
pue
|eoo podsues)
|euoiieN




Page 209

Buipung 000
ey 3JoMmisN /00a /0L /ey YJoMm}eN / HR® 1d
Buipuny

Iley YJompaN/Aued
paiy 1 /Buipuny
ue1n/di

A8( 2lwouod3 pue Buluueld DDd
/000 /20a/
d0dad /D001 / I'ed }omiaN / H®1d

Ayed payL/di

dgv / sejuoyiny Uod / 4371/ H®1d

VH / A2@ 2lwouoog pue Buluue|d
00d / siojesadQ sng / HY1d

Auedq
pAIyL/yirel /Buipuny
awayosg
Jofey/1oun0/d 1

VH / Ae@ 2lwouoo] pue Buluue|d
00d / siojesadQ sng / H9 Ld

wisjueyosy
Kianijaqg

Kiannjaq Joj ajqisuodsay Apog

SjyoUaq By} SSIWIXEW
0} [[EMUIOD PUE YINOWA|H O} YBNOIY) TMD Y} O UOIEDIIISS
Buipus)xa 0} |IeY HIOMISN WO} JUSWHIWWIOD Jo}eslb ¥oos

3400}s Bul||o] Mau a1ndas pue abelanod aul| [les Aunwwod
puajxa ‘saio Jofew 0y sawiy Asuinol aonpau ‘Ajjigeljal pue
Kousnbaly ao1n18s 8sealoul 0} siojelado |iel ayy pue diysiauned
Jley 0%9a yum Buppiom Ag syuswaroidwl yiomjau [1el yees

yinowA|d
10 Wod ybnouy} oiyely aseasoul 0} saiunoddo Buirosdw)

poduy yinowA|d 0} sjuswanoidwi poddng

yinowd|d puokaq
Suo|jes0| 0} }93UU0d
Ud1ym sylomiau

Bas pue Jje ‘|ies ‘peol
0} ssa@29e anosdw|

|oAel} 8|qeule)sns
asealoul 0} Julodio] pue yse)es ‘@BpUgAA| Hoo)sIne]

10} saInseaw sa210y) JopewsS Joj [enuajod ajeblisaaul ®
seale Juawdojanap Aay auj ul Ajjeroadsa

g ‘A}0 8y} SS0IOE SaINSeaw $a210yD JOHBWS dAISUB)U| °
SUOISSIW® BDIYaA 10 awl}

|eALLe uo paseq Aiea yoiym sabieys Buppied ayebiisanu| o

sanoey buibueyo

Jo Buppied se yons ainjonuiselul 8j0A0 pue ssaooe 9[0Ad

pue uewysapad ‘ainjonJiseljul Jodsuely o1ignd aoidwi
0} sjuswdojanap mau Aq papiroid saiiunpoddo axe| o

S8pOU 21WOoU0dd A8y pue seale

paAudap usamjaq pue Sapou DILIOU02S A8 Usam}aq Syul|
uo sylomiau Buisjjem pue NOS 8U} Ul JuaLw)saaul asijiold )

13)}9Q S9POU 2IWOU0IS A3y 0} Seale panudap

Uil Jey} pue 18)}9q SOPOU JILIOU0DS 8judd AJ9-Uou yul|

1ey) ‘asjuad Ao ay} ul Buieuiw.s) ||e uey) Jayjel Ao ay}
$S0.9 Jey} sejnod snq dojeasp 0} s1ojesado sng Ym JIop [
JoplI09-uou pue apim-Aj0

abejueape aaedwod ueuiew o} sabieyd

SNQ [e00] PUE BPIY PUE Mied UM Jus)sisuod sableyd

yum uoisinoid Aejs poys pue Buoj usamiaq aduejeq
wnuwdo Joy Ajijigejieae Bupued anuad Ayo abeuepy [}

s}lomjau peod oibajel}s ayy wolj

9|qISSa00E AjISea pue }salajul JO Sa)Is 0} SajnoJ uel)sapad

paubis-|jom ‘spoyjaw juswAed Ajpusiy-Jawolsnd jJo

ajeasauwi] AiaAljeg

92104 B Y}IM UES|D pue 81ndas ‘ulepowl aq o} syied Je) [
ylompaN
aJ0AD a1b81ens s,A10 8y} ul Ino s saynod Buispuoud
‘aljuao Ao ayy ul saynou 91949 jo Buipelbdn pue Aiaaljeg o
aARo3lqo d11
ainseapy anssj| / yoeouddy pue
|eoo podsues)
|euoiieN




Page 210

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Aued
plyL/ounod/d1n

Or41:8491 / sanHoyiny
Hod / Hodiy / DO / 1B 3HOoMIaN
/A3d
olwouoo3 pue Buluueld 90d / HB.Ld

Aued
payL/guel/d1n

ordigdgl
/ A8 dlwouoo3 pue Buluueld D0d
/ JuswdojanaQg

Joley /900 /000 / MO¥d / H8Ld

VH/Aued
PAIY L/IOUNOD/LE] /d 1] VH/HEL
Buipun 12y YI0M)9|
131 SOMIBN 00/ 001/ I'ey 3iomeN / He1d
Buipuny 290/ D0L / Iley YomeN / He1d
I1ey 3HomBN .
Buipuny ey yawdojanaq Jolely / 440a

ylompeN/Aued payL

/00d /001 /I'ed Y1oM}eN / H81d

asn
a|geus pue abeinodus 0} syJom}au asoy} 0} shkemaieb Buiroidw)

abplg Jewe| pue salua) julodio]
pue uajeg Junoly ‘|JAwal) ‘MUod ess ‘uone)s yoeood ‘uolnels
Aemjies ‘podiie ayy Joy syul| 1s119A0 Japaq - yJomjaN ajoAD o1bsjens

SUOI}0BUUOD PeOJ Yunl]

Aajlen
ubBla] pue pjayyieaH eia Jo uoydweys)O pue 3O0ISIAB| BIA S80I
auljulew aAljeuIs}|e Jo Juswaeleisulal ay) Woddns pue sebeinooug

Ajigedes Buiesado uiejuiew o0y Jo0qqy UCIMaN pue
J819Xg Usamjaq ysiimeq pue AajleA ox3 8y} ‘S|oAsT 18sIowos
By} Uo aul| 8y} Jo} uonosjold pooj) pue Jayjeam Jayaq ¥ess

3O0}SIAB| pUB UO}S|Y 189
uaamiaq aul| youelq Asjjep Jewe] ayj jo Buiuado-ai ayy poddng

18}9XJ JO 1seMm
sjuswanoidwi paads auj| pue Joqqy UOMaN Jo saujo| /oBpLgAA|
pue pJeays|] usamjaq sjuswaoueyus Buljjeubis ‘palisop 8o1AI8S
AlInoy ayy JaAljap 0} aye[siuuns 0} yinowA|d wouy aull As|iep
Jewe] ay) Buoje paiinbai aq [[IM S)USWSOUBYUS 8INjonJselju|
"walsAs 0118w, B 0jJUl SBOIAISS [IBJ JO dlomiau |eoo| dojaasQg

pJeA Aiel4 pue suj youelq Jayemaned
By} ‘uonouNp Yo03SIAB] Je ainjonJiselul ybialy |ies prenbajeg

slomiaN ueadoingy

suel] 8y} jo ued se |ies Aq Juswanow jybialy pajejal-pod
J9)eaib poddns pue sswn|oa jybialy Jajealb jo uoiepodsuel)
8y} 8|qeus 0} Aunod ay) Ul aiaymas|e pakojdwa plepuels QLA
2y} 0} 4939x3 0} dn abneb Buipeo [1es sy} 0} sjuswanoidwi ¥99S

Buipung
veaspomanyied | o R0 OO0 e
pay1/ouno/yuel /41 ‘
Buiuueld 00d /118y YOMdN / H® Ld
Aued payL 00a /001 / I'ed YIoMdN / H® Ld
D01/ Iled YIoMdN / H® Ld
Aued payy 000 /001 / I'eyd Y1oMdN / H®Ld
9202 9202 Leoe
wsiueysspy puofeg | -1zoz | -9L02
Kisnlieg Kiannjaq Joj ajqisuodsay Apog

S)SEO9I0) puBWAP SNHMD Paydjewun
S}l pue YJom}au [[eJ 8y} Ul snje}s sy Jo uoniubooal ul gnH
Jeuoibay - g A1oBaje) 0} uonels YinowA|d Jo UOEDLISSE[0a] %o9g

|[eMuI0) pue
yinowA|d o0} aAnenul Aemjiey Aeq-/ ey} 0} UOISUB)XS Ue %99S

9102
- loe

ajeasauwi] AiaAljeg

2Insea\

anssj| / yoeouddy

aARo3lqo d11
pue
|eoo podsues)
|euoiieN




Page 211

Aued payL/dii

VH / Buluueld 00d / H®Ld

Auedq
pAIyL/1ounod/d 1

slojelsuan)
br1e14 JofeN / 437/ VH /
000/004a/buiuueld 90d / H9.Ld

d3aT/HeLld

slojesauan) Jybiai4
Jole|y / wH / Auedwo) Bunesadpo
Wbreld |ley / V14 / [ley YiomeN
/ SenuoyINy Lod / A8( 21Wouod]
pue Buluue|d 00d / HR.Ld

Aued payL/ioUnog

D0L/2instaT g Wods ‘aiming 00d
/A9Q
ojwouoo3 pue Buiueld 00d / HB1d

wisjueyosy
Kianijaqg

Kiannjaq Joj ajqisuodsay Apog

(pJoyua / 813uad ANd) AjD 8y} Jo seale Aay
0] yJomau Aemybiy uo uonenodsued) ybialy Jo uoneIapIsuo)

sayis Buppied Auio] Jybiuieno pue sanuad
uolnquysip pue uolepljosuod Jybialy [enualod Jo uoesyluap|

1oA8|
Jeuoibal e je sanssi Jybialy uo sisuped yum Bupiom panunuo)

diysssuped Ayenp ybieid ysiigels3

spoob Jo Juawarop

wsno} a|qeulelsns buipoddng

ajeasauwi] AiaAljeg

2Insea\

anssj / yseoaddy

aARo3lqo d11
pue
|eoo podsues)
|euoiieN




Page 212

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

J1oUN0)

SOOIAISS [BIUSWLOIAUT OO d / HRLd

Aued pay1/Buipung
ue1n/dil

H®Lld

Ayed payL/di

sioyesadQ sng / HY1d

Aued payL/yuel

A8 2lwouod]
pue Buluueld 90d / H8.Ld

Aued payL /H®1d
Aued
PILL/JLEL 1PUNOD/LT H8.1d
Aued
PUILLL/JRI /JOUNOD/d LT H8Lld
A8Q
olWouod3 pue Buluueld 90d /He1d
dlii H81d
siojesadQ
dii sng / seoInies Aousblews / HY1d
Buipuny juein/d1 MMS / H®1d
d1i Hg81d
Aued pay/Buipuny MMS / HBLd
jueln/d1i
sanuoyIny

Buipund juels/d17

Hod / dgv / Buluueld 90d / H81d

S]0J)u0d BuIsual| Ixe} YBnoy} SajoIYdA JUSIOIYS [an) IO

suoleoo| ajeudoidde u ainjoniyselyul Aiessadau jo uoisinold
ay} pue uonowoud ybnouyy uoisindoud Jo sueaw aAeuIB) Y

uonowoud pue ainjonJiselul
‘Buiuueld Asuinol ybnoly) saoinies snq Jo asn Buibeinooug

wy (suuoy) 19buassed
Jad suoissiwa
uoqQJed adnpay

4a71 @41 ybnouyy buluued asn-pue| ui
uolesapIsuod swid ag 0} SNUUOD 0} SUOIEISPISUOD Hodsuel |

syjbua)| disj aonpay

ABojouyoa} mau Jo asn ay} ybnouyy |aAedy 1oy puewsp sy} Buonpay

uonowoud pue NOS ‘Buiuueld Asuinol ybnouyy buioAo abeinoou]

uonowoud
pue ainjonysespul ‘Buiuueld Asuinol ybnoiyy bunjiem abeinoou]

sdu} pasiiojow
JO Jaquinu ay} aonpay

s|qe|leAy
suondQ podsues)

ssa00.d 47 ybnouyy Juswdojanap ajendoidde poddng

uoisinoid podsuely
aAljeuss}|e Joj paau wis}-buol syenjeas pue sabueyd JoHUO|

sjoeduw| Joauipu|

sajnod aAeuss)e ueid pue Ayusp|

sjujod 8|gesaunA umouy e uofjoaijoid pue abeulelp aroidw|

a)jendoidde se sjesse podsuel Jo
90UBUSIUIEW PUE UOI}ONIISUOD J0} Suoleoloads Buisinel Japisuo)

ajeudoidde se a)ig aulel\ ueadoing salen)s3 ' punos YyinowA|d
8y} 109j01d 0} sainseaw Bulpn|oul suonoe JNVYMS Juawaldw|

juoupB}EM BY) J09)04d 0} SBINSeaW SpIAOId

SJUDAT JBY)Ea)\ DI9ADS
| saunjesadwa) 1ayBiH
| SasIy |aAaT eag

sjoeduw)
abuey9 ajewnn

- 9 u9)dey -

abueys
jewl|d
Buipjoey

wisjueyosy
Kianijaqg

9202
Kiannjaq Joj ajqisuodsay Apog

9202
- lzoe

X411
-9loe

9102
- loe

ajeasauwi] AiaAljeg

2Insea\

anssj| / yoeouddy

aARo3lqo d11
pue
|eoo podsues)
|euoiieN




Page 213

H®Lld

Aued pyL / 411

Buluueld 00d / H8.Ld

Aued piyL / 411

Buluueld 00d / H8.Ld

Ayed payL/di

H®Lld

slojesadQ IXe] pue sng / Hgld

wisjueyosy
Kianijaqg

Kiannjaq Joj ajqisuodsay Apog

suopoun| pasijeuBls 10} paau MaIADY

ainjonJselyul Ul sjersjew pajokoal Jo asn

$90IN0S Jamod dAeUIS) e BSIWIXeW 0} dinjonliseul Buiubisap
pue Jemod Jejos se yons s80Inos Jomod aAjeusa)je buisn

asn qg|nq 1ybi| ABisua-mo| ybnouyy Aouaioiye ABlous Jojesis)

ainjonJjselyul
Jo juudjooy
uogJed ay} Buonpay

Aoljod yo-auibua pue juswabeuew oiyed) ‘Buluiel)
JaALIp ybnodyy sajoiyan Buiisixa o asn juaiolys alow Bupely

ajeasauwi] AiaAljeg

2Insea\

anssj / yseoaddy

aARo3lqo d11
pue
|eoo podsuely
|euolieN




Page 214

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

d11 H®Lld

H®Lld

Aped paiyL/d1n H¥1ld
v.__c._.\\MH.ﬁ_mmn_._.\n_._.._ Nva/Held

Aued payL/d1n H®1ld

Ayed payL/di

S80IAIBS SUBIp|IyD
00d / $100YoS yinowA|d / He1d

Aued payL/1ounod

Buiuueld 00d / H®1d

dll

H®Lld

[ounod/Aued
payL/gHel/d1

000
/00a / sjuswdojanaq Jofepy / AeQq

oILou0o3 pue Buluueld 90d / HRLd

[PUN0Y/d 11 S9OIMISS Yied D0d / H®1d
dl1 Held
dl1 Held
EEMHMEE He8Ld
dll Held
H91d

9z0z | 9zoz | 1zoz

EM“M_.__MM_S_ Kuonijaq 103 ajqisuodsay Apog | P8 | - 10z | -oL0z

abueyouajul 10} saiiunpoddo apinoid 0} S)sIoAD Joy
sainsesw Jodsuel} o1ignd Jo asn paoueyus apiroid pue ajowold

SN / UOI}EOIISSE|D PEOJ pUB pasu
uelysapad uo Juspuadap adA} Buissolo ajeldoidde yJsow apinold

sa)no. }s119A0 / uenysapad uo Buiybi anoidw)

paJiedw Ajjiqow 8y} 1o} ainjonjseljul JaAleq

uoisinold Ayijioe) asn paseys 1119490 - uelysapad asealou|

ssao0ud 418 ybnouyy
pasijioud pue payuapl swwelboid [00YdS 0] SBIN0Y Jojes

8[0/A2 10 yjlem 0y saniunuoddo uo joedw asiaape ue
Sey aInjonJjSeljul Mau ou jey} pue sjuswdojaaap pue sawayos
MU Ul PaIapISU0D aJe s}sijoAo pue suel)sepad Jo spasu ainsug

uoljewJojul
awi} Asuinol spow Buipnjoul subis uonoalip BulpAd pue Buyiep

$8}N0J 9|9A2 JUBIUBAUOD
pue snonupuod ‘ajes ‘Ayjenb ybiy Buipinoid NOS jo Aianleq

ainjonJjseyul MaN

sa)noJ BulpAd
Jo Ued se syied Jo uoisnjoul a|qeus o} smejAq Yied o} abuey)

‘sjuswanoidwi pajebie) Jallep pue sniejs [ebs|
S Jomiau asijew.oy ‘ylomyau Aem jo spybu jo Ayoignd Jejeals

paUulBUIeW-{[9M S| INJONJISELUI MU pUE BulsIxe 8Insus 0} JINV.L

Aoijod auoz ydwog [ooyos Jeindod
8y} JO UOISUSIXd UE ‘sauoz se seale |enuapisal Buneubisap
Ul yoeoudde ainjoniiselyul winwiuiw Agq sajnoJ Jajes apinoid

sajnoJ Aoud asoyy Jo Juswdojanap ay} apinb ‘ejdoad
1e20] yum Buisiom apisbBuole ‘|im yoiym ylomiaN ajoAD oi6aiens

sajnou uelysapad pue
BuippAo Buipnjoul saynol |je asiold 0} ue|d Juswabeuel YJomaN

s)Jomjau Buljoho pue
Bupjjem Buiujejurew
pue Buibeuey

- £ Joydey9 -

funwwo)
AyyjeaH v

9102
- loe

ajeasauwi] AiaAljeg

2Insea\

anssj| / yoeouddy

aARo3lqo d11
pue
|eoo podsues)
|euoiieN




Page 215

H®Lld

J1esy [1ounod Ao

ay) pue ‘siojesado Ixe} pue snq ‘olignd ay) JO SiaquIBW [BNPIAIPUI
‘suoljesiuebio 1030as olignd pue ajeAld :s10}08s ||e Ag S8|2IYaA
JUSIDIYS-UOISSIWS 9I0W puUE |anj-1aues|d Jo asn ay) pyoddng

Jejnoiued ul sjuswiedap |BJuswUOIIAUS pue Jodsuel}
ay}) usamjaq anssi Ayjenb Jie ayj o} yoeosdde diysieuped ay) pue
ss8204d ue|d UO[OB PUB MBIABI ‘SSBSSE ‘JO}IUOW Y} SNURUOD

Ao
ay} Joy ABajens Ajjenp Jiy ue jo juswdojasp a8y} 0} 8)ngLuod

d1 S80IAISS [BJUSWIUOIAUT OOd / HB Ld
Buiuueld 00d /

S8OINIBS [BJUBWIUOIIAUT DOd / HB Ld

d11 S8OINIBS [BJUBWIUOIIAUT OOd / HB Ld

apIm-A}10 pue eale ue 0} oi10ads yjoq Ayjenb aie anoidwi
0} sainseaw BulAuapl SYINDY 10} SdYOV @onpold pue mainey

Ayenb e Buibeuepy

Aved piyl/dii

H®1ld

Uoljewlojul J4euad yjjeay pue adjoyd [9ABI} PaLIoU]
aiow a|doad a|qeus o0} wod obwA|d:mmm Jo uonowoud Jajesls)

Aved paiyL

Buluueld 00d / H8.Ld

papaau aiaym poddns buipinosd Bujuueld Asuinol
pasijeuosiad pue sue|d |aAel} 8oe|dyIom Ul uoisinoid BulpAo pue
Bupyiem apnjoul syuswdolansp [eluapisal pue sishojdws ainsug

Buipung jueis/d1

SHN / S10040S YinowiA|d
/ S90IAIBS SUBIPIIYD DOd / HBLd

SHN 8y} yum diysisupied ul
Bunjiom AbBajels [00YoS 0} [9ABI] JO SBPOIN d|qeulelsnS JaAlleqg

Aued payL/Buipung
ue1n/dil

H®Lld

sAauinol yJom pue |ooyds uo snooy e yum buipho
pue Bupyem jo uoisiroid uonewlojul pue uopowold Jsyesio

Buipund juein

dma
/ S9JIAISG sualIp|iyd 00d / H8 1d

awuwelboud Ayjiqesyig
13@ 8y} ybnoJyy uaip|iyd pue synpe Joy Bujuiel} 8|oAd aa1) JaAllBQ

H®Lld

sasodind yjjeay pue ainsi9)| 1o}
syuane Bulpho pue Bupjiem JaAlidp o} suonesiuebio Buiyiem pue
BujoAo poddns pue saliepuUNOg SSOIOB S8IN0J PB}OBUUOD ISAIIBP
0} sanoyIne pue salpoq ‘sdiysiauped Jayjo yum abebus ‘spasu

pooysnoqyBiau jJeaw 0} sawayds asijeuostad o} Ajunwwod
Y} Y)IM 3Jom ‘sawayds |enusjod aouanjul ‘[9Aed} 8|qeulesns
aAnoe ajowoud o} diysiauped BulpAD g Bupjiep, usigeisy

Bupjiom diysiauped

Aued
payL/guel/d1n

Buluueld 00d / H8.Ld

9oue||IdAINS
|einjeu yym suoieoo| juaujwoud e papinoid Bupued ajoAd pue
sjuawdojanap |eljuapisal je abeloys ajoAd pajosjoid Ajny alinbay

Aued
payL/guel/d1n

Buluueld 00d / H8.Ld

BuioAo pue Bupjjem 1oy Ajjeoiioads seale
padojaAap JBY}0 10 SBIIUNWILIOD UIY)IM PUE USSMIB] SHUl| SPIACId

wisjueyosy
Kianijaqg

Kiannjaq Joj ajqisuodsay Apog

ajeasauwi] AiaAljeg

2Insea\

anssj| / yoeouddy

aARo3lqo d11
pue
|eoo podsues)
|euoiieN




Page 216

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

sanLoyINy Hod / Hodiy / D0L /

Iley sHomiaN / Buluueld 00d / H8.Ld

Aued payL/muel

juswdolanaq
Jolely / Buluueld DDd / S@2IAI8S
[ejuswuodiaug 90d / HR 1d

Buipuny juels/d17

H®Lld

S30INISS [EJUSWIUOIAUT OOd / HBLd

H®Lld

Ayed payL/di

H®Lld

Aued payL/guel

juswdojanag
Jolepy / Buluue|d DDd / S@2IM8S
[E}USWUOIIAUT DDd / HB1d

Aved piyl/dii HB81d
Aued

payL/guel/din H8ld

H®1ld

H®1ld

wisjueyosy
Kianijaqg

Kiannjaq Joj ajqisuodsay Apog

paynuapi si 1ounod AlD 8y} Jo Ajjigisuodsal 8y} jou ainjonujseljul
Jodsuel} wouy asiou a1aym saipoq ajeldoidde ypum Jopn

sse004d Buluue|d uonoy
9SION VY43 Ul pauiuap! speod 1o} joedwi 8SI0U SARINWND
10} UOlEBIIW SPIEMO} 8INGLIU0D 0} JuswdojaAsp Juesyiubis MaN

ssao04d Buluue|d

uonoy 8sIoN YH43a ous Ag paynuspl speos esoyy 4oy Aoud
J8)ea1b paploye INg SaWsyds SdUBUSUIBW PUE UOI}ONJISU0Ia)
Aemabelies ||e 1o} paiapisuod s Buloeuns peol 9sIo0u-mo| 8insug

Kiesso0aU JI sjoedwl 8SI0U 82NPal 0} Sue|d Uy asioN dojeasq

aouepInb Bujuue|d uonoy asIoN Y 43Q 0} uoneal ul
swa|qoud asjou Jueoyiubis Buresaid ainjonuyselyul Jodsuedy Ayjusap)

Modsuesy
wo.y asiou Buibeuey

Jeo Jojow ajeald
2y} 0} saAljeuls)je se Bupjiem pue 9|9Ao ‘ulel) ‘snq ay} ajowold

waysAs Buluueld asn-pue| ayy pue ubisap Ajpusiiy-Aj|ejuswiuoiinud
ybnoJy} yoedwi siy) 8yebiiw pue eonpas ‘ebeuew pue Ajjenb
Jre uo juswdojaAasp Jo ajeas pue ubisap jo Joedw asiuboosy

8|ge|leA. [9ABI) JO ©POW pue 8)noJ ‘awi}

8y} IN0ge $8010Y0 PaLLIOoUl 810W 8xew o} 8|doad sjgeus o} SINA
pue eipaw snoueA ybnodyy sjeAs| uopnjjod pue sepow podsuel
JuBJYIP o} Sawi) AsuInol Uo UOIBWIOUI PSESIOUl BPIAOIH

Jodsuel; o1ignd pue suel)sapad ‘s)sijoAo

10} Ajuoud pue swajsAs yJuswabeuew opjel; snisuodsal-uoinjjod
olweuAp ‘Mmoy} oiyel) Apes)s pue panosdwi ybnodyy

spyauaq Ayjenb Jie Janiap 0} ABojouyosy mau asn pue Ayuap)

BuiAlp-009 ajowold

SYINDV YinowA|d 4o} siedioud auoz uoissiwg Mo Jopisuo)

ajeasauwi] AiaAljeg

2Insea\

anssj| / yoeouddy

aARo3lqo d11
pue
|eoo podsues)
|euoiieN




Page 217

H®1ld

Aued
payL/guel/din

sioyesadQ sng / HY1d

Aued
payL/guel/din

20L/
ey sHomieN / siojesado sng / He1d

dli

sioyesadQ sng / HY1ld

Aued payL/di

sioyesadQ sng / HY1ld

Aued
payL/yuel/din

Buluueld 00d / HRLd

Buiuueld 00d / H®1d

Buipun4 juein

H®Lld

Aued payL/Buipuny
ue1n/dil

saouabe HoQg
/ siojesadQ Ixe| pue sng /H9ld

Aued pay/Buipuny
ue1n/dil

dMma/Held

Aued payL/Buipuny

[endsoH pJiojiad / HY1d

elo/d1n
9202 9202 Leoe
wsiueysspy puofeg | -1zoz | -9L02
Kisnlieg Kiannjaq Joj ajqisuodsay Apog

yJomjau Jodsued) olignd |[BJBAO UIY)IM }I S)eBajul 0} JJOMm
pue uoisinoid podsuely Ajunwwod apimAo Jo Aousiole anoldul|

$801AI8S A)0-SS010 puE BBuEBYDIS)UI 0) paBU SSB| ‘salousnbaly sng
Jaybly ‘saoinias Aoy 0} Sa0IAI8S poob Ypim Ylomjau sng paoldul|

11 Buisn jo sousiledxa pue seoIAISS 0} S$800E dA0Idw
0} ‘Bunexon Jews se yons ‘ainjonJsesyul Jodsuedy olignd JaAlieq

pueiq o9wA|d 8y} o
Jsow ay} Bupjew pue ‘e|A}s a|gejawi} Jo Uofjesiuow.ey pue eipaw
0]U0J}09|3 Jo asn ‘sdew snq onewwelbelp se yons ‘uoijew.oyul
Jadwis ypm sao1nIas podsuely olignd jo Bupesiew pajebiey aiopy

diysiauped sng AJejunjop e spiemoy Bupriom
‘siojesado snqg pue |1ouno) ay} usamiaq bupom diysisuped
ybnouy} diysisuped juswanoidwy Ajijenjound sng ayy Jaaleqg

Jodsuel) olqng

SoI|Io.) IO S80IAISS ‘sjuswdojensp
M3U UM Pajeloosse sjuswanoidull SS800. JO UOISIAOIH

wajsAs Bujuueld pue| ayy ybnoiyy puej jo Ayjiqejiene
oy} Bunoas Aq ainjonuseljul Jodsuely adueyus pue pienbajes

Bujuue|d asn pue]

Buiuiesy Jo uswAhojdwe
0} Jalileq e s| Jodsues) woym Joy ajdoad pakojdwaun oy Buluiely
pue ajoA2 e sapiroldd Jey) ‘ewayos syureyig ayy Joy oddng

Buio/Ao pue Bupjjepy

's@n|o Jeo pue saoIAIaS Y)eay [eo0]
‘Buiurely ]| ‘seolaias snq Buiwiy-al SE YoNns sainsesw snoUeA
UIBJUOD [[IM UDIYM Sue|d Uonoy A)jIqISse00y Jo Juswdojanaq

Buiom
diysieuped Ajjunwwod [e20] pue |0oyss pue €102-010Z ueld
uonoy Ajj1qissa20y s,8/doad Bunoj ay) Jo AJaAllap panuiuod

ybnouy Buiutes pue uoneonpa ‘JuswAiojdwe 0} sse2e Buinoidw|

Jasn pua ay} djay 0}
sjuaswanoidwi BuiAyuapl pue ueld uonoy Aj|iqissaooy [edsoH
pJojliaq auy o Asanijap ybnouyy a1eo yyeay o} ssaooe Buiroidw)

Bujuueld Aj1qissaddy

- g Joydeyo -

funuoddo
jo Ayjenb3
Bunowoud

9102
- loe

ajeasauwi] AiaAljeg

2Insea\

anssj| / yoeouddy

aARo3lqo d11
pue
|eoo podsues)
|euoiieN




Page 218

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

anuaAal pue |eyded yjoq sainseaw ajeldosdde
Juswaldwi pue sa)Is J8)sn|d JUSPIOOE JO MBIASI [eNUUE SNUIBUOD

'$ISY

10ads-}sijoA210)0W Jo uoisiAoid JO STSY JO ash isijoAoiojow
a)eblysanu| "saue| snq Jo asn jsijoAdiojow Ulejule "NOS
Buole s1s11940 |epad 10} saul do}g pasueApy Jo AlaAllBp anuluoD

uopsabuod pasealoul asned Jo Jodsuel)

o1|gnd Japuly ‘sajes asuodsal ajo1yan Aouablawa Mo|s Jou ||Im
sa)noJ o169)el)s 10} SaINSE| * Ue|d Juawabeuey YiomjaN ay) Aq
paysi|ge}sa (UolleuIquod & 10 8JnNoJ PeO| [ewloude Jo Jodsuel)
o1ignd ‘@o1nlas Aouablawe oiba)elis ‘|enuapisal) ‘Ayotelsiy aynod
ayy ybnoly) paunuapi sainseaw Ayajes ajeudoidde jo Aianieq

AJunwwod Jayjo pue says JUapIdoe umouy ‘spooyinoqyblau
paaldap AJ|eio0s ‘,sunJ jel, umouy ‘sajnos [0oyos uo Apoud
yum syoaye Buiwies ouel) [edneu Buipinosd Aq syeauls Jojes

Aoljod auoz ydwog |ooyos Jejndod
9} JO UOISUB)Xa Ue ‘Sauoz se seale |ejjuapisal Buneubisep
ul yoeoudde ainjonuisesyul wnwiuiw Aq S8IN0J Jajes apInold

senss| A}1IN28s pue suonIpuod
JBY)ESM 0} DOUSI|ISBI IO} }O8YD 0} papuaixa ainpaooid Buiipne ayy
ypm ubisap ainjoniisesyul ojul pajelodiooul Ajunoss pue Ajejes

Bupeauibua
pue ainjonssesyu|

adljod 8y}
0} slamod juawaolojus Buiyied |10UNOD JO UoISUBIX® BjebisaAu]

S9|2IYBA JUSWSDI0JUD
Kyajes ajiqow jo uonesado ay) Aq asn S0IYaA [e100s-ljue pue
suone|nBas oesy Buioiojus ul Ayjiqixayy Jeyealb asn pue ayebisau]

juawaoiojuy

sainseaw Joj Bujuoseal uo uoisiroid uolewoul Joyesls)

d1n 80l10d / H®1d
Auedq

payL/pier/d1 H31d
d1n H91d

Aued payL/di 80110d / H®1d
Aued payliuel/din H91d

d1n 20110d / H®1d

d1n 80110d / H®1d
Buipun juei/d17 H91d
H91d

Buiuueld 00d

/ S9JIAISS sualIp|iyd 00d / He 1d

saAnenul uiuue|d
[9ABl} 90E|dM}IOM PUE [9ARI} |00YDS 8U} Joj Hoddns panupuo)

H®Lld

uonowoid [oAl} AOY

[eydsoH plojiieq /
HoqQ / sedinieg Aousbiawg / He1d

Ayolignd pue Buluiely ‘uolyeonpa Ajajes peod Jaaljap 0} 8o1jod ay}
Buipnjoul suonesiuebio A}ojes peod Jaylo Yjim YI0m O} anuiuoD

juawabeinooua pue
Bunpjiom diysiauyied

- 649ydeyo -

Aunoeg
pue Ajajes
18309 0}
Bupnquyuo)n

wisjueyosy
Kianijaqg

Kiannjaq Joj ajqisuodsay Apog

ajeasauwi] AiaAljeg

2Insea\

anssj| / yoeouddy

aARo3lqo d11
pue
|eoo podsues)
|euoiieN




Page 219

Aued
payL/guel/d1n

H®Lld

3sl paAlgoJad jo suolenyis @onpal pue Bujuueld-Asuinol
90UBYUS 0} Sepow Hodsuel} Juaiayip Joj uolewlojul
|JoAel} awiy-jeas Jo Ajjiqe|ieae Jayealb apinoid pue abeinoou]

H®Lld

Jnoineyaq |[ewsouge pue snoioidsns BulAyuapi Joy saaelado
Jodsuely Ag sesawed aoue||IdAINs Jo asn Jajealb ajebisanu|

Aued payL/di

slojesadQ Ixe] pue sng/ Held

INOIABYS(Q JBALIP PUE SUOHIPUOD
peou Jood Jo uoieduapl! ‘uoiewIoul [9Ael} Jajealb apiroid
0} 0} ABojouyoa} Buibbej-a|21yan Jo asn paosueyus a)ebisanu|

Auedq
payL/guel/d1n

H®Lld

}lomau
Hodsuel} Jajes parosdwl JaAI[BP 0} SWa)sAs Juswabeuew olyel)
aAlsuodsal-anss| pue oiweuAp apiroid 0} ABojouyos) mau asn

KBojouyoa]

wisjueyosy
Kianijaqg

Kiannjaq Joj ajqisuodsay Apog

ajeasauwi] AiaAljeg

2Insea\

anssj / yseoaddy

aARo3lqo d11
pue
|eoo podsues)
|euoiieN




Page 220

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Implementation Plan - Year One

The implementation plan for the first year of the LTP has been developed by considering
those schemes which need to be continued from LTP2 and those schemes which need to
be commenced in for delivery of LTP3. As there is not a fundamental shift in direction of the
strategy those schemes which are carried over also represent a contribution to achieving
LTP3 objectives.

The table below shows the schemes that have been prioritised for the first year of the Local
Transport Plan.

Implementation Plan 2011 - 2012

Delivery
National Timescale Body Delive
Transport Goal | Approach /Issue Measure Responsible Mechangm
| LTP Objective 2011 - | for Delivery
2012
Capitalised Maintenance
Bridges and Structures PT&H LTP
. Preventatlye rather | Surfacing (roads, footways, PT&H LTP
Supporting than reactive cycleways)
Growth maintenance of
assets Street Lighting PT&H LTP
Traffic Signals PT&H LTP
Contributing to Infrastructure and Health and Safety improvements
Better Safety and . : - Removing potential hazards and PT&H LTP
. engineering . .
Security improving safety on the network
Integrated Block
Cattedown Junction Improvement .
Improve. - Design year 1, delivery years 2 PT&H LTP/ Thqu
connections Party / Tariff
and 3
between key areas
of the city .
o East End Transport Scheme LTP / Third
Supporting (Delivering HQPT) planned funding PT&H Party / Tariff
Growth
Improve access to
road, rall, airand o) 444 Railway Station - PT8HT 1 1P/ Third
sea networks which intearated access packaqe Network Part
connect to locations 9 P 9 Rail / TOC y
beyond Plymouth
. . . Improving Air Quality - Stoke /
Managing air quality Mutley Plain / Royal Parade PT&H LTP
A Healthy M ing and
Community anaging and . PT&H/PCC LTP /
maintaining walking | Improved Pedestrian and Cycle .
. : Parks /PCC Council /
and cycling Access to Life Centre . .
Planning Third Party
networks




Page 221

Delivery
National Timescale Body Delive
Transport Goal | Approach /Issue Measure Responsible Mechangm
| LTP Objective 2011 - | for Delivery
2012
Equality of Access Programme -
Focused on improving access for PT&H LTP
disabled people
New infrastructure | Strategic Cycle Network - Phased PT&H LTP / Third
delivery Party / Tariff
Neighbourhood Walking and PT&H LTP / Third
Cycling Infrastructure Party
Public Transport Information - PT&H/SW
. - . local LTP
Promoting Contribution to Traveline authorities
Equality of Public transport
Opportunity Public Transport Innovation - PT&H / Bus
. - LTP
smart ticketing Operators
Neighbourhoods Safety and Minor LTP / Third
PT&H
_— Works Party
Contributing to
Better Safety and Infrgstruc?ture and
Securit engineering Neighbourhood 20mph Zone -
y Trial neighbourhood in Whitleigh PT&H LTP
with potential citywide roll out
Revenue
Improve access to | Tamar Crossings Study -
Supportin road, rail, air and Continuation of study to PT&H / Council /
Grgv?/th 9 sea networks which | understand the future TB&TFJC/ Third Part
connect to locations | requirements of the Tamar CCC/HA y
beyond Plymouth crossings
ldrin;g'tgafg?g;}cve Feasibility Studies - Development
All proJ Y| of schemes for delivery in years 2 PT&H Council
between 2012 and and 3
2014
Smarter Choices - Development
. . of packages of non-infrastructure
Tackling Climate | Reduce Fhe ”“T“ber measures which improve travel PT&H Councll
Change of motorised trips .
options and encourage
sustainable choices
Promoting Accessibilit Continuation of accessibility
Equality of lannin y planning work to increase equality PT&H Council
Opportunity P 9 of opportunity




Page 222

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Abbreviations

Abbreviations

AAP — Area Action Plan

ABP — Associated British Ports

AONB — Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty
AQAP — Air Quality Action Plan

AQMA - Air Quality Management Area

ASL — Advanced Stop Line for Cyclists

BVPI — Best Value Performance Indicators
CAA — Comprehensive Area Assessment
CCTV - Closed Circuit Television

CEO - Civil Enforcement Officer

CIF — Community Infrastructure Fund

CIL — Community Infrastructure Levy

CIP — Corporate Improvement Priority

CO, — Carbon dioxide

DAN — Disability Action Network

DCLG - Department of Communities and Local Government
DEFRA - Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs
DfT — Department for Transport

EETS — East End Transport Scheme

EU — European Union

GDP — Gross Domestic Product

GPS - Global Positioning System

GWML - Great Western Main Line

GWRUS - Great Western Route Utilisation Strategy



Page 223

HA — Highways Agency

HGV — Heavy Goods Vehicle

HM — Her Majesty’s

HMS — Her Majesty’s Ship

HQPT — High Quality Public Transport

IDP - Infrastructure Delivery Plan

ITS — Intelligent Transport Systems

KSI — Killed or Seriously Injured

LDD - Local Development Documents

LDF — Local Development Framework

LES — Local Economic Strategy

LIP - Local Investment Plan

LTP — Local Transport Plan

LSOA - Lower Super Output Area

MfS — Manual for Streets

MOD — Ministry of Defence

MOT — Ministry of Transport

MOVA - Microprocessor Optimised Vehicle Actuation
NaCTSO - National Counter Terrorism Security Office
NGP — New Growth Point

NHT — National Highways and Transport customer satisfaction survey
NI — National Indicator

NMP — Network Management Plan

NO, — Nitrogen dioxide

ONS - Office of National Statistics

PACT - Police And Communities Together



Page 224

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

PCC — Plymouth City Council

PCT — Primary Care Trust

Pm10 — Particulate matter of less than 10 millionths of a metre in diameter.
PPOV — Plymouth Points Of View survey

PROWIP — Public Rights Of Way Improvement Plan
RIF — Regional Infrastructure Fund

RSG — Revenue Support Grant

SCN — Strategic Cycle Network

SFRA — Strategic Flood Risk Assessment

SPD - Supplementary Planning Document

SSSI - Site of Special Scientific Interest

SW — South West

SWAMP — Surface Water Action Management Plan
TAMP — Transport Asset Management Plan

TPS — Transport Planning Society

TTWA — Plymouth Travel To Work Area

UKCIP — UK Climate Impacts Programme

VMS - Variable Message Signing

WHO — World Health Organisation



Page 225

Glossary
Glossary

AAP - AAPs are development plan documents within the Local Development Framework
(LDF) that focus upon a specific location or area subject to conservation or significant change.
This could include a major regeneration project or a growth area. They provide an important
mechanism for ensuring development of an appropriate scale, mix and quality. They also
serve to protect areas sensitive to change, and aim to resolve conflicting objectives in areas
subject to development pressures.

Accessibility Action Plan — Plan produced to improve peoples access to jobs and services

AQAP Air Quality Action Plan - Once an Air Quality Management Area has been declared,
the council must develop an action plan which sets out how the air quality objectives will be
met.

AQMA Air Quality Management Area - An AQMA must be designated under the Environment
Act 1995, when, as a result of an air quality review, it is identified that any air quality standards
or objectives are not being achieved in a particular area.

Barne Barton Accessibility Action Plan — Accessibility action plan focussing on the Barne
Barton area of the city

Bikeability — Bikeability is the Cycling Proficiency Test for the 21st century, designed to give
the next generation the skills and confidence to ride their bikes on today's roads. There are
three Bikeability levels and children will be encouraged and inspired to achieve all three
levels, recognising that there is always more to learn and to enjoy on a bike.
http://www.bikeability.org.uk

Bike2Work — Government initiative enabling purchasers of new cycles to be tax exempt.
http://www.bike2workscheme.co.uk

CAA - Comprehensive Area Assessments were set up as a more complete assessment
process of local services after Comprehensive Performance Assessments (CPA), which only
assessed local councils, were abolished in 2008. CAAs have now also been abolished.

Core Strategy —The LDF Core Strategy is required to set out the key elements of the LDF
- its vision and strategic objectives, its spatial strategy, the core policies that apply to the
whole area, and a monitoring and implementation framework. The time horizon will be at
least ten years. It is one of the first Development Plan Documents to be prepared and other
documents must be in conformity with it.http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/Idfcorestrategy

Development Guidelines SPD — provides a detailed set of guidance notes and considerations
to assist with negotiations on planning applications covering a wide range of development
issues.http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/ldfdevelopmentguidelines




Page 226

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Derriford Hospital Accessibility Action Plan (2010-2013) - This Plan deals not just with
access to health care, but also promotes 'healthier' transport choices. It contains various
targets including reducing the city's carbon footprint, increasing use of public transport,
walking and cycling, and reducing gaps in life expectancy between neighbourhoods.

Eastern Corridor — relates to the area of the city from the City Centre to Langage including
Plympton, Plymstock, Sherford New Community and Deep Lane / A38 interchange

Eddington Transport Study (2006) — Sir Rod Eddington was commissioned by the Treasury
and the Department for Transport to look at a long term strategy for the UK’s transport
infrastructure, tied into the UK’s productivity.
hitp:/odlediions.europarchive.org/ine/20100408160254hitpAmwwvdit goviukiaboutistrategyiransporistrategyleddingionstudy/

First Devon and Cornwall- Public Transport operator

First Great Western — Train Operating Company for Plymouth Railway Station and the
suburban stations

Green Infrastructure Delivery Plan — developed and produced by the stakeholders involved
in the protection and promotion of natural spaces including the City Council, National Trust,
Natural England, Environment Agency and neighbouring authorities. It identifies the strategic
interventions that need to be delivered by 2021 that will allow the city to grow sustainably,
by creating new, enhancing existing and linking successfully existing Green Infrastructure
assets. http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/gideliveryplan

Index of Multiple Deprivation —a measure of multiple deprivation at the small area level.The
factors taken into consideration are income, employment, health and disability, education,
skills and training, barriers to housing and services, crime and living environment.

Infrastructure Delivery Plan - a plan (currently under development) showing the infrastructure
that is needed to meet the city's growth agenda and addressing the requirements for delivery.

ITS - comprises hardware and software information systems technologies used to tackle
transport congestion and other problems.

Local Development Framework (LDF) - is the portfolio of documents that will replace the
current Local Plan by 2007. It will include Local Development Documents such as a Core
Strategy, Specific Allocations of Land, Area Action Plans (if needed), Proposals Maps, General
Development Control Policies and Supplementary Planning Documents.

Local Economic Strategy 2006-2021 - This identifies the city as having a fragile and
under-performing economy, and highlights that Plymouth must improve its economic
performance, become more competitive and diversify its economic base in order to raise
incomes and tackle economic and social exclusion. The report also states that Plymouth
must change its perception of peripherality through better connectivity with other core cities
and regional centres in Cornwall and Devon, and improve its image by promoting its cultural
drivers and the city's attraction as a place to live, work and play.



Page 227

Local Investment Plan - a plan highlighting and prioritising public sector investments to
better coordinate delivery of strategic outcomes.

Lower Layer Super Output Area - SOAs are a new geographic hierarchy designed to
improve the reporting of small area statistics in England and

Wales. Until now the standard unit for presenting local statistical information has been the
electoral ward / division. However, this had drawbacks, such as the size of wards varying
from less than 100 to over 30,000 residents and their boundaries being subject to regular
changes. It was therefore decided to develop a range of areas that would be of consistent
size and whose boundaries would not change. These were built from groups of the Output
Areas (OAs) used for the 2001 Census, and were named Super Output Areas.

Major Schemes — Transport schemes costing greater than £5 million. Need to demonstrate
positive benefits to cost ratios In transport planning terms a major scheme a transport scheme
with a gross projected cost of greater than £5m.

MOVA — Microprocessor Optimised Vehicle Actuation developed to enable more efficient
and responsive traffic signal control.

National Transport Goals — The DfT identified 5 key areas that LTP’s should contribute
towards. These being: supporting economic growth, tackling climate change, promoting
equality of opportunity, better safety, security and health and improving peoples quality of
life.

Network Rail — Body with ownership and responsibility for the UK railways
NMP — Network Management Plan

Northern Corridor — relates to the area of the city from the City Centre to Woolwell including
Manadon interchange, Crownhill and Derriford

Passenger Focus — Independent body that assesses satisfaction with public transport
http://www.passengerfocus.org.uk/

Peak Oil — this is the point of maximum oil production, after which extraction
permanently declines

Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing SPD — This SPD sets out the City Council’s
approach to planning obligations and affordable housing when considering planning
applications for development in Plymouth. The objective of the SPD is to provide clarity
regarding the basis on which planning obligations and affordable housing will be sought and
provides details as to the type of obligations that may be required, sets out formulae and
thresholds where appropriate and indicates the relative importance that the Council might
place on the varying types of obligation in different parts of
Plymouth.http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/planningobligations2008




Page 228

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Plymouth Development Tariff — The Planning Obligations and Affordable Housing SPD
established the use of a tariff to charge for planning obligations. The tariff provides a clear
and predictable system for applying planning obligations to each planning application. The
tariff is based on the net increase in housing or commercial floor space created by a
development.

The tariff identifies costs as a result of increased demand on local infrastructure and services
created by new housing and commercial developments.

Plymouth 2020 Local Strategic Partnership (LSP) — A local strategic partnership brings
together at a local level the different parts of the public sector (such as the local council, the
police and health service) the private sector (local businesses) and third sector (community
and voluntary organisations) so that common issues such as health and well-being can be
tackled together.Plymouth’s LSP is called the Plymouth 2020 LSP because of the commitment
to achieve its vision by the year 2020.
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/homepage/communityandliving/plymouth2020

Plymouth Metro — Increase use of the local rail network

Plymouth Neighbourhood Renewal Floor Target Action Plan - Health (2006) recommends
a focus on neighbourhood health inequality with an emphasis on primary and secondary
prevention and the treatment of cancers and circulatory disease in Stonehouse, North
Prospect, Keyham, Devonport, Barne Barton, Efford, Honicknowle and St Budeaux in
particular.

Public Rights of Way — A public rights of way (PRoW) is a way over which all members of
the public have a right of passage. Public rights of way are legally highways and are afforded
the same provisions under the Highways Act 1980 as any highway maintainable at public
expense. There are 4 types of public rights of way: footpath, bridleway, byways open to all
traffic (boats) and roads used as public paths. http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/prow

Quality Contract Schemes (QCS) -The approach of implementing a QCS represents a
radical departure from the current deregulated framework under which bus services are
currently provided in the UK (except London). The creation of a QCS is a statutory process
where a local authority, or two or more authorities acting jointly, determine what local bus
services should be provided in the area to which the scheme relates and any additional
facilities and services which should be provided in the area. QCS can have a substantial
effect on the operators of existing services within the area of the scheme and therefore require
the preparation of a demonstrable, evidence-based case involving extensive consultation, a
fact which alone has contributed to no local authority so far actually exercising these powers.
The Council is currently unable to demonstrate that a QCS would be in the public interest
the implementation could have adverse impacts on operators which will have to be duly taken
into consideration by the local authority.

Quality Partnership Schemes (QPS) - Introduced by the Transport Act (2000) as means
by which a local authority could agree to invest in improved facilities at specific locations
along bus routes, such as bus stops and bus priority lanes and that bus operators who wish
to use these facilities must agree to provide services of a particular standard including new



Page 229

buses or enhanced driver training standards. Now included within QPS since the Transport
Act (2008) as part of giving local authorities wider and stronger powers, is the ability to include
the specification of service frequencies, timings and maximum fares as long as those
requirements are not deemed unreasonable and where there are no admissible objections
from other relevant bus operators.

Section 106 — Section 106 agreements are legal agreements between a planning authority
and a developer, or undertakings offered unilaterally by a developer, that ensure that certain
extra works related to a development are undertaken e.g. junction improvements or
contributions are collected to cope with increased traffic movements caused by the
development.

Smarter Choices (DfT) - techniques for influencing people's travel behaviour towards more
sustainable options such as encouraging school, workplace and individualised travel planning.
They also seek to improve public transport and marketing services such as travel awareness
campaigns, setting up websites for car share schemes, supporting car clubs and encouraging
teleworking.http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/sustainable/smarterchoices/

Sustainable Community Strategy — This strategy focuses on the long-term sustainability
of our city and our plans for future generations. It sets out how Plymouth will fulfil its potential
to become one of Europe’s most vibrant cities and how, by working closely together, we can
achieve greater things for the people who live, work or visit us in Plymouth.
http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/sustainablecommunitystrategy

Sustainable Neighbourhoods Development Plan Document - These plans will show all
the major sites not included in the Area Action Plans that might be required to meet Plymouth’s
needs for homes, jobs, shopping and recreation — as outlined in the LDF Core
Strategy.http://www.plymouth.gov.uk/Idfsiteproposals

Sustainable Travel Towns (DfT) —5 year project aiming to demonstrate the effect a sustained
package of '‘Smarter Choice' measures can have when coupled with infrastructure
improvements. Darlington, Peterborough and Worcester were the towns selected for the
project.http://www.dft.gov.uk/pgr/sustainable/demonstrationtowns/sustainabletraveldemonstrati57 72

TamarValley Line — Plymouth to Gunnislake railway line
TAMP — Transport Asset Management Plan

Trans-European Network(TENS) — Construction of the trans-European transport network
(including road, rail and sea links) aims to improve the

interconnection and interoperability of national transport networks. It is regarded as contributing
to the implementation and development of the EU Internal Market, the re-enforcement of
economic and social cohesion, increased economic competitiveness and more balanced
and sustainable development of the European Union.

Travel To Work Area — A broadly self-contained labour market area usually focused on an
urban employment centre. Plymouth’s TTWA broadly covers the area from Liskeard in the
west, Tavistock in the north and Kingsbridge, Ivybridge and Totnes in the east.



Page 230

Plymouth's Third Local Transport Plan - Draft for Consultation

Western Corridor — relates to the area of the city from the City Centre to south-east Cornwall

www.plymgo.com — jouney planning and healthy lifestyle website




Page 231



Local Transport Plan 201 1-26
Published by Plymouth City Council
October 2010

CONTACT

Department of Development and Regeneration
Plymouth City Council

Civic Centre Plymouth PLI 2AA

Tel: 01752 668000

Itp@plymouth.gov.uk

www.plymouth.gov.uk

This information is available in other languages and formats,
please call: 01752 668000



	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	6 Overview and Scrutiny Management Board - A Focus on reducing Teenage Conception Rates in the City.
	7 Scrutiny developments
	8 SHORELINE MANAGEMENT PLAN REVIEW DURLSTON HEAD TO RAME HEAD
	Shoreline Management Plan Review Appendix 1
	Shoreline Management Plan Review Appendix 2
	Shoreline Management Plan Review Appendix 3

	9 MOUNT EDGCUMBE JOINT COMMITTEE - CONSTITUTION
	Mount Edgcumbe Joint Committee Constitution report

	10 SERVICES FOR CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE BASIC NEED PROGRAMME
	11 PLYMOUTH'S THIRD LOCAL TRANSPORT PLAN - CONSULTATION DRAFT

